

EOS R6



Advanced User Guide

These operating instructions assume you are using EOS R6 firmware version 1.6.0 or later.

Contents

Introduction
Package Contents
Instruction Manuals 12
Quick Start Guide
About This Guide 17
Compatible Cards
Safety Instructions
Handling Precautions
Part Names
Software
Preparation and Basic Operations
Charging the Battery
Inserting/Removing Batteries
Inserting/Removing Cards 46
Using the Screen 51
Turning on the Power
Attaching/Detaching RF Lenses
Attaching/Detaching EF/EF-S Lenses 61
Using the Viewfinder
Basic Operations. 66
Menu Operations and Settings
Quick Control
Touch-Screen Operation. 86
Shooting Mode
A+: Fully Automatic Shooting (Scene Intelligent Auto)
A+: Fully Automatic Techniques (Scene Intelligent Auto)
Fv: Flexible-Priority AE
P: Program AE
Tv: Shutter-Priority AE
Av: Aperture-Priority AE

	M: Manual Exposure.	106
	B: Long (Bulb) Exposures.	109
Sho	oting and Recording.	113
S	till Photo Shooting.	114
	Tab Menus: Still Photo Shooting.	116
	Image Quality.	123
	Still Photo Cropping/Aspect Ratio.	129
	Auto Exposure Bracketing (AEB).	133
	ISO Speed Settings for Still Photos.	135
	HDR PQ Settings.	143
	Auto Lighting Optimizer.	147
	Highlight Tone Priority.	149
	Anti-Flicker Shooting.	150
	Shooting with Speedlites.	152
	Flash Function Settings.	156
	White Balance.	169
	White Balance Correction.	179
	Color Space.	183
	Picture Style Selection.	184
	Picture Style Customization.	188
	Picture Style Registration.	192
	Clarity.	195
	Lens Aberration Correction.	196
	Long Exposure Noise Reduction.	203
	High ISO Speed Noise Reduction.	205
	Dust Delete Data Acquisition.	207
	Multiple Exposures.	211
	HDR Mode.	222
	Focus Bracketing.	227
	Interval Timer Shooting.	231
	Shutter Mode.	235
	Releasing Shutter without Card.	237
	Image Stabilizer (IS Mode).	238

Shooting with the Touch Shutter.	 241
Image Review	 243
High-Speed Display.	 246
Metering Timer	 248
Exposure Simulation	 249
Shooting Information Display	 250
Viewfinder Display Format.	 262
Display Performance	 263
Metering Mode Selection.	 265
Manual Exposure Compensation.	 267
Exposure Lock (AE Lock).	 269
General Still Photo Shooting.	 271
Movie Recording.	 274
Tab Menus: Movie Recording.	 275
Movie Recording.	 279
Movie Recording Quality	 290
Movie Cropping.	 300
Sound Recording	 301
Canon Log Settings	 305
HDR Movie Recording.	 312
Time-Lapse Movies.	 314
Movie Self-Timer.	 328
Image Stabilizer (IS Mode).	 329
Shutter Button Function for Movies.	 333
Zebra Settings	 335
Time Code.	 338
Other Menu Functions.	 345
General Movie Recording Precautions.	 355
AF/Drive.	 358
Tab Menus: AF (Still Photos).	 359
Tab Menus: AF (Movie Recording).	363
AF Operation.	365
Selecting the AF Method.	369

	Continuous AF	390
	Movie Servo AF	391
	Touch & Drag AF Settings.	394
	Manual Focus.	397
	Servo AF Characteristics.	406
	Customizing AF Functions.	417
	Selecting the Drive Mode	431
	Using the Self-Timer.	434
	Remote Control Shooting.	436
Play	/back	441
	Tab Menus: Playback.	443
	Image Playback.	446
	Magnified Image Display.	452
	Index Display (Multiple-Image Display).	455
	Movie Playback.	458
	Editing a Movie's First and Last Scenes.	461
	4K Movie Frame Grab.	464
	Playback on a TV Set.	466
	Protecting Images.	468
	Erasing Images.	472
	Rotating Still Photos.	479
	Changing Movie Orientation Information.	481
	Rating Images.	483
	Copying Images.	491
	Print Ordering (DPOF).	499
	Photobook Set-up.	504
	RAW Image Processing.	509
	Resizing JPEG/HEIF Images.	518
	Cropping JPEG/HEIF Images.	520
	Converting HEIF to JPEG.	523
	Slide Show.	528
	Setting Image Search Conditions.	531
	Browsing Images with the Main Dial.	535

Switching the Main Dial and Quick Control Dial 2	537
Rate Button Function.	
Customizing Playback Information Display	539
Displaying the Highlight Alert.	543
AF Point Display.	
Playback Grid.	545
Movie Play Count.	546
HDMI HDR Output.	548
Wireless Features.	549
Tab Menus: Wireless Features.	550
Wi-Fi/Bluetooth Connection.	552
Connecting to a Smartphone	554
Connecting to a Computer via Wi-Fi.	596
Sending Images to a Web Service	612
Image Transfer to FTP Servers	619
Wi-Fi Connection via Access Points.	643
Connecting to a Wireless Remote Control	651
Reconnecting via Wi-Fi	656
Registering Multiple Connection Settings.	658
Airplane Mode	660
Wi-Fi Settings.	661
Bluetooth Settings	662
Nickname	663
GPS Device Settings.	664
Changing or Deleting Connection Settings.	669
Resetting Communication Settings.	672
View Info Screen.	673
Virtual Keyboard Operations.	674
Responding to Error Messages.	675
Wireless Communication Function Precautions.	689
Security	690
Checking Network Settings.	691
Wireless Communication Status.	692

Set-up	94
Tab Menus: Set-up. 6	95
Selecting Cards for Recording/Playback	99
Folder Settings	06
File Numbering	10
File Naming	15
Formatting	18
Auto Rotate	21
Adding Orientation Information to Movies	23
Date/Time/Zone	24
Language	28
Video System	29
Help	30
Beeps	33
Headphone Volume	34
Power Saving	35
Eco Mode	36
Screen/Viewfinder Display	37
Screen Brightness	39
Viewfinder Brightness	40
Screen and Viewfinder Color Tone	41
Fine-Tuning Viewfinder Color Tone	42
UI Magnification	43
HDMI Resolution. 74	44
Touch Control	45
Multi-Function Lock	46
Shutter at Shutdown	47
Sensor Cleaning	48
Resetting the Camera	53
Custom Shooting Mode (C1–C3)	55
Battery Information	58
Copyright Information	66
Other Information	69

Custom Functions/My Menu
Tab Menus: Customization. 77
Custom Function Setting Items
Tab Menus: My Menu. 799
Registering My Menu
Reference
Importing Images to a Computer
Using a USB Power Adapter to Charge/Power the Camera 81
Using a Battery Grip
Troubleshooting Guide 820
Error Codes
System Map
ISO Speed in Movie Recording
Information Display
EF Lenses Supporting 12 Shots/Sec. Continuous Shooting 859
Specifications
Trademarks and Licensing

Before starting to shoot, be sure to read the following

To avoid shooting problems and accidents, first read the <u>Safety Instructions</u> and <u>Handling</u> <u>Precautions</u>. Also read this Advanced User Guide carefully to ensure that you use the camera correctly.

Take some test shots, and understand about product liability

After shooting, play images back and check whether they have been properly recorded. If the camera or memory card is faulty and images cannot be recorded or transferred to a computer, Canon cannot be held liable for any loss or inconvenience caused.

Copyrights

Copyright laws in some countries prohibit the unauthorized use of images recorded with the camera (or music/images with music transferred to the memory card) for purposes other than personal enjoyment. Also be aware that certain public performances, exhibitions, etc. may prohibit photography even for private enjoyment.

- Package Contents
- Instruction Manuals
- Quick Start Guide
- About This Guide
- <u>Compatible Cards</u>
- Safety Instructions
- Handling Precautions
- Part Names
- <u>Software</u>

Package Contents

Before use, make sure the following items are included in the package. If anything is missing, contact your dealer.



Strap

- * Battery Charger LC-E6 or LC-E6E is provided. (The LC-E6E comes with a power cord.)
- The camera does not come with a memory card (), interface cable, or HDMI cable.
- If you purchased a Lens Kit, check that the lenses are included.
- Be careful not to lose any of these items.

Caution

The Lens Instruction Manuals (PDF files) are for lenses sold individually. Note that when purchasing the Lens Kit, some of the accessories included with the lens may not match those listed in the Lens Instruction Manual.



The Instruction Manual included with the camera provides basic instructions for the camera and Wi-Fi functions.

Advanced User Guide

Complete instructions are provided in this Advanced User Guide. For the latest Advanced User Guide, refer to the following website. https://cam.start.canon/C004/



 Lens/Software Instruction Manual Download from the following website. <u>https://cam.start.canon/</u>



Note

• Select [: Manual/software URL] to display the QR code on the camera screen.

Quick Start Guide

1. Insert the battery (2).





- You can insert two cards.
- 3. Attach the lens (2).



 Align the red mount index on the lens with the red mount index on the camera to attach the lens.



5. Set the power switch to $\langle ON \rangle$ (2).



6. Flip out the screen ().



 When the date/time/zone setting screen is displayed, see <u>Date/Time/</u> <u>Zone</u>. 7. Set the Mode dial to $< \triangle^{\dagger} > (\bigcirc)$.



All the necessary camera settings will be set automatically.



- An AF point [[]] appears over any face detected.
- Press the shutter button halfway, and the camera will focus on the subject.
- 9. Take the picture (
).



Press the shutter button completely to take the picture.

10. Review the picture.



- The image just captured will be displayed for approx. 2 sec. on the screen.
- To display the image again, press the < ► > button (
).

About This Guide

- Icons in This Guide
- Basic Assumptions for Operational Instructions and Sample Photos

Icons in This Guide

< 2002 >	Indicates the Main dial.
< () >	Indicates Quick control dial 1.
< ⁵ 2000 ⁵ >	Indicates Quick control dial 2.
< + + >	Indicates the Multi-controller.
< () >	Indicates the lens control ring.
< (SET) >	Indicates the Set button.
₫*	Indicates the duration (in * seconds) of the operation for the button you pressed, as timed after you release the button.

 In addition to the above, the icons and symbols used on the camera's buttons and displayed on the screen are also used in this guide when discussing relevant operations and functionality.

☆	\Rightarrow to the right of titles indicates functions only available in < Fv >, < P >, < Tv >, < Av >, < M >, or < B > mode.
ø	Links to pages with related topics.
D	Warning to prevent shooting problems.
5	Supplemental information.
- - 	Tips or advice for better shooting.
?	Troubleshooting advice.

Basic Assumptions for Operational Instructions and Sample Photos

- Before following any instructions, make sure the power switch is set to < ON > and the Multi-function lock feature is off (2), 2).
- It is assumed that all the menu settings and Custom Functions are set to their defaults.
- Illustrations in this guide show the camera with the RF24-105mm F4 L IS USM lens attached as an example.
- Sample photos displayed on the camera and used in this guide are for illustration only.
- In references to using EF or EF-S lenses, it is assumed that a mount adapter is used.

Compatible Cards

The following cards can be used with the camera regardless of capacity. If the card is new or was previously formatted (initialized) by another camera or computer, format the card with this camera (2).

 SD/SDHC/SDXC memory cards UHS-II and UHS-I cards supported.

Cards That Can Record Movies

When recording movies, use a card with ample performance (fast enough writing and reading speeds) for the movie recording quality (\mathcal{B}).



In this guide, "card" refers to SD memory cards, SDHC memory cards, and SDXC memory cards.

*A card is not included. Please purchase it separately.

Be sure to read these instructions in order to operate the product safely.

Follow these instructions to prevent injury or harm to the operator of the product or others.

MARNING: Denotes the risk of serious injury or death.

Keep the product out of the reach of young children.

A strap wrapped around a person's neck may result in strangulation.

The parts or provided items of cameras or accessories are dangerous if swallowed. If swallowed, seek immediate medical assistance.

The battery is dangerous if swallowed. If swallowed, seek immediate medical assistance.

- Use only power sources specified in this instruction manual for use with the product.
- Do not disassemble or modify the product.
- Do not expose the product to strong shocks or vibration.
- Do not touch any exposed internal parts.
- Stop using the product in any case of unusual circumstances such as the presence of smoke or a strange smell.
- Do not use organic solvents such as alcohol, benzine or paint thinner to clean the product.
- Do not get the product wet. Do not insert foreign objects or liquids into the product.

Do not use the product where flammable gases may be present.

This may cause electric shock, explosion or fire.

 Do not leave a lens or a camera/camcorder with a lens attached, exposed without the lens cap attached.

The lens may concentrate the light and cause fire.

Do not touch the product connected to a power outlet during lightning storms.

This may cause electric shock.

- Observe the following instructions when using commercially available batteries or provided battery packs.
 - · Use batteries/battery packs only with their specified product.
 - · Do not heat batteries/battery packs or expose them to fire.
 - · Do not charge batteries/battery packs using non-authorized battery chargers.
 - Do not expose the terminals to dirt or let them come into contact with metallic pins
 or other metal objects.
 - · Do not use leaking batteries/battery packs.
 - When disposing of batteries/battery packs, insulate the terminals with tape or other means.

This may cause electric shock, explosion or fire.

If a battery/battery pack leaks and the material contacts your skin or clothing, flush the exposed area thoroughly with running water. In case of eye contact, flush thoroughly with copious amounts of clean running water and seek immediate medical assistance.

- Observe the following instructions when using a battery charger or AC adapter.
 - Periodically remove any dust buildup from the power plug and power outlet using a dry cloth.
 - · Do not plug in or unplug the product with wet hands.
 - · Do not use the product if the power plug is not fully inserted into the power outlet.
 - Do not expose the power plug and terminals to dirt or let them come into contact
 with metallic pins or other metal objects.
 - Do not touch the battery charger or AC adapter connected to a power outlet during lightning storms.
- Do not place heavy objects on the power cord. Do not damage, break or modify the power cord.
- Do not wrap the product in cloth or other materials when in use or shortly after use when the product is still warm in temperature.
- Do not unplug the product by pulling the power cord.
- Do not leave the product connected to a power source for long periods of time.
- Do not charge batteries/battery packs at temperatures outside the range of 5 40 °C (41 104 °F).
- This may cause electric shock, explosion or fire.
- Do not allow the product to maintain contact with the same area of skin for extended periods of time during use.

This may result in low-temperature contact burns, including skin redness and blistering, even if the product does not feel hot. The use of a tripod or similar equipment is recommended when using the product in hot places and for people with circulation problems or less sensitive skin.

• Follow any indications to turn off the product in places where its use is forbidden.

Not doing so may cause other equipment to malfunction due to the effect of electromagnetic waves and even result in accidents.

<u>∧</u> CAUTION:

Follow the cautions below. Otherwise physical injury or property damage may result.

- Do not fire the flash near the eyes.
- It may hurt the eyes.

Do not look at the screen or through the viewfinder for prolonged periods of time. This may induce symptoms similar to motion sickness. In such a case, stop using the product immediately and rest for a while before resuming use.

- Flash emits high temperatures when fired. Keep fingers, any other part of your body, and objects away from the flash unit while taking pictures.
- This may cause burns or malfunction of the flash.

Do not leave the product in places exposed to extremely high or low temperatures.
 The product may become extremely hot/cold and cause burns or injury when touched.

- Strap is intended for use on the body only. Hanging the strap with any product attached on a hook or other object may damage the product. Also, do not shake the product or expose the product to strong impacts.
- Do not apply strong pressure on the lens or allow an object to hit it.

This may cause injury or damage to the product.

- Only mount the product on a tripod that is sufficiently sturdy.
- Do not carry the product when it is mounted on a tripod.
- This may cause injury or may result in an accident.

Do not touch any parts inside the product.

This may cause injury.

 If any abnormal skin reaction or irritation occurs during or following the use of this product, refrain from further use and get medical advice/attention.



temperature can increase by repeated continuous shooting for extended time or movie recording. This may cause burns.



Camera care

- This camera is a precision instrument. Do not drop it or subject it to physical shock.
- The camera is not waterproof and cannot be used underwater.
- To maximize the camera's dust- and drip- resistance, keep the terminal cover, battery compartment cover, card slot cover, and all other covers firmly closed.
- This camera is designed to be dust- and drip- resistant, in order to help prevent sand, dust, dirt, or water that falls on it unexpectedly from getting inside, but it is impossible to prevent dirt, dust, water, or salt from getting inside at all. As far as possible, do not allow dirt, dust, water, or salt to get on the camera.
- If water gets on the camera, wipe it off with a dry and clean cloth. If dirt, dust, or salt gets
 on the camera, wipe it off with a clean, well-wrung wet cloth.
- Using the camera in dusty or dirty locations may lead to damage.
- Cleaning the camera after use is recommended. Allowing dirt, dust, water, or salt to remain on the camera may cause a malfunction.
- If you accidentally drop the camera into water or are concerned that moisture (water), dirt, dust, or salt may have gotten inside it, promptly consult the nearest Canon Service Center.
- Never leave the camera near anything having a strong magnetic field such as a magnet or electric motor. Also, avoid using or leaving the camera near anything emitting strong radio waves, such as a large antenna. Strong magnetic fields can cause camera malfunction or destroy image data.
- Do not leave the camera in excessive heat, such as in a car in direct sunlight. High temperatures can cause the camera to malfunction.
- The camera contains precision electronic circuitry. Never attempt to disassemble the camera yourself.
- Do not block shutter curtain operation with your finger or other objects. Doing so may cause a malfunction.
- Only use a commercially available blower to blow away dust on the lens, viewfinder, or other parts. Do not use cleaners that contain organic solvents to clean the camera body or lens. For stubborn dirt, take the camera to the nearest Canon Service Center.
- Do not touch the camera's electrical contacts with your fingers. This is to prevent the contacts from corroding. Corroded contacts can cause camera malfunction.
- If the camera is suddenly brought in from the cold into a warm room, condensation may form on the camera and internal parts. To prevent condensation, first put the camera in a sealed plastic bag and let it adjust to the warmer temperature before taking it out of the bag.
- If condensation forms on the camera, to avoid damage, do not use the camera or remove the lens, card, or battery. Turn the camera off and wait until the moisture has fully evaporated before resuming use. Even after the camera is completely dry, if it is still internally cold, do not remove the lens, card, or battery until the camera has adjusted to the ambient temperature.
- If the camera will not be used for an extended period, remove the battery and store the
 camera in a cool, dry, well-ventilated location. Even while the camera is in storage,
 press the shutter button a few times once in a while to check that the camera is still
 working.
- Avoid storing the camera where there are chemicals that result in rust and corrosion such as in a chemical lab.

- If the camera has not been used for an extended period, test all its functions before using it. If you have not used the camera for some time or if there is an important shoot such as a foreign trip coming up, have the camera checked by your nearest Canon Service Center or check the camera yourself and make sure it is working properly.
- The camera may become hot after repeated continuous shooting or still photo/movie shooting over an extended period. This is not a malfunction.
- If there is a bright light source inside or outside the image area, ghosting may occur.
- When shooting with backlighting, keep the sun sufficiently away from the angle of view. Always keep intense light sources such as the sun, lasers, and other intense artificial light sources out of the image area and not near it. Concentrated intense light may cause smoke or damage the image sensor or other internal components.
- Attach the lens cap to prevent direct sunlight and other light from entering the lens when you are not shooting.

Screen and viewfinder

- Although the screen and viewfinder are manufactured with very high precision technology with over 99.99% effective pixels, 0.01% or fewer of the pixels may be dead, and there may also be spots of black, red, or other colors. This is not a malfunction. They do not affect the images recorded.
- If the screen is left on for a prolonged period, screen burn-in may occur where you see remnants of what was displayed. However, this is only temporary and will disappear when the camera is left unused for a few days.
- The screen display may seem slightly slow in low temperatures or may look black in high temperatures. It will return to normal at room temperature.

Cards

To protect the card and its recorded data, note the following:

- Do not drop, bend, or wet the card. Do not subject it to excessive force, physical shock, or vibration.
- Do not touch the card's electronic contacts with your fingers or anything metallic.
- Do not affix any stickers, etc. on the card.
- Do not store or use the card near anything that has a strong magnetic field, such as a television, speakers, or magnets. Also avoid places prone to having static electricity.
- Do not leave the card in direct sunlight or near a heat source.
- Store the card in a case.
- Do not store the card in hot, dusty, or humid locations.

Lens

 After detaching the lens from the camera, put down the lens with the rear end up and attach the rear lens cap to avoid scratching the lens surface and electrical contacts (1).



Smudges on the image sensor

Besides dust entering the camera from outside, in rare cases, lubricant from the camera's internal parts may adhere to the front of the sensor. If smudges are visible on images, have the sensor cleaned by a nearest Canon Service Center.

Battery

Tips for using the battery and charger

- Store in a cool, dry, well-ventilated location.
- When storing the battery for extended periods, charge it about once a year.
- When charging the battery, aim to charge it to approx. 50% instead of fully charging it (
 (
 (
)).
- At room temperature (23°C/73°F), it takes approx. 60 min. to charge a depleted battery to about approx. 50%. Battery charging time varies greatly depending on ambient temperature.
- If the battery is not used for an extended period, the trace amount of current that continues to flow inside the battery when it is removed from the camera may eventually lead to over-discharge and prevent further use, even after charging.

Attaching the Strap



(1)	Mode dial
(2)	<lock> Multi-function lock button</lock>
(3)	< 🖄 > Main dial
(4)	<m-fn> Multi-function button</m-fn>
(5)	Shutter button
(6)	Movie shooting button
(7)	Self-timer lamp/AF-assist beam
(8)	Remote control sensor
(9)	Grip (battery compartment)
(10)	DC coupler cord hole
(11)	Depth-of-field preview button
(12)	Contacts
(13)	Lens mount
(14)	Flash sync contacts
(15)	Hot shoe
(16)	RF lens mount index
(17)	Power switch
(18)	Strap mount
(19)	< 🕂 > Focal plane mark
(20)	Microphone
(21)	Image sensor
(22)	Lens release button
(23)	Lens lock pin
(24)	Body cap



(1)	Eyecup
(2)	Viewfinder eyepiece
(3)	< MENU > Menu button
(4)	Terminal cover
(5)	< AF-ON > AF start button
(6)	< 💭 > Quick control dial 2
(7)	<
(8)	< Q > Magnify/Reduce button
(9)	< Q > Quick Control button
(10)	Access lamp
(11)	<@> Set button
(12)	< >> Playback button
(13)	< INFO > Info button
(14)	Viewfinder sensor
(15)	< RATE > Rating button
(16)	< MIC > External microphone IN terminal
(17)	< • 🚓 > Digital terminal
(18)	< () > Headphone terminal
(19)	< HDMI OUT > HDMI micro OUT terminal
(20)	< fi > Remote control terminal



- (1) Dioptric adjustment knob
- (2) Accessory positioning hole
- (3) Screen
- (4) Tripod socket
- (5) Serial number (body number)
- (6) < 🗑 > Erase button
- (7) Speaker
- (8) < ¥ > AE lock button
- (9) < ... > AF point selection button
- (10) Strap mount
- (11) Card slot cover
- (12) Card slot 2
- (13) Card slot 1
- (14) Battery compartment cover lock
- (15) Battery compartment cover
- (16) < () > Quick control dial 1

Mode dial

You can set the shooting mode.



(1) < 🔺 > mode

All you do is press the shutter button.

The camera sets everything to suit the subject or scene for shooting.

• At: Scene Intelligent Auto (

(2) < Fv >, < P >, < Tv >, < Av >, < M >, and < B > modes

These modes give you more control for shooting various subjects as desired.

- Fv: Flexible-priority AE (🔂)
- P: Program AE (
- Tv: Shutter-priority AE (
 (
)
- Av: Aperture-priority AE (
 //
- M: Manual exposure (2)
- B: Long (bulb) exposures (
- (3) Custom shooting modes

You can assign $\langle FV \rangle$, $\langle P \rangle$, $\langle TV \rangle$, $\langle AV \rangle$, $\langle M \rangle$, $\langle B \rangle$, AF operation, menu functions, and more to $\langle \mathbf{@} \rangle$, $\langle \mathbf{@} \rangle$, or $\langle \mathbf{@} \rangle$ ($\mathbf{@}$).

(4) < ♥ > Movie recording (②)

Viewfinder information display



Information displayed varies depending on camera status.

Battery Charger LC-E6

Charger for Battery Pack LP-E6NH/LP-E6N/LP-E6 (2).



- (1) Battery slot
- (2) Charge lamp
- (3) Power plug

Battery Charger LC-E6E

Charger for Battery Pack LP-E6NH/LP-E6N/LP-E6 (2).



- (1) Charge lamp
- (2) Battery pack slot
- (3) Power cord
- (4) Power cord socket



Pass the end of the strap through the strap mount from the bottom, then pass it through the strap buckle as shown. Pull the strap to take up any slack and make sure the strap will not loosen from the buckle.

Software

- Software Overview
- Downloading and Installing EOS Software or Other Dedicated Software
- Downloading the Software Instruction Manual

Software Overview

This section summarizes software used with EOS cameras. Note that downloading and installing the software requires an internet connection. The software cannot be downloaded or installed in environments without an internet connection.

EOS Utility

Enables you to transfer your captured still photos and movies from the camera to a connected computer, set various camera settings from the computer, and shoot remotely from the computer.

Digital Photo Professional

Software recommended for users who shoot RAW images. Enables image viewing, editing, printing, and more.

Picture Style Editor

Enables you to edit existing Picture Styles or create and save original Picture Style files. This software is for users who are familiar with image processing.

GPS Log File Utility

Utility for converting GPS log files (.LOG) to KMZ format.

Always install the latest version of the software.

Update any previous versions that are installed by overwriting them with the latest version.

Caution

- Do not connect the camera to a computer before you install the software. The software will not be installed correctly.
- The software cannot be installed unless the computer is connected to the internet.
- Previous versions cannot display images from this camera correctly. Also, processing RAW images from this camera is not possible.
1. Download the software.

 Connect to the internet from a computer and access the following Canon website. https://cam.start.canon/



- Select your country or region of residence and download the software.
- Depending on the software, you may need to enter the camera's serial number. The serial number is on the bottom of the camera.
- Decompress it on the computer.

For Windows

Click the displayed installer file to start the installer.

For macOS

A dmg file will be created and displayed. Follow the steps below to startup the installer.

- 1.Double-click the dmg file.
 - A drive icon and installer file will appear on the desktop. If the installer file does not appear, double-click the drive icon to display it.

2.Double-click the installer file.

· The installer starts.

$\label{eq:2.1} \textbf{Follow the on-screen instructions to install the software.}$

Software Instruction Manuals (PDF files) can be downloaded from the Canon website to your computer, etc.

Software Instruction Manual download site

https://cam.start.canon/



This chapter describes preparatory steps before you start shooting and the basic camera operations.

- · Charging the Battery
- Inserting/Removing Batteries
- Inserting/Removing Cards
- Using the Screen
- Turning on the Power
- Attaching/Detaching RF Lenses
- <u>Attaching/Detaching EF/EF-S Lenses</u>
- Using the Viewfinder
- Basic Operations
- Menu Operations and Settings
- Quick Control
- <u>Touch-Screen Operation</u>

1. Detach the protective cover provided with the battery.



 $\label{eq:constraint} 2. \ \ {\rm Fully insert the battery into the charger}.$



Do the opposite to remove the battery.

3. Recharge the battery. For LC-E6



 As shown by the arrow, flip out the battery charger's prongs and insert the prongs into a power outlet.

For LC-E6E



- Connect the power cord to the charger and insert the plug into a power outlet.
- Recharging starts automatically and the charge lamp blinks in orange.

Charge Level	Charge Lamp			
	Color	Display		
0-49%		Blinks once per second		
50-74%	Orange	Blinks twice per second		
75% or higher	1	Blinks three times per second		
Fully charged	Green	Turned on		

- Charging a depleted battery takes approx. 2 hr. and 30 min. at room temperature (23°C/73°F). The time required to charge the battery will vary greatly depending on the ambient temperature and the battery's remaining capacity.
- For safety, charging in low temperatures (5–10°C/41–50°F) takes longer (up to approx. 4 hr.).

- Upon purchase, the battery is not fully charged. Charge the battery before use.
- Charge the battery on the day before or on the day it is to be used.
 Charged batteries gradually lose their charge, even when they are not used.
- After charging the battery, remove it and disconnect the charger from the power outlet.
- You can attach the protective cover in a different orientation to indicate whether the battery is charged or not.

If the battery is charged, attach the provided protective cover so that the battery-shaped hole < ____ > is aligned over the blue sticker on the battery. If the battery is exhausted, attach the protective cover in the opposite orientation.



• When not using the camera, remove the battery.

If the battery is left in the camera for a prolonged period, a small amount of power current will keep being released, resulting in excess discharge and shorter battery life. Store the battery with the protective cover attached. Storing the battery when it is fully charged may lower the battery performance.

The battery charger can also be used in foreign countries.

The battery charger is compatible with a 100 V AC to 240 V AC 50/60 Hz power source. If necessary, attach a commercially available plug adapter for the respective country or region. To avoid damage, do not connect to portable voltage transformers.

 If the battery becomes exhausted quickly even after having been fully charged, the battery has reached the end of its service life.

Check the battery recharge performance (g) and purchase a new battery, as needed.

Caution

- After disconnecting the charger's power plug, do not touch the prongs for approx. 10 sec.
- The provided charger cannot charge any battery other than Battery Pack LP-E6NH/ LP-E6N/LP-E6.

- Insertion
- Removal

Insert a fully charged Battery Pack LP-E6NH (or LP-E6N/LP-E6) in the camera.

Insertion

1. Slide the battery compartment cover lock and open the cover.



2. Insert the battery.



- Insert the end with the electrical contacts.
- Insert the battery until it locks in place.

3. Close the cover.



Caution

• You cannot use batteries other than Battery Pack LP-E6NH/LP-E6N/LP-E6.

1. Open the cover and remove the battery.



- Press the battery lock lever as shown by the arrow and remove the battery.
- To prevent short-circuits, always attach the included protective cover (
) to the battery.

- Insertion
- Formatting the Card
- Removal

This camera accepts two cards. Recording is possible as long as there is at least one card in the camera.

With two cards inserted, you can select one card to record to, or you can record the same image to both cards at once (\mathcal{B}).

Caution

 Make sure the card's write-protect switch (1) is set upward to enable writing and erasing.

Insertion

1. Slide the cover to open it.



2. Insert the card.





- The card in the rear card slot is [1], and the one in front of it is [2].
- As shown by the illustration, face the card's label side toward you and insert it until it clicks in place.
- 3. Close the cover.



 Close the cover and slide it in the direction shown by the arrows until it snaps shut. 4. Set the power switch to < ON > (O).





- (2) Card selection icon
- (3) Card 1
- (4) Card 2
- Shooting screen ((2)) or Quick Control screen ((2)) accessed by pressing the < |NFO > button shows which cards are loaded. Cards labeled with () are selected for recording.

Formatting the Card

If the card is new or was previously formatted (initialized) by another camera or computer, format the card with this camera (
).

1. Open the cover.



- Set the power switch to < OFF >.
- Check that the access lamp (1) is off, then open the cover.
- If [Saving...] is displayed on the screen, close the cover.

2. Remove the card.



- Gently push in the card, then let it go to eject.
- Pull the card straight out, then close the cover.

Caution

Do not remove cards immediately after a red [1] icon is displayed as you are shooting. Cards may be hot, due to high internal camera temperature. Set the power switch to < OFF > and stop shooting for a while before removing cards. Removing hot cards immediately after shooting may cause you to drop and damage them. Be careful when removing cards.

Note

- The number of shots available varies depending on remaining card capacity and settings such as image quality and ISO speed.
- Setting [D: Release shutter without card] to [Disable] will prevent you from forgetting to insert a card (2).

Caution

- When the access lamp is lit or blinking, it indicates that images are being written to, read from, or erased from the card, or data is being transferred. Do not open the card slot cover during this time. To avoid corrupting image data or damaging cards or the camera, never do any of the following while the access lamp is lit or blinking.
 - · Removing the card.
 - · Removing the battery.
 - Shaking or striking the camera.
 - Unplugging or plugging in a power cord (when using optional household power outlet accessories).
- If the card already contains recorded images, the image number may not start from 0001 (2).
- If a card-related error message is displayed on the screen, remove and reinsert the card. If the error persists, use a different card.
 If you can transfer images on the card to a computer, transfer all the images and then format the card with the camera (*i*²₀). The card may then return to normal.
- Do not touch the card's contacts with your fingers or metal objects. Do not expose the contacts to dust or water. If smudges adhere to the contacts, contact failure may result.
- Multimedia cards (MMC) cannot be used. (Card error will be displayed.)
- Use of UHS-II microSDHC/SDXC cards with a microSD to SD adapter is not recommended.

When using UHS-II cards, use SDHC/SDXC cards.

Using the Screen

You can change the direction and angle of the screen.

1. Flip out the screen.



2. Rotate the screen.



- When the screen is out, you can tilt it up or down or rotate it to face the subject.
- Indicated angles are only approximate.
- 3. Face it toward you.



• Normally, use the camera with the screen facing you.

Caution

- Avoid forcing the screen into position as you rotate it, which puts undue pressure on the hinge.
- When a cable is connected to a camera terminal, the rotation angle range of the flipped-out screen will be limited.

Note

- Keep the screen closed and facing the camera body when the camera is not in use. You can protect the screen.
- A mirror image (right/left reversed) of subjects is displayed when the screen faces subjects in front of the camera.

- Setting the Date, Time, and Time Zone
- Changing the Interface Language
- Automatic Sensor Cleaning
- Battery Level Indicator



ON>

The camera turns on.

<OFF>

The camera is turned off and does not function. Set the power switch to this position when not using the camera.

Note

 If you set the power switch to < OFF > while an image is being recorded to the card, [Saving...] will be displayed and the power will turn off after the recording finishes.

Setting the Date, Time, and Time Zone

If you turn on the camera and the date/time/zone setting screen appears, see <u>Date/Time/</u> Zone to set the date/time/zone. To change the interface language, see Language.

- Whenever the power switch is set to < OFF >, the sensor is cleaned automatically (which may make a faint sound). During the sensor cleaning, the screen will display [.t__]. To enable automatic sensor cleaning when the power switch is set to < ON > as well, you can set this in [**Y**: Sensor cleaning] ((a)).
- If you repeatedly turn the power switch to < ON > or < OFF > within a short time period, the [.:___] icon may not be displayed, but this does not indicate the camera is malfunctioning.

When the power switch is set to $\langle ON \rangle$, the battery level will be indicated.



Display		- 774		-		Ģ
Level (%)	100–70	69–50	49–20	19–10	9–1	0

Note

- Doing any of the following will exhaust the battery faster:
 - · Pressing the shutter button halfway for a prolonged period.
 - · Activating the AF frequently without taking a picture.
 - · Using Image Stabilizer.
 - · Using the Wi-Fi function or Bluetooth function.
- The number of available shots may decrease depending on the actual shooting conditions.
- Lens operations are powered by the camera's battery. Certain lenses may exhaust the battery faster than others.
- See [See [See] See [See] See [See] See [See] See
- In low ambient temperatures, shooting may not be possible even with a sufficient battery level.

Attaching a Lens

Detaching a Lens

Caution

- Do not look at the sun directly through any lens. Doing so may cause loss of vision.
- When attaching or detaching a lens, set the camera's power switch to < OFF >.
- If the front part (focusing ring) of the lens rotates during autofocusing, do not touch the rotating part.

Tips for avoiding smudges and dust

- When changing lenses, do it quickly in a place with minimal dust.
- When storing the camera without a lens attached, be sure to attach the body cap to the camera.
- Remove smudges and dust on the body cap before attaching it.

1. Remove the caps.



- Remove the rear lens cap and the body cap by turning them as shown by the arrows.
- 2. Attach the lens.



 Align the red mount index on the lens with the red mount index on the camera and turn the lens as shown by the arrow until it clicks in place. 3. Set the lens's focus mode switch to < AF >.



- < AF > stands for autofocus.
- < MF > stands for manual focus. Autofocus will not operate.



- For RF lenses without a focus mode switch, set to [AF] or [MF] in the camera menu, in [AF: Focus mode].
- 4. Remove the front lens cap.

While pressing the lens release button, turn the lens as shown by the arrow.



- Turn the lens until it stops, then detach it.
- Attach lens caps to the lens you removed.

Attaching a Lens

Detaching a Lens

All EF and EF-S lenses can be used by attaching an optional Mount Adapter EF-EOS R. The camera cannot be used with EF-M lenses.

Attaching a Lens

1. Remove the caps.



 Remove the rear lens cap and the body cap by turning them as shown by the arrows. 2. Attach the lens to the adapter.



- Align the red or white mount index on the lens with the corresponding mount index on the adapter and turn the lens as shown by the arrow until it clicks into place.
 - (1) Red index
 - (2) White index
- $\textbf{3.} \quad \textbf{Attach the adapter to the camera.}$



 Align the red mount indexes (3) on the adapter and camera and turn the lens as shown by the arrow until it clicks into place. 4. Set the lens's focus mode switch to < AF >.



- < AF > stands for autofocus.
- < MF > stands for manual focus. Autofocus will not operate.
- 5. Remove the front lens cap.

1. While pressing the lens release button, turn the adapter as shown by the arrow.



Turn the lens until it stops, then detach it.

2. Detach the lens from the adapter.



- Hold down the lens release lever on the adapter and turn the lens counterclockwise.
- Turn the lens until it stops, then detach it.
- Attach lens caps to the lens you removed.

Caution

For lens precautions, see <u>Attaching/Detaching RF Lenses</u>.

Look through the viewfinder to activate it. You can also restrict display to either the screen or viewfinder (资).

Adjusting the Viewfinder

1. Turn the dioptric adjustment knob.



Turn the knob left or right to make the viewfinder display look sharp.

Caution

- The viewfinder and screen cannot be activated at the same time.
- At some aspect ratios, black bars are displayed on the top and bottom or left and right edges of the screen. These areas are not recorded.

Basic Operations

- Holding the Camera
- Shutter Button
- 🗹 < 🚰 > Main Dial

- ≤ M-Fn ≥: Multi-Function Button
- AF-ON >: AF Start Button
- Section Lock Button

Viewing the screen as you shoot

As you shoot, you can tilt the screen to adjust it. For details, see Using the Screen.



(2) Low angle (3) High angle

Shooting through the viewfinder

To obtain sharp images, hold the camera still to minimize camera shake.



1.With your right hand, hold the camera firmly by the camera grip.

2.With your left hand, support the lens from below.

3.Rest your right index finger lightly on the shutter button.

4.Rest your arms and elbows lightly against the front of your body.

5.To maintain a stable stance, place one foot slightly ahead of the other.

6.Hold the camera near your face and look through the viewfinder.

The shutter button has two steps. You can press the shutter button halfway. Then you can further press the shutter button completely.

Pressing halfway



This activates autofocusing and the automatic exposure system that sets the shutter speed and aperture value.

The exposure value (shutter speed and aperture value) is displayed on the screen or in the viewfinder for 8 sec. (metering timer/ \mathring{O} 8).

Pressing completely



This releases the shutter and takes the picture.

Preventing camera shake

Hand-held camera movement during the moment of exposure is called camera shake. It can cause blurred pictures. To prevent camera shake, note the following:

- Hold the camera still, as shown in Holding the Camera.
- Press the shutter button halfway to autofocus, then slowly press the shutter button completely.

Note

- The camera will still pause before taking a picture if you press the shutter button completely without pressing it halfway first, or if you press the shutter button halfway and immediately press it completely.
- Even during menu display or image playback, you can return to shooting standby by pressing the shutter button halfway.

(1) After pressing a button, turn the < 🖄 > dial.



Press a button such as < M-Fn >, then turn the $< E^{+} >$ dial.

If you press the shutter button halfway, the camera will go back to shooting standby.

 Used for operations such as setting the ISO speed, drive mode, AF operation, white balance, and flash exposure compensation.

(2) Turn only the < 🖳 > dial.



While looking at the screen or viewfinder, turn the < in > dial.

• Use this dial to set the shutter speed, aperture value, etc.

Note

 The operations in (1) can be performed even when controls are locked with the Multi-function lock (2).

(1) After pressing a button, turn the <)> dial.



Press a button such as $\langle M-Fn \rangle$, then turn the $\langle \bigcirc \rangle$ dial.

If you press the shutter button halfway, the camera will go back to shooting standby.

 Used for operations such as selecting the ISO speed, drive mode, AF operation, white balance, and flash exposure compensation.

(2) Turn only the $< \bigcirc >$ dial.



While looking at the screen or viewfinder, turn the < () > dial.

 Used for operations such as setting the exposure compensation amount and the aperture value setting for manual exposures.

Note

 The operations in (1) can be performed even when controls are locked with the Multi-function lock (2).

(1) After pressing a button, turn the < \[> dial.



Press a button such as < MENU >, then turn the < 500 > dial.

If you press the shutter button halfway, the camera will go back to shooting standby. Used for operations such as switching between main tabs on the menu screen.

(2) Turn only the $< \bigcirc >$ dial.



While looking at the screen or viewfinder, turn the < 300 > dial.

Used for operations such as setting the ISO speed.

Note
< is an eight-direction key with center button. To use it, press lightly with the tip of your thumb.



- Used for operations such as white balance correction, AF point/magnifying frame movement in still photo shooting or movie recording, magnifying frame movement during playback, or Quick Control settings.
- Can also be used to select or set menu items.



By pressing the $\langle \mathbf{M}-\mathbf{Fn} \rangle$ button and turning the $\langle \bigcirc \rangle$ dial, you can set the ISO speed (@), drive mode (@), AF operation (@), white balance (@), and flash exposure compensation (@).

To select the AF area or AF method, press the < = > button (>6), then press the < M-Fn > button.

Equivalent to pressing the shutter button halfway (except in $< \Delta^+ >$ mode).



With [\oint : Multi function lock] configured (B), you can press the <LOCK > button to prevent settings from being changed by accidentally touching the Main dial, Quick Control dials, Multi-controller, control ring, or touch-screen panel. Press the <LOCK > button again to unlock the controls.





By default, exposure compensation can be set by turning the control ring of RF lenses or mount adapters while pressing the shutter button halfway in $\langle FV \rangle$, $\langle P \rangle$, $\langle TV \rangle$, $\langle AV \rangle$, or $\langle M \rangle$ mode. Otherwise, you can assign a different function to the control ring by customizing operations in [Ω : Customize dials] (\mathcal{C}).



Each press of the < $|\!\!NFO\!\!>$ button changes the information shown. The following sample screens are for still photos.



- Menu Screen in < A > Mode
- Menu Screen in < Fv > !< P > !< Tv > !< Av > !< M > !< B > Mode
- Menu Setting Procedure
- Dimmed Menu Items



- (1) <MENU > button
- (2) <Q>button
- (3) < INFO > button
- (4) Screen
- (5) < () > Quick control dial 1
- (6) < <i>(6) <
- (7) < \[> Quick control dial 2
- (8) < 🖄 > Main dial



● In < ▲ > mode, some tabs and menu items do not appear.

Menu Screen in < Fv >/< P >/< Tv >/< Av >/< M>/< B> Mode

(1) = (1) $(3) = (1)$ (3)		(4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)					
$(3) = \begin{bmatrix} (3) \\ (3$							
$(3) = \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 1 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 1 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 &$							
$(3) = \begin{bmatrix} 110 \\ 10$		Espo.comp.IAE8					
$(3) = \begin{bmatrix} 3 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix} $							
(1) Main tabs (2) Secondary tabs (3) Menu items (4) D : Shooting (5) AF : Autofocus (6) D : Playback (7) (q): Wireless features (8) Ý : Set-up (9) Ω : Custom Functions (10) ★: My Menu							
(1) Main tabs (2) Secondary tabs (3) Menu items (4) Image: Shooting (5) AF: Autofocus (6) Image: Playback (7) (m): Wireless features (8) Image: Set-up (9) Image: Custom Functions (10) ★: My Menu		The second se					
(1) Main tabs (2) Secondary tabs (3) Menu items (4) D : Shooting (5) AF : Autofocus (6) D : Playback (7) (m): Wireless features (8) Ý : Set-up (9)		the second se					
(1) Main tabs (2) Secondary tabs (3) Menu items (4)		and the second					
(2) Secondary tabs (3) Menu items (4)	(1)						
(3) Menu items (4)							
(4) D : Shooting (5) A F : Autofocus (6) D : Playback (7) (\phi): Wireless features (8) Y : Set-up (9) Ω : Custom Functions (10) ★ : My Menu							
(5) AF: Autofocus (6) ⊡: Playback (7) (𝑘): Wireless features (8) ✔: Set-up (9)							
(6) ▶: Playback (7) (ŋ): Wireless features (8) Ý : Set-up (9) (10) ★: My Menu							
(7) (n): Wireless features (8) Ý : Set-up (9) : Custom Functions (10) ★: My Menu		AF: Autofocus					
(8) Ý : Set-up (9)	(6)	►: Playback					
(9) ♠: Custom Functions (10) ★: My Menu	(7)	(m): Wireless features					
(10) ★: My Menu	(8)	Ý : Set-up					
	(9)	Custom Functions					
(11) Menu settings	(10)	★: My Menu					
	(11)						

1. Display the menu screen.



• Press the < MENU > button to display the menu screen.

2. Select a tab.

- Each time you turn the < S > dial, the main tab (group of functions) will switch. You can also switch tabs by pressing the < [] > button.
- Turn the < is > dial to select a secondary tab.

3. Select an item.



• Turn the < () > dial to select an item, then press < () >.

4. Select an option.



- Turn the < () > dial to select an option.
- The current setting is indicated in blue.

5. Set an option.



Press < (1) > to set it.

6. Exit the setting.

Press the < MENU > button to return to shooting standby.

Note

- The description of menu functions hereafter assumes that you have pressed the <MENU > button to display the menu screen.
- Menu operations are also possible by tapping the menu screen or using < 2 >.
- To cancel the operation, press the < MENU > button.

Example: When Highlight tone priority has been set

1.0.1.0.1.03 ee Use **171 speed tette** 100 m Disation

Dimmed menu items cannot be set. The menu item is dimmed if another function setting is overriding it.



You can see the overriding function by selecting the dimmed menu item and pressing $\langle \widehat{(st)} \rangle$.

If you cancel the overriding function's setting, the dimmed menu item will become settable.



You can directly and intuitively select and set the settings displayed.

1. Press the < Q > button (∂10).



2. Select a setting item and set your preferred option.



- To select an item, turn the < () > dial or press < ⅔ > up or down.
- To adjust the setting, turn the < [∞]₂ > or < [∞]₂ > dial, or press < [∞]_K > left or right. Some items are set by pressing a button after this.



- Press < * > vertically or horizontally to select an item on the screen shown above.
- To adjust the setting, turn the < [™]₂ >, < [™]₂ >, or < [™]₂ > dial. Some items are set by pressing a button after this.

- Tapping
- Dragging



Sample screen (Quick Control)



- Use your finger to tap (touch briefly and then remove your finger from) the screen.
- For example, when you tap [Q], the Quick Control screen appears. By tapping [_], you can return to the preceding screen.

Note

- To have the camera beep for touch operations, set [\$\vec{Y}: Beep] to [Enable] (\$\vec{B}\$).
- Responsiveness to touch operations can be adjusted in [": Touch control] (").

Sample screen (Menu screen)



• Slide your finger while touching the screen.

Shooting Mode

This chapter describes shooting modes.

- <u>A+: Fully Automatic Shooting (Scene Intelligent Auto)</u>
- <u>A+: Fully Automatic Techniques (Scene Intelligent Auto)</u>
- Ev: Flexible-Priority AE
- P: Program AE
- <u>Tv: Shutter-Priority AE</u>
- Av: Aperture-Priority AE
- <u>M: Manual Exposure</u>
- B: Long (Bulb) Exposures

< (A) > is a fully automatic mode. The camera analyzes the scene and sets the

optimum settings automatically. It can also adjust focus automatically on either the still or moving subject by detecting the motion of the subject (2).

1. Set the Mode dial to $< (\Delta_1^+ > .)$



2. Aim the camera at what you will shoot (the subject).



- An AF point may be displayed on the subject, under some shooting conditions.
- When an AF point is displayed on the screen, aim it over the subject.

3. Focus on the subject.



- Press the shutter button halfway to focus.
- You can also focus by tapping a person's face or another subject on the screen (Touch AF) when [AF: Continuous AF] is set to [Disable].
- For stationary subjects, the AF point is displayed in green when the subject is in focus, and the camera beeps. (One-Shot AF)
- For moving subjects, the AF point is displayed in blue and tracks subject movement. The camera does not beep. (Servo AF)

4. Take the picture.



- Press the shutter button completely to take the picture.
- The image just captured will be displayed for approx. 2 sec. on the screen.

Caution

 Subject movement (whether subjects are still or moving) may not be detected correctly for some subject or shooting conditions.

Note

- AF operation (One-Shot AF or Servo AF) is set automatically when you press the shutter button halfway. Note that AF operation cannot be switched during shooting.
- The < [♣] > mode makes the colors look more impressive in nature, outdoor, and sunset scenes. If you prefer other color tones, set the shooting mode to < FV>, < P>, < TV>, < AV>, or < M> (𝔅)) and select a Picture Style other than [[♣:▲]] before shooting (𝔅)).

Minimizing blurred photos

- Use a sturdy tripod that can bear the weight of the shooting equipment. Mount the camera securely on the tripod.
- Using a remote switch (sold separately,) or a wireless remote control (sold separately,) is recommended.

? FAQ

Focusing is not possible (indicated by an orange AF point).

Aim the AF point over an area with good contrast, then press the shutter button halfway (愛). If you are too close to the subject, move away and shoot again.

Multiple AF points are displayed simultaneously.

If multiple AF points are displayed simultaneously, all of these positions are in focus. As long as one AF point is displayed on the subject, you can take the picture.

Pressing the shutter button halfway does not focus on the subject.

If the lens's focus mode switch is set to < MF > (manual focus), set it to < AF > (autofocus).

• The shutter speed display is blinking.

Since it is too dark, taking the picture may result in a blurred subject due to camera shake. Using a tripod or a Canon EL/EX series Speedlite (sold separately, 愛) is recommended.

The bottom of pictures taken with flash is unnaturally dark.

If a hood is attached to the lens, it may obstruct light from the flash. If the subject is close, detach the hood before taking the picture with flash.

A+: Fully Automatic Techniques (Scene Intelligent Auto)

- Recomposing the Shot
- Shooting Moving Subjects
- Scene Icons

Recomposing the Shot



Depending on the scene, positioning the subject toward the left or right to include a balanced background will result in a picture with better perspective.

Pressing the shutter button halfway to focus on a still subject will lock the focus on that subject. Recompose the shot while keeping the shutter button pressed halfway, and then press the shutter button completely to take the picture. This is called "focus lock."



After you press the shutter button halfway and a blue AF point appears, the camera detects subject movement and focuses using Servo AF. Keep the subject on the screen as you hold down the shutter button halfway, and at the decisive moment, press the shutter button completely.



The camera detects the scene type and sets everything automatically to suit the scene. The detected scene type is indicated in the upper left of the screen. For icon details, see <u>Scene</u> <u>Icons</u>.

In this mode, you can set shutter speed, aperture value, and ISO speed manually or automatically and combine these settings with your choice of exposure compensation. Shooting in < Fv > mode, with control over each of these parameters, is equivalent to shooting in < P >, < Tv >, < Av >, or < M > mode.

* < **FV** > stands for Flexible value.

1. Set the Mode dial to < Fv >.



2. Set the shutter speed, aperture value, and ISO speed.



- Turn the < ^{mage} > dial to set the option.
- To reset the setting to [AUTO], press the < m > button.

3. Set the amount of exposure compensation.



- Turn the < is > dial to set the option.
- To reset the setting to [±0], press the < m > button.

Combinations of functions in < Fy > mode

Shutter Speed	Aperture Value	ISO Speed	Exposure Compensation	Shooting Mode
[AUTO]	[AUTO]	[AUTO]	Available	Similar to < P >
[A010]		Manual selection		
Manual selection	[AUTO]	[AUTO]	Available	Similar to < Tv >
Manual Selection		Manual selection		
[AUTO]	Manual selection	[AUTO]	Available	Similar to < Av >
[A010]		Manual selection		
Manual selection	Manual selection	[AUTO]	Available	Similar to < 🕅 >
Manual Selection		Manual selection	-	

Caution

Blinking of the values indicates a risk of underexposure or overexposure. Adjust the
exposure until the value stops blinking.

Slow synchro is not used under low light when you have set up $< F_V >$ mode to resemble $< A_V >$ or < P > mode, even when [Slow synchro] in [O: External Speedlite control] is set to [1/250-30sec. auto] (or [1/200-30sec. auto]).

Note

- Values for shutter speed, aperture value, and ISO speed that are set to [AUTO] are underlined.
- You can set shutter speed, aperture value, and ISO speed to [AUTO] and exposure compensation amount to [±0] in step 2 or 3 by holding down the < m > button.

The camera automatically sets the shutter speed and aperture value to suit the subject's brightness.

- * < \mathbf{P} > stands for Program.
- * AE stands for Auto Exposure.
 - 1. Set the Mode dial to $< \mathbf{P} >$.



2. Focus on the subject.



- Aim the AF point over the subject and press the shutter button halfway.
- Once the subject is in focus, the AF point turns green (with One-Shot AF).
- The shutter speed and aperture value are set automatically.

3. Check the display.



 As long as the exposure value is not blinking, standard exposure will be obtained.

4. Take the picture.

Compose the shot and press the shutter button completely.

Caution If the "30"" shutter speed and the lowest aperture value blink, it indicates underexposure. Increase the ISO speed or use flash. If the "1/8000" shutter speed and the highest aperture value blink, it indicates overexposure. Lower the ISO speed or use an ND filter (sold separately) to reduce the amount of

Note

light entering the lens.

Differences between $\langle \mathbf{P} \rangle$ and $\langle \mathbf{A}^{\dagger} \rangle$ modes

In < (<u>t</u>) > mode, many functions, such as the AF method and metering mode, are set automatically to prevent spoiled shots. The functions you can set are limited. On the other hand, with < **P** > mode, only the shutter speed and aperture value are set automatically. You can freely set the AF method, metering mode, and other functions.

Program shift

- In < P > mode, you can freely change the combination (program) of shutter speed and aperture value set automatically by the camera while maintaining the same exposure. This is called Program shift.
- With Program shift, you can press the shutter button halfway, then turn the < dial until the desired shutter speed or aperture value is displayed.
- Program shift will be canceled automatically when the metering timer ends (exposure setting display turns off).
- Program shift cannot be used with flash.

In this mode, you set the shutter speed and the camera automatically sets the aperture value to obtain the standard exposure matching the brightness of the subject. A faster shutter speed can freeze the action of a moving subject. A slower shutter speed can create a blurred effect, giving the impression of motion.

* < **Tv** > stands for Time value.



Blurred motion (Slow speed: 1/30 sec.)



Frozen motion (Fast speed: 1/2000 sec.)

1. Set the Mode dial to < Tv >.



2. Set the desired shutter speed.



Turn the < s^{mu}₂ > dial to set it.

3. Focus on the subject.



- Press the shutter button halfway.
- The aperture value is set automatically.

4. Check the display and shoot.



 As long as the aperture value is not blinking, the standard exposure will be obtained.

Caution



If the lowest aperture value blinks, it indicates underexposure.
 Turn the < <p>Turn the < <p>Turn the < <p>Turn the Turn the Turn



If the highest aperture value blinks, it indicates overexposure.
 Turn the < 2003 > dial to set a faster shutter speed until the aperture value stops blinking, or set a lower ISO speed.

Note

Shutter speed display

For example, "0"5" indicates 0.5 sec. and "15"", 15 sec.

Depth-of-Field Preview

In this mode, you set the desired aperture value and the camera sets the shutter speed automatically to obtain the standard exposure matching the subject brightness. A higher f/ number (smaller aperture hole) will make more of the foreground and background fall within acceptable focus. On the other hand, a lower f/number (larger aperture hole) will make less of the foreground and background fall within acceptable focus.

* < Av > stands for Aperture value (aperture opening).



Blurred background (With a low aperture value: f/5.6)



Sharp foreground and background (With a high aperture value: f/32)



2. Set the desired aperture value.



Turn the < 2 > dial to set it.

3. Focus on the subject.



- Press the shutter button halfway.
- The shutter speed is set automatically.

4. Check the display and shoot.



 As long as the shutter speed is not blinking, the standard exposure will be obtained.

Caution



If the "30" shutter speed blinks, it indicates underexposure.
 Turn the < <p>Turn the < <p>Turn the shutter speed blinking stops or set a higher ISO speed.



If the "1/8000" shutter speed blinks, it indicates overexposure.
 Turn the < (200) > dial to increase aperture value (close the aperture) until the shutter speed blinking stops or set a lower ISO speed.

Note

Aperture value display

 The higher the value, the smaller the aperture opening will be. The aperture value displayed varies depending on the lens. If no lens is attached to the camera, "F00" will be displayed for the aperture.

Depth-of-Field Preview



Press the depth-of-field preview button to stop down the lens to the current aperture value setting and check the area in focus (depth of field).

Note

- The larger the aperture value, the wider the area in focus, from the foreground to the background.
- The depth-of-field effect is readily apparent on images as you change the aperture value and press the depth-of-field preview button.
- Exposure is locked (AE lock) as you hold down the depth-of-field preview button.

Exposure Compensation with ISO Auto

In this mode, you set both the shutter speed and aperture value as desired. To determine the exposure, refer to the exposure level indicator or use a commercially available exposure meter.

* < M > stands for Manual.

1. Set the Mode dial to < M >.

2. Set the ISO speed (∅).

- Turn the < S > dial to set it.
- With ISO Auto, you can set exposure compensation (2).

3. Set the shutter speed and aperture value.

10 B. C

To set the shutter speed, turn the < ⁽¹⁾/₍₁₎ > dial, and to set the aperture value, turn the < (1) > dial.

4. Focus on the subject.



- Press the shutter button halfway.
- Check the exposure level mark [] to see how far the current exposure level is from the standard exposure level.
- (1) Standard exposure index
- (2) Exposure level mark
- 5. Set the exposure and take the picture.



 Check the exposure level indicator and set the desired shutter speed and aperture value.

Exposure Compensation with ISO Auto

If the ISO speed is set to [AUTO] for manual exposure shooting, you can set exposure compensation ((2)) as follows:

- Tap the exposure level indicator
- [C: Expo.comp./AEB]
- Quick Control screen
- Turn the control ring while pressing the shutter button halfway

Caution

- Exposure may not be as expected when ISO Auto is set, because the ISO speed is adjusted to ensure standard exposure for your specified shutter speed and aperture value. In this case, set the exposure compensation.
- Exposure compensation is not applied in flash photography with ISO Auto, even if you have set an exposure compensation amount.

Note

- ISO speed is locked when you hold down the shutter button halfway after subjects are in focus with One-Shot AF in < M > mode with ISO Auto, <
 (Evaluative metering), and [.⁰,: AE lock meter. mode after focus] set to the default setting (²).
- When ISO Auto is set, you can press the < ★ > button to lock the ISO speed.
- If you press the < ★ > button and recompose the shot, you can see the exposure level difference on the exposure level indicator compared to when the < ★ > button was pressed.
- Any existing exposure compensation amount is maintained if you switch to < M > mode with ISO Auto after using exposure compensation in < P >, < Tv >, or
 Av > mode (②).
- To coordinate exposure compensation in ½-stop increments with ISO speed set in ½-stop increments when [,,]; Exposure level increments] is set to [1/2-stop] and used with ISO Auto, exposure compensation is further adjusted by adjusting shutter speed. However, the shutter speed displayed will not change.
Bulb Timer ☆

In this mode, the shutter stays open as long as you hold down the shutter button completely, and closes when you let go of the shutter button. Use bulb exposures for night scenes, fireworks, astrophotography, and other subjects requiring long exposures.

1. Set the Mode dial to < B >.



2. Set the desired aperture value.



Turn the < source > dial to set it.

3. Take the picture.

- The exposure will continue for as long as you keep the shutter button pressed completely.
- Elapsed exposure time is displayed on the screen.

Caution

- Do not point the camera toward an intense light source, such as the sun or an intense artificial light source. Doing so may damage the image sensor or the camera's internal components.
- Long bulb exposures produce more noise in the image than usual.
- ISO 400 is used when the camera is set to ISO Auto.
- When shooting bulb exposures with the self-timer instead of the bulb timer, keep
 pressing the shutter button completely (for the self-timer time and bulb exposure
 time).

Note

- You can reduce the noise generated during long exposures by using [Long exp. noise reduction] (2).
- Using a tripod and the bulb timer is recommended for bulb exposures.
- You can also shoot bulb exposures with Remote Switch RS-60E3 (sold separately, 2).
- You can also use Remote Controller RC-6 or Wireless Remote Control BR-E1 (both sold separately) for bulb exposures. When you press the remote controller's release (transmit) button, the bulb exposure will start immediately or 2 sec. later. Press the button again to stop the bulb exposure.

Bulb Timer

☆

You can set the exposure time for bulb exposures in advance. This feature eliminates the need to keep holding down the shutter button during bulb exposures, which can reduce camera shake.

Note that the bulb timer can only be set and will only take effect in < \bf{B} > (bulb exposure) mode.

- A Contract of the second of th
- 1. Select [D: Bulb timer].

2. Select [Enable].



- Select [Enable], then press the < INFO > button.
- 3. Set the exposure time.



- Select an option (hours : minutes : seconds).
- Press < (1) > to display [].
- Set a value, then press < (F) >. (Returns to []).)
- 4. Select [OK].



5. Take the picture.

- After you press the shutter button completely, the bulb exposure continues for your specified time.
- [TIMER] and the exposure time are displayed on the screen during bulb timer shooting.
- To clear the timer setting, select [Disable] in step 2.

Caution

- Bulb exposure stops if you press the shutter button completely and release it during the timer.
- Bulb exposure continues even after your specified exposure time if you keep
 pressing the shutter button completely (which overrides automatic stopping when
 your specified exposure time elapses).
- The bulb timer is cleared (and reverts to [Disable]) when you switch shooting modes.

This chapter describes shooting and recording and introduces menu settings on the shooting ([

- Still Photo Shooting
- Movie Recording

☆ to the right of titles indicates functions only available in < Fv >, < P>, < Tv >, < Av >, < M>, or < B> mode.

- Tab Menus: Still Photo Shooting
- Image Quality
- <u>Still Photo Cropping/Aspect Ratio</u>
- Auto Exposure Bracketing (AEB) ☆
- ISO Speed Settings for Still Photos
- HDR PQ Settings ☆
- Auto Lighting Optimizer 🕁
- <u>Highlight Tone Priority</u> 1/2
- Anti-Flicker Shooting &
- <u>Shooting with Speedlites</u> 1/2
- Flash Function Settings ☆
- White Balance ☆
- White Balance Correction
- Color Space ☆
- Picture Style Selection ☆
- Picture Style Customization
- Picture Style Registration ☆
- <u>Clarity</u> ☆
- Lens Aberration Correction
- Long Exposure Noise Reduction 1/2
- High ISO Speed Noise Reduction
- <u>Dust Delete Data Acquisition</u> 1/2
- Multiple Exposures ☆
- HDR Mode ☆
- Focus Bracketing ☆
- Interval Timer Shooting
- Shutter Mode ☆
- Releasing Shutter without Card
- Image Stabilizer (IS Mode)
- · Shooting with the Touch Shutter
- Image Review
- High-Speed Display Arr
- Metering Timer ☆
- Exposure Simulation ☆

- Shooting Information Display
- Viewfinder Display Format
- Display Performance
- Metering Mode Selection
- Manual Exposure Compensation 🕁
- Exposure Lock (AE Lock) ☆
- General Still Photo Shooting



- (1) Image quality
- (2) Cropping/aspect ratio

O WEEK HE Y	9 · ·
Epocomp./AEk 1.1.1.9	(1)
©FSO sured settings	(2)
HDR PQ settings	0(1) (3)
Auto Lighting Optimizer	(d)
Highlight tone priority	011(5)
Anti-Ricker shoot. Disable	(6)
External Speedilite control	(7)

- (1) Expo.comp./AEB ☆
- (2) So speed settings
- (3) HDR PQ settings ☆
- (4) Auto Lighting Optimizer 🛧
- (5) Highlight tone priority
- (6) Anti-flicker shoot. ☆
- (7) External Speedlite control 🕁

O WEEK	W 0 +	
White balance	-	(1)
Destorn Writer Ba	water -	(2)
WEISTATUERS.	0.040	(3)
Picture Style	thinded -	(5)
Clarity	andine -	(6)
Lens aberration b	attection 🗕	(7)

- (1) White balance ☆
- (2) Custom White Balance 🛧
- (3) WB Shift/Bkt.☆
- (4) Color space ☆
- (5) Picture Style
 - Picture Style Selection ☆
 - Picture Style Customization ☆
 - Picture Style Registration ☆
- (6) <u>Clarity</u> ☆
- (7) Lens aberration correction \bigstar



- (1) Long exp. noise reduction 🕁
- (2) High ISO speed NR ☆
- (3) Dust Delete Data ☆



- (1) <u>Multiple exposure</u> ☆
- (2) HINH Mode 🕁
- (3) Focus bracketing ☆



- (1) Interval timer
- (2) Bulb timer ☆
- (3) Shutter mode 🕁
- (4) Release shutter without card

	00	1	
IS (Image Statulizer)			(1) (2)
Touch Shutter Image review	Chape		(3)
Metering timer	1000		(4) (5)
Expo, simulation	Brutchy		
Shooting info; days			(7)

- (1) IS (Image Stabilizer) mode
- (2) Touch Shutter
- (3) Image review
- (4) ⊒_{IH}High speed display ☆
- (5) Metering timer ☆
- (6) Expo. simulation ☆
- (7) Shooting info. disp.

• Shooting 8



(1) VF display format

(2) Disp. performance



- (1) Movie rec quality
- (2) Sound recording
- (3) ISO speed settings
- (4) Auto slow shutter
- (5) Shutter btn function for movies
- In $< \square^+ >$ mode, the following screens are displayed.

O N D H Y	
Cropping and the second second	(1) (2)
Contemportation	- (4)

- (1) Image quality
- (2) Cropping/aspect ratio



(1) Interval timer

(2) Release shutter without card

• Shooting 3

	page 1
15 Dmage Statulizer) mode	(1)
Touch Enutter. Deable	(2)
Image review	(3)
Shooting info, disp.	(4)
W display format	(5)
Disp. performance	(5)

- (1) IS (Image Stabilizer) mode
- (2) Touch Shutter
- (3) Image review
- (4) Shooting info. disp.
- (5) VF display format
- (6) Disp. performance

• Shooting 4



- (1) Movie rec quality
- (2) Sound recording
- (3) Shutter btn function for movies

- RAW Images
- Guide to Image Quality Settings
- Maximum Burst for Continuous Shooting

You can select the pixel count and the image quality. JPEG/HEIF image quality options are as follows: AL / AL / AM / AM / ASI / SI / SI. For RAW images, you can specify RAW or CRAW as the image quality.

1. Select [1: Image quality].



• The screen displayed varies depending on [CRecord func.] settings in [Y: Record func+card/folder sel.].

2. Set the image quality.

Standard/Auto switch card/Record to multiple



- For RAW images, turn the < $\underset{\mbox{\sc lines}}{\sim}$ > dial, and for JPEG images, turn the < $\underset{\mbox{\sc lines}}{\sim}$ > dial.
- Press < SET > to set it.

Record separately



When [▲ Record func.] in [✓: Record func+card/folder sel.] is set to [Rec. separately], turn the < ○ > dial to select [↑] or [2], then press < ④ >. Note that recording separately to AW and CRAW is not available for RAW images.



Select an image quality on the screen displayed, then press < (E) >.

Note HEIF can be specified when [HDR shooting [IDREQ] in [A: HDR PQ settings] is set to [Enable]. You can convert these images to JPEG images after shooting (2). A is set if you set both RAW and JPEG/HEIF to [-]. Two versions of each shot are recorded at your specified image quality when you have selected both RAW and JPEG/HEIF. Both images have the same file number but each has a different file extension, with .JPG for JPEG. .HIF for HEIF and .CR3 for RAW. S2 is in A (Fine) quality. Meaning of image quality icons: KAW RAW, CKAW Compact RAW, JPEG, HEIF, L Large, M Medium, S Small.

RAW images are raw data from the image sensor that are recorded to the card digitally as

RAW or CRAW, based on your selection. CRAW produces RAW images with smaller file sizes than RAW.

RAW images can be processed using [E: RAW image processing] (27) to save them as JPEG or HEIF images. As the RAW image itself does not change, you can process the RAW image to create any number of JPEG or HEIF images with various processing conditions.

You can use Digital Photo Professional (EOS software) to process RAW images. You can make various adjustments to images depending upon how they will be used and can generate JPEG, HEIF, or other types of images reflecting the effects of those adjustments.

Note

- To display RAW images on a computer, using Digital Photo Professional (EOS software, hereafter DPP) is recommended.
- Older versions of DPP Ver. 4.x do not support display, processing, editing, or other operations with RAW images captured by this camera. If a previous version of DPP Ver. 4.x is installed on your computer, obtain and install the latest version of DPP from the Canon website to update it (@), which will overwrite the previous version. Similarly, DPP Ver. 3.x or earlier does not support display, processing, editing, or other operations with RAW images captured by this camera.
- Commercially available software may not be able to display RAW images captured by this camera. For compatibility information, contact the software manufacturer.

See <u>Still photo file size / Number of possible shots / Maximum burst for continuous shooting</u> for details on file size, number of shots available, maximum burst, and other estimated values.



The approximate maximum burst is displayed at the upper left of the shooting screen and lower right of the viewfinder.

Note

If the maximum burst is displayed as "99", it indicates that you can shoot 99 or more shots continuously. Fewer shots are available for a value of 98 or tower, and when (BUSY) is displayed on the screen, internal memory is full and shooting will stop temporarily. If you stop continuous shooting, the maximum burst will increase. After all captured images have been written to a card, you can once again shoot at the maximum burst listed in <u>Still photo file size / Number of possible shots / Maximum burst for continuous shooting</u>.

Normally with RF or EF lenses, images are captured at the sensor size of approx. 35.9×23.9 mm in full-frame shooting, but in cropped shooting, you can isolate and magnify the center of the image approx. 1.6× (APS-C size) as if using a telephoto lens, or you can set an aspect ratio as needed before shooting. EF-S lenses capture a 3:2 area in the center, magnified approx. 1.6× (APS-C size).

1. Select [: Cropping/aspect ratio].



2. Select an option.



- Select [Full-frame], [1.6x (crop)], [1:1 (aspect ratio)], [4:3 (aspect ratio)], or [16:9 (aspect ratio)].
- With EF-S lenses, [1.6x (crop)] is set automatically, and no other option is available.
- To proceed without changing shooting area display, press < (ii) > and go to step 4.

3. Select how the shooting area is displayed.



- On the screen in step 2, press the < INFO > button.
- Select the type of display, then press < (ii) >.



4. Take the picture.

Setting examples

When FULL is set



When $\overline{1.6}^{\text{R}}$ is set or an EF-S lens is used



When 1:1/ is set



When 4:3/ is set



- When [1.6x (crop)] is set or an EF-S lens is used, an image magnified approx. 1.6× is displayed.
- When [1:1 (aspect ratio)], [4:3 (aspect ratio)], or [16:9 (aspect ratio)] is set, the image within the black masked or outlined area is captured.

Caution

- Areas outside the cropped area are not recorded in RAW shooting when [1.6x (crop)] is set, or with EF-S lenses.
- [Shooting area] has no effect on display when [1.6x (crop)] is set, or with EF-S lenses.
- [D]: Add cropping information] is only available when [Full-frame] is set.

When external flash units are used, flash auto zoom (automatic adjustment of flash coverage) based on the [O: Cropping/aspect ratio] setting is not performed.

Note

- For details on pixel counts when cropping or an aspect ratio is set, see <u>Still photo</u> pixel count.
- Nearly 100% field of view coverage is maintained vertically and horizontally when cropping or an aspect ratio is set.
- Aspect ratio information is added to RAW images when an aspect ratio is set, which are captured at full size. When the RAW images are played back, the image area used for shooting is indicated by lines. Note that only the shooting image area is shown in <u>Slide Show</u>.

In exposure bracketing, three consecutive images are captured at different exposures within your specified range of up to ±3 stops (in 1/3-stop increments) by automatically adjusting the shutter speed, aperture value, or ISO speed.

* AEB stands for Auto Exposure Bracketing.

1. Select [C: Expo.comp./AEB].



2. Set the AEB range.



- Turn the < A gradient of the AEB range (1). By turning the < > dial, you can set the exposure compensation amount.
- Press < (ii) > to set it.
- When you close the menu, the AEB range will be displayed on the screen.

3. Take the picture.

Standard exposure



- Three bracketed shots are taken, according to the specified drive mode, in this sequence: Standard exposure, decreased exposure, and increased exposure.
- AEB will not be automatically canceled. To cancel AEB, follow step 2 to turn off the AEB range display.

Caution

Exposure compensation in AEB may be less effective with [Auto Lighting Optimizer] () set to an option other than [Disable].

Note

- [★] blinks in the lower left of the screen during AEB.
- If the drive mode is set to [], press the shutter button three times for each shot. In []; [], [], H], or [], mode, holding down the shutter button completely captures three images, one after another, before the camera automatically stops shooting. When []; or [];
- You can set AEB in combination with exposure compensation.
- AEB is not available in flash photography or bulb exposures, or with Multi Shot Noise Reduction, HDR mode, focus bracketing, or when electronic shutter is set.
- AEB will be canceled automatically if you do any of the following: Setting the power switch to < OFF > or when the flash is fully charged.

- SO Speed Range When Set Manually
- So Speed Range Used with ISO Auto
- Minimum Shutter Speed for ISO Auto

Set the ISO speed (image sensor's sensitivity to light) to suit the ambient light level. In < (<u>A</u>⁺ > mode, ISO speed is set automatically. For details on ISO speed in movie recording, see <u>ISO Speed in Movie Recording</u>.

1. Set the ISO speed.



- With an image displayed on the screen, set by turning the < Solve > dial.
- ISO speed can be set within ISO 100–102400 in 1/3-stop increments.
- Select [AUTO] to set the ISO speed automatically.
- For details on the ISO Auto range, see <u>ISO speed (recommended</u> exposure index) in still photo shooting.

ISO speed guide

- Low ISO speeds reduce image noise but may increase the risk of camera/subject shake or reduce the area in focus (shallower depth of field), in some shooting conditions.
- High ISO speeds enable low-light shooting, a larger area in focus (deeper depth of field), and longer flash range but may increase image noise.

Note

- ISO speed can also be set in the ISO speed item by pressing the < M-Fn > button with an image displayed on the screen.
- Can also be set on the [ISO speed] screen in [1]: 1SO speed settings].
- To expand the available ISO speed range from L (equivalent to ISO 50) to H (equivalent to ISO 204800), adjust [ISO speed range] in [1]: DISO speed settings] (2).

Caution

- Image noise (dots of light or banding) and irregular colors may increase and apparent resolution may decrease at H (equivalent to ISO 204800), because this is an expanded ISO speed.
- Because L (equivalent to ISO 50) is an expanded ISO speed setting, the dynamic range will be somewhat narrower compared to the standard setting.
- Setting [
 <u>L</u>: Highlight tone priority] to [Enable] or [Enhanced] (
 <u>C</u>) will prevent you from selecting L (equivalent to ISO 50), ISO 100/125/160, or H (equivalent to ISO 204800).
- When shooting with a high ISO speed, high temperature, long exposure, or multiple
 exposure, image noise (graininess, dots of light, banding, etc.), irregular colors, or
 color shift may become noticeable.
- When shooting in conditions that produce an extreme amount of noise, such as a combination of high ISO speed, high temperature, and long exposure, images may not be recorded properly.
- If you use a high ISO speed and flash to shoot a close subject, overexposure may result.

You can set the manual ISO speed setting range (minimum and maximum limits). You can set the minimum limit within L (equivalent to ISO 50) to ISO 102400, and the maximum limit within ISO 100 to H (equivalent to ISO 204800).

1. Select [: ISO speed settings].



2. Select [ISO speed range].

IND SEAMS	1049
Space of the second sec	100102400
Auto sakge	100-25600
No. during and	Auto

3. Set [Minimum].



- Select the [Minimum] box, then press < (E) >.
- Select the ISO speed, then press < (ET) >.

4. Set [Maximum].



- Select the [Maximum] box, then press < (1) >.
- Select the ISO speed, then press < (st) >.
- 5. Select [OK].

You can set the automatic ISO speed range for ISO Auto within ISO 100–102400. The minimum can be set within ISO 100–51200 and the maximum within ISO 200–102400, in 1stop increments.

1. Select [Auto range].

OISO sevent setting	44
NO speed 50 served remain Apro sange Win, shutter set	0410 108 192400 100 25400
	0035

2. Set [Minimum].



- Select the [Minimum] box, then press < (e) >.
- Select the ISO speed, then press < (E) >.

3. Set [Maximum].



- Select the [Maximum] box, then press < ()>.
- Select the ISO speed, then press < (FT) >.

4. Select [OK].

Note

To prevent shutter speeds from being set too low automatically, you can set the minimum shutter speed for ISO Auto.

This is effective in $< P > or < A_V >$ mode when shooting subjects in motion with a wideangle lens, or when using a telephoto lens. It can also reduce camera shake and blurred subjects.

1. Select [Min. shutter spd.].



2. Set the desired minimum shutter speed.

Auto



If you select [Auto], turn the < Automatical Section 2 and the automatical section of the section

Manual



If you select [Manual], turn the < A dial to select the shutter speed, then press < A dial to select the shutter speed.

Caution

- If a correct exposure cannot be obtained with the maximum ISO speed limit set with [Auto range], a shutter speed slower than the [Min. shutter spd.] will be set to obtain the standard exposure.
- This function will not be applied to flash photography.

Note

 When [Auto(Standard)] is set, the minimum shutter speed will be the reciprocal of the lens focal length. A single step from [Slower] to [Faster] is equivalent to a single stop of the shutter speed. PQ in HDR PQ refers to the gamma curve of the input signal for displaying HDR images. HDR PQ settings enable the camera to produce HDR images conforming to the PQ specification defined in ITU-R BT.2100 and SMPTE ST.2084. (Actual display depends on monitor performance.)

Shots are captured as HEIF or RAW images.

* HDR stands for High Dynamic Range.

* PQ stands for Perceptual Quantization.

1. Select [C: HDR PQ settings].



2. Set [HDR shooting HDR PQ].



Select [Enable].

3. Set [HDR assist disp: shooting].



- On the screen, converted images are displayed that resemble how the images would look on an HDR display device.
- Select [Exposure prior. (mid-tones)] or [Tones prior. (highlights)].

[Massii] Exposure prior. (mid-tones)

Provides reference display that emphasizes exposure of subjects (such as people) with intermediate brightness.

[]] Tones prior. (highlights)

Provides reference display that emphasizes gradation of bright subjects (such as the sky).
4. Set [HDR assist disp: playback].



- Converted images are displayed on the screen for playback, giving an impression similar to how they would appear on an HDR display device.
- Select [Exposure prior. (mid-tones)] or [Tones prior. (highlights)].

[HDR] Exposure prior. (mid-tones)

Provides reference display that emphasizes exposure of subjects (such as people) with intermediate brightness.

[HDR] Tones prior. (highlights)

Provides reference display that emphasizes gradation of bright subjects (such as the sky).

5. Set the image quality.

• For details, see Image Quality.

Note

 Settings for [HDR assist disp: shooting] also apply to images displayed on the screen immediately after you shoot.

Caution

- Expanded ISO speeds (L, H) are not available in HDR shooting.
- Some scenes may look different from how they appear on an HDR display device.
- Histograms of images captured with [HDR shooting [HDRP0] set to [Enable] are not based on images as converted for HDR assist display. Image areas shown in gray in the histogram roughly indicate signal values that are not used.
- [D: Disp. performance] is not available when [HDR shooting [IDR PO]] is set to [Enable]. It is set to [Smooth].
- For images captured with [HDR shooting [HDRPQ] set to [Enable], before playback on an HDR display device, set [D]: HDMI HDR output] to [On] (②). Note that regardless of the [HDMI HDR output] setting, HDR images are used for Live View display on HDR display devices.

Brightness and contrast can be corrected automatically if shots look dark or contrast is too low or high.

☆

In < A > mode, [Standard] is set automatically.

1. Select [1]: Auto Lighting Optimizer].



2. Set a correction option.



Caution

- Noise may increase and apparent resolution may change, under some shooting conditions.
- If the effect of Auto Lighting Optimizer is too strong and results are not at your preferred brightness, set to [Low] or [Disable].
- If a setting other than [Disable] is set and you use exposure compensation or flash exposure compensation to darken the exposure, the image may still come out bright. If you want a darker exposure, set this function to [Disable].

Note
 For [XAW] and C[RAW] images, face lighting can be adjusted in [▶: RAW image processing] (②).
 To enable [♠: Auto Lighting Optimizer] to be set even in < M > and < B > modes, press the < |NFO > button in step 2 to clear the checkmark [√] for [Disabled in M or B modes].

You can reduce overexposed, clipped highlights.

1. Select [1]: Highlight tone priority].



2. Set an option.



 [Enable]: Improves gradation in highlights. The gradation between the grays and highlights becomes smoother.

☆

 [Enhanced]: Reduces overexposed highlights even more than [Enable], under some shooting conditions.

Caution

- Noise may increase slightly.
- The available ISO range starts at ISO 200. Expanded ISO speeds cannot be set.
- With [Enhanced], results in some scenes may not look as expected.

Uneven exposure and color may result if you shoot at fast shutter speeds under flickering light sources such as fluorescent lights, due to uneven vertical exposure. Anti-flicker shooting enables you to take pictures when exposure and colors are less affected by flickering.

1. Select [1]: Anti-flicker shoot.].



2. Select [Enable].



3. Take the picture.

Caution

- When [Enable] is set and you shoot under a flickering light source, the shutterrelease time lag may become longer. Also, the continuous shooting speed may become slower, and the shooting interval may become irregular.
- Flicker at a frequency other than 100 Hz or 120 Hz cannot be detected. Also, if the flickering frequency of the light source changes during continuous shooting, effects of the flicker cannot be reduced.
- In < Fv >, < P >, or < Av > mode, color tone of captured images may vary if the shutter speed changes during continuous shooting or if you take multiple shots of the same scene at different shutter speeds. To avoid inconsistent color tone, shoot

in $\langle Fv \rangle$, $\langle M \rangle$, or $\langle Tv \rangle$ mode at a fixed shutter speed.

- Color tone of captured images may vary between [Enable] and [Disable].
- Shutter speed, aperture value, and ISO speed may change when you start shooting with AE lock.
- If the subject is against a dark background or if there is a bright light in the image, flicker may not be properly detected.
- Flicker reduction may not be possible under special lighting.
- Depending on the light source, flicker may not be detected properly.
- Depending on the light sources or shooting conditions, the expected result may not be obtained even if you use this function.

Note

- Taking test shots in advance is recommended.
- Detect flicker manually if the screen flickers (as when the light source changes) by pressing the < (\u0) > button, selecting [Anti-flicker shoot.], then pressing the < |NFO > button.
- Flicker is not reduced in < A⁺ > mode.
- Flicker reduction also works with flash photography. However, the expected result
 may not be obtained for wireless flash photography.

- EL/EX Series Speedlites for EOS Cameras
- Canon Speedlites Other Than the EL/EX Series
- Non-Canon Flash Units

EL/EX Series Speedlites for EOS Cameras

Features of EL/EX series Speedlites (sold separately) can be used in flash photography with the camera.

For instructions, refer to the EL/EX series Speedlite's Instruction Manual.

Flash exposure compensation

FE lock

This enables you to obtain appropriate flash exposure for a specific part of the subject. Aim the viewfinder center over the subject, press the camera's $< \frac{1}{2}$ > button, then compose the shot and take the picture.

Caution

- Setting [C: Auto Lighting Optimizer] ((2)) to an option other than [Disable] may still cause images to look bright even if you set lower flash exposure compensation for darker images.
- In flash photography, set [1]: Shutter mode] to an option other than [Electronic]
 (2).

Note

- The Speedlite will automatically fire an AF-assist beam as needed, if autofocusing is difficult under low light.
- You can also set flash exposure compensation on the Quick Control screen (g) or in the [Flash function settings] setting of [1]: External Speedlite control] (g).
- The camera can turn on certain Speedlites automatically when the camera is turned on. For details, refer to the instruction manual of Speedlites that support this feature.

 With an EZ/E/EG/ML/TL series Speedlite set to A-TTL or TTL autoflash mode, the flash can be fired at full output only.

Set the camera's shooting mode to < M > or < Av > and adjust the aperture value before shooting.

• When using a Speedlite that has manual flash mode, shoot in the manual flash mode.

Sync speed

The camera can synchronize with non-Canon compact flash units at up to 1/250 sec. (or up to 1/200 sec. with []: Shutter mode] set to [Mechanical]). With large studio flash units, the flash duration is longer than that of a compact flash unit and varies depending on the model. Before shooting, confirm that flash sync is performed correctly by taking some test shots at a sync speed of approx. 1/60 sec. to 1/30 sec.

Caution

- Using the camera with a dedicated flash unit or flash accessory for cameras of other manufacturers poses a risk of malfunction and even damage.
- Do not attach a high-voltage flash unit to the camera's hot shoe. It may not fire.

- Flash Firing
- E-TTL Balance
- E-TTL II Flash Metering
- Continuous Flash Control
- Slow Synchro
- Flash Function Settings
- Flash Custom Function Settings
- Clearing Flash Function Settings/Clearing All Speedlite Custom Functions

Functions of EL/EX Series Speedlites compatible with flash function settings can be set via a camera menu screen. Attach the Speedlite to the camera and turn on the Speedlite before setting the flash functions.

For details on the Speedlite's functions, refer to the Speedlite's Instruction Manual.





2. Select an option.



Flash Firing

External Spend	the control	
Field filling	4Deable D'adde	

To enable flash photography, set to [Enable]. To enable only the AF-assist beam of the Speedlite, set to [Disable].



You can set your preferred appearance (balance) for flash shots. This setting enables you to adjust the ratio of ambient light to Speedlite light output.

- Set the balance to [Ambience priority] to lower the proportion of flash output and uses ambient light to produce lifelike shots with a natural mood. Especially useful when shooting dark scenes (indoors, for example). After switching to < Av > or < P > mode, consider setting [Slow synchro] in []: External Speedlite control] to [1/250-30sec. auto] (or [1/200-30sec. auto]) and using slow-sync shooting.
- Set the balance to [Flash priority] to make the flash the main source of light. Useful for reducing shadows on subjects and in the background from ambient light.

Caution

 Although [Ambience priority] is effective in dark scenes, there may be no difference from results with [Standard] in some scenes.

External Spendic	e another
ETLI MOS	Novi Handroy III Traindhe Anning

- Set to [Eval (FacePrty)] for flash metering suitable for shots of people. The continuous shooting speed for high-speed continuous shooting is slower than when [Evaluative] or [Average] is selected.
- Set to [Evaluative] for flash metering that emphasizes firing in continuous shooting.
- If [Average] is set, the flash exposure will be averaged for the entire metered scene.

Note

Depending on the scene, flash exposure compensation may be necessary.

Caution

 Even when [Eval (FacePrty)] is set, some subjects and shooting conditions may prevent you from obtaining the expected result.



Set to [E-TTL each shot] to perform flash metering for each shot. Set to [E-TTL 1st shot] to perform flash metering for only the first shot before continuous shooting. The flash output level for the first shot is applied to all subsequent shots. Useful when prioritizing continuous shooting speed without recomposing shots.

Caution

Any subject movement in continuous shooting may cause exposure problems.

You can set the flash-sync speed for flash photography in $\langle AV \rangle$ or $\langle P \rangle$ mode. Note that the maximum flash synchronization speed varies depending on the [\Box : Shutter mode] setting. It is 1/250 sec. when set to [Elec. 1st-curtain] and 1/200 sec. when set to [Mechanical].



^{1/250}/_{-30"}A: 1/250-30sec. auto (^{-1/200}/_{-30"}A: 1/200-30sec. auto)

The shutter speed is set automatically within a range of 1/250 (or 1/200) sec. to 30 sec. to suit the brightness. High-speed sync is also possible.

^{1/250}/_{-1/60}A: 1/250-1/60sec. auto (^{1/200}/_{-1/60}A: 1/200-1/60sec. auto)

Prevents a slow shutter speed from being set automatically in low-light conditions. It is effective for preventing subject blur and camera shake. Light from the flash provides standard exposure for subjects, but note that backgrounds may be dark.

1/250: 1/250 sec. (fixed) (1/200: 1/200 sec. (fixed))

The shutter speed is fixed at 1/250 sec. (or 1/200 sec.), which is more effective in preventing subject blur and camera shake than with [1/250-1/60sec. auto] (or [1/200-1/60sec. auto]). Note that under low light, backgrounds will be darker than with [1/250-1/60sec. auto] (or [1/200-1/60sec. auto]).

Caution

 High-speed sync is not available in < Av > or < P > mode when set to [1/250 sec. (fixed)] or [1/200 sec. (fixed)]. The information displayed on the screen, position of display, and available options vary depending on the Speedlite model, its Custom Function settings, the flash mode, and other factors. For details on the Speedlite's functions, refer to the Speedlite's Instruction Manual. **Sample display**



- (1) Flash mode
- Wireless functions/ Firing ratio control (RATIO)
- (3) Flash zoom (flash coverage)
- (4) Shutter synchronization
- (5) Flash exposure compensation
- (6) Flash exposure bracketing

Caution

 Functions are limited when using EX series Speedlites that are not compatible with flash function settings.

Flash mode

You can select the flash mode to suit your desired flash photography.



- [E-TTL II flash metering] is the standard mode of EL/EX series Speedlites for automatic flash photography.
- [Manual flash] is for setting the Speedlite's [Flash output level] yourself.
- [CSP] (Continuous shooting priority mode) is available when using a compatible Speedlite. This mode automatically reduces flash output by one stop and increases ISO speed by one stop. Useful in continuous shooting, and helps conserve flash battery power.
- Regarding other flash modes, refer to the Instruction Manual of a Speedlite compatible with the respective flash mode.

Caution

Adjust exposure compensation (2) as needed in case of overexposure from flash photography with [CSP] in < Fy >, < Ty >, or < M > mode.

Note

With [CSP], ISO speed is automatically set to [Auto].

Wireless functions

Workers Rand	10.95	
	Contract of the	
10000	198	~
		117 303

You can use radio or optical wireless transmission to shoot with wireless multiple-flash lighting.

For details on wireless flash, refer to the Instruction Manual of a Speedlite compatible with wireless flash photography.

Firing ratio control (RATIO)

Fring late	control		
. Down	inite of	resident	
	100	80.00	
		1	17 10

With a macro flash, you can set the firing ratio control.

For details on firing ratio control, refer to the Instruction Manual of the macro flash.

Flash zoom (flash coverage)

			H -		
400	20	14	28	35	м
16	100	105	178	208	

With Speedlites having a zooming flash head, you can set the flash coverage.

Shutter synchronization



Normally, set this to [First-curtain synchronization] so that the flash fires immediately after the shooting starts.

Set to [Second-curtain synchronization] and use low shutter speeds for natural-looking shots of subject motion trails, such as car headlights.

Set to [High-speed synchronization] for flash photography at higher shutter speeds than the maximum flash sync shutter speed. This is effective when shooting with an open

aperture in < Av > mode to blur the background behind subjects outdoors in daylight, for example.

Caution

 When using second-curtain synchronization, set the shutter speed to 1/60 sec. or slower. If the shutter speed is 1/80 sec. or faster, first-curtain synchronization will be applied automatically even if [Second-curtain synchronization] is set.

Flash exposure compensation



Just as exposure compensation is adjustable, you can also adjust flash output.

Note

 If flash exposure compensation is set with the Speedlite, you cannot set the flash exposure compensation with the camera. If it is set with both the camera and Speedlite, the Speedlite's setting overrides the camera's.

Flash exposure bracketing



Speedlites equipped with flash exposure bracketing (FEB) can change the external flash output automatically as three shots are taken at once.

For details on the Speedlite's Custom Functions, refer to the Instruction Manual of the Speedlite.

1. Select [Flash C.Fn settings].

Evening Speedate	central
E-FTL balance E-FTL & redire County Flash car Store servicing Flash threating settle	totootand Evel Discolition 8-TTL sach sholt TELA
Flesh C.Ps settings Clear settings	cita s

2. Set the desired functions.

• flash Auto	C.Pri se	11 11			•
1.Dea	646				
-814	11111	173	LT:	223	T.

- Select the number.
- Select an option.

Caution

- With an EX series Speedlite, the Speedlite will always fire at full output if the [Flash metering mode] Custom Function is set to [TTL flash metering] (autoflash).
- The Speedlite's Personal Function (P.Fn) cannot be set or canceled from the camera's [D: External Speedlite control] screen. Set it directly on the Speedlite.

1. Select [Clear settings].



2. Select the settings to be cleared.



- Select [Clear flash settings] or [Clear all Speedlite C.Fn's].
- Select [OK] on the confirmation screen to clear all flash settings or Custom Function settings.

- White Balance
- [AWB] Auto White Balance
- 🗹 [🔄] Custom White Balance 🛧
- Color Temperature

White balance (WB) is for making the white areas look white. Normally, the Auto [WB] (Ambience priority) or [WBW] (White priority) setting will obtain the correct white balance. If natural-looking colors cannot be obtained with Auto, you can select the white balance to match the light source or set it manually by shooting a white object.

In < [AT] > mode, [[AW]] (Ambience priority) is set automatically.

1. Press the $< M-F_n > button (\textcircled{0}8)$.



- With an image displayed on the screen, press the < M-Fn > button.
- 2. Select the white balance item.



Turn the < () > dial to select the white balance setting item.

3. Select a white balance setting.



Turn the < is > dial to make a selection.

Note

- For [AWB] and [AWBW] setting instructions, see [AWB] Auto White Balance.
- To set your preferred color temperature, select [1] in [1]: White balance], then turn the < ²/₂ > dial.

(Approx.)

Display	Mode	Color Temperature (K: Kelvin)
AWB	Auto (Ambience priority)	3000-7000
AWBW	Auto (White priority)	
*	Daylight	5200
€	Shade	7000
2	Cloudy, twilight, sunset	6000
*	Tungsten light	3200
	White fluorescent light	4000
4	When using Flash	Automatically set*
•	Custom	2000–10000
K	Color temperature	2500–10000

* Applicable with Speedlites having a color temperature transmission function. Otherwise, it will be fixed to approx. 6000K.

The human eye adapts to changes in lighting so that white objects look white under all kinds of lighting. Digital cameras determine white from the color temperature of lighting and, based on this, apply image processing to make color tones look natural in your shots. With [WW] (Ambience priority), you can slightly increase the intensity of the image's warm color cast when shooting a tungsten-light scene.

If you select [[AWBW] (White priority), you can reduce the intensity of the image's warm color cast.

1. Select [C: White balance].

•		+	1		Ι.
With	balance		-		
West	e wenne Putike		3.0k)	et i	
Colors	eure :		100	1.0	
Return	stee		5500	ч.	
Carry of	in table	-	iction		

2. Select [AWB].



• With [WB] selected, press the < INFO > button.

3. Select an option.



Caution

Precautions when set to [AWBW] (White priority)

- The warm color cast of subjects may fade.
- When multiple light sources are included in the scene, the warm color cast of the picture may not be reduced.
- When using flash, the color tone will be the same as with [WB] (Ambience priority).

With custom white balance, you can manually set the white balance for the specific light source of the shooting location. Make sure to perform this procedure under the light source at the actual location of the shoot.

Registration from an image on a card



1. Shoot a white object.

- Aim the camera at a plain white object, so that white fills the screen.
- Set the lens's focus mode switch to < MF > and shoot to obtain standard exposure for the white object.
- You can use any of the white balance settings.

Caution

- Correct white balance may not be obtained if the exposure of your image differs greatly from standard exposure.
- The following images cannot be selected: Images captured with the Picture Style set to [Monochrome], multiple-exposure images, cropped images, and images shot with another camera.

2. Select [Custom White Balance].



3. Import the white balance data.

	10	1.1	

- Turn the < (() > dial to select the image captured in step 1, then press < () >.
- Select [OK] to import the data.
- 4. Select [C: White balance].
- $5. \hspace{0.1in} \text{Select the custom white balance.} \\$



● Select [⊾•].

Shooting and registering white balances

- 1. Press < Q >.
- 2. Select the white balance item.



- Turn the < () > dial or press < 🔆 > up or down for selection.
- 3. Select [Record and register WB].



Turn the < [∞]→ > or < [∞]→ > dial or press < ^{*}→ > left or right to select
 [⊷], then press the < [∞]→ > button.

4. Shoot a white object.



- Aim the camera at a plain white object, so that white fills the screen.
- Set the camera to manual focus (2) and shoot so that the white object has standard exposure.
- The custom white balance is registered to the camera.



Caution

 Correct white balance may not be obtained if the exposure of your image differs greatly from standard exposure.

Note

 Instead of shooting a white object, you can also shoot a gray card or standard 18% gray reflector (commercially available). A value can be set representing the white balance color temperature.

1. Select [C: White balance].



2. Set the color temperature.



- Select [K].
- Turn the < 200 > dial to set a color temperature, then press < 10 >.
- The color temperature can be set from approx. 2500K to 10000K in 100K increments.

Note

- When setting the color temperature for an artificial light source, set the white balance correction (magenta or green bias) as necessary.
- When setting [I] to a value measured with a commercially available color temperature meter, take some test shots in advance and adjust the setting as needed to compensate for any difference between the color temperature meter and the camera.

- White Balance Correction
- White Balance Auto Bracketing

You can correct the white balance that is set. This adjustment will have the same effect as using a commercially available color temperature conversion filter or color compensating filter.

White Balance Correction

1. Select [C: WB Shift/Bkt.].



2. Set the white balance correction.



Sample setting: A2, G1



- Use < * > to move the "•" mark on the screen to your preferred position.
- B is for blue, A for amber, M for magenta, and G for green. White balance is corrected in the direction you move the mark.
- On the right of the screen, [Shift] indicates the direction and correction amount, respectively.
- Pressing the < m > button will cancel all the [WB Shift/Bkt.] settings.
- Press < (1) > to exit the setting.

Note

 One level of the blue/amber correction is equivalent to approx. 5 mireds of a color temperature conversion filter. (Mired: Unit of measure for color temperature used to indicate values such as the density of a color temperature conversion filter.)
White balance bracketing enables you to capture three images at once with different color tones.

Setting the white balance bracketing amount



In step 2 for <u>White Balance Correction</u>, when you turn the < >> dial, the "■" mark on the screen will change to "■ ■ " (3 points).

Turning the dial clockwise sets the B/A bracketing, and turning it counterclockwise sets the M/G bracketing.

B/A bias ±3 levels



- On the right of the screen, [Bracket] indicates the bracketing direction and correction amount.
- Pressing the < m > button will cancel all the [WB Shift/Bkt.] settings.
- Press < SET > to exit the setting.

Caution

- During white balance bracketing, the maximum burst for continuous shooting will be lower.
- Since three images are recorded for one shot, it takes longer to record the image to the card.

Note

- The images will be bracketed in the following sequence: 1. Standard white balance, 2. Blue (B) bias, and 3. Amber (A) bias, or 1. Standard white balance, 2. Magenta (M) bias, and 3. Green (G) bias.
- You can also set white balance correction and AEB together with white balance bracketing. If you set AEB in combination with white balance bracketing, a total of nine images will be recorded for a single shot.
- The white balance icon blinks to indicate that white balance bracketing has been set.
- You can change the bracketing sequence (
 ⁽²⁾) and number of shots (
 ⁽²⁾) for the white balance bracketing.
- Bracket stands for bracketing.

The range of reproducible colors is called the "color space." For normal shooting, sRGB is recommended.

In < A > mode, [sRGB] is set automatically.

- 1. Select [D: Color space].
- 2. Set a color space option.



Select [sRGB] or [Adobe RGB], then press < (1) >.

Adobe RGB

This color space is mainly used for commercial printing and other professional applications. Recommended when using equipment such as Adobe RGB-compatible monitors or DCF 2.0 (Exif 2.21 or later) compatible printers.



Picture Style Characteristics

Symbols

Just by selecting a preset Picture Style, you can obtain image characteristics effectively matching your photographic expression or the subject.

In < A > mode, [3:A] (Auto) is set automatically.

1. Select [C: Picture Style].



2. Select a Picture Style.

Photore Style	6.6.6.6.4.0
E846	4.2.2.2.2.2.2
CONTRACTOR OF	
CEPONAL.	4.8.8.8.8.8.8.
(CI) Landstatie	8.1.3.4.8.6
Ell free Delast	4.1.1.1.1.1.1
CO testa	81414.818.81
AND Contract Link.	147 160

🔹 🛋 Auto

The color tone will be adjusted automatically to suit the scene. The colors will look vivid for blue skies, greenery and sunsets, particularly in nature, outdoor, and sunset scenes.



If the desired color tone is not obtained with [Auto], use another Picture Style.

Standard

The image looks vivid, sharp, and crisp. Suitable for most scenes.

Portrait

For smooth skin tones, with slightly less sharpness. Suited for close-up portraits. Skin tone can be adjusted by changing [**Color tone**] as described in <u>Settings and</u> <u>Effects</u>.

Landscape

For vivid blues and greens, and very sharp and crisp images. Effective for impressive landscapes.

Fine Detail

For detailed rendering of fine subject contours and subtle textures. The colors will be slightly vivid.

Neutral

For retouching later on a computer. Makes images subdued, with lower contrast and natural color tones.

Arr Faithful

For retouching later on a computer. Faithfully reproduces the actual colors of subjects as measured in daylight with a color temperature of 5200K. Makes images subdued, with lower contrast.

Monochrome

Creates black-and-white images.

Caution

 Color images cannot be recovered from JPEG images shot with the [Monochrome] Picture Style.

● 📧 User Def. 1-3

You can add a new style based on presets such as [Portrait] or [Landscape] or a Picture Style file, then adjust it as needed (20). With any User Defined Picture Style that has not yet been registered, pictures will be taken with the same characteristics settings as with the default settings of [Standard]. Icons on the Picture Style selection screen represent [Strength], [Fineness], and [Threshold] for [Sharpness] as well as [Contrast] and other parameters. The numbers indicate the values for these settings specified for the respective Picture Style.

Pidure Style	(LEELAD)	Picture State	CONNER D
IQ.II Auto	4.1.1.1.1.1	128May	1444.1.1
20 Service 1	4.2.2.8.8.8.9	1011Futted	1.1.1.1.1.R.R.
CO Portest	SCALES.	and the same of th	4.2.0.0.0.0
ETTurchupp-	1.1.1.1.1.1.1	FEBMAN Det T	the state
E2911-PDHM	101010-0010	EXEMPTED IN THE IT	Tandard
D3HHote	8.8.8.8.8.8	\$23 New Set. 1	Theolet .
the prantet.	127 100	CELE COLUMNS.	01 100

	Sharpness		
	ß	Strength	
0	G	Fineness	
	G	Threshold	
	Contrast		
•	Saturation		
	Color tone		
۲	Filter effect (Monochrome)		
۲	Toning effect (Monochrome)		

Caution

 For movie recording, "*, *" is indicated for the [Fineness] and [Threshold] parameters of [Sharpness]. [Fineness] and [Threshold] cannot be set for movie recording.

Settings and Effects

Monochrome Adjustment

You can customize any Picture Style by changing it from the default settings. For details on customizing [Monochrome], see Fill Monochrome Adjustment.

1. Select [C: Picture Style].



2. Select a Picture Style.

Picture sitale	6.6.6.6.6.6
REAds.	4.1.1.1.1.1.1
	4.2.3.8.8.8
GBRottat	
CHDLandbrape	8,8,8,8,8,8
the Orisi	4.1.1.0.0.0.0
ALC: NOTICE DE	8,4,2,4,4,0
CITER Detail (c)	107 200

Select the Picture Style to adjust, then press the < INFO > button.

3. Select an option.



- Select an option, then press < (ET) >.
- For details on settings and effects, see <u>Settings and Effects</u>.
- 4. Set the effect level.



Adjust the effect level, then press < (a) >.

Picture Style	0.0.0.0.0.0
CORNERS	4.1.1.1.1.1.1.1
- BB KNINGER	4 4 4 4 4 4 4
SEPONAL	
Ellitandecater	5.8.9.4.9.4
Call free Delast	4.1.1.1.1.1.1.1
CONTRACTOR NO.	8.4.4.8.8.8.
AND COMPANY.	147 141

- Press the < MENU > button to save the adjusted setting and return to the Picture Style selection screen.
- Any settings you change from default values are displayed in blue.

Note

- For movie recording, [Fineness] and [Threshold] for [Sharpness] cannot be set (not displayed).
- By selecting [Default set.] in step 3, you can restore the parameter settings of the respective Picture Style to the defaults.
- To shoot with the Picture Style you adjusted, first select the adjusted Picture Style, then shoot.

Settings and Effects

	Shar	pness		
	ß	Strength	0: Weak outline emphasis	7: Strong outline emphasis
0	G	Fineness*1	1: Fine	5: Grainy
	G	Threshold*2	1: Low	5: High
\bullet	Cont	rast	-4: Low contrast	+4: High contrast
&	Satu	ration	-4: Low saturation	+4: High saturation
	Colo	r tone	-4: Reddish skin tone	+4: Yellowish skin tone

* 1: Indicates the edge thinness that enhancement applies to. The smaller the number, the finer the outlines that can be emphasized.

*2: Contrast threshold between edges and surrounding image areas, which determines edge enhancement. The smaller the number, the more the outline will be emphasized when the contrast difference is low. However, noise tends to be more noticeable when the number is smaller.

VFilter effect



With a filter effect applied to a monochrome image, you can make white clouds or green trees stand out more.

Filter	Sample Effects	
N:None	Normal black-and-white image with no filter effects.	
Ye:Yellow	Blue sky will look more natural, and white clouds will look crisper.	
Or:Orange	The blue sky will look slightly darker. The sunset will look more brilliant.	
R:Red	The blue sky will look quite dark. Fall leaves will look crisper and brighter.	
G:Green	Skin tones and lips will appear muted. Green tree leaves will look crisper and brighter.	

Note

Increasing [Contrast] will make the filter effect more pronounced.

Toning effect

torial un	The second second
	#12None
	SSipla
	Plusie
disongement	Gürm

By applying a toning effect, you can create a monochrome image in the selected color. Effective when you want to create memorable images.

You can select a base Picture Style such as [Portrait] or [Landscape], adjust it as desired, and register it under [User Def. 1] – [User Def. 3]. Useful when creating several Picture Styles with different settings.

Picture Styles that you have registered on the camera using EOS Utility (EOS software, 2) can also be modified here.

1. Select [D: Picture Style].



2. Select [User Def.].

Picture Style	
TELEVELAND .	9,4,2,8,9,9
福田Tothtui	8.2.2.8.8.8
ESE Monocitore	A.4.4.8.8.8.
CODUH OF 1	Steven Steven
IST Over Out. 1	Stavelet 2
1011Hand Del 1	Stanuard.
Cara dinia (c)	10 20

Select [User Def. *], then press the < INFO > button.

3. Press < (11) >.



- With [Picture Style] selected, press < Set >.
- 4. Select a base Picture Style.



- Select the base Picture Style, then press < (1) >.
- Also select styles this way when adjusting styles registered to the camera with EOS Utility (EOS software).
- 5. Select an option.

Detail set. Porture State	EEE Dandscaper
Otherpress Otherpress Otherpress Otherpress Contrast	

Select an option, then press < (ET) >.

6. Set the effect level.



- Adjust the effect level, then press < (E) >.
- For details, see Picture Style Customization.

Photore Style	
E29 No.11V	4.4.4.4.4.4
EEE kaiktelai	8,1,2,8,9,8
Monochuma	4.1.1.4.4.4.4
Gill User Defui	Lancaupe
ED Har Dirk a	Statement
EDDiter Lief. 1	Stedent
AND CHARGE	107 100

- Press the < MENU > button to save the adjusted setting and return to the Picture Style selection screen.
- The base Picture Style will be indicated on the right of [User Def. *].
- Blue style names in [User Def. *] have been changed from default values.

Caution

- If a Picture Style is already registered under [User Def. *], changing the base Picture Style will clear the parameter settings of the previously registered User Defined Picture Style.
- You can restore the default [User Def. *] style and settings by selecting [Basic settings] in [
 exect camera].

Note

- To shoot with a registered Picture Style, select the registered [User Def. *], then shoot.
- For instructions on registering a Picture Style file to the camera, refer to the EOS Utility Instruction Manual.

You can adjust image clarity, as determined by the contrast of image edges. Set toward the negative end to make images look softer or toward the positive end for a sharper appearance.

1. Select [Clarity].



2. Set the effect level.



Caution

- Setting clarity may darken or lighten the areas around boundaries in high-contrast images.
- The effect of this setting is not shown in images on the screen in still photo shooting.

- Peripheral Illumination Correction
- Distortion Correction
- Digital Lens Optimizer
- Chromatic Aberration Correction
- Diffraction Correction

Vignetting, image distortion, and other issues may be caused by lens optical characteristics. The camera can compensate for these phenomena by using [Lens aberration correction].

1. Select [1]: Lens aberration correction].



2. Select an option.

lens aberration correction IN 24-125mm 74 L 25 USH	
Perioteral discusses	104
Distortion contration	011
Digital Lans Optimizer	6.
	-
	MIN/ MI

3. Select a setting.



- Confirm that the name of the attached lens and (except for diffraction correction) [Correction data available] are displayed.
- If [Correction data not available] or []] is displayed, see <u>Digital Lens</u> <u>Optimizer</u>.

Caution

Not available when shooting multiple exposures.

Peripheral Illumination Correction

Vignetting (dark image corners) can be corrected.

Caution

- Depending on shooting conditions, noise may appear on the image periphery.
- The higher the ISO speed, the lower the amount of correction will be.

Note

- The amount of correction applied will be lower than the maximum correction amount applied with Digital Photo Professional (EOS software).
- Peripheral illumination is corrected automatically in < (A⁺ > mode when correction data is registered on the camera.

Distortion (image warping) can be corrected.

Caution

- To correct distortion, the camera captures a narrower image area than the area seen in viewfinder shooting, which crops the image a little and slightly lowers the apparent resolution.
- Applying distortion correction may change the angle of view slightly.
- The amount of image cropped may vary between still photos and movies.

Note

With RF lenses, distortion correction during movie recording is supported.

Various aberrations from lens optical characteristics can be corrected, along with diffraction and low-pass filter-induced loss of resolution.

If [Correction data not available] or []] is displayed by [Digital Lens Optimizer], you can use EOS Utility to add the lens correction data to the camera. For details, refer to the EOS Utility Instruction Manual.

Caution

- Image processing after you shoot takes longer when set to [High] (which causes the access lamp to be illuminated longer).
- Maximum burst is lower with [High]. Image recording to the card also takes longer.
- Depending on shooting conditions, noise may be intensified together with the
 effects of correction. Image edges may also be emphasized. Adjust Picture Style
 sharpness or set [Digital Lens Optimizer] to [Disable] as needed before shooting.
- The higher the ISO speed, the lower the amount of correction will be.
- For movie recording, [Digital Lens Optimizer] will not appear. (Correction is not possible.)
- The effect of Digital Lens Optimizer cannot be checked on the screen at the time of shooting.

Note

 With [Digital Lens Optimizer] set to [Standard] or [High], [Chromatic aberr corr] and [Diffraction correction] are not displayed, but they are both set to [Enable] for shooting.

Chromatic Aberration Correction

Chromatic aberration (color fringing around subjects) can be corrected.

Note [Chromatic aberr corr] is not displayed when [Digital Lens Optimizer] is set to [Standard] or [High].

Diffraction (loss of sharpness caused by the aperture) can be corrected.

Caution

- Depending on shooting conditions, noise may be intensified together with the effects of correction.
- The higher the ISO speed, the lower the amount of correction will be.
- For movie recording, [Diffraction correction] will not appear. (Correction is not possible.)

Note

- "Diffraction correction" corrects degraded resolution not only from diffraction but also from the low-pass filter and other factors. Thus, correction is also effective for exposures with the aperture wide open.
- [Diffraction correction] is not displayed when [Digital Lens Optimizer] is set to [Standard] or [High].

Caution

General precautions for lens aberration correction

- Lens aberration correction cannot be applied to existing JPEG images.
- When using a non-Canon lens, setting the corrections to [Disable] is recommended even if [Correction data available] is displayed.
- Magnifying the periphery of the image may display parts of the image that will not be recorded.
- The amount of correction (except diffraction correction) is less for lenses that do not provide distance information.

Note

General notes for lens aberration correction

- Effects of lens aberration correction vary by lens and shooting conditions. Also, the
 effect may be difficult to discern depending on the lens used, shooting conditions,
 etc.
- If the correction is difficult to discern, magnifying and checking the image after shooting is recommended.
- Corrections are applied even when an extender or life-size converter is attached.
- If the correction data for the attached lens is not registered to the camera, the result will be the same as when the correction is set to [Disable] (except for diffraction correction).
- If necessary, refer to the EOS Utility Instruction Manual as well.

Noise that tends to occur in long exposures at shutter speeds of one sec. or slower can be reduced.

☆

1. Select [C: Long exp. noise reduction].



2. Set a reduction option.



Auto

For images exposed for 1 sec. or longer, noise reduction is performed automatically if noise typical of long exposures is detected. This setting is effective enough in most cases.

Enable

Noise reduction is performed for all images exposed for 1 sec. or longer. The [Enable] setting may reduce noise that cannot be detected with the [Auto] setting.

Caution

- With [Auto] or [Enable] set, noise reduction after you shoot may take as long as exposure for the shot.
- Images may look grainier with the [Enable] setting than with the [Disable] or [Auto] setting.
- [BUSY] is displayed as noise is reduced, and the shooting screen is not displayed until processing is finished, when you can shoot again.

You can reduce the image noise generated. This function is especially effective when shooting at high ISO speeds. When shooting at low ISO speeds, the noise in the darker parts of the image (shadow areas) can further be reduced.

1. Select [1]: High ISO speed NR].



2. Set the level.



Low, Standard, High

The camera applies an amount of noise reduction corresponding to your specified level.

Multi Shot Noise Reduction

Applies noise reduction with higher image quality than [High]. For a single photo, four shots are taken continuously and aligned and merged automatically into a single JPEG image.

Note that [Multi Shot Noise Reduction] is not available with image quality set to RAW or RAW+JPEG.

Caution

Precautions on Multi Shot Noise Reduction

- If there is significant misalignment in the image due to camera shake, the noise reduction effect may become smaller.
- Be careful about camera shake in handheld shots. Using a tripod is recommended.
- If you shoot a moving subject, the moving subject may leave afterimages.
- Auto image alignment may not function properly with repetitive patterns (lattice, stripes, etc.) or flat, single-tone images.
- If the subject's brightness changes as the four consecutive shots are taken, irregular exposure in the image may result.
- After shooting, it may take some time to record an image to the card after performing noise reduction and merging the images. "BUSY" is displayed as images are processed, and shooting is not possible until processing is finished.
- [Multi Shot Noise Reduction] is not available when any of these features are set: bulb exposures, AEB or WB bracketing, RAW or RAW+JPEG, long exposure noise reduction, multiple exposures, HDR mode, HDR PQ, focus bracketing, or electronic shutter.
- Flash photography is not available. Note that the AF-assist beam of Speedlites may be fired, depending on the [AF: AF-assist beam firing] setting.
- [Multi Shot Noise Reduction] is not available (not displayed) when recording movies.
- The camera automatically switches to [Standard] when RAW or RAW+JPEG image quality is set.
- The camera automatically switches to [Standard] if you set the power switch to <OFF>, replace the battery or card, or switch to < (>> or < B > mode or movie recording.

Preparation

Dust Delete Data Appending

Dust Delete Data used to erase dust spots can be appended to images in case sensor cleaning leaves dust on the sensor. The Dust Delete Data is used by Digital Photo Professional (EOS software) to erase the dust spots automatically.

Preparation

- Use an RF or EF lens.
- Prepare a solid white object such as a sheet of paper.
- Set the lens focal length to 50 mm or longer.
- Set the lens's focus mode switch to < MF > and set the focus to infinity (∞). If the lens has no distance scale, rotate the camera to face toward you and turn the focusing ring clockwise all the way.
 - 1. Select [C: Dust Delete Data].



2. Select [OK].



 After the automatic self-cleaning of the sensor is performed, a message will appear. Although there will be a mechanical sound of the shutter during the cleaning, no picture is taken. 3. Shoot a plain white object.



- Shoot with a plain white object (such as a new sheet of white paper) filling the screen, at a distance of 20–30 cm (0.7–1.0 ft.).
- Since the image will not be saved, the data can still be obtained even if there is no card in the camera.



- When the picture is taken, the camera will start collecting the Dust Delete Data. When the Dust Delete Data is obtained, a message will appear.
- If the data is not obtained successfully, an error message will appear. Check the information in <u>Preparation</u>, select [OK], and shoot again.

The camera will append the Dust Delete Data obtained to all shots from now on. Acquiring Dust Delete Data before shooting is recommended.

For details about using Digital Photo Professional (EOS software) to erase dust spots automatically, refer to the Digital Photo Professional Instruction Manual.

File size is essentially unaffected by Dust Delete Data appended to images.

Caution Dust Delete Data is not obtained when EF-S lenses are used, or when [C: Cropping/aspect ratio] is set to [1.6x (crop)]. Dust Delete Data is not added to images when [Distortion correction] is set to [Enable]. If the object has any pattern or design, it may be recognized as dust data and affect the accuracy of the dust deletion with the Digital Photo Professional (EOS software).

- Merging Multiple Exposures with a RAW Image Recorded on the Card
- Checking and Deleting Multiple Exposures During Shooting

As you shoot multiple exposures (2–9), you can see how the images will be merged into a single image.

1. Select [1]: Multiple exposure].



2. Set [Multiple exposure].



- Select an option, then press < (1) >.
- To exit shooting multiple exposures, select [Disable].

On:Func/Ctrl

Convenient when shooting multiple exposures gradually as you check the results. During continuous shooting, the continuous shooting speed will decrease greatly.

On:ContShtng

Used for continuous multiple exposures of moving subjects. Continuous shooting is possible, but the following operations are disabled during shooting: menu screen viewing, image review after capture, image playback, and undo last image (?). Note that the single exposures used for merging are discarded, and only the multiple-exposure image is saved.

Caution

Multiple exposures may not be available with some lenses.

3. Set [Multi-expos ctrl].



Select a merging option, then press < (E) >.

Additive

The exposure of each single image captured is added cumulatively. Based on **[No. of exposures]**, set negative exposure compensation. Follow these basic guidelines to set the exposure compensation amount.

Exposure compensation setting guidelines, by number of exposures

Two exposures: -1 stop, three exposures: -1.5 stops, four exposures: -2 stops

Average

Based on the [No. of exposures], negative exposure compensation is set automatically as you shoot multiple exposures. If you shoot multiple exposures of the same scene, the exposure of the subject's background will be automatically controlled to obtain the standard exposure.

Bright/Dark

Brightness (or darkness) of the base image and added images is compared at the same position, and bright (or dark) portions are retained. Some overlapping colors may be mixed, depending on the relative brightness (or darkness) of the images. 4. Set [No. of exposures].



- Select the number of exposures, then press < (st) >.
- 5. Specify the images to save.



- To save all single exposures and the multiple-exposure image, select [All images] and press < (c) >.
- To save only the multiple-exposure image, select [Result only] and press < (ir) >.

6. Set [Continue Mult-exp].



- Select an option, then press < set >.
- With [1 shot only], multiple-exposure shooting will be canceled automatically after the shooting ends.
- With [Continuously], multiple-exposure shooting continues until the setting in step 2 is set to [Disable].

7. Shoot the first exposure.



- When [On:Func/Ctrl] is set, the captured image will be displayed.
- The [] icon blinks.
- The number of remaining exposures is indicated on the screen (1) for reference.
- Pressing the < >> button enables you to view the captured image (
 ⁽)).

8. Shoot the next exposures.

- Images captured so far are displayed merged. For only image display, press the < INFO > button repeatedly.
- As you shoot, you can view the multiple-exposure image so far, check exposure, and see how the images will be merged by holding down the depth-of-field preview button (or the button assigned to [Depth-of-field preview] in [O: Customize buttons]).
- Multiple-exposure shooting will end when the set number of exposures are taken.

Note

- With [On:Func/Ctrl], you can press the < ▶ > button to view the multipleexposure image so far or delete the previous single exposure (☆).
- As shooting information, the multiple-exposure image has information captured for the last shot.
Caution

- The image quality, ISO speed, Picture Style, high ISO speed noise reduction, color space, etc. set for the first single exposure will also be set for the subsequent exposures.
- If [D: Picture Style] is set to [Auto], [Standard] will be applied for shooting.
- With [On:Func/Ctrl] and [Additive] set, any noise, irregular colors, banding, or similar issues affecting images displayed as you shoot may look different in the final multiple-exposure image.
- With multiple exposures, the more exposures there are, the more noticeable the noise, irregular colors, and banding will be.
- Image processing after you finish shooting multiple exposures takes longer when [Additive] is set (which causes the access lamp to be illuminated longer).
- Brightness and noise of the final multiple-exposure image will be different from that of multiple-exposure images captured and displayed merged in step 8.
- Multiple-exposure shooting is canceled if you set the power switch to < OFF > or switch batteries or cards.
- Multiple-exposure shooting ends if you switch to < (▲⁺ >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (④) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >/< (∅) >
- If you connect the camera to a computer, multiple-exposure shooting will not be possible. If you connect the camera to a computer during shooting, multipleexposure shooting will end.

Merging Multiple Exposures with a RAW Image Recorded on the Card

You can select a RAW image recorded on the card as the first single exposure. The selected RAW image will remain intact.

1. Select [Select image for multi. expo.].

CONTRACTOR AND	ON HANDLER
Multi-expesition	Additive
No. of explorates	
Save source invest	Allinges
Carifinae Multi-expl	1 identionity

2. Select the first image.

- Turn the < () > dial to select the first image, then press < () >.
- Select [OK].
- The file number of the selected image will be displayed at the bottom of the screen.

3. Take the picture.

 When you select the first image, the number of remaining exposures as set with [No. of exposures] will decrease by 1.

Images you can select

Lens Attached	Cropped Shooting	Supported Images
RF or EF lens	Disabled	RAW images captured at full size
RF 01 EF Iens	Enabled	RAW images from cropped shooting or taken with an EF-S
EF-S lens	-	lens

Caution

- JPEG/HEIF images cannot be selected.
- These images cannot be selected as the first single exposure: images shot with
 - [Ch: Highlight tone priority] set to [Enable] or [Enhanced] or with [Ch: Cherry Cropping/aspect ratio] set to an option other than [Full-frame] or [1.6x (crop)].
- [Disable] is applied for [C1: Lens aberration correction] and [C1: Auto Lighting Optimizer], regardless of the settings of the image selected as the first single exposure.
- The ISO speed, Picture Style, high ISO speed noise reduction, color space, etc. set for the first image will also be applied for the subsequent images.
- If Picture Style is [Auto] for the image selected as the first image, [Standard] will be applied for shooting.
- You cannot select an image taken with another camera.
- Images that cannot be merged may be displayed.

Note

- You can also select a RAW image used in multiple-exposure shooting.
 Select [Deselect img] to cancel image selection.



To view the multiple-exposure image so far, check exposure, and see how the images are merged, you can press the < >> button before you finish shooting your specified number of exposures (when [On:Func/Ctrl] is set, but not with [On:ContShtng]).

Pressing the < $\overleftarrow{\mathbb{m}}$ > button will display the operations possible during multiple-exposure shooting.

Option	Description			
Return to previous screen	The screen before you pressed the < ${\rm i}$ > button will reappear.			
Deletes the last image you shot (enabling you to replace it by shoo) The number of remaining exposures will increase by 1.				
[[•]] Save and exit	With [Save source imgs: All images], saves all single exposures and the multiple-exposure image created so far and exits multiple-exposure shooting. With [Save source imgs: Result only], saves only the multiple-exposure image created so far and exits multiple-exposure shooting.			
	Exits the multiple-exposure shooting without saving the image.			

Caution

During multiple-exposure shooting, you can only play back multiple-exposure images.

? FAQ

Are there any restrictions on the image quality?

All single exposures and the multiple-exposure image are captured at your specified image quality.

Can I merge images recorded on the card?

With [Select image for multi. expo.], you can select the first single exposure from the images recorded on the card (2). Note that you cannot merge multiple images already recorded on the card.

How are multiple-exposure files numbered?

With the camera set to save all images, multiple-exposure image files are named with the next number after the number of the last single exposure used to create them.

• Will auto power off take effect during multiple-exposure shooting?

During multiple-exposure shooting, auto power off will not take effect. Note that before you start multiple-exposure shooting, auto power off automatically takes effect at the time set in the [Auto power off] option of [\P : Power saving], which will cancel multiple-exposure shooting.

Effects

You can shoot still photos with clipped highlights and shadows reduced for a high dynamic range of tones even in high-contrast scenes. HDR shooting is effective for landscape and still-life shots.

With HDR shooting, three images of different exposures (standard exposure, underexposure, and overexposure) are captured consecutively for each shot and then merged together automatically. The HDR image is recorded as a JPEG image.

* HDR stands for High Dynamic Range.

1 Select [: HR Mode].



2. Set [Adjust dyn range].

Address one church	
STREET HER	
12	auto .
1219	
- anix	.0

- Selecting [Auto] will have the dynamic range set automatically depending on the image's overall tonal range.
- The higher the number, the wider the dynamic range will be.
- To exit HDR shooting, select [Disable HDR].

3. Set [Effect].

ened	
NAME AND A DESCRIPTION OF	- 10 C
Artistanetare	19
Art Bold	
Articrebeeset	6
	TAT DOM

- See Effects for details on the settings and effects.
- 4. Set [Continuous HDR].



- With [1 shot only], HDR shooting is canceled automatically after you finish shooting.
- With [Every shot], HDR shooting continues until the setting in step 2 is set to [Disable HDR].
- 5. Set [Auto Image Align].



 For handheld shooting, select [Enable]. When using a tripod, select [Disable]. 6. Specify the images to save.



- To save the three images captured and the resulting HDR image, select [All images].
- To save only the HDR image, select [HDR img only].

7. Take the picture.

 When you press the shutter button completely, three consecutive images will be captured, and the HDR image will be recorded to the card.

Caution

- RAW HDR images are captured in JPEG AL image quality. RAW+JPEG HDR images are captured in the specified JPEG image quality.
- Expanded ISO speeds (L, H) are not available in HDR shooting. HDR shooting is possible within ISO 100–102400 (varies depending on the settings of [Minimum] and [Maximum] for [ISO speed range]).
- The flash will not fire during HDR shooting.
- AEB is not available.
- If you shoot a moving subject, the moving subject may leave afterimages.
- In HDR shooting, three images are captured with settings such as shutter speed automatically adjusted. For this reason, even in < Fv >, < Tv >, and < M > modes, the shutter speed and ISO speed will change, relative to your specified speed.
- To prevent camera shake, a high ISO speed may be set.
- When shooting HDR images with [Auto Image Align] set to [Enable], AF point display information (
) and Dust Delete Data (
) will not be appended to the image.
- If you perform handheld HDR shooting with [Auto Image Align] set to [Enable], image periphery will be slightly trimmed and resolution will be slightly lowered. Also, if the images cannot be aligned properly due to camera shake, etc., auto image alignment may not take effect. Note that when shooting with excessively bright (or dark) exposure settings, auto image alignment may not work properly.
- If you perform handheld HDR shooting with [Auto Image Align] set to [Disable], the three images may not be properly aligned and the HDR effect may be reduced. Using a tripod is recommended.
- Auto image alignment may not function properly with repetitive patterns (lattice, stripes, etc.) or flat, single-tone images.
- Subjects such as the sky or white walls may not be rendered with smooth gradation and may have noise or irregular exposure or colors.
- HDR shooting under fluorescent or LED lighting may result in unnatural color reproduction of the illuminated areas.
- With HDR shooting, the images will be merged, then saved to the card, so it may take some time. [BUSY] appears on the screen as images are processed, and shooting is not possible until processing is finished.

[SHDR] Natural

For images preserving a wide tonal range where the highlight and shadow details would otherwise be lost. Clipped highlights and shadows will be reduced.

[NHDR] Art standard

While the clipped highlights and shadows will be reduced more than with [Natural], the contrast will be lower, and the gradation flatter to have the picture look like a painting. The subject outlines will have bright (or dark) edges.

[SHDR] Art vivid

The colors are more saturated than with [Art standard], and the low contrast and flat gradation create a graphic art effect.

[KHDR] Art bold

The colors are the most saturated, making the subject pop out, and the picture looks like an oil painting.

[\$] Art embossed

The color saturation, brightness, contrast and gradation are decreased to make the picture look flat, so that the picture looks faded and old. The subject outlines will have intensely bright (or dark) edges.

	Art standard	Art vivid	Art bold	Art embossed
Saturation	Standard	High	Higher	Low
Outline emphasis	Standard Weak		Strong	Stronger
Brightness	Standard	Standard	Standard	Dark
Gradation	Flat	Flat	Flat	Flatter

Note

Each effect will be applied based on the characteristics of the Picture Style (
 currently set.

Focus bracketing enables continuous shooting with the focal distance changed automatically after a single shot. From these images, you can create a single image in focus over a wide area by using an application that supports depth compositing, such as Digital Photo Professional (EOS software).

1. Select [C: Focus bracketing].



2. Set [Focus bracketing].



Select [Enable].

3. Set [Number of shots].



- Specify the number of images captured per shot.
- Can be set in a range of [2]-[999].

4. Set [Focus increment].



- Specify how much to shift the focus. This amount is automatically adjusted to suit the aperture value at the time of shooting. Larger aperture values increase the focus shift and make focus bracketing cover a wider range under the same focus increment and number of shots.
- After completing the settings, press < (E) >.

5. Set [Exposure smoothing].



 You can suppress changes in image brightness during focus bracketing by setting [Exposure smoothing] to [Enable], which compensates for differences between the displayed and actual aperture value (effective f/number), which varies by focal position.

6. Take the picture.

- To save your shots in a new folder, tap [] and select [OK].
- Focus at the nearer end of your preferred focal range, then press the shutter button completely.
- Once shooting begins, release the shutter button.
- The camera shoots continuously, shifting the focal position toward infinity.
- Shooting ends after your specified number of images, or at the far end of the focal range.

Caution

- Focus bracketing is intended for still photo shooting on a tripod.
- Shooting with a wider angle of view is recommended. After depth compositing, you can crop the image if necessary.
- For details on lenses compatible with this feature, visit the Canon website.
- Set [Exposure smoothing] to [Disable] with the following lenses, because they
 may cause changes in image brightness.
 - · EF100mm f/2.8L Macro IS USM
 - · EF180mm f/3.5L Macro USM
 - · EF-S60mm f/2.8 Macro USM
- Suitable [Focus increment] settings vary by subject. An unsuitable [Focus increment] setting may cause unevenness in composite images, or shooting may take more time because more shots are taken. Take some test shots to decide a suitable [Focus increment] setting.
- Combining the images will take longer when you have specified a higher numbers of shots.
- Flash photography is not possible.
- Shooting under flickering light may cause uneven images. In this case, lowering the shutter speed may give better results.
- Focus bracketing is not available when the lens's focus mode switch is set to <MF>.
- Canceling shooting in progress may cause exposure problems in the last image. Avoid using the last image when combining the images in Digital Photo Professional.

Note

- Using a tripod, remote switch (sold separately,), or wireless remote control (sold separately,) is recommended.
- For best results, set the aperture value in a range of f/5.6–11 before shooting.
- Details such as shutter speed, aperture value, and ISO speed are determined by conditions for the first shot.
- To cancel shooting, press the shutter button completely again.
- [Focus bracketing] reverts to [Disable] when the power switch is set to < OFF >.

With the interval timer, you can set the shooting interval and number of shots, so that the camera takes individual shots repeatedly according to your interval until your specified number of shots are taken.

1. Select [C: Interval timer].



2. Select [Enable].



• Select [Enable], then press the < INFO > button.

3. Set the shooting interval and number of shots.



- Select an option to set (hours : minutes : seconds / number of shots).
- Press < (1) > to display [].
- Set the desired number, then press < (F) >. (Returns to []).)
- Interval

Can be set in a range of [00:00:01]-[99:59:59].

No. of shots

Can be set in a range of [01]–[99]. To keep the interval timer on indefinitely until you stop it, set [00].

4. Select [OK].



- The interval timer settings will be displayed on the menu screen.
 - (1) Interval
 - (2) Number of shots

5. Take the picture.

- First shot is taken and shooting continues according to the interval timer settings.
- During interval timer shooting, [TIMER] will blink.
- After the set number of shots are taken, the interval timer shooting will stop and be automatically canceled.

Note

- Using a tripod is recommended.
- Taking test shots in advance is recommended.
- Even during interval timer shooting, you can still shoot as usual by pressing the shutter button completely. Note that the camera will prepare for the next interval timer shot approx. 5 sec. in advance, which will temporarily prevent operations such as adjusting shooting settings, accessing menus, and playing back images.
- If the next scheduled interval timer shot is not possible because the camera is shooting or processing images, it will be skipped. For this reason, fewer shots than specified will be taken.
- Even during interval timer operation, auto power off is triggered after approx. 8 sec. of inactivity, as long as [Auto power off] under [Y: Power saving] is not set to [Disable]. When set to [Y: Eco mode], the display dims after 2 sec., and auto power off takes effect 6 sec. after this. The camera will automatically turn on again approx. 1 min. before the next shot.
- Can also be combined with AEB, white balance bracketing, multiple exposures, and HDR mode.
- To stop interval timer shooting, select [Disable] or set the power switch to <OFF >.

Caution

- Do not point the camera toward an intense light source, such as the sun or an intense artificial light source. Doing so may damage the image sensor or the camera's internal components.
- Setting the lens's focus mode switch to < AF > prevents the camera from shooting unless subjects are in focus. Consider setting the mode to < MF > and focusing manually before shooting.
- If the shooting time is long, using the household power outlet accessories (sold separately) is recommended.
- Shooting long exposures or using shutter speeds longer than the shooting interval will prevent shooting at the specified interval. For this reason, fewer shots than specified will be taken. Using shutter speeds nearly the same as the shooting interval may also reduce the number of shots.
- If the time it takes to record to the card exceeds the shooting interval due to the shooting functions set or card performance, some of the shots may not be taken with the set intervals.
- When using flash with interval timer shooting, set an interval longer than the flash charge time. Intervals that are too short may prevent the flash from firing.
- Intervals that are too short may prevent shooting or autofocusing.
- During interval timer shooting, you cannot use <u>Remote Control Shooting</u> or remoterelease shooting with a Speedlite.

You can choose the method of shutter release.

1. Select [C: Shutter mode].



☆

2. Select an option.



Mechanical

Shooting activates the mechanical shutter. Recommended when shooting with the aperture of a bright lens wide open.

Elec. 1st-curtain

Shooting only activates the second-curtain shutter.

Electronic

Enables you to shoot without a shutter sound. In continuous shooting, the camera always shoots at high speed (up to approx. 20 shot/sec.). Also during continuous shooting, the white frame is displayed repeatedly.

Caution

Defocused image areas may be incomplete when shooting near maximum aperture at high shutter speeds, depending on shooting conditions. If you dislike the appearance of defocused image areas, shooting as follows may give better results. · Shoot with an option other than [Elec. 1st-curtain]. · Lower the shutter speed. Increase the aperture value. Precautions when set to [Electronic] Be responsible when using electronic shutter, and respect subject privacy and portrait rights. Some restrictions on shutter speed apply. Shutter speeds slower than 0.5 sec. are not available. The continuous shooting speed may become slower depending on the shooting conditions. Images of fast-moving subjects may look distorted. With some lenses and under some shooting conditions. lens focusing and aperture adjustment may be audible. Bands of light may be displayed and captured images may be affected by light and dark banding if you shoot with electronic shutter during flash firing by other cameras or under fluorescent lighting or other flickering light sources. Zooming during continuous shooting may cause changes in exposure even at the same f/number. For details, refer to the Canon website. [Elec. 1st-curtain] is used for bulb exposures. AEB shooting and flash photography are not available. Some functions will be restricted, but you can return to shooting with previous settings by switching to a setting other than [Electronic]. [Enable] is used for [UIHHigh speed display] when [Expo. simulation] is set to [Enable] in drive modes other than [...].

You can set the camera not to shoot unless there is a card in the camera. The default setting is [Enable].

1. Select [1]: Release shutter without card].



2. Select [Disable].

Focal Length

Image stabilization by the camera reduces camera shake in still photo shooting. Set [IS mode] to [On] as follows when using non-IS lenses. Note that [IS mode] is not shown when IS-equipped lenses are used. In that case, setting the lens Image Stabilizer switch to < ON > combines stabilization by the lens and camera.

1. Select [1: IS (Image Stabilizer) mode].



2. Select [IS mode].



Select [On].

3. Select [Still photo IS].



- [Always]: Provides constant image stabilization.
- [Only for shot]: Image stabilization is active only at the moment of shooting.

Caution

- [IS mode] and [Still photo IS] are not displayed when an IS-equipped lens is attached.
- In some cases, this may not provide sufficient stabilization for certain lenses.

Note

For details on image stabilization for movie recording, see <u>Movie Digital IS</u>.

Focal Length

Image stabilization based on your specified lens focal length is possible by setting the focal length when using lenses that do not support lens communication. 1. Select [Focal length].



2. Set the focal length.



- Turn the < () > dial to select the digit of the focal length.
- Press < (st) > to display [‡].
- Set the desired number, then press < (ET) >. (Returns to [□].)

3. Select [OK].

Caution

- Set [, n,: Release shutter w/o lens] to [Enable]. [Disable] prevents image stabilization.
- [Focal length] is not displayed when lenses are attached that support lens communication.

Note

Focal length can be set in a range of 1–1000 mm (in 1 mm increments).

Just by tapping the screen, you can focus and take the picture automatically.

1. Enable the Touch Shutter.



- Tap [and in the lower left of the screen.
- Each time you tap the icon, it will toggle between [as] and [c]].
- [Ci] (Touch Shutter: Enable) The camera will focus on the spot you tap, then the picture will be taken.
- [mail (Touch Shutter: Disable) You can tap a spot to perform focusing on the spot. Press the shutter button completely to take the picture.

2. Tap the screen to shoot.



- Tap the face or subject on the screen.
- On the point you tap, the camera focuses (Touch AF) with your specified <u>AF method</u>.
- When [Cs] is set, the AF point turns green when focus is achieved, then the picture is taken automatically.
- If focus is not achieved, the AF point turns orange and the picture cannot be taken. Tap the face or subject on the screen again.

Caution

- The camera shoots in single shooting mode regardless of the drive mode setting ([母件], (母件), or [母]).
- Tapping the screen focuses with [One-Shot AF], even if [AF operation] is set to [Servo AF].
- Tapping the screen in magnified view will not focus or take the picture.
- When shooting by tapping with [Review duration] in [D: Image review] set to [Hold], you can take the next shot by pressing the shutter button halfway or tapping [].

Note

To shoot with bulb exposure, tap the screen twice. Tap once to start exposure and again to stop it. Be careful not to shake the camera when tapping the screen.

- Review Duration
- Viewfinder Review

Review Duration

To keep the image displayed immediately after you shoot, set to [Hold], and if you prefer not to have the image displayed, set to [Off].

1. Select [



2. Select [Review duration].



3. Set a time option.

Note When [Hold] is set, images are displayed as long as the time set in the [Display off] option of [\u03c4: Power saving].

Viewfinder Review

Set to [Enable] for viewfinder display of your shots immediately after you shoot.

1. Select [C: Image review].



2. Select [Viewfinder review].



3. Select an option.

Note

 [Viewfinder review] settings take effect when [Image review] is set to an option other than [Off]. High-speed display that switches between each shot and the live image is available when shooting with the drive mode set to [\Box H]. Display is more responsive, making it easier to follow fast-moving subjects.

1. Select [D: ⊒_HHigh speed display].



2. Select an option.

(Linker	08
Skakle	

 Select [Enable] for display that switches between each shot and the live image.

Caution

- Images may waver or flicker during high-speed display. This occurs more often at high shutter speeds. However, this does not affect shooting results.
- High-speed display is not performed for shutter speeds slower than 1/30 sec., aperture values higher than f/11, conditions that make autofocusing difficult, flash photography, or ISO expansion. It may also stop as you are shooting.

Note

High-speed display is always used when [1]: Shutter mode] is set to [Electronic].

You can set how long the metering timer runs (which determines the duration of exposure value display/AE lock) after it is triggered by an action such as pressing the shutter button halfway.

1. Select [D: Metering timer].

0	1		age -	٠		0	٠
				1.10			
				10.00			
				16.5	e5-		
				88.9	÷		
Voter	101	-		100	η		
				381	¥8.		
				101	66.		

2. Set a time option.

With exposure simulation, image brightness more closely matches the actual brightness (exposure) of your shots.

1. Select [C: Expo. simulation].



2. Set an option.

Enable (Exp.SIM)

The displayed image brightness will be close to the actual brightness (exposure) of the resulting image. If you set exposure compensation, the image brightness will change accordingly.

During S

Normally, the image is displayed at standard brightness, so it is easy to see (CDSP). Only when you hold down the depth-of-field preview button will image brightness resemble actual brightness (exposure) of the resulting image (CDSS).

Disable (DISP)

The image is displayed at standard brightness, so it is easy to see. Even if you set exposure compensation, the image is displayed at the standard brightness.

- Customizing Information on the Screen
- Customizing Information in the Viewfinder
- Viewfinder Vertical Display
- Grid
- Histogram
- Setting Focus Distance Display
- Clearing Settings

You can customize the details and screens of information shown on the screen or in the viewfinder when you shoot.

Customizing Information on the Screen

1. Select [1: Shooting info. disp.].



2. Select [Screen info. settings].



3. Select screens.



- Turn the < () > dial to select screens of information to show on the camera.
- For information you prefer not to display, press < (b) > to clear the checkmark [√].
- To edit the screen, press the < INFO > button.

4. Edit the screen.



- Turn the < () > dial to select options to show on the screen of information.
- For items you prefer not to display, press < (c) > to clear the checkmark [√].
- Select [OK] to register the setting.
1. Select [C: Shooting info. disp.].



2. Select [VF info/toggle settings].



3. Select screens.



- Turn the < >> dial to select screens of information to show on the camera.
- For information you prefer not to display, press < (a) > to clear the checkmark [√].
- To edit the screen, press the < INFO > button.

4. Edit the screen.



- Turn the < () > dial to select options to show on the screen of information.
- For items you prefer not to display, press < (c) > to clear the checkmark [√].
- Select [OK] to register the setting.

You can select how viewfinder information is displayed when you are shooting still photos vertically.

1. Select [1: Shooting info. disp.].



2. Select [VF vertical display].



3. Select an option.



On

Information is automatically rotated, making it easier to read.

• Off

Information is not automatically rotated.

Grid

A grid can be displayed on the screen and viewfinder.

1. Select [: Shooting info. disp.].



2. Select [Grid display].



3. Select an option.

Shooting into a	1
dre nume	-
	Bel III Jali-chig MC

Histogram

You can select the content and display size of the histogram.

1. Select [: Shooting info. disp.].



2. Select [Histogram disp].



3. Select an option.



 Select the content ([Brightness] or [RGB]) and display size ([Large] or [Small]). You can display focus distance when using RF lenses. In focus distance display, you can select the timing and unit of measurement.

1. Select [: Shooting info. disp.].



2. Select [Focus distance disp].



3. Select the timing of display.



4. Select the unit of measurement.



Note

• For certain RF lenses, magnification is also displayed.

1. Select [C: Shooting info. disp.].



2. Select [Reset].



3. Select [OK].



1. Select [: VF display format].



2. Select an option.



You can select the performance parameter to prioritize in shooting screen display for still photos.

1. Select [Disp. performance].



2. Select an option.



When set to [Smooth]



 By pressing the < INFO > button to add a checkmark, you can include low-light locations in the scenarios for suppressing lower display frame rates.

Caution

- Shooting under low light with [Suppress lower frame rate] set for shooting screen display may affect performance as follows.
 - · Faster battery consumption
 - · Fewer shots available
 - · Lower image display brightness
 - · Difficulty in autofocusing
 - · Lower metering precision
 - · Lower flicker detection precision
 - · Lower subject detection precision

You can select one of four methods to measure the subject brightness.

In < $(\underline{A}^+$ > mode, evaluative metering is set automatically.

- 1. Press the < Q > button (()10).
 - With an image displayed, press the < Q > button.
- 2. Select the metering mode.



- To select an item, turn the < > dial or press < ⅔ > up or down.
- To select the metering mode, turn the < [∞]/₂ > or < [∞]/₂ > dial, or press < ^{*}/₃ > left or right.

Evaluative metering

General-purpose metering mode suited even for backlit subjects. The camera adjusts the exposure automatically to suit the scene.

Partial metering

Effective where there are much brighter lights around the subject due to backlight, etc. Covers approx. 5.8% of the area at the center of the screen.

Spot metering

Effective when metering a specific part of the subject. Covers approx. 2.9% of the area at the center of the screen. The spot metering area is indicated on the screen.

☆

Center-weighted average

The metering across the screen is averaged, with the center of the screen weighted more heavily.

▶ Note ▶ By default, the camera will set the exposure as follows. With [⑤], holding down the shutter button halfway locks the exposure value (AE lock) after the camera focuses with One-Shot AF. With [[⑦]...], the exposure value is set at the moment the picture is taken (without locking the exposure value when the shutter button is pressed halfway). ₩ ith [...]. AE lock meter. mode after focus] (⑥), you can set whether or not to lock the exposure (AE lock) noce subjects are in focus with One-Shot AF.

Exposure compensation can brighten (increased exposure) or darken (decreased exposure) the standard exposure set by the camera.

Exposure compensation is available in $\langle Fv \rangle$, $\langle P \rangle$, $\langle Tv \rangle$, $\langle Av \rangle$, and $\langle M \rangle$ modes. For details on exposure compensation when $\langle M \rangle$ mode and ISO Auto are both set, see <u>M: Manual Exposure</u>, and see Fv: Flexible-Priority AE for $\langle Fv \rangle$ mode.

- 1. Check the exposure.
 - Press the shutter button halfway and check the exposure level indicator.
- 2. Set the compensation amount. Increased exposure, to brighten images



Decreased exposure, to darken images



- Set it by looking at the screen as you turn the < () > dial.
- A [] icon is displayed to indicate exposure compensation.
- 3. Take the picture.
 - To cancel exposure compensation, set the exposure level [] to the standard exposure index ([]).

Caution

 If [C: Auto Lighting Optimizer] (()) is set to any setting other than [Disable], the image may still look bright even if decreased exposure compensation is set to darken images.

Note

 The exposure compensation amount will remain in effect even after you set the power switch to < OFF >.

AE Lock Effects

You can lock the exposure when you want to set the focus and exposure separately or when you will take multiple shots at the same exposure setting. Press the < \bigstar > button to lock the exposure, then recompose and take the picture. This is called AE lock. It is effective for shooting backlit subjects, etc.

- 1. Focus on the subject.
 - Press the shutter button halfway.
 - The exposure value will be displayed.
- 2. Press the $< \frac{1}{2} >$ button ($\bigcirc 8$).



- A [¥] icon is displayed in the lower left of the screen to indicate that exposure is locked (AE lock).
- Each time you press the < ★ > button, the current exposure setting is locked.

3. Recompose and take the picture.



● When you are to take more pictures while maintaining the AE lock, keep holding down the < ★ > button and press the shutter button to take another picture.

Note

AE lock is not possible with bulb exposures.

AE Lock Effects

Metering Mode	AF point selection					
Selection	Automatic Selection	Manual Selection				
۲	Exposure centered on the AF point in focus is locked.	Exposure centered on the selected AF point is locked.				
	Center-weighted exposure is locked.					

* When [R] is set with the lens's focus mode switch set to < MF >, center-weighted exposure is locked.

- Information Display
- General Still Photo Shooting Precautions

Information Display

For details on the icons displayed for still photo shooting, see Information Display.



Caution

 Do not point the camera toward an intense light source, such as the sun or an intense artificial light source. Doing so may damage the image sensor or the camera's internal components.

Image quality

- When you shoot at high ISO speeds, noise (such as dots of light and banding) may become noticeable.
- Shooting in high temperatures may cause noise and irregular colors in the image.
- Frequent shooting over an extended period may cause high internal temperatures and affect image quality. When you are not shooting, always turn off the camera.
- If you shoot a long exposure while the camera's internal temperature is high, image quality may decline. Stop shooting and wait a few minutes before shooting again.

White [1] and red [1] internal temperature warning icons

- White [10] or red [10] icons indicate high internal camera temperature, caused by factors such as extended shooting or use in hot environments.
- The white [1] icon indicates that the image quality of still photos will decline. Stop shooting for a while and allow the camera to cool down.
- Shooting at low ISO speeds instead of high speeds is recommended when the white [1] icon is displayed.
- The red [10] icon indicates that shooting will soon be terminated automatically. Shooting will not be possible again until the camera cools down internally, so stop shooting temporarily or turn off the camera and let it cool down a while.
- Shooting in hot environments over extended periods will cause the white [1] or red [1] icon to appear sooner. When you are not shooting, always turn off the camera.
- If the camera's internal temperature is high, the quality of images shot with a high ISO speed or long exposure may decline even before the white [1] icon is displayed.

Shooting results

- In magnified view, the shutter speed and aperture value will be displayed in orange. If you take the picture in magnified view, the exposure may not come out as desired. Return to the normal view before taking the picture.
- Even if you take the picture in magnified view, the image will be captured with the image area of the normal view.

Images and display

- Under low- or bright-light conditions, the displayed image may not reflect the brightness of the captured image.
- Although noise may be noticeable in images under low light (even at low ISO speeds), there will be less noise in your shots, due to differences in image quality between displayed and captured images.
- The screen may flicker if the light source (lighting) changes. In this case, stop shooting temporarily and resume under the light source you will use.
- Pointing the camera at different direction may momentarily prevent correct display of brightness. Wait until the brightness level stabilizes before shooting.
- If there is a very bright light source in the image, the bright area may appear black on the screen. However, the actual captured image will correctly show the bright area.
- Under low light, bright [Screen brightness] settings may cause noise or irregular colors in images. However, the noise or irregular colors will not be recorded in the captured image.
- When you magnify the image, the image sharpness may look more pronounced than in the actual image.

Lens

- If the attached lens has an Image Stabilizer and you set the Image Stabilizer switch to < ON>, the Image Stabilizer will operate at all times even if you do not press the shutter button halfway. The Image Stabilizer consumes battery power and may decrease the number of available shots depending on the shooting conditions. When the Image Stabilizer is not necessary, such as when using a tripod, it is
- recommended that you set the Image Stabilizer switch to < OFF >.
- With EF lenses, focus preset during shooting is only available when using (super) telephoto lenses equipped with this function released in and after the second half of 2011.

Note

- The field of view is approx. 100% (with image quality set to JPEG IL).
- If the camera is idle over an extended period, the screen will turn off automatically after the time set in [Auto power off] or [Viewfinder off] under ["Power saving]. The camera then turns off automatically after the time set in [Auto power off] ((?)).
- Using a commercially available HDMI cable, you can display images on a television (
 (
)). Note that no sound will be output.

Movie Recording



For movie recording, set the Mode dial to <

Caution

 When switching from still photo shooting to movie recording, check the camera settings again before recording movies.

Note

- You can record movies by pressing the movie shooting button during still photo shooting.
- Movies recorded in < (<u>A</u>⁺ > shooting mode are recorded as < (<u>A</u>⁺ > mode movies. Movies recorded in modes other than < (<u>A</u>⁺ > are recorded as < **P** > mode movies.
- Tab Menus: Movie Recording
- Movie Recording
- Movie Recording Quality
- Movie Cropping
- Sound Recording
- Canon Log Settings
- HDR Movie Recording
- <u>Time-Lapse Movies</u>
- Movie Self-Timer
- Image Stabilizer (IS Mode)
- Shutter Button Function for Movies
- Zebra Settings
- <u>Time Code</u>
- Other Menu Functions
- General Movie Recording Precautions

Shooting 1



- (1) Shooting mode
- (2) Movie rec quality
- (3) Movie cropping
- (4) Sound recording

Shooting 2

Ferrare contact to the table of table o	
English and the second s	
	2
160 speed settings (2	
HDR PQ settings 011-03	
Auto Lighting Optimizer (4)	
Highlight tone provity 07-05	
Auto dow thatter	2

- (1) Exposure comp.
- (2) RISO speed settings
- (3) HDR PQ settings
- (4) Auto Lighting Optimizer
- (5) Highlight tone priority
- (6) Av 1/8-stop incr.
- (7) Auto slow shutter

Shooting 3



- (1) White balance
- (2) Custom White Balance
- (3) WB correction
- (4) Picture Style
 - <u>Picture Style Selection</u>
 - Picture Style Customization
 - Picture Style Registration
- (5) Canon Log settings
- (6) Clarity
- Shooting 4



- (1) Lens aberration correction
- (2) High ISO speed NR

• Shooting 5



- (1) HDR Movie Recording
- (2) Time-lapse movie

• Shooting 6



(1) Movie self-timer

(2) Remote control

Shooting 7

15 Danage Statulize	o mode	-	
Shutter bin functi	on tar movies		
Metering timer	8 500		
Zebra settinge	017		(
Shorting info. day W display format	н. -		0

- (1) IS (Image Stabilizer) mode
- (2) Shutter btn function for movies
- (3) Metering timer
- (4) Zebra settings
- (5) Shooting info. disp.
- (6) VF display format

• Shooting 8

A № 15 H ¥ Q +	
Mansby Low res. On	(1)
HDMI display CD- Time code	(2)

- (1) Standby: Low res.
- (2) HDMI display
- (3) Time code

Movie Recording

- Autoexposure Recording
- SO Speed in [", Mode
- Manual Exposure Recording
- So Speed in [M] Mode
- Shutter Speed
- Still Photo Shooting
- Information Display (Movie Recording)

Recording

Exposure is controlled automatically to suit the brightness.



2. Select [: Shooting mode].

•	A#				 -
900	da o	100			
Max	10.04		2		8
Salar	wi ne	(cent)	-	1.00	

3. Select [Movie auto exposure].



4. Focus on the subject.



- When you press the shutter button halfway, the camera will focus with the current AF method.

5. Record the movie.



 Press the movie shooting button to start recording a movie. You can also start recording a movie by tapping [•] on the screen.



 While the movie is being recorded, the [OREC] icon (1) will be displayed in the upper right of the screen.



- Sound is recorded with the movie microphone (2).
- To stop recording the movie, press the movie shooting button again.
 You can also stop recording a movie by tapping []) on the screen.

ISO speed is set automatically. See ISO Speed in Movie Recording.

You can manually set the shutter speed, aperture value, and ISO speed for movie recording.

- 1. Set the Mode dial to <',>
- 2. Select [C: Shooting mode].



3. Select [Movie manual exp.].



4. Set the shutter speed, aperture value, and ISO speed.



- Press the shutter button halfway and check the exposure level indicator.
- Turn the < ²/₂ > dial to set the shutter speed (1), the < ⁰ > dial to set the aperture value (2), and the < ¹/₂ > dial to set the ISO speed (3).
- Available shutter speeds vary by frame rate (2).

$5. \ \ \, \text{Focus and record the movie.}$

Same as steps 4 and 5 for <u>Autoexposure Recording</u>.

Caution

- ISO speed cannot be expanded to L (equivalent to ISO 50) in movie recording.
- During movie recording, avoid changing the shutter speed, aperture value, or ISO speed, which may record changes in the exposure or create more noise at high ISO speeds.
- When recording a movie of a moving subject, a shutter speed of approx. 1/25 sec. to 1/125 sec. is recommended. The faster the shutter speed, the less smooth the subject's movement will look.
- If you change the shutter speed while recording under fluorescent or LED lighting, image flicker may be recorded.

Note

- Exposure compensation with ISO Auto can be set in a range of ±3 stops.
- If you press the < ★ > button and recompose the shot, you can see the exposure level difference on the exposure level indicator (②) compared to when the < ★ > button was pressed.

ISO Speed in ['M] Mode

You can set the ISO speed manually or select [AUTO] to set it automatically. For details on ISO speed, see ISO Speed in Movie Recording.

Available shutter speeds in $[{\bf m}M]$ (manual exposure) mode vary depending on the frame rate of your specified movie recording quality.

Frame Rate	Normal Movie Recording	High Frame Rate Movie Recording	HDR Movie Recording
119.9P		1/4000–1/125	
100.0P	-	1/4000–1/100	
59.94P			
50.00P			
29.97P	1/4000–1/8	-	1/1000-1/60
25.00P			1/1000-1/50
23.98P			-

Still photo shooting is not supported in movie recording mode. To shoot still photos, turn the Mode dial to switch to another shooting mode.
For details on the icons on the movie recording screen, see Information Display.

Caution

The remaining time displayed for movie recording is only a guideline.

 Movie recording may stop before the initially displayed recording time elapses if the red [1] icon appears due to high internal camera temperature during recording (2).

- Movie Recording Size
- <u>4K Movie Recording</u>
- Image Area
- Cards That Can Record Movies
- High Frame Rate
- Movie Files Exceeding 4 GB
- Total Movie Recording Time and File Size Per Minute
- Movie Recording Time Limit

You can set the image size, frame rate, and compression method in the [Movie rec. size] menu of [C: Movie rec quality].

The frame rate displayed on the [Movie rec. size] screen switches automatically depending on the [华: Video system] setting (段).



Caution

 Card write/read speeds required for movie recording (card performance requirements) vary by movie recording quality.

Movie Recording Size

Image size

[4] [4] 3840×2160

The movie is recorded in 4K quality. The aspect ratio is 16:9.

[FHD] 1920×1080

The movie will be recorded in Full High-Definition (Full HD) quality. The aspect ratio is 16:9.

Caution

- If you change the [Y: Video system] setting, also set [1]: Movie rec quality] again.
- Other devices may not play movies such as 4K, FHD 59947/5000P, and High Frame Rate movies normally, because playback is processing-intensive.
- Apparent resolution and noise vary slightly depending on movie recording quality, cropped shooting settings, and the lens used.

Note

- Movies cannot be recorded in HD or VGA quality.

4K Movie Recording

- Recording 4K movies requires a stable card with a fast writing speed. For details, see Cards That Can Record Movies.
- 4K movie recording greatly increases the processing load, which may increase the internal camera temperature faster or higher than for regular movies. If [[...]] or a red

[10] icon appears during movie recording, the card may be hot, so stop recording the movie and let the camera cool down before removing the card. (Do not remove the card immediately.)

The movie image area varies depending on factors such as movie recording quality and cropped shooting settings and the lens used.

• RF lenses: With [: Movie cropping] set to [Disable]



- (1) 4K (time-lapse) / FHD (1920×1080) / FHD (time-lapse)
- (2) 4K (3840×2160)
- RF or EF lenses: With [Rovie cropping] set to [Enable]
- EF-S lenses



(3) **4**K (3840×2160) / **4**K (time-lapse) / **FHD** (1920×1080) / **FHD** (time-lapse)

0	Caution
•	High Frame Rate movies cannot be recorded with EF-S lenses, or with [1]: Movie cropping] set to [Enable]. Recording with Movie digital IS (資) further crops the image around the center of the screen.

Frame rate (fps: frames per second)

[[[DDP]] 119.9 fps/[[SDDP]] 59.94 fps/[[2097]] 29.97 fps
 For areas where the TV system is NTSC (North America, Japan, South Korea, Mexico, etc.). For [[[0997]], see High Frame Rate.

[[0007] 100.0 fps/[50007] 50.00 fps/[25007] 25.00 fps For areas where the TV system is PAL (Europe, Russia, China, Australia, etc.). For [[0007], see High Frame Rate.

[23.98P] 23.98 fps

Mainly for cinematic purposes. 2009 (23.98 fps) is available when [**4**: Video system] is set to [For NTSC].

Compression method

- [[PB]] IPB (Standard)
 Compresses multiple frames at a time efficiently for recording.
- [IPB] IPB (Light)

Since the movie is recorded at a bit rate lower than with IPB (Standard), the file size will be smaller than with IPB (Standard) and the playback compatibility will be higher. This will make the available recording time longer than with IPB (Standard) (with a card having the same capacity).

Movie recording format

[MP4] MP4

All movies you record with the camera are recorded as movie files in MP4 format (file extension ".MP4").

See <u>Card performance requirements</u> for details on cards that can record at each level of movie recording quality.

Test cards by recording a few movies to make sure they can record correctly at your specified size (g).

	Caution
•	Before recording 4K movies, format cards by selecting [Low level format] in [Ý : Format card] (@). If you use a slow-writing card when recording movies, the movie may not be recorded properly. Also, if you play back a movie on a card with a slow reading speed, the movie may not be played back properly. When recording movies, use high-performance cards with a writing speed sufficiently higher than the bit rate. When movies cannot be recorded properly, format the card and try again. If formatting the card does not resolve the problem, refer to the card manufacturer's website, etc.
	Note

- To obtain better performance with the card, formatting the card with the camera before recording movies is recommended (2).
- To check the card's writing/reading speed, refer to the card manufacturer's website, etc.

You can record Full HD movies at a high frame rate of 119.9 fps or 100.0 fps. This is ideal for recording movies that will be played back in slow motion. The maximum recording time per movie is 7 min. 29 sec.



- Movies are recorded in FHD 19.9P IPB or FHD 100.0P IPB quality.
- Sound is not recorded in High Frame Rate movies.
- Time code display during movie recording advances 4 sec. per second.
- Because High Frame Rate movies are recorded as 29.97 fps/25.00 fps movie files, they
 are played in slow motion at 1/4 speed.

Caution

Precautions when set to [High Frame Rate: Enable]

- Time codes are not recorded when [Count up] is set to [Free run] in [C: Time code] (@).
- Check the [Movie rec. size] setting if you return this setting to [Disable].
- The screen may flicker if you record High Frame Rate movies under fluorescent or LED lighting.
- For a moment when you start or stop recording High Frame Rate movies, the movie is not updated, and the frame stops momentarily. Be aware of this when recording movies to external devices via HDMI.
- Movie frame rates shown on the screen as you record High Frame Rate movies do not correspond to the frame rate of the movie recorded.
- Headphones cannot be used (no sound is audible).
- The frame rate of HDMI video output is 59.94 fps or 50.00 fps.

Using SD/SDHC cards formatted with the camera

If you use the camera to format an SD/SDHC card, the camera will format it in FAT32. With a FAT32-formatted card, if you record a movie and the file size exceeds 4 GB, a new movie file will be created automatically.

When you play back the movie, you will have to play back each movie file individually. Movie files cannot be played back automatically in consecutive order. After the movie playback ends, select the next movie and play it back.

Using SDXC cards formatted with the camera

If you use the camera to format an SDXC card, the camera will format it in exFAT. When using an exFAT-formatted card, even if the file size exceeds 4 GB during movie recording, the movie will be saved as a single file (rather than being split into multiple files).

Caution

When importing movie files exceeding 4 GB to a computer, use either EOS Utility or a card reader (2). It may not be possible to save movie files exceeding 4 GB if you attempt this using standard features of the computer's operating system. For details, see Movie recording.

When recording non-High Frame Rate movies

The maximum recording time per movie is 29 min. 59 sec. Once 29 min. 59 sec. is reached, recording automatically stops. You can start recording a movie again by pressing the movie shooting button (which records the movie as a new file).

When recording High Frame Rate movies

The maximum recording time per movie is 7 min. 29 sec. Once 7 min. 29 sec. is reached, recording automatically stops. You can start recording a High Frame Rate movie again by pressing the movie shooting button (which records the movie as a new file).

Caution

The camera's internal temperature may rise and less recording time may be available after extended movie playback/Live View display. With RF or EF lenses, movies can be cropped around the center of the image, as if using a telephoto lens.

Recording movies with EF-S lenses has the same effect as this movie cropping feature.

1. Select [C: Movie cropping].



2. Select [Enable].

Caution High Frame Rate movies cannot be recorded with movie cropping. The center of the screen is further cropped, reducing the recording area, when [C]: Movie digital IS] in [C]: IS (Image Stabilizer) mode] is set to [On] or [Enhanced].

Note

- The recording area available with movie cropping is the same as when recording movies with EF-S lenses.
- For details on the recording area, see <u>Image Area</u>.

Sound Recording

- Sound Recording/Sound-Recording Level
- Wind Filter
- Attenuator

You can record movies while recording sound with the built-in stereo microphone or an external stereo microphone. You can also freely adjust the sound-recording level.

Use [C: Sound recording] to set sound recording functions.

Scand n	iconthing.		
Scint H		449	
West to	ie Write is a		-
			••••

Caution

- Sounds from Wi-Fi operations may be captured with built-in or external microphones. During sound recording, using the wireless communication function is not recommended.
- When connecting an external microphone or headphones to the camera, be sure to insert the plug all the way in.
- The camera's built-in microphone may also record mechanical sounds of the lens or sounds of camera/lens operations if AF operations are performed or the camera or lens is operated during movie recording. In this case, using an external microphone may reduce these sounds. If the sounds are still distracting with an external microphone, it may be more effective to remove the external microphone from the camera and position it away from the camera and lens.
- Do not connect anything other than an external microphone to the camera's external microphone IN terminal.
- Noise reduction is not applied to the audio played through headphones. Thus, the audio recorded with the movie will be different.
- Do not change the [1]: Sound recording] settings when listening with headphones. This may cause sudden loud output that may hurt your ears.

Note

- In < (<u>a</u>⁺) > mode, the settings available for [<u>1</u>]: Sound recording] are [On] or [Off]. Set to [On] for automatic adjustment of the recording level.
- Audio is also output when the camera is connected to televisions via HDMI, except when [Sound rec.] is set to [Disable]. In case of feedback from television audio output, move the camera away from the television or turn down the volume.
- The volume balance between L/R (left/right) cannot be adjusted.
- Sound is recorded at a 48 kHz/16-bit sampling rate.

Sound Recording/Sound-Recording Level

Auto

The sound-recording level is adjusted automatically. Auto level control will take effect automatically in response to the sound level.

Manual

You can adjust the sound-recording level as needed. Select [Rec. level] and turn the <)> dial while looking at the level meter to adjust the sound-recording level. Look at the peak hold indicator, and adjust so that the level meter sometimes lights up on the right of the "12" (-12 dB) mark for the loudest sounds. If it exceeds "0", the sound will be distorted.

Disable

Sound will not be recorded.

Set to [Auto] to reduce audio distortion in windy outdoor scenes. Only activated when the camera's built-in microphone is used. When the wind filter function takes effect, part of the low bass sounds will also be reduced.

Attenuator

Automatically suppresses sound distortion caused by loud noises. Even if [Sound rec.] is set to [Auto] or [Manual] for recording, sound distortion may still result if there is a very loud sound. In this case, setting it to [Enable] is recommended.

Microphone

Normally, the camera's built-in microphones record in stereo. Any external microphones with a 3.5 mm mini-jack connected to the camera's external microphone IN terminal (g) are used instead. Using Directional Stereo Microphone DM-E1 (sold separately) is recommended.

Headphones

By connecting commercially available headphones with a 3.5 mm mini-jack to the headphone terminal (\mathcal{C}), you can listen to the sound as movies are recorded. To adjust headphone volume, press the < $(\mathbf{O} >$ button, select [(\mathbf{O}) , and adjust by turning the < $\mathcal{C} >$ or < $\mathcal{C} >$ dial or press < $\mathbf{K} >$ left or right (\mathcal{C}). You can also use headphones during movie playback.

Shooting Settings

Canon Log Image Quality

Canon Log gamma curve takes full advantage of image sensor characteristics to ensure wide dynamic range for movies that will be processed in postproduction. With minimal loss of detail in shadows and highlights, movies retain more visual information across the dynamic range.

To work with Canon Log movies in postproduction, you can apply look-up tables (LUTs). LUT data can be downloaded from the Canon website.

1. Select [Canon Log settings].



2. Select [Canon Log].





4. Set the options as desired.



Set [<u>View Assist.</u>], [<u>Color Matrix</u>], [<u>Characteristics</u>], and [<u>Color space</u>].

Canon Log

Caterring	
Off.	
CALCULATION OF	
COM HERE	101 100

On (CLOG)

Enables 10-bit recording of Canon Log movies to the card. Movies can also be recorded to an external device that supports 10-bit recording.



 YCbCr 4:2:2 (10-bit) color sampling and the BT.709/BT.2020 color space are used in Canon Log recording.

On (CLOG3)

Enables Canon Log 3 recording. Records movies with a higher dynamic range than when set to [On (CLOG)].



 YCbCr 4:2:2 (10-bit) color sampling and the BT.709/BT.2020/Cinema Gamut color space are used in Canon Log recording.

View Assist.



When played on the camera, these movies may look darker and have lower contrast than movies recorded with a Picture Style applied, due to Canon Log image characteristics, which are intended to ensure a wide dynamic range. For clearer display that makes it easier to check details, set [View Assist.] to [On].

Setting this feature to [On] does not affect movies recorded to the card, which are
recorded using Canon Log characteristics. Similarly, HDMI video output has Canon Log
characteristics, and View Assist is not used for it.

Note

- [[[155]] is shown on the information display screen during movie recording with View Assist.
- When set to [On], View Assist is also used with magnified display.

Color Matrix ([On ([On (Color)] only)



Using a color matrix, you can specify how colors are reproduced, to plan for postproduction processing. This option is set to [Neutral] when [On ((CCC))] is selected.

Cinema EOS Original

Reproduces colors equivalent to those of the EOS-1D C.

Neutral

Reproduces colors similar to actual subject colors.

Characteristics



Adjust as needed. Select an option ([Sharpness: Strength], [Saturation], or [Hue]), adjust the effect level, then press $\leq \bigoplus >$.

Sharpness: Strength		0: Weak outline emphasis	7: Strong outline emphasis
Saturation		-4: Low	+4: High
	Reds	-4: Toward magenta	+4: Toward yellow
Hue*	Greens	-4: Toward yellow	+4: Toward cyan
	Blues	-4: Toward cyan	+4: Toward magenta

* Reds, greens, and blues cannot be adjusted separately.

Color space



[Color space] can be set when [Color Matrix] is set to [Neutral]. Choose [BT.709], [BT.2020], or [Cinema Gamut] ([On ([(COS)]) only) as the color space for recording to cards.

When set to [On (CLOG)]

- Manually setting the ISO speed to 100–320 will make the dynamic range narrower.
- Canon Log offers a dynamic range of approx. 800% at ISO 400 or higher.
- ISO 100, 125, 160, 200, 250, and 320 are expanded ISO speeds. [L] is displayed when an ISO speed is set.

When set to [On (CLOG3)]

- Manually setting the ISO speed to 100–640 will make the dynamic range narrower.
- Canon Log 3 offers a dynamic range of approx. 1600% at ISO 800 or higher.
- The following are expanded ISO speeds: ISO 100, 125, 160, 200, 250, 320, 400, 500 and 640. [L] is displayed when an ISO speed is set.

- With Canon Log, movies may be affected by horizontal banding, depending on the subject or shooting conditions. Record a few test movies and check the results in advance. In particular, noise may become more noticeable if you enhance the contrast when color-grading your movies.
- With Canon Log, skies, white walls, and similar subjects may be affected by noise or uneven gradation, exposure, or colors.
- Horizontal banding is more likely to occur when recording somewhat dark, flat subjects. This image noise may even occur at relatively low ISO speeds around ISO 400 for Canon Log or ISO 800 for Canon Log 3.
- If noise is noticeable, try recording under brighter conditions and adjusting brightness in color grading. Noise can also be reduced by recording at ISO speeds lower than ISO 400 for Canon Log or ISO 800 for Canon Log 3, although dynamic range is narrower.

Caution

General Canon Log shooting precautions

- With Canon Log, autofocusing may be more difficult for subjects under low light, or for low-contrast subjects.
- Noise may appear at image edges if [Peripheral illum corr] in [1]: Lens aberration correction] is set to [Enable] when Canon Log is set.
- Canon Log 2 is not supported.
- Histograms of images captured with Canon Log set are not based on images as converted for View Assist display. Image areas shown in gray in the histogram roughly indicate signal values that are not used.

Note

Playing movies recorded with Canon Log

View Assist is not used during movie playback.

You can record high dynamic range movies that retain detail in highlights of high-contrast scenes.

1. Select [1]: III HDR Movie Recording].



Select [Enable].

2. Record an HDR movie.

- Record the movie in the same way as normal movie recording.
- For details on file sizes and the recording time available, see <u>Movie</u> recording.

Caution

- HDR movie recording is not available with [☐: IS (Image Stabilizer) mode] set to [¹ ☐ Digital IS], or when set to [☐: Time-lapse movie], [☐: Highlight tone priority], [☐: Canon Log settings], or [☐: HDR PQ settings].
- Since multiple frames are merged to create an HDR movie, certain parts of the movie may look distorted. This is more noticeable in handheld recording affected by camera shake, so consider using a tripod. Note that even if a tripod is used for recording, afterimages or noise may become more noticeable, compared to normal playback, when the HDR movie is played back frame-by-frame or in slow motion.
- Image color and brightness may change significantly for a moment if you change settings for HDR movie recording. Also, the movie will not be updated for a moment, and the frame stops momentarily. Be aware of this when recording movies to external devices via HDMI.

Note

The recording size is FHD 29.97P IPB (NTSC) or FHD 25.00P IPB (PAL).

Approx. Time Available for Recording Time-Lapse Movies

Still photos shot at a set interval can be stitched together automatically to create a 4K or Full HD time-lapse movie. A time-lapse movie shows how a subject changes in a much shorter period of time than the actual time it took. It is effective for a fixed-point observation of changing scenery, growing plants, celestial motion, etc.

Time-lapse movies are recorded in MP4 format at the following quality: ^E4(2037)ALL-1 (NTSC)/^E4(2500)ALL-1 (PAL) in 4K recording, and ^EFHD29370ALL-1 (NTSC)/^EFHD25003ALL-1 (PAL) in Full HD recording.

Note that the frame rate is updated automatically to match the [**Ý**: **Video system**] setting (**Ø**).

1. Select [1]: Time-lapse movie].



2. Select [Time-lapse].

Time laste movie	114022-69
time-topie	Enable
Marriel.	60.0008
Need shots	.8300
Monte No. Man	- Tele
App explorem	Fixed tot thater
T. 10:14.57	DE 00.00.10
	121229 15

Select [Enable].

3. Set [Interval].



- Select [Interval].
- As you set the number, refer to the [1, 1] time required (1) and [] playback time (2).
- Select an option (hours : minutes : seconds).
- Press < (1) > to display [].
- Set the desired number, then press < (F) >. (Returns to []).)
- Can be set in a range of [00:00:02]–[99:59:59]. (An interval of once per second is not available.)
- Select [OK] to register the setting.

4. Set [No. of shots].



- Select [No. of shots].
- As you set the number, refer to the time required ([¹,]) and playback time ([[]).
- Select the digit.
- Press < (1) > to display (1).
- Set the desired number, then press < (str) >. (Returns to [].)
- Can be set in a range of [0002]–[3600].
- Make sure the playback time ([>]) is not displayed in red.
- Select [OK] to register the setting.
- The playback time ([[])) is displayed in red if the card does not have enough free space to record the specified number of shots. Although the camera can continue recording, the recording will stop when the card becomes full.
- Playback time ([[]) is displayed in red if the [No. of shots] setting results in a file size exceeding 4 GB for a card not formatted in exFAT (@). If you keep recording in this condition and the movie file size reaches 4 GB, the time-lapse movie recording will stop.

Note

- For details on cards that can record time-lapse movies (card performance requirements), see <u>Card performance requirements</u>.
- If the number of shots is set to 3600, the time-lapse movie will be approx. 2 min. in NTSC and approx. 2 min. 24 sec. in PAL.

5. Select [Movie rec. size].



4K (3840×2160)

The movie is recorded in 4K quality. The aspect ratio is 16:9. Additionally, the frame rate is 29.97 fps (2007) for NTSC and 25.00 fps (2007) for PAL, and movies are recorded in MP4 (MP4) format with ALL-I (<u>ALL-I</u>) compression.

IFHD (1920×1080)

The movie will be recorded in Full High-Definition (Full HD) quality. The aspect ratio is 16:9. Additionally, the frame rate is 29.97 fps (2007) for NTSC and 25.00 fps (2500) for PAL, and movies are recorded in MP4 ([112]) format with ALL-I ([ALL-I)) compression.

6. Set [Auto exposure].



Fixed 1st frame

When taking the first shot, metering is performed to set the exposure automatically to match the brightness. The exposure setting for the first shot will be applied to subsequent shots. Other shooting-related settings for the first shot will also be applied for subsequent shots.

Each frame

Metering is also performed for each subsequent shot to set the exposure automatically to match the brightness. Note that any functions such as Picture Style and white balance that are set to [Auto] will be set automatically for each subsequent shot.

Caution

 Significant changes in brightness between shots may prevent the camera from shooting at the specified interval when [Interval] is set to less than 3 sec. and [Auto exposure] is set to [Each frame].

7. Set [Screen auto off].



Disable

Even during time-lapse movie recording, the image will be displayed. (The screen turns off only at the time of shooting.) Note that the screen will turn off when approx. 30 min. elapse after the shooting started.

Enable

Note that the screen will turn off when approx. 10 sec. elapse after the shooting started.

Caution

 Even if [Screen auto off] is set to [Disable], the screen turns off during exposure. Also note that images may not be displayed if the interval between shots is too brief.

Note

 During time-lapse movie recording, you can press the < INFO > button to turn on/off the screen. 8. Set [Beep as img taken].



Set to [Disable] to prevent the camera from beeping for each shot.

9. Check the settings.



Time required (1)

Indicates the time required to shoot the set number of shots with the set interval. If it exceeds 24 hours, "*** days" will be displayed.

Playback time (2)

Indicates the movie recording time (time required to play back the movie) when creating the time-lapse movie in 4K movie or Full HD movie from the still photos taken with the set intervals.

10. Close the menu.

• Press the < MENU > button to turn off the menu screen.

11. Read the message.



Read the message and select [OK].

12. Take a test shot.

- As in still photo shooting, set the exposure and shooting functions, then press the shutter button halfway to focus.
- Press the shutter button completely to take a test shot, which is recorded to the card as a still photo.
- If there are no problems with the test shot, go to the next step.
- To take more test shots, repeat this step.



13. Press the movie shooting button.



- The camera is now ready to start recording a time-lapse movie.
- To return to step 12, press the movie shooting button again.

14. Record the time-lapse movie.



 Press the < INFO > button and double-check the Time required (1) and Interval (2) shown on the screen.



- Press the shutter button completely to start recording the timelapse movie.
- AF will not work during time-lapse movie recording.
- A recording icon "•" is displayed on the screen as the time-lapse movie is recorded.
- When the set number of shots are taken, the time-lapse movie recording ends.
- To cancel recording time-lapse movies, set [Time-lapse] to [Disable].

Note

- Using a tripod is recommended.
- Taking test shots as in step 12 and recording test movies for time-lapse movies beforehand is recommended.
- The movie's field of view coverage for both the 4K and Full HD time-lapse movie recording is approx. 100%.
- To cancel time-lapse movie recording in progress, either press the shutter button completely or press the movie shooting button. The time-lapse movie shot so far will be recorded on the card.
- If the time required for recording is more than 24 hours but not more than 48 hours, "2 days" will be indicated. If three or more days are required, the number of days will be indicated in 24-hour increments.
- Even if the time-lapse movie's playback time is less than 1 sec., a movie file will still be created. In this case, "00'00"" is indicated in [Playback time].
- If the recording time is long, using the household power outlet accessories (sold separately) is recommended.
- YCbCr 4:2:0 (8-bit) color sampling and the BT.709 color space are used for 4K/Full HD time-lapse movies.
Caution

- Do not point the camera toward an intense light source, such as the sun or an intense artificial light source. Doing so may damage the image sensor or the camera's internal components.
- Time-lapse movies cannot be recorded when the camera is connected to a computer with the interface cable, or when an HDMI cable is connected.
- Movie Servo AF will not function.
- If the shutter speed is 1/30 sec. or slower, the exposure of the movie may not be displayed properly (may differ from that of the resulting movie).
- Do not zoom the lens during time-lapse movie recording. Zooming the lens may cause the image to be out of focus, the exposure to change, or the lens aberration correction not to function properly.
- Recording time-lapse movies under flickering light may cause noticeable screen flickering, and images may be captured with horizontal stripes (noise) or irregular exposure.
- Images displayed as time-lapse movies are recorded may look different from the resulting movie (in details such as inconsistent brightness from flickering light sources, or noise from a high ISO speed).
- When recording a time-lapse movie under low light, the image displayed during shooting may look different from what is actually recorded in the movie. In such cases, the [2005]] icon will blink.
- If you move the camera from left to right (panning) or shoot a moving subject during time-lapse movie recording, the image may look extremely distorted.
- During time-lapse movie recording, auto power off will not take effect. Also, you
 cannot adjust the shooting function and menu function settings, play back images,
 etc.
- Sound is not recorded for time-lapse movies.
- To start or stop time-lapse movie recording, you can press the shutter button completely, regardless of the [1]: Shutter btn function for movies] setting.
- Significant changes in brightness between shots may prevent the camera from shooting at the specified interval when [Interval] is set to less than 3 sec. and [Auto exposure] is set to [Each frame].
- If the shutter speed exceeds the shooting interval (such as for long exposures), or if a slow shutter speed is set automatically, the camera may not be able to shoot at the set interval. Shooting may also be prevented by shooting intervals nearly the same as the shutter speed.
- If the next scheduled shot is not possible, it will be skipped. This may shorten the recording time of the created time-lapse movie.
- If the time it takes to record to the card exceeds the shooting interval due to the shooting functions set or card performance, some of the shots may not be taken with the set intervals.
- The captured images are not recorded as still photos. Even if you cancel the timelapse movie recording after only one shot is taken, it will be recorded as a movie file.

- Set [1]: Time-lapse movie] to [Disable] if you will connect the camera to a computer with the interface cable and use EOS Utility (EOS software). Options other than [Disable] will prevent the camera from communicating with the computer.
- Image stabilization is not applied in time-lapse movie recording.
- Time-lapse movie shooting ends if the power switch is set to < OFF >, for example, and the setting is changed to [Disable].
- Even if a flash is used, it will not fire.
- The following operations cancel standby for time-lapse movie recording and switch the setting to [Disable].
 - Selecting either [Clean now.] in [4: Sensor cleaning] or [Basic settings] in [Reset camera]
 - · Turning the Mode dial
- Image quality may be lower if you start time-lapse movie recording while the white
 [1] temperature warning icon (2) is displayed. It is recommended that you start
 time-lapse movie recording after the white
 [1] icon disappears (camera's internal
 temperature decreases).
- With [Auto exposure] set to [Each frame], the ISO speed, shutter speed, and aperture value may not be recorded in the time-lapse movie Exif information in some shooting modes.

Note

 You can use Wireless Remote Control BR-E1 (sold separately) to start and stop time-lapse movie recording.

With Wireless Remote Control BR-E1

- First, pair Wireless Remote Control BR-E1 with the camera (2).
- Set [C: Remote control] to [Enable].
- After you take some test shots and the camera is ready to shoot (as in step 13, @), set the release timing/movie shooting switch on the BR-E1 to <<>> (immediate release) or <2> (2-sec. delay).
- If the remote control's switch has been set to < >, the time-lapse movie recording cannot start.

Camera Status/Remote Control Setting	<>> Immediate Release <2> 2-sec. Delay	< Pre>Movie Recording
Test-recording screen	Test recording	To recording standby
Recording standby	Starts recording	To test-recording screen
During time-lapse movie recording	Ends recording	Ends recording

For guidelines on how long you can record time-lapse movies (until the battery runs out), see <u>Movie recording</u>.

Movie Self-Timer

Movie recording can be started by the self-timer.

1. Select [C: Movie self-timer].

•	AP.			•	1		ι.
Mor	er ud	the	w.		Def		
ALC: NO	ann a	(and	e l		Disa	÷.	

2. Select an option.



- 3. Record the movie.
 - After you press the movie shooting button or tap [], the camera displays the number of seconds left before recording and beeps.

Note

To cancel the self-timer, either tap the screen or press < (E) >.

S Mode

Movie Digital IS

Image stabilization by the camera (IS mode and Movie digital IS) reduces camera shake in movie recording. Set [IS mode] to [On] as follows when using non-IS lenses. Note that [IS mode] is not shown when IS-equipped lenses are used. In that case, setting the lens Image Stabilizer switch to < ON > combines stabilization by the lens and camera.

IS Mode

1. Select [1]: IS (Image Stabilizer) mode].



2. Select [IS mode].



Select [On].

Caution

• [IS mode] is not displayed when an IS-equipped lens is attached.

1. Select [C: IS (Image Stabilizer) mode].



2. Select a [" Digital IS] option.



Off ((\u00ed 0))

Image stabilization with Movie digital IS is disabled.

● On ((____)

Camera shake will be corrected. The image will be slightly magnified.

Enhanced (())

Compared to when $\left[\mathbf{On}\right]$ is set, stronger camera shake can be corrected. The image will be more magnified.

Caution

- Movie digital IS will not function when the lens's optical Image Stabilizer switch is set to < OFF >.
- With non-IS lenses, setting [¹ Digital IS] to [On] or [Enhanced] also sets [IS mode] to [On].
- Although movies can also be recorded with Movie digital IS when using EF-S lenses or movie cropping, the image area is further reduced.
- With a lens whose focal length is longer than 1000 mm, Movie digital IS will not function.
- Stabilization by Movie digital IS may be less effective at some movie recording sizes.
- The wider the angle of view (wide angle), the more effective the image stabilization will be. The narrower the angle of view (telephoto), the less effective the image stabilization will be.
- When using a tripod, setting Movie digital IS to [Off] is recommended.
- Depending on the subject and shooting conditions, the subject may blur noticeably (the subject momentarily looks out of focus) due to the effects of the Movie digital IS.
- Consider setting to [Off] when using a TS-E lens or fish-eye lens.
- Since Movie digital IS magnifies the image, the image looks more grainy. Noise, dots of light, etc. may also become noticeable.

Note

- For details on configuring image stabilization for still photo shooting, see <u>Image</u> <u>Stabilizer (IS Mode)</u>.
- With some lenses, even more effective stabilization (indicated by "+" next to the IS icon) is possible when the lens's IS is used in conjunction with [IS mode] and [Movie digital IS] on the camera. For details on lenses compatible with this feature, visit the Canon website.

You can set the functions performed by pressing the shutter button halfway or completely during movie recording.

Caution

- In movie recording, the [Shutter btn function for movies] setting overrides any function assigned to the shutter button in [.⁰,: Customize buttons].
 - 1. Select [1]: Shutter btn function for movies].



2. Select an option.



Half-press

Specify the function performed by pressing the shutter button halfway.

Fully-press

Specify the function performed by pressing the shutter button completely.



With [Fully-press] set to [Start/stop mov rec], you can start/stop movie recording not only with the movie shooting button but also by pressing the shutter button completely, or by using Remote Switch RS-60E3 (sold separately). To help you adjust exposure before or during movie recording, you can display a striped pattern over or around image areas of a specified brightness.

1. Select [D: Zebra settings].



2. Select [Zebra].

Jessa setting	Ø	
(ittes	UP!	
	(Alle	

Select [On].

3. Select [Zebra pattern].



- [Zebra 1]: Displays left-slanting stripes around areas of the specified brightness.
- [Zebra 2]: Displays right-slanting stripes over areas that exceed the specified brightness.
- [Zebra 1+2]: Displays both [Zebra 1] and [Zebra 2]. An overlapping zebra pattern is displayed where the [Zebra 1] and [Zebra 2] display areas overlap.

4. Set the level.

Zebra 1 level



Zebra 2 level



● Set by turning the < () > or < 💬 > dial or pressing < 🔆 > up or down.

Note

- The maximum brightness value does not reach 100% when HDR-PQ is set. Note that the maximum brightness value varies depending on [D: Highlight tone priority] and [D: Picture Style] settings.
- The maximum brightness value does not reach 100% when Canon Log or an expanded ISO speed is set.
- Checking the zebra display level in advance is recommended when you will set [Zebra pattern].

- Count Up
- Start Time Setting
- Movie Recording Count
- Movie Play Count
- HDMI
- Drop Frame

Time codes record the time automatically as movies are recorded. Time codes always record elapsed hours, minutes, seconds, and frames. They are mainly used when movies are edited.

To set up the time code, use [1 : Time code].



Caution

 Time codes may not be displayed correctly if your movies are played back on devices other than the camera.

Rec run

The time code advances only during movie recording. Time codes in each movie file recorded continue from the last time code in the previous file.

Free run

The time code keeps advancing, even when you are not recording.

Caution When set to [Free run], time codes are not added to High Frame Rate movies that you record.

 When set to [Free run], time codes will be affected by any changes to settings for time, zone, or daylight saving time (2).

Start Time Setting

You can set the initial time of the time code.

Manual input setting

Enables you to set any starting hour, minute, second, and frame.

Reset

Resets the time set with [Manual input setting] or [Set to camera time] to "00:00:00." or "00:00:00." (愛).

Set to camera time

Matches the hour, minute, and second set as the time on the camera. Sets the frame value to "00."

Movie Recording Count

You can select how time is displayed on the movie recording screen.

Rec time

During recording standby, displays the available recording time. During recording, displays the time that has elapsed since movie recording began (1).

Time code

Displays the time code during movie recording (2).



Caution

Display of the available recording time may change during recording standby.

Movie Play Count

You can select how time is displayed on the movie playback screen.

Rec time

Displays the recording or playback time during movie playback.

Time code

Displays the time code during movie playback.



Note

- Time codes are always recorded to movie files (except for High Frame Rate movies set to [Free run]), regardless of the [Movie rec count] setting.
- The [Movie play count] setting in [D]: Time code] is linked to the [F: Movie play count], so that these settings always match.
- The "frame" count is not displayed during movie recording or playback.

Time code

Time codes can be added to movies as you record them to an external device via HDMI.

• Off

No time code is added to HDMI video output.

۰On

Time codes are added to HDMI video output. When [On] is set, [Rec Command] is displayed.

Rec Command

For HDMI video output recorded by an external device, you can synchronize recording to when you start and stop recording movies on the camera.

• Off

Recording is started and stopped by the external device.

۰On

Recording by an external device is synchronized to starting/stopping recording on the camera.

Caution

- Time codes are not added to HDMI video output when you record High Frame Rate movies with [Count up] in [Time code] set to [Free run].
- To determine compatibility of external recording devices with [Time code] and [Rec Command] functions, check with the device manufacturer.
- Even with [Time code] set to [Off], external recording devices may add time codes to movies, depending on their specifications. For details on device specifications relevant to adding time code to HDMI input, check with the device manufacturer.

Drop Frame

The time code's frame count will cause a discrepancy between the actual time and the time code if the frame rate is set to (1000) (119.9 fps), 5000 (59.94 fps), or 2000 (29.97 fps). The discrepancy is corrected automatically when [Enable] is set.

Enable

Corrects the discrepancy automatically by skipping time code numbers (DF: drop frame).

Disable

The discrepancy is not corrected (NDF: non-drop frame). Time codes are displayed as follows.

- Enable (DF) 00:00:00. (Playback: 00:00:00.00)
- Disable (NDF) 00:00:00: (Playback: 00:00:00:00)

Note

The [Drop frame] setting item is not displayed when the frame rate is set to 2398? (23.98 fps), or when [": Video system] is set to [For PAL].

- 🗹 🚺 🔁 🖸
- 🗹 🚺 🖸 🖸
- 2 [04]
- 🗹 [🗖 6]
- 🗹 [🗖 8]



Exposure comp.

Exposure compensation can be adjusted in a range of ±3 stops, in 1/3-stop increments. For details on exposure compensation, see <u>Manual Exposure Compensation</u>.

ISO speed settings

· ISO speed

In [m] mode, you can set the ISO speed manually. You can also select ISO Auto.

· ISO speed range

You can set the manual ISO speed setting range (minimum and maximum). ISO expansion can also be configured.

· Max for Auto

You can set the maximum limit for ISO Auto in movie recording in [1997] mode or in [1997] mode with ISO Auto.

You can set the maximum limit for ISO Auto in 4K time-lapse/Full HD time-lapse movie recording in [177] mode or in [177] mode with ISO Auto.

HDR PQ settings

For details on HDR PQ settings, see HDR PQ Settings.

Auto Lighting Optimizer

Brightness and contrast can be corrected automatically. For details on Auto Lighting Optimizer, see <u>Auto Lighting Optimizer</u>.

Highlight tone priority

You can reduce overexposed, clipped highlights as you record movies. For details on Highlight tone priority, see <u>Highlight Tone Priority</u>.

PRAv 1/8-stop incr.

Menu Screen

You can set aperture values on a finer scale when recording movies with an RF lens.

This feature is available when the camera is set to [mM].

Select [Enable] to change the aperture increment from 1/3 stop (or 1/2 stop) to 1/8 stop.

Caution

- [* Av 1/8-stop incr.] is not available (not displayed) when EF or EF-S lenses are used.
- When set to [Enable], setting options in [....: Exposure level increments] are disabled and have no effect.

Auto slow shutter



You can choose whether to record movies that are brighter and less affected by image noise than when set to [**Disable**] by automatically slowing the shutter speed under low light.

Available in < Important > recording mode. Applies when the frame rate of the movie recording size is IMM or Immore.

Disable

Enables you to record movies with smoother, more natural movement, less affected by subject shake than when set to [Enable]. Note that under low light, movies may be darker than when set to [Enable].

Enable

Enables you to record brighter movies than when set to [Disable] by automatically reducing the shutter speed to 1/30 sec. (NTSC) or 1/25 sec. (PAL) under low light.

Note

 Setting to [Disable] is recommended when recording moving subjects under low light, or when afterimages such as trails may occur.

White balance

For details on white balance, see White Balance.

Custom White Balance

For details on custom white balance, see Custom White Balance.

WB correction

For details on white balance correction, see White Balance Correction.

• Picture Style

For details on Picture Styles, see Picture Style Selection.

Clarity

For details on clarity, see Clarity.

Lens aberration correction

Peripheral illumination correction, distortion correction, and chromatic aberration correction can be corrected as you record movies. For details on lens aberration correction, see Lens Aberration Correction.

High ISO speed NR

For details on High ISO speed noise reduction, see High ISO Speed Noise Reduction.

Remote control

By setting to [Enable], you can start or stop movie recording with Remote Controller RC-6 or Wireless Remote Control BR-E1 (both sold separately).

Metering timer

For details on the metering timer, see Metering Timer.

• Shooting info. disp.

For details on shooting information display, see Shooting Information Display.

VF display format

For details on the viewfinder display format, see Viewfinder Display Format.

Standby: Low res.



Set to [**On**] to conserve battery power and control the rise of camera temperature during standby.

As a result, it may enable you to record movies over a longer period.

Caution

- Image quality on the standby screen may differ from image quality on the screen during movie recording.
- Briefly when you start recording movies, image display may remain on the current frame instead of being updated.

HDMI display



You can specify how movies are displayed as they are recorded via HDMI to an external device. Movie output itself corresponds to the [Movie rec. size] setting.

The default setting is [.

• 🗗 + 🖵

Enables movie display both on the camera screen and on the other device, via HDMI output.

Camera operations such as image playback or menu display are shown on the other device via HDMI, not on the camera screen.

٠ 🖵

Deactivates the camera screen during output via HDMI, so that the screen is blank. Shooting information, AF points, and other information is shown on the external device via HDMI, but you can stop output of this information by pressing the

< INFO > button.

Before recording movies externally, confirm that no information is being sent by the camera by making sure no shooting information, AF points, and so on is displayed on external monitors or other devices.

Caution

- Card recording is not performed with [HDMI display] set to [1]+[]. Camera menus and image playback are only displayed on the screen connected via HDMI.
- The HDMI output resolution and frame rate are automatically adjusted to suit the movie recording quality.

? For longer HDMI output

To continue HDMI output for longer than 30 min., select [**1**+**二**], then set [Auto power off] in [**Ý**: Power saving] to [Disable] (愛). HDMI output will continue after the camera screen turns off when the time set in [Display off] elapses.

Caution

- During HDMI output, display of the next image may take some time if you switch between movies of different recording qualities or frame rates.
- Avoid operating the camera when recording movies to external devices, which may cause information to be displayed in the HDMI video output.
- Brightness and color of movies recorded with the camera may look different from that of HDMI video output recorded by external devices, depending on the viewing environment.

Note

- By pressing the < INFO > button, you can change the information displayed.
- Audio is also output via HDMI, except when [Sound rec.] is set to [Disable].

Caution

Precautions for movie recording

- Do not point the camera toward an intense light source, such as the sun or an intense artificial light source. Doing so may damage the image sensor or the camera's internal components.
- If you record something that has fine detail, moire or false colors may result.
- If [AWB] or [AWBW] is set and the ISO speed or aperture value changes during movie recording, the white balance may also change.
- If you record a movie under fluorescent or LED lighting, the movie image may flicker.
- If you perform AF with a USM lens during movie recording in low light, horizontal banding noise may be recorded in the movie. The same type of noise may you focus manually with certain lenses equipped with an electronic focusing ring.
- Recording a few test movies is recommended if you intend to perform zooming during movie recording. Zooming as you record movies may cause exposure changes or lens sounds to be recorded, an uneven audio level, inaccurate lens aberration correction, or loss of focus.
- Large aperture values may delay or prevent accurate focusing.
- Performing AF during movie recording may cause the following kinds of issues: significant temporary loss of focus, recording of changes in movie brightness, temporary stopping of movie recording, or recording of mechanical lens sounds.
- Avoid covering the built-in microphones with your fingers or other objects.
- Connecting or disconnecting an HDMI cable during movie recording will end recording.
- Also see General Still Photo Shooting Precautions, as needed.
- The camera may become hot in movie recording while connected via Wi-Fi. Use a tripod or take other measures to avoid handheld recording.

Red [11] internal temperature warning icon

- If the camera's internal temperature increases due to prolonged movie recording or under a high ambient temperature, a red [10] icon will appear.
- The red [10] icon indicates that movie recording will soon be terminated automatically. If this happens, you will not be able to record again until the camera's internal temperature decreases, so turn off the power and let the camera cool down a while. Note that the time until movie recording stops automatically
- when the red [10] icon is displayed varies depending on shooting conditions.
 Recording a movie at a high temperature for a prolonged period will cause the red
 [10] icon to appear earlier. When you are not recording, always turn off the camera.

[🖵 🛛] icon

- [TTM] may be displayed if repeated movie recording or extended use of Live View display increases the camera's internal temperature. Turn off the camera or take other measures when [TTM] is displayed, and wait until the camera cools down.
- The camera will turn off automatically if you continue recording while [[...]] is displayed. The camera may also turn off automatically if you continue using Live View display while [[...]] is displayed.

Recording and image quality

- If the attached lens has an Image Stabilizer and you set the Image Stabilizer switch to < ON >, the Image Stabilizer will operate at all times even if you do not press the shutter button halfway. This will consume battery power, and it may reduce the total movie recording time. When the Image Stabilizer is not necessary, such as when using a tripod, it is recommended that you set the Image Stabilizer switch to < OFF >.
- If the brightness changes as you record a movie with auto exposure, the movie may appear to stop momentarily. In this case, record movies with manual exposure.
- If there is a very bright light source in the image, the bright area may appear black on the screen. Movies are recorded almost exactly as they appear on the screen.
- Image noise or irregular colors may occur when shooting at high ISO speeds, high temperatures, slow shutter speeds, or under low light. Movies are recorded almost exactly as they appear on the screen, except in time-lapse movie recording or with Canon Log View Assist.
- Video and audio quality of recorded movies may be worse on other devices, and playback may not be possible, even if the devices support MP4 formats.
- If you use a card with a slow writing speed, an indicator may appear on the right
 of the screen during movie recording. The indicator shows how much data has
 not yet been written to the card (remaining capacity of the internal buffer
 memory), and it increases more quickly the slower the card is. If the indicator (1)
 becomes full, movie recording will stop automatically.



- If the card has a fast writing speed, the indicator will not appear or the level (if displayed) will not increase much. First, record a few test movies to see if the card can write fast enough.
- If the indicator shows that the card is full, and movie recording stops automatically, the sound near the end of the movie may not be recorded properly.
- If the card's writing speed is slow (due to fragmentation) and the indicator appears, formatting the card may make the writing speed faster.

Audio restrictions

- Note that the following restrictions apply when [☐: Movie rec quality] is set to ^BFHD^{DOWN}[PB]^{↓↓} (NTSC) or ^BFHD^{DSWN}[PB]^{↓↓} (PAL), or when [.,, : Audio compression] is set to [Enable].
 - · Sound will not be recorded for approx. the last two frames.
 - When you play back movies in Windows, movie images and sound may become slightly out of synchronization.

Note

Notes for movie recording

- Each time you record a movie, a new movie file is created on the card.
- Focusing is also possible by pressing the < AF-ON > button.
- To enable starting/stopping movie recording by pressing the shutter button completely, set [Fully-press] for [C: Shutter btn function for movies] to [Start/ stop mov rec] (2).
- Stereo sound is recorded by the camera's built-in microphones (2).
- Any external microphones such as Directional Stereo Microphone DM-E1 (sold separately) connected to the camera's external microphone IN terminal are used instead of the build-in microphones (2).
- Most external microphones equipped with a 3.5 mm mini-jack can be used.
- Focus preset during movie recording is available when using (super) telephoto lenses equipped with this function released in and after the second half of 2011.
- YCbCr 4:2:0 (8-bit) color sampling and the BT.709 color space are used for 4K and Full HD movies.

AF/Drive

This chapter describes autofocus operation and drive modes and introduces menu settings on the AF [AF] tab.

☆ to the right of titles indicates functions only available in < Fv >, < P >, < Tv >, < Av >, < M>, or < B > mode.

Note

- < AF > stands for autofocus. < MF > stands for manual focus.
- Tab Menus: AF (Still Photos)
- Tab Menus: AF (Movie Recording)
- AF Operation ☆
- Selecting the AF Method ☆
- <u>Continuous AF</u>
- Movie Servo AF
- Touch & Drag AF Settings
- Manual Focus
- <u>Servo AF Characteristics</u>
- Customizing AF Functions ☆
- Selecting the Drive Mode
- Using the Self-Timer
- <u>Remote Control Shooting</u>

AF1

A N D H	¥ 0		
AF operation	ONE SHOT		- (1
Af evenhout	NO.	1	Ģ
Sobject to detect	People		6
Continuous Af	Divable		e
Movie Servo AP	Enutile	-	(
Souch & drag AF as	ttings:		Ģ

- (1) <u>AF operation</u> ☆
- (2) AF method ☆
- (3) Subject to detect
- (4) Eye detection
- (5) Continuous AF
- (6) Movie Servo AF
- (7) Touch & drag AF settings

AF2



- (1) MF peaking settings ☆
- (2) Focus guide
- (3) AF-assist beam firing

Note

 When lenses without a focus mode switch are used, [Focus mode] is displayed on the [AF2] tab.



- (1) Case 1
- (2) <u>Case 2</u>
- (3) Case 3
- (4) Case 4
- (5) <u>Case A</u>
- (6) Tracking sensitivity
- (7) Accel./decel. tracking

4
4

Levis electronic NF	(1)
One-Shot AF release prior.	(2)
Switching tracked subjects	(3)
Linti drive when AT impossible Linut AT methods	Ch (4)
All method selection control	(5)
Orientation linked AF point.	(7)

- (1) Lens electronic MF
- (2) One-Shot AF release prior.
- (3) Switching tracked subjects 🛠
- (4) Lens drive when AF impossible \bigstar
- (5) Limit AF methods ☆
- (6) AF method selection control
- (7) Orientation linked AF point


- (1) Initial Servo AF pt for 🙂 🖫 🕁
- (2) Focus ring rotation
- (3) RF lens MF focus ring sensitivity
- (4) Stansitivity- AF pt select
- (5) Electronic full-time MF

 $\ln < \mathbf{A}^{\dagger} > \text{mode}$, the following screens are displayed.

• AF1

	6.11¥		
Subject to detect	People		(1)
Eve detection	Disable		(2)
Continuous NF	Disable		(3)
Movie Servo AF	Erutile		(4)
Touch & drag AF H	ettings:		(5)
Foxus guide	Off	-	
AP-applit beam fein	0.	01	(7)

- (1) Subject to detect
- (2) Eye detection
- (3) Continuous AF
- (4) Movie Servo AF
- (5) Touch & drag AF settings
- (6) Focus guide
- (7) AF-assist beam firing

AF2



- (1) Focus ring rotation
- (2) RF lens MF focus ring sensitivity
- (3) Sensitivity- AF pt select

AF1

AF method	AFG		
Subject to dietect	People		_
		1	
Movie Servo AF Touch & drag AF HE	Eruble		

- (1) AF method
- (2) Subject to detect
- (3) Eye detection
- (4) Movie Servo AF
- (5) Touch & drag AF settings

Note

 When lenses without a focus mode switch are used, [Focus mode] is displayed on the [AF1] tab.

AF2



- (1) MF peaking settings
- (2) Focus guide

O N DINH Y O	
	P1
Movie Servo AF speed	
Movie Servo AF track sens.	(2)
Switching fracked subjects	(3)
Limit drive when AF imposible	(ii)
Limit Af methods	(6)
AP method selection control	(7)

- (1) Movie Servo AF speed
- (2) Movie Servo AF track sens.
- (3) Lens electronic MF 🛧
- (4) Switching tracked subjects
- (5) Lens drive when AF impossible 🕁
- (6) Limit AF methods ☆
- (7) AF method selection control

AF4

A # # 4 9	
Focus ring rotation IF less MF focus ring sensitivity	(1)
© sensitivity AF pt select Electronic full-time MF	0 0/7 (4)

- (1) Focus ring rotation
- (2) RF lens MF focus ring sensitivity
- (3) Sensitivity- AF pt select
- (4) Electronic full-time MF

One-Shot AF for Still Subjects

Servo AF for Moving Subjects

You can select the AF operation characteristics to suit the shooting conditions or subject.

☆

1. Set the lens's focus mode switch to < AF >.



2. Select [AF: AF operation].

0 N E 4	9 10 9
AF currentian	DHE SHOT AF
All method	NE
REDUCT TO EMMENT	Protiki
Contrinueus Af	Disatile
Monite Servici All	Example:
Town & drug AF set	Hangs

3. Select an option.



Note

- If focus is not achieved, the AF point will turn orange. With One-Shot AF, shooting is not possible even by pressing the shutter button completely. Recompose the shot and try to focus again. Or, see <u>Shooting Conditions That Make Focusing</u> <u>Difficult</u>.
- With Servo AF, the camera shoots even when subjects are not in focus.

This AF operation is suited for still subjects. When you press the shutter button halfway, the camera will focus only once.

- When focus is achieved, the AF point will turn green and the beeper will sound.
- The focus remains locked while you hold down the shutter button halfway, allowing you to recompose the image before taking the picture.
- For details on the continuous shooting speed for continuous shooting, see <u>Selecting the</u> <u>Drive Mode</u>.

5	Note
	If [*: Beep] is set to [Disable], the beeper will not sound when focus is achieved.

See <u>Lens electronic MF</u> when using a lens that supports electronic manual focusing.

This AF operation is suited for moving subjects. While you hold down the shutter button halfway, the camera will keep focusing on the subject continuously.

- When focus is achieved, the AF point will turn blue. The beeper will not sound even when focus is achieved.
- The exposure is set at the moment the picture is taken.
- For details on the continuous shooting speed for continuous shooting, see <u>Selecting the</u> <u>Drive Mode</u>.
- In < (<u>A</u>⁺) > mode, by default, the camera automatically switches to Servo AF in response to subject movement.

Caution

- Depending on the lens used, the distance to the subject and the subject's speed, the camera may not be able to achieve correct focus.
- Zooming during continuous shooting may throw off the focus. Zoom first, then recompose and shoot.

- ☑ <u>AF Method</u> ☆
- Selecting the AF Method
- Subject to Detect
- Eye Detection
- ✓ Spot AF / 1-Point AF / Expand AF Area: •å• / Expand AF Area: Around / Zone AF / Large Zone AF: Vertical / Large Zone AF: Horizontal ★
- Magnified View
- AF Shooting Tips
- Shooting Conditions That Make Focusing Difficult
- AF Range

AF Method

☆

노토코: 노+Tracking



The camera detects and focuses on faces of people or animals. An AF point [[]] appears over any face detected, which is then tracked.

If no face is detected, the entire AF area is used for auto selection AF.

With Servo AF, you can set the initial position for Servo AF (27). As long as the Area AF frame can track the subject during shooting, focusing will continue.

: Spot AF



The camera focuses in a narrower area than 1-point AF.

: 1-point AF



The camera focuses using a single AF point [

🔅: Expand AF area: 🔅



Focuses using one AF point []] and AF points outlined here in blue. Effective for moving subjects, which are difficult to track with 1-point AF.

Focusing on your preferred subject is easier than with Zone AF.

When Servo AF is used, first you will focus using an AF point []].

Expand AF area: Around



Focuses using one AF point [] and surrounding AF points outlined here in blue, which makes it easier to focus on moving subjects than with Expand AF area: "^b/₄. Servo AF operation is the same as for Expand AF area: "^b/₄.

[]: Zone AF



Uses auto selection AF in Zone AF frames to cover a larger area than Expand AF area, which makes focusing easier than with Expand AF area.

Focusing areas are determined not only based on the nearest subject but also based on a variety of other conditions such as faces (of people or animals), subject motion, and subject distance.

AF points in focus are displayed with [

: Large Zone AF: Vertical

Uses auto selection AF in a vertical Large Zone AF frame to cover a larger area than Zone AF, which makes focusing easier than with 1-point AF/Expand AF area and also effective for moving subjects.

Focusing areas are determined not only based on the nearest subject but also based on a variety of other conditions such as faces (of people or animals), subject motion, and subject distance.

AF points in focus are displayed with []].

¹: Large Zone AF: Horizontal



Uses auto selection AF in a horizontal Large Zone AF frame to cover a larger area than Zone AF, which makes focusing easier than with 1-point AF/Expand AF area and also effective for moving subjects.

Focusing areas are determined not only based on the nearest subject but also based on a variety of other conditions such as faces (of people or animals), subject motion, and subject distance.

AF points in focus are displayed with [...].

You can select the AF method to suit the shooting conditions or subject. If you prefer to focus manually, see <u>Manual Focus</u>.

1. Select [AF: AF method].

	9 A •
APparentics	DHE SHOT W
All method	WIC
SUBJECT TO EMILES	People Charles
Contrimetous Af	Dealth
Motio Serve All Town & drig AP with	Estable Hings

2. Select the AF method.



Note

- In < A⁺ > mode, [L+Tracking] is set automatically.
- To set the AF method, you can also press the < ->> button and then the < M-Fn > button.
- The following descriptions apply to the camera with AF operation set to [One-Shot AF] (2). With [Servo AF] (2) set, the AF point will turn blue when focus is achieved.

The camera detects and focuses on faces of people or animals. If a face moves, the AF point [$[\ \]$] also moves to track the face.

You can set [AF: Eye detection] to [Enable] to shoot with the subject's eyes in focus (2).

1. Check the AF point.



- An AF point [] appears over any face detected.
- You can also tap the screen to choose a face.

2. Focus and take the picture.



 Once you press the shutter button halfway and the subject is in focus, the AF point turns green and the camera beeps.
 An orange AF point indicates that the camera could not focus on subjects.

Note

- Selecting the face of a person or animal manually by tapping the screen or using
 > changes the AF frame to [^E_b ¹/_a] and locks onto that subject for tracking, and the camera tracks the subject even if it moves within the screen.
- To release locked tracking, tap [^{r ¬}→ → OFF] or press < (s) >.

Caution

- Tapping the screen to focus will focus with [One-Shot AF], regardless of the AF operation setting.
- If the subject's face is significantly out of focus, face detection will not be possible.
 Adjust the focus manually (g) so that the face can be detected, then perform AF.
- Objects other than a human face or animal face or body may be detected.
- Face detection will not work if the face is very small or large in the picture, too bright or too dark, or partially hidden.
- Face detection for animals is not possible when the subject is too far away or does not face the camera steadily. AF points are displayed over the entire body.
- Detection is not possible for birds camouflaged in a forest, or similar situations.
- AF may not detect subjects or people's faces at the edges of the screen. Recompose the shot to center the subject or bring the subject closer to the center.

Note

- For human subjects, the active [] may cover only a part of the face, not the whole face.
- The size of the AF point changes depending on the subject.

Setting the initial Servo AF position

You can manually set the initial Servo AF position when [**AF**: **Initial Servo AF pt for** :] is set to an option other than [**Auto**] (②).

- 1. Set the AF method to [:+Tracking] (2).
- 2. Set AF operation to [Servo AF] (2).

3. Set the AF point.



- An Area AF frame (1) and AF point (2) are displayed.
- To center the AF point while using < 🔆 >, press < 🔆 > straight in.
- To center the AF point after you have confirmed it, tap [B] or press < @)>.

You can specify conditions for automatic selection of the main subject to track.

Takes effect when the AF method is Face+Tracking, Zone AF, or Large Zone AF (vertical or horizontal).

Subject to cannot	
Firecore	4
Animals	1.00
Vetesles .	
. Nete	
	117 120

People

Prioritizes the faces or heads of people as the main subjects to track.

When a person's face or head cannot be detected, the camera attempts to detect and track their torso. If their torso cannot be detected, the camera may track other parts of their body.

Animals

Detects animals (dogs, cats, or birds) and people and prioritizes detection results for animals as the main subjects to track.

For animals, the camera attempts to detect faces or bodies, and AF points are shown over any faces detected.

When an animal's face or entire body cannot be detected, the camera may track part of their body.

Vehicles

Detects two- or four-wheeled motorsports vehicles and people and prioritizes detection results for vehicles as the main subjects to track.

For vehicles, the camera attempts to detect key details or the entire vehicle, and an AF point is shown over any of these details detected.

If key details or the entire vehicle cannot be detected, the camera may track other parts of the vehicle.

Press the < INFO > button to enable or disable Spot detection for key details of vehicles.

None

The camera determines the main subject automatically from the subject information detected.

Caution

- The camera may detect areas other than faces or bodies of people or animals or key details or bodies of vehicles as subjects.
- Faces that are very small or large in the picture, too bright or dark, or partly hidden cannot be detected.
- Animal face detection is not possible unless the subject is close enough and facing the camera steadily. A tracking frame is displayed for the entire body.
- Detection is not possible for birds camouflaged in a forest, or similar situations.
- Detection may not be possible for ordinary passenger cars or bicycles, or for motorcyclists performing stunts or kicking up dirt and dust.

Note

- You can choose the following subjects by pressing the shutter button halfway. In scenes without relevant subjects, the camera tracks other objects.
 - People People, animals, vehicles
 - Animals People, animals
 - Vehicles People, vehicles

With the AF method set to [:+Tracking], you can shoot with the eyes of people or animals in focus.

1. Select [AF: Eye detection].

	9 A 9
AFoundation	ONE SHOT M
Al method	W10
SUDJECT TO CONTRACT	People
Type close taxes	theater and a
Contemplate M	Disaste
Monia Servio AU	Example 1
Tourn & drug AP and	tangs

2. Select [Enable].

		ł	41	4	n.	÷
(type (type)	in the		1			

3. Aim the camera at the subject.



- An AF point is displayed around their eye.
- You can also tap the screen to choose an eye.
- If your selected eye is not detected, an eye to focus on is selected automatically.

4. Take the picture.

Caution

Subject eyes may not be detected correctly, depending on the subject and shooting conditions.

Note

To switch to [Eye detection: Disable] without using menu operations, press the < ... > button and then the < INFO > button. To switch to [Eye detection: Enable], press the < INFO > button again.

You can manually set the AF point or Zone AF frame. Here, 1-point AF screens are used as an example.

1. Check the AF point.



- The AF point (1) will appear.
- With Expand AF area: "
 ^a
 ^b
 ^a
 ^b
 ^a
 ^b
 ^a
 ^b
- With Zone AF, Large Zone AF: Vertical, or Large Zone AF: Horizontal, the specified Zone AF frame is displayed.

2. Move the AF point.



- Press the < : > button, use < * > to move the AF point into position for focusing, then press < () > (but note that with some lenses, it may not move to the edge of the screen).
- To center the AF point while using < ->, press < -> straight in.
- You can also focus by tapping a position on the screen.
- To center the AF point or Zone AF frame, tap [] or press < () >.

3. Focus and take the picture.



Aim the AF point over the subject and press the shutter button halfway.



- When focus is achieved, the AF point will turn green and the beeper will sound.
- If focus is not achieved, the AF point will turn orange.

Caution

- The camera continues to switch the active AF point []] to track subjects when Zone AF or Large Zone AF (vertical or horizontal) is set to Servo AF, but tracking may not be possible under some shooting conditions, such as when subjects are small.
- Focusing may be difficult when using a peripheral AF point. In this case, select an AF point in the center.
- Tapping the screen to focus will focus with [One-Shot AF], regardless of the AF operation setting.

Note

 With [AF: Orientation linked AF point], you can set separate AF points for vertical and horizontal shooting (2). To check the focus when the AF method is other than [\angle +Tracking], magnify display by approx. 5× or 10× by pressing the < Q > button (or tapping [Q]).

- Magnification is centered on the AF point for [Spot AF], [1-point AF], [Expand AF area:
 ^agⁱ], and [Expand AF area: Around] and on the Zone AF frame for [Zone AF], [Large Zone AF: Vertical], and [Large Zone AF: Horizontal].
- Autofocusing is performed with magnified display if you press the shutter button halfway when set to [Spot AF], and [1-point AF]. When set to AF methods other than [Spot AF] and [1-point AF], autofocusing is performed after restoring normal display.
- With Servo AF, if you press the shutter button halfway in the magnified view, the camera
 will return to the normal view for focusing.

Caution

- If focusing is difficult in the magnified view, return to the normal view and perform AF.
- If you perform AF in the normal view and then use the magnified view, accurate focus may not be achieved.
- AF speed differs between the normal view and magnified view.
- Continuous AF and Movie Servo AF are not available when display is magnified.
- With the magnified view, achieving focus becomes more difficult due to camera shake. Using a tripod is recommended.

AF Shooting Tips

- Even when focus is achieved, pressing the shutter button halfway will focus again.
- Image brightness may change before and after autofocusing.
- Depending on the subject and shooting conditions, it may take longer to focus, or the continuous shooting speed may decrease.
- If the light source changes as you shoot, the screen may flicker, and focusing may be difficult. In this case, restart the camera and resume shooting with AF under the light source you will use.
- If focusing is not possible with AF, focus manually (2).
- For subjects at the edge of the screen that are slightly out of focus, try centering the subject (or AF point, or Zone AF frame) to bring them into focus, then recompose the shot before shooting.
- With certain lenses, it may take more time to achieve focus with autofocus, or accurate focusing may not be achieved.

- Subject with low-contrast such as the blue sky, solid-color flat surfaces or when highlight
 or shadow details are clipped.
- Subjects in low light.
- Stripes and other patterns where there is contrast only in the horizontal direction.
- Subjects with repetitive patterns (Example: Skyscraper windows, computer keyboards, etc.).
- Fine lines and subject outlines.
- Under light sources with constantly changing brightness, colors, or patterns.
- Night scenes or points of light.
- The image flickers under fluorescent or LED lighting.
- Extremely small subjects.
- Subjects at the edge of the screen.
- Strongly backlit or reflective subjects (Example: Car with a highly reflective surfaces, etc.).
- Near and distant subjects covered by an AF point (Example: Animal in a cage, etc.).
- Subjects that keep moving within the AF point and will not stay still due to camera shake or subject blur.
- Performing AF when the subject is very far out of focus.
- Soft focus effect is applied with a soft focus lens.
- A special effect filter is used.
- Noise (dots of light, banding, etc.) appears on the screen during AF.

The available autofocus range varies depending on the lens, aspect ratio, and image quality used, and whether you are shooting 4K movies or using features such as Movie cropping or Movie digital IS.

This function keeps subjects generally in focus. The camera is ready to focus immediately when you press the shutter button halfway.

1. Select [AF: Continuous AF].

AFcannation	THE SHOT W
AF method	W10
SUBJECT TO EMPLIT	Protect
Type adopted to an	Disable
Continuesus At	Disaste
Woeld Servic All	Truth
Town & drug AF an	ttings

2. Select [Enable].



Caution

 Fewer shots are available when set to [Enable], because the lens is driven continuously and battery power is consumed. With this function enabled, the camera focuses on the subject continuously during movie recording.

1. Select [AF: Movie Servo AF].

AFoundation	TONE SHOT WE
AF method	Witt
SADIOCT TO AMOUNT	People
The definition	Disalitie
CONTEMPORAL M	175459
Vicinia Servici Alt	Enablement
Touch & drug AP las	ttingt

2. Select [Enable].



Enable

- The camera focuses on the subject continuously even when you are not pressing the shutter button halfway.
- To keep the focus at a specific position, or if you prefer not to record mechanical sounds from the lens, you can temporarily stop Movie Servo AF by tapping [stows] in the lower left of the screen.
- When Movie Servo AF is paused, if you return to movie recording after operations such as pressing the < MENU > or < > > button or changing the AF method, Movie Servo AF will resume.

Disable

Press the shutter button halfway or press the < AF-ON > button to focus.

Caution

Precautions when set to [Movie Servo AF: Enable]

- Shooting conditions that make focusing difficult
 - · A fast-moving subject approaching or moving away from the camera.
 - · A subject moving at a close distance to the camera.
 - · When shooting with a higher aperture value.
 - · Also see Shooting Conditions That Make Focusing Difficult.
- Since the lens is driven continuously and the battery power is consumed, the possible movie recording time (2) will be shortened.
- The camera's built-in microphone may also record mechanical sounds of the lens or sounds of camera/lens operations if AF operations are performed or the camera or lens is operated during movie recording. In this case, using an external microphone may reduce these sounds. If the sounds are still distracting with an external microphone, it may be more effective to remove the external microphone from the camera and position it away from the camera and lens.
- Movie Servo AF pauses during zooming or magnified view.
- During movie recording, if a subject approaches or moves away or if the camera is moved vertically or horizontally (panning), the recorded image may momentarily expand or contract (change in image magnification).

- C Touch & Drag AF
- Positioning Method
- Active Touch Area

You can move the AF point or Zone AF frame by tapping or dragging on the screen as you look through the viewfinder.

Touch & Drag AF

1. Select [AF: Touch & drag AF settings].



2. Select [Touch & drag AF].



Select [Enable].

You can set how positions are specified by tapping or dragging.

1. Set [Positioning method].



Absolute

The AF point moves to the tapped or dragged position on the screen.

Relative

The AF point moves in the direction you drag, by an amount corresponding to the amount you drag, no matter where you tap the screen.

Active Touch Area

You can specify the area of the screen used for tap and drag operations.

1. Set [Active touch area].

Active Youch ansi	
Whole panel	
COLUMN TWO IS NOT	
Rut	
HITOP.	
Calentins .	
Die Top right	
	147 166

Note

 Tapping the screen when [L+Tracking] is set displays a round orange frame [()]. After you lift your finger at the position to move the AF point to, [t,] is displayed and that subject is tracked. To cancel subject selection, press < (r) >.
Manual Focus

- Setting MF Peaking (Outline Emphasis)
- Focus Guide
- AF-Assist Beam Firing

If focusing is not possible with autofocus, you can magnify the image and focus manually.

1. Set the lens's focus mode switch to < MF >.



- Turn the lens focusing ring to set the approximate focus.
- For lenses without a focus mode switch, set [AF: Focus mode] to [MF].
- 2. Magnify the image.



 Each press of the < Q > button changes the magnification ratio, as follows.



3. Move the magnified area.



- Use < 🔆 > to move the magnified area into position for focusing.
- To center the magnified area, press < 🔆 > straight in or press < 🗊 >.

4. Focus manually.

- While looking at the magnified image, turn the lens focusing ring to focus.
- After achieving focus, press the < Q > button to return to the normal view.

Note

- In magnified view, the exposure is locked.
- Even when focusing manually, you can use Touch Shutter to shoot.

Edges of subjects in focus can be displayed in color to make focusing easier. You can set the outline color and adjust the sensitivity (level) of edge detection.

1. Select [AF: MF peaking settings].

	٩	÷ 1
MA packing without Recurpable Af-actist beam faires	-04	-

2. Select [Peaking].

W peoking settings		
Alting	A DA	

- Select [On].
- 3. Set [Level] and [Color].

Making	Diff.
UNI	High
Collect	med.

Set as necessary.

Caution

- In magnified view, peaking display is not shown.
- During HDMI output, peaking display is not shown on equipment connected via HDMI. Note that peaking display is shown on the camera screen when [1]: HDMI display] is set to [1]+.
- MF peaking may be hard to discern at high ISO speeds, especially when ISO expansion is set. If necessary, lower the ISO speed or set [Peaking] to [Off].

Note

- Peaking display shown on the screen is not recorded in images.
- MF peaking may be hard to discern when Canon Log is set. If necessary, set [View Assist.] to [On].

Setting [Focus guide] to [On] provides a guide frame that shows which direction to adjust focus and the extent of adjustment needed. The guide frame is displayed near any eyes that are detected for the main subject when [AF: AF method] is set to [:+Tracking] and [AF: Eye detection] is set to [Enable].

1. Select [AF: Focus guide].



2. Select [On].

P. #		4 4 6	
Herioran	e.	-76	

- After pressing the <
 → > button, you can use <
 > > to move the guide frame in the direction you press (except in <
 → > mode).
- To center the guide frame while using < >, press < > straight in.
- To set the guide frame after moving it with < * >, press < 10 >.
- You can also move and set the guide frame by tapping the screen.
- To center the guide frame, tap [] or press < () >.

The guide frame indicates the current position in focus and adjustment amount as follows.







Adjustment information not detected

Caution

- Higher aperture values are more likely to prevent correct guide frame display.
- No AF points are displayed while the guide frame is displayed.
- The guide frame is not displayed in these situations.
 - When the lens's focus mode switch is set to < AF >
 - · When display is magnified
- The guide frame is not displayed correctly during shifting or tilting of TS-E lenses.

Note

 The camera's auto power off counter does not count time spent adjusting the focus with a lens's electronic focusing ring. You can enable or disable AF-assist beam firing of the camera or a Speedlite for EOS cameras.

1. Select [AF-assist beam firing].



2. Select an option.



[ON] Enable

Enables firing of the AF-assist beam, when needed.

[OFF] Disable

Disables firing of the AF-assist beam. Set if you prefer not to fire the AF-assist beam.

[LED] LED AF assist beam only

Enables LED AF-assist beam firing by Speedlites equipped with this feature, when these flash units are attached. If your Speedlite is not LED-equipped, the camera's AF-assist beam is fired instead.

Caution

 If a Speedlite's [AF-assist beam firing] Custom Function is set to [Disable], the AF-assist beam will not be emitted.

- Case Details
- Case 1: Versatile Multi-Purpose Setting
- Case 2: Continue to Track Subjects, Ignoring Possible Obstacles
- Case 3: Instantly Focus on Subjects Suddenly Entering AF Points
- Case 4: For Subjects That Accelerate or Decelerate Quickly
- Case A: Tracking Automatically Adapts to Subject Movement
- Parameters
- Adjusting Case Parameters

Shooting with AI Servo AF/Servo AF can be easily tailored to your subjects or shooting situations by selecting a Case option. This feature is called the "AF Configuration Tool."

1. Select the [AF3] tab.



2. Select a case.

- Turn the < >> dial to select a case icon, then press < <>>.
- Your selected case is now set. Selected cases are displayed in blue.

☆

Cases 1 to A are five combinations of settings for "<u>Tracking sensitivity</u>" and "<u>Accel./decel.</u> <u>tracking</u>." Referring to the following table, select the case for your subject and shooting situation.

Case	lcon	Description	Examples of Shooting Situations
Case 1	<u>, * / * / </u>	Versatile multi purpose setting	Moving subjects in general
Case 2	×.	Continue to track subjects, ignoring possible obstacles	Tennis, freestyle skiing
Case 3	Ń	Instantly focus on subjects suddenly entering AF points	Start of a cycling race, downhill skiing
Case 4	ħ∕o¥	For subjects that accelerate or decelerate quickly	Soccer, rhythmic gymnastics, motorsports, basketball
Case A	AUTO	Tracking automatically adapts to subject movement	Moving subjects in general, especially in dynamic shooting situations



- Tracking sensitivity: 0
- Accel./decel. tracking: 0

Standard setting suited to moving subjects in general. Suitable for many kinds of subjects and scenes.

In the following situations, select [Case 2] to [Case 4] instead: non-subjects moving across AF points, elusive subjects, or subjects that suddenly appear or change speed.



· Tracking sensitivity: Locked on: -1

· Accel./decel. tracking: 0

Setting to continue focusing on the subject even if non-subjects move across AF points, or if the subject strays from AF points. Effective if you prefer the focus not to switch to nonsubjects or the background.

Note

 Try setting [Tracking sensitivity] to [-2] if non-subjects tend to steal the focus or AF points tend to stray from the subject much of the time, preventing the camera from tracking the target subject under default settings (2).



• Tracking sensitivity: Responsive: +1

· Accel./decel. tracking: +1

Setting to focus on a series of subjects at different distances in the AF points, one after another. Focus switches to any new subject that appears in front of the target subject. Also effective when you want to always focus on the closest subject.

Note



• Tracking sensitivity: Responsive: 0

Accel./decel. tracking: +1

Setting to keep tracking and focusing on subjects even if they suddenly change speed. Effective for subjects having sudden movements, sudden acceleration/deceleration, or sudden stops.

5	Note
•	Try setting [Accel./decel. tracking] to [+2] to keep up with subjects that change speed significantly from moment to moment (ଜ).



Useful when you prefer to shoot with parameters set automatically, based on how subjects change.

Tracking sensitivity and acceleration/deceleration tracking are set automatically.

Tracking sensitivity



Setting for Servo AF subject-tracking sensitivity in response to non-subjects moving across AF points or subjects straying from AF points.

• 0

Standard setting. Suitable for moving subjects in general.

Locked on: –2 / Locked on: –1

The camera will try to continue focusing on the subject even if non-subjects move across AF points or if the subject strays from the AF points. The -2 setting makes the camera keep tracking the target subject longer than the -1 setting. However, if the camera focuses on a wrong subject, it may take slightly longer to switch and focus on the target subject.

Responsive: +2 / Responsive: +1

The camera can focus consecutively on subjects at different distances that are covered by the AF points. Also effective when you want to always focus on the closest subject. The +2 setting is more responsive than the +1 setting when focusing on the next subject.

However, the camera will be more prone to focus on an unintended subject.

Accel./decel. tracking



Setting for AI Servo AF/Servo AF subject-tracking sensitivity in response to sudden, significant changes in speed, as when subjects suddenly start or stop moving.

• 0

Suited for subjects that move at a steady speed (minor changes in moving speed).

• -2 / -1

Suited for subjects that move at a steady speed (minor changes in moving speed). Effective when a setting of 0 makes focus unstable, due to slight subject movement or an obstruction in front of the subject.

• +2 / +1

Effective for subjects having sudden movements, sudden acceleration/deceleration, or sudden stops. Even if the moving subject's speed suddenly changes significantly, the camera continues to focus on the target subject. For example, the camera is less likely to focus behind a subject that suddenly starts approaching you, or in front of an approaching subject that suddenly stops moving. Setting +2 can track dramatic changes in the moving subject's speed better than with +1.

However, since the camera will be sensitive to even slight movements of the subject, focusing may become unstable for short periods.

You can manually adjust the parameters ((1) Tracking sensitivity and (2) Acceleration/ deceleration tracking) for cases 1 to 4.

1. Select a case.



- Turn the < () > dial to select the number of a case to adjust.
- 2. Press the < RATE > button.
 - The selected parameter is outlined in purple.
- 3. Select a parameter to adjust.



4. Make the adjustment.



- Default settings are indicated by a light gray [] icon.
- To confirm the adjustment, press < (1)>.
- To return to the screen in step 1, press the < RATE > button.

Note

- To restore default parameter settings for (1) and (2) to each case, press the < RATE > button in step 2, then press the < m > button.
- You can also register (1) and (2) parameter settings to My Menu (2). This enables you to adjust settings for the selected case.
- To shoot with a case you have adjusted, first select the adjusted case, then shoot.

- 🕑 [AF4]
- 🗹 [AF5]
- [AF3] (In Movie Recording)



You can configure AF functions in detail to suit your shooting style or subject.

[**AF**4]

Lens electronic MF☆

For RF, EF, or EF-S lenses equipped with electronic manual focusing, you can specify how manual focus adjustment is used with One-Shot AF.



● [③→0FF] Disable after One-Shot

After the AF operation, manual focusing adjustment is disabled.

● [③→0N] One-Shot→enabled

You can manually adjust the focus after the AF operation if you keep holding down the shutter button halfway.

[S→[⊕]_{ON}] One-Shot→enabled (magnify)

You can manually adjust the focus after the AF operation if you keep holding down the shutter button halfway. You can magnify the area in focus and adjust the focus manually by turning the lens focusing ring.

[OFF] Disable in AF mode

Manual focus adjustment is disabled when the lens's focus mode switch is set to < AF >.

Caution

With [One-Shot→enabled (magnify)], display may not be magnified even if you turn the lens focusing ring while pressing the shutter button halfway immediately after shooting. If so, you can magnify display by releasing the shutter button, waiting for [Q] display, then pressing the shutter button halfway as you turn the lens focusing ring.

Note

 For details on your lens's manual focus specifications, refer to the Lens Instruction Manual.

One-Shot AF release prior. 🕁

You can specify whether to prioritize focus or release timing for One-Shot AF (except when shooting with Touch Shutter).



[③] Focus

The picture will not be taken until focus is achieved. Useful when you want to achieve focus before capturing the image.

[D] Release

Prioritizes shutter release over focus. Useful when capturing the decisive moment is most important.

Note that the camera shoots whether or not the subject is in focus.

Switching tracked subjects \bigstar

You can specify how easily the camera switches AF points to track subjects. Applies to Face+Tracking, Zone AF, or Large Zone AF (vertical or horizontal) AF methods.



· Initial priority

Tracks the subject initially determined for AF, to the extent possible.

On subject

Tracks the main subject initially determined for AF, to the extent possible. Switches to other subjects if the camera can no longer determine if the tracked subject is the main subject.

Switch subject

Switches to track other subjects in response to shooting conditions.

Caution

Precautions when set to [Initial priority]

- The camera may not be able to continue tracking subjects under some subject conditions.
 - · If subjects move vigorously
 - · If subjects face a different direction or change their posture
 - If AF points stray from subjects, or if subjects are hidden behind obstructions and you can no longer see them
- Subjects selected by touch are tracked to the extent possible, regardless of the [Subject to detect] setting.

Lens drive when AF impossible \bigstar

You can specify lens operation that applies when autofocusing on a subject is not possible.



[ON] Continue focus search

If focus cannot be achieved with autofocus, the lens is driven to search for the precise focus.

[OFF] Stop focus search

If autofocus starts and the focus is far off or if focus cannot be achieved, the lens drive will not be performed. This prevents the lens from becoming grossly out of focus due to the focus search drive.

Caution

 [Stop focus search] is recommended for super telephoto lenses or other lenses that are driven over a large focus area, to avoid significant delay from focus search drive if the lens becomes greatly out of focus.

Limit AF methods 🕁

You can limit the AF methods available to those that you will use. Select AF methods and press < (a) > to add a checkmark [$\sqrt{}$] and make them available. Select [**OK**] to register the setting. For details on AF methods, see <u>AF Method</u>.





■ The [√] mark cannot be removed from [Manual selection:1 pt AF].

Note

 An asterisk "*" to the right of [AF: Limit AF methods] indicates that the default setting has been modified.

AF method selection control \bigstar

You can set how AF method selection methods are switched.



[MII] ···→M-Fn button

Press the < > button, then the < M-Fn > button. Each press switches the AF method.

● [ﷺ] ↔Main Dial

Press the < ::: > button, then turn the < :: > dial to switch the AF method.

- Note
- When [→ Main Dial] is set, use < 🔆 > to move the AF point horizontally.

Orientation linked AF point 🕁

You can set separate AF points or Zone AF frames to use in vertical and horizontal shooting.



[□] Same for both vert/horiz

The same AF points or Zone AF frames are used in both vertical and horizontal shooting.

[...] Separate AF pts: Pt only

Separate AF points or Zone AF frames can be set for each camera orientation ((1) Horizontal, (2) Vertical with the camera grip up, (3) Vertical with the camera grip down). Useful when switching to other AF points or Zone AF frames automatically based on camera orientation.

AF points or Zone AF frames you assign to each of the three camera orientations are retained.

Caution

- The default setting of [Same for both vert/horiz] is restored if you select [Basic settings] in [\varphi: Reset camera] (\varphi). Settings for orientations (1)–(3) are cleared, and the camera is set to use the center AF point in 1-point AF.
- The setting may be cleared if you switch lenses.

Initial Servo AF pt for

You can set the initial AF point for Servo AF when the AF method is set to [U+Tracking].



Initial AF pt set for L^[]

Servo AF starts from the manually set AF point when AF operation is set to [Servo AF] and the AF method is set to [L+Tracking].

AF pt set for https://www.example.com

Servo AF starts from the AF point that was set manually before switching from Spot AF, 1-point AF, or Expand AF area (manual selection "a") or Expand AF area (manual selection: surround) to [Auto selection AF] or [+Tracking]. Useful for starting Servo AF from the AF point set before switching to [Auto selection AF] or [+Tracking].

AUTO: Auto

The initial AF point for Servo AF is set automatically to suit the shooting conditions.

Note

When [AF pt set for ______i is set, Servo AF starts from a zone corresponding to your manually selected AF point even if you switch the AF method to Zone AF or Large Zone AF (vertical or horizontal).

Focus ring rotation

You can reverse the direction that the focusing ring of RF lens is rotated to adjust settings.



- [-_+] Normal
- [+_] Reverse direction

RF lens MF focus ring sensitivity

You can set the sensitivity of the RF lens focusing ring.



[A light of the second seco

Focusing ring sensitivity varies depending on rotation speed.

● [☆☆] Linked to rotation degree

The focal position is adjusted based on the amount of rotation, regardless of the rotation speed.

* sensitivity- AF pt select

You can adjust Multi-controller sensitivity, which applies to AF point positioning.



Electronic full-time MF

Operation of manual focus adjustment using the electronic focusing ring when certain lenses are attached is customizable. Check the Canon website for compatible lenses.

Flecture in fail kind M	•
Chapter	. 08
d labe	dir i
and a state of the	and the second second

Enable

Manual focus adjustment is available whenever the camera is on.

Disable

Operation of manual focus adjustment corresponds to the [Lens electronic MF] setting.

Movie Servo AF speed

This function is available when [**AF**: **Movie Servo AF**] is set to [**Enable**]. You can set the AF speed and operating conditions for Movie Servo AF. The function is enabled when using a lens supporting slow focus transition during movie recording.*

When active

Mode Servic M speed	
lette staat	Transferd
Not writing the	Discard Concertible and
a print active	Always
AF carea	B
Constant Printing	0000

You can set [Always on] to have the AF speed take effect at all times for movie recording (before and during movie recording) or set [During shooting] to have the AF speed take effect only during movie recording.

AF speed

M speed Betweeterst, 24 Deeleg shad, 26	erded erdes
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	Hat I at
	50 00

You can adjust the AF speed (focus transition speed) from the standard speed (0) to slow (one of seven levels) or fast (one of two levels) to obtain the desired effect for the movie creation.

* Lenses supporting slow focus transition during movie recording

USM and STM lenses released in and after 2009 are compatible. For details, refer to the Canon website.

Caution

With certain lenses, even if you adjust the AF speed, the speed may not change.

Note

- Operation when inactive is equivalent to when [AF speed] is set to [Standard (0)].
- An asterisk "*" to the right of [AF: Movie Servo AF speed] indicates that the default setting has been modified.

Movie Servo AF track sens.

You can adjust the tracking sensitivity (to one of seven levels), which affects responsiveness if the subject strays from the AF point during Movie Servo AF, as when interfering objects move across AF points or when you pan.

This function is available when [AF: Movie Servo AF] is set to [Enable].



Locked on: -3/-2/-1

With this setting, the camera is less likely to track a different subject if the subject strays from the AF point. The closer the setting is to the minus (–) symbol, the less the camera is inclined to track a different subject. It is effective when you want to prevent the AF points from rapidly tracking something that is not the intended subject during panning or when an obstacle cuts across the AF points.

Responsive: +1/+2/+3

This makes the camera more responsive when tracking a subject that covers the AF point. The closer the setting is to the plus (+) symbol, the more responsive the camera is. It is effective when you want to keep tracking a moving subject as its distance from the camera changes or to rapidly focus on another subject.

Note

Operation when inactive is equivalent to when set to [0].

Single and continuous drive modes are provided. You can select the drive mode suiting the scene or subject.

1. Press the < M-Fn > button (\bigcirc 6).



• With an image displayed on the screen, press the < M-Fn > button.

2. Select the drive mode item.



• Turn the < () > dial to select the drive mode item.

3. Select the drive mode.



Turn the < is > dial to make a selection.

• [] Single shooting

When you hold down the shutter button completely, only one shot will be taken.

[□]] High-speed continuous shooting +

When you hold down the shutter button completely, you can shoot continuously at max. approx. 12 shots/sec. while you keep holding it down.

● [및H] High-speed continuous shooting

When you hold down the shutter button completely, you can shoot continuously at max. approx. 8.0 shots/sec. ([C]: Shutter mode] set to [Mechanical]: max. approx. 6.0 shots/sec.) while you keep holding it down.

[] Low-speed continuous shooting

When you hold down the shutter button completely, you can shoot continuously at max. approx. 3.0 shots/sec. while you keep holding it down.

[i] Self-timer: 10 sec./remote control

[32] Self-timer: 2 sec./remote control

For self-timer shooting, see <u>Using the Self-Timer</u>. For remote control shooting, see <u>Remote Control Shooting</u>.
Caution

- Approx. 12 shots/sec. continuous shooting speed with []] is available under the following conditions.
 - Room temperature (23°C/73°F)
 - Battery level (LP-E6NH): At least approx. 50% (or using an optional Battery Grip BG-R10, a battery level of at least approx. 50% with two LP-E6NH)
 - · Shutter speed: 1/1000 sec. or faster
 - · Wi-Fi connection: Not connected
 - · Flicker reduction: None
 - ・ Set to maximum aperture, when using RF lenses or [밐炓]-compatible EF lenses*

* For details on EF lenses compatible with [□\$], refer to EF Lenses Supporting 12 Shots/Sec. Continuous Shooting.

 Continuous shooting speed for [^Q/₄] and [^Q/₄] changes as follows in response to factors such as battery level, temperature, flicker reduction, shutter speed, aperture value, subject conditions, brightness, AF operation, type of lens, use of flash, and shooting settings.

(Approx. shots/sec.)

Icon Display		Green	White	White (Blinking)	
막		12	9.2	6.8	
마버	For [Elec. 1st-curtain]	8.0	6.0	4.9	
	For [Mechanical]	6.0	5.1	3.8	

- Continuous shooting speed may become slower when using batteries with weak recharge performance (2).
- Continuous shooting speed with Servo AF may be slower depending on subject conditions or the lens used.

Continuous shooting speed may be lower when shooting under flickering light with [C: Anti-flicker shoot.] set to [Enable] (@). Also, the continuous shooting interval may become irregular and the release time lag may become longer.

 When internal memory becomes full during continuous shooting, the continuous shooting speed may drop off because shooting will be temporarily disabled (g). Use the self-timer when you want to be in the picture such as a commemorative photograph.

- 1. Press the $M-F_{n} > button (\bigcirc 6).$
 - With an image displayed on the screen, press the < M-Fn > button.
- 2. Select the drive mode item.



- Turn the < () > dial to select the drive mode item.
- 3. Select the self-timer.



Turn the < (1) > dial to select the self-timer.
 Shoot in 10 sec.
 Shoot in 2 sec.

4. Take the picture.



- Focus on the subject, then press the shutter button completely.
- To check operation, look at the self-timer lamp, listen for beeps, or watch the countdown in seconds on the screen.
- Self-timer lamp blinking accelerates and the camera beeps quickly approx. 2 sec. before the picture is taken.

Note

- [iv2] is used to start shooting without touching the camera (to avoid camera shake) when it is mounted on a tripod for shots such as still lifes or long exposures, for example.

- To cancel the self-timer after it starts, either tap the screen or press < (1)>.
- Auto power off time may be extended when the camera is set for remote control shooting.

- Remote Controller RC-6
- Wireless Remote Control BR-E1
- Remote Switch RS-60E3

For remote control shooting, you can use Remote Controller RC-6, Wireless Remote Control BR-E1, or Remote Switch RS-60E3 (infrared, Bluetooth, and wired connections, respectively; sold separately).

Remote Controller RC-6

You can shoot remotely up to approx. 5 meters/16.4 feet away from the front of the camera. You can either shoot immediately or with a 2-sec. delay.





With an image displayed on the screen, press the < M-Fn > button.

2. Select the self-timer/remote control.



- Turn the < () > dial to select the drive mode item, then turn the
 > dial to select [iv) or [iv2].
- $\textbf{3.} \quad \textbf{Press the release (transmit) button on the remote controller}.$



- Point the remote controller toward the camera's remote control sensor (1), then press the release (transmit) button.
- Autofocusing is performed when the focus mode switch is set to < AF >.
- The remote control lamp lights up, and the camera shoots.

Caution

- Infrared remote controllers such as the RC-6 cannot be used for remote control shooting when the camera is paired via Bluetooth with a smartphone or wireless remote control.
- Fluorescent or LED lighting may trigger accidental shutter release. Try to keep the camera away from these light sources.
- Operating a TV remote control or similar device aimed at the camera may trigger accidental shutter release.
- Firing flash units of other cameras near the camera may trigger accidental shutter release. Do not expose the remote control sensor to flash fired by other cameras.

Wireless Remote Control BR-E1

You can shoot remotely up to approx. 5 meters/16.4 feet from the camera.

After pairing the camera and BR-E1 (*i*), set the drive mode to [*i*) or [*i*) for still photo shooting (*i*). For movie recording, set [**1**: **Remote control**] to [**Enable**]. For operating instructions, refer to the BR-E1 instruction manual.

	Note
RC	-6 and BR-E1
	Auto power off time may be extended when the camera is set for remote control shooting.

RC-6 and BR-E1 can also be used for movie recording (2).

Once connected to the camera, the switch enables you to shoot remotely over a wired connection.

For operating instructions, refer to the RS-60E3 instruction manual.

- 1. Open the terminal cover.
- $2. \ \ \, \text{Connect the plug to the remote control terminal.}$



Playback

This chapter covers topics related to playback—playing back captured still photos and movies—and introduces menu settings on the playback ([**[**])) tab.

Caution

- Normal display or selection on this camera may not be possible for images captured on other cameras, or images from this camera that have been edited or renamed on a computer.
- Tab Menus: Playback
- Image Playback
- Magnified Image Display
- Index Display (Multiple-Image Display)
- Movie Playback
- Editing a Movie's First and Last Scenes
- <u>4K Movie Frame Grab</u>
- Playback on a TV Set
- Protecting Images
- Erasing Images
- Rotating Still Photos
- <u>Changing Movie Orientation Information</u>
- <u>Rating Images</u>
- <u>Copying Images</u>
- Print Ordering (DPOF)
- Photobook Set-up
- RAW Image Processing
- <u>Resizing JPEG/HEIF Images</u>
- <u>Cropping JPEG/HEIF Images</u>
- <u>Converting HEIF to JPEG</u>
- Slide Show
- Setting Image Search Conditions
- Browsing Images with the Main Dial
- Switching the Main Dial and Quick Control Dial 2
- <u>Rate Button Function</u>
- <u>Customizing Playback Information Display</u>
- Displaying the Highlight Alert
- AF Point Display

- Playback Grid
- Movie Play Count
- HDMI HDR Output

Playback 1

	7,210
Protect Unagen	(1)
Eraie Images	(2)
Possible stills	(3)
Ohenge mov notate info	(4)
Fating	(5)
Inside cash	(6)

- (1) Protect images
- (2) Erase images
- (3) Rotate stills
- (4) Change mov rotate info
- (5) Rating
- (6) Image copy

Playback 2



(1) Print order

(2) Photobook Set-up

Playback 3



- (1) RAW image processing
- (2) Resize
- (3) Cropping
- (4) HEIF→JPEG conversion

Caution

● [►: RAW image processing] and [►: HEIF→JPEG conversion] are not displayed in < (▲⁺ > mode.

Playback 4

	- ¥	0	٠	
A DESCRIPTION OF THE OWNER OF THE			100	
Sideshow			-	 (1)
Set image search co	nations			 (2)
Megraficatit (eas)	24			(3)
Image jump m/m				(4)
Switch Are	- Division			(0) (6)
				(0)

- (1) Slide show
- (2) Set image search conditions
- (3) Magnificatn (apx)
- (4) Image jump w/
- (5) Switch
- (6) RATE btn function

• Playback 5

	¥ 10		
		100	
Plastack Informatio	n ditalay	_	(1)
Highlight alert	Deaper		(2)
Al point disp.	Disable		
Fligback grid	Off		-(4)
Movie play count	RECUTE		
HDMI HDR eurout	. Off		

- (1) Playback information display
- (2) Highlight alert
- (3) AF point disp.
- (4) Playback grid
- (5) Movie play count
- (6) HDMI HDR output

Image Playback

- Single-Image Display
- Shooting Information Display
- C Touch Playback

Single-Image Display

1. Switch to playback.



- Press the < > button.
- The last image captured or played back is displayed.

2. Browse images.



- To play back images starting with your most recent shot, turn the
 > dial counterclockwise. To play back images starting with the first captured image, turn the dial clockwise.
- Each time you press the < INFO > button, the display will change.

No information





Shooting information display

3. Exit image playback.

 Press the < > button to exit image playback and return to shooting standby.

Note

- Lines indicating the image area are shown on RAW images captured with [1]: 1 Cropping/aspect ratio] set to [1:1 (aspect ratio)], [4:3 (aspect ratio)], or [16:9 (aspect ratio)] (2).
- If the search conditions are set with [E: Set image search conditions] (2), only the filtered images will be displayed.

Shooting Information Display

With the shooting information screen displayed (B), you can press < \cancel{K} > up or down to view other information. You can also customize the information displayed, in [\blacktriangleright : Playback information display] (B).

The camera features a touch-screen panel that you can touch to control playback. Supported touch operations are like those used with smartphones and similar devices. First, press the $< \triangleright >$ button to prepare for touch playback.

Browse images





Jump display



Index display



Magnified view



Note

• You can also magnify display by double-tapping with one finger.

Setting the Initial Magnification Ratio and Position

You can magnify display of your captured images.

1. Magnify the image.



● Turn the < ³ > dial clockwise.



- The magnified view will appear. The position of the magnified area (1) is displayed in the lower right of the screen, along with [mrQ].
- To magnify images, turn the < २००० > dial clockwise.

2. Scroll the image.



- Use < > to scroll around the magnified image.
- Press the < Q > or < MENU > button to exit magnified view.

Note

- To switch to other images while maintaining magnified view, turn the < () > dial.
- Magnification is not available for movies.



You can set the initial magnification ratio and magnified position by selecting [E: Magnificatn (apx)].



2x, 4x, 8x, 10x (magnify from center)

The magnified view starts at the image center at the selected magnification ratio.

Actual size (from selected pt)

The recorded image's pixels will be displayed at approx. 100%. The magnified view starts at the AF point that achieved focus. If the photo is taken with manual focus, the magnified view starts at the image center.

Same as last magnif. (from ctr)

The magnification will be the same as the last time you exited the magnified view with the $\langle \mathbf{P} \rangle$ or $\langle \mathbf{Q} \rangle$ button. The magnified view starts at the image center.

1. Switch to the index display.



● During image playback, turn the < २००२ > dial counterclockwise.



- The 4-image index display will appear. The selected image is highlighted with an orange frame.
- Turning the < US> dial further counterclockwise will switch the display from 9 to 36 to 100 images. Turning the dial clockwise cycles through 100, 36, 9, 4, and single-image display.

















	-				-
			10.0		Ξ
				22	2
	5				=
-	-				-
80.					
	-	-	-		-

2. Browse images.



- Use < * > or the < >> dial to move the orange frame for image selection.
- Press < (ii) > in the index display to display the selected image in the single-image display.

1. Switch to playback.



- Press the < > button.
- 2. Select a movie.



- Turn the < () > dial to select a movie to play.
- In single-image display, the [SID: 2] icon displayed in the upper left of the screen indicates a movie.



- In index display, perforations at the left edge of a thumbnail indicate a movie. Movies cannot be played back from index display, so press
 - < $\overline{\operatorname{set}}$ > to switch to single-image display.

- 3. In the single-image display, press < set >.
- 4. Press < (a) > to play back the movie.



- The movie will start playing back.
- You can pause playback and display the movie playback panel by pressing < (c) >. Press it again to resume the playback.
- Turn the < is > dial to adjust the volume (even during playback).



(1) Speaker

Movie playback panel

Item	Playback Operations			
Playback	Pressing < (st) > toggles between playback and stop.			
Slow motion	Adjust the slow motion speed by turning the < () > dial. The slow motion speed is indicated in the upper right of the screen.			
Skip backward	Skips backward approx. 4 sec. each time you press < (() >.			
◀ Previous frame	Displays the previous frame each time you press < (ET) >. Holding < (ET) > down will rewind the movie.			
II Next frame	Plays the movie frame-by-frame each time you press < (f) >. Holding < (f) > down will fast forward the movie.			
Skip forward	Skips forward approx. 4 sec. each time you press < (SET) >.			
🗲 Edit	Displays the editing screen ().			
대태 Frame Grab	Available when you play 4K or 4K time-lapse movies. Enables you to extract the current frame and save it as a JPEG or HEIF still image (@).			
	Playback position			
mm' ss"	Playback time (minutes:seconds, when [Movie play count] is set to [Rec time])			
hh:mm:ss.ff (DF) hh:mm:ss:ff (NDF)	Time code (hours:minutes:seconds:frames, when [Movie play count] is set to [Time code])			
◀ 》Volume	Turn the $< \underbrace{\mathcal{E}^{(n)}_{2}}_{\mathcal{E}^{(n)}}$ > dial to adjust the volume of the built-in speaker (\textcircled{B}) or headphones.			
	Press the < $MENU$ > button to return to single-image display.			

Caution

- Movie playback may stop if the card's read speed is too slow or movie files have corrupted frames.

You can edit out the first and last scenes of a movie in approx. 1-sec. increments.

1. In single-image display, press < (s) >.



2. On the movie playback panel, select [\gg].



3. Specify the part to be edited out.



Select either [\[\[\] [] (Cut beginning) or [[\[\] \[\] (Cut end).



- Press < * > left or right to go back or forward one frame. Keep pressing the multi-controller to fast rewind or fast forward frames. Each turn of the < > dial goes back or forward one frame.
- After deciding which part to edit out, press < (1) >. The portion indicated by a line at the bottom of the screen will remain.
- 4. Check the edited movie.



- Select [>] to play back the edited movie.
- To change the edited part, go back to step 3.
- To cancel the editing, press the < MENU > button.

5. Save.



- Select [1] (1).
- The save screen will appear.
- To save it as a new file, select [New file], or to save it and overwrite the original movie file, select [Overwrite].

Select [1] (2) to save a compressed version of the file. 4K movies are converted to Full HD movies before compression.

 On the confirmation screen, select [OK] to save the edited movie and return to the movie playback screen.

Caution

- Because editing is performed in approx. 1 sec. increments (at the position indicated by [X] at the bottom of the screen), the actual position where movies are trimmed may differ from your specified position.
- Movies shot with another camera cannot be edited with this camera.
- You cannot edit a movie when the camera is connected to a computer.

Compress and save is not available ([□]] is not displayed) for movies recorded with [HDR shooting []DR PO] set to [Enable] or Canon Log set, or for movies recorded in sizes of FHD 20070 [PB] [™] (NTSC) or FHD 20070 [PB] [™] (PAL).

From 4K movies, you can select individual frames to save as JPEG or HEIF still images. This function is called "Frame Grab."

1. Select a 4K movie.



- Turn the < () > dial to select a 4K quality movie.
- In index display, press < (a) > to switch to single-image display.
- 2. In the single-image display, press < (ir) >.
 - The movie playback panel will appear.
- 3. Select a frame to grab.



- Use the movie playback panel to select the frame to grab as a still image.
- For movie playback panel instructions, see <u>Movie playback panel</u>.

4. _{Select [}□].



5. Save.



- Select [OK] to save the current frame as a JPEG still image.
 Frame grabs from HDR movie files are saved as HEIF images.
- Check the destination folder and image file number.
- 6. Select the image to display.
 - Select [View original movie] or [View extracted still image].

Caution

- Frame grabbing is not possible from the following 4K movies.
 - · Movies recorded with Canon Log set
 - · Movies recorded with other cameras
- Frame grabbing is not possible while the camera is connected to a computer.

2

By connecting the camera to a television with a commercially available HDMI cable, you can play back the captured still photos and movies on the television.

If the image does not appear on the TV screen, confirm that [**Y**: Video system] is correctly set to [For NTSC] or [For PAL] (depending on the video system of your television).

1. Connect the HDMI cable to the camera.



- Insert the HDMI cable in the camera's < HDMI OUT > terminal.

Connect the HDMI cable to the television.

- Connect the HDMI cable to the television's HDMI IN port.
- 3. Turn on the television and switch the television's video input to select the connected port.
- 4. Set the camera's power switch to < ON >.

5. Press the < ► > button.



- Images are now displayed on the television, with nothing displayed on the camera screen.
- The images will automatically be displayed at the optimum resolution matching the connected television.

Caution

- Adjust movie sound volume with the television. The sound volume cannot be adjusted with the camera.
- Before connecting or disconnecting the cable between the camera and television, turn off the camera and television.
- Depending on the television, part of the image displayed may be cut off.
- Do not connect any other device's output to the camera's < HDMI OUT > terminal. Doing so may cause a malfunction.
- Certain televisions may not display the images due to incompatibility.
- It may take some time before images are displayed. To avoid delay, set [HDMI resolution] to [1080p] (2).
- Touch-screen operations are not supported while the camera is connected to a television.

Protecting Images

- Protecting Individual Images via the Menu
- Specifying the Range of Images to Protect
- Protecting All Images in a Folder or on a Card

You can protect important images from being accidentally erased.

Caution

Note

- Once an image is protected, it cannot be erased by the camera's erase function. To
 erase a protected image, you must first cancel the protection.
- If you erase all the images (g), only the protected images will remain. This is convenient when you want to erase all unneeded images at once.

Protecting Individual Images via the Menu

1. Select [E: Protect images].


2. Select [Select images].



- 3. Select the image to protect.
 - Turn the < () > dial to select an image to protect.
- 4. Protect the image.



- Press < (x) > to protect the selected image, after which it will be labeled with a [m] icon (1) at the top of the screen.
- To cancel protection and clear the [Im] icon, press < (E) > again.
- To protect another image, repeat steps 3 and 4.

Note

You can protect individual images during playback by pressing the < RATE > button when [F: [RATE btn function] is assigned to [Protect] (@).

While looking at the images in the index display, you can specify the first and last images for a range to protect all the specified images at once.

1. Select [Select range].



- Select [Select range] in [E: Protect images].
- 2. Specify the range of images.



- Select the first image (start point).
- Next, select the last image (end point). The images in the specified range will be protected and the [Om] icon will appear.
- To select another image to protect, repeat step 2.



You can protect all the images in a folder or on a card at once.

- When you select [All images in folder] or [All images on card] in [E: Protect images], all the images in the folder or on the card will be protected.
- To cancel protection, select [Unprotect all images in folder] or [Unprotect all images on card].
- If the search conditions are set with [E: Set image search conditions] (2), the display will change to [All found images] and [Unprotect all found].



- If you select [All found images], all the images filtered by the search conditions will be protected.
- If you select [Unprotect all found], the protection of all the filtered images will be canceled.

Erasing Images

- Erasing Images Individually
- Selecting ($[\sqrt{}]$) Multiple Images to Erase Together
- Specifying the Range of Images to Erase
- Erasing All Images in a Folder or on a Card

You can either select and erase unnecessary images individually or erase them in one batch. Protected images (
②) will not be erased.



 Once an image is erased, it cannot be recovered. Make sure you no longer need the image before erasing it. To prevent important images from being erased accidentally, protect them.

Erasing Images Individually

- 1. Press the < >> button.
- 2. Select the image to be erased.
 - Turn the < () > dial to select the image to erase.
- 3. Press the $< \overline{\mathbb{m}} >$ button.



4. Erase the images.

JPEG/HEIF/RAW images or movies



Select [Erase].

RAW+JPEG/RAW+HEIF images



Select an option.

Note

● You can erase individual images during playback by pressing the < RATE > button when [[►]: [RATE btn function] is assigned to [Erase images] (②).

By adding checkmarks to the images to be erased, you can erase all those images at once.

1. Select [>: Erase images].



2. Select [Select and erase images].



3. Select an image.



- Turn the < () > dial to select an image to erase, then press < () >.
- To select another image to be erased, repeat step 3.

4. Erase the images.



• Press the < Q > button, then press [OK].

While looking at the images in the index display, you can specify the first and last images for a range to erase all the specified images at once.

1. Select [Select range].



- Select [Select range] in [E: Erase images].
- 2. Specify the range of images.



- Select the first image (start point).
- Next, select the last image (end point). A checkmark [v] will be appended to all the images within the range between first and last images.
- To select another image to be erased, repeat step 2.
- 3. Press the <Q > button.

4. Erase the images.



• Select [OK].

You can erase all the images in a folder or on a card at once.



- When you select [All images in folder] or [All images on card] in [E: Erase images], all the images in the folder or on the card will be erased.
- If the search conditions are set with [E: Set image search conditions] (
 (), the display will change to [All found images].

Eitrase images	2
Select and ense integer Select tange	
All found images	
	0001

 If you select [All found images], all the images filtered by the search conditions will be erased.

Note

You can use this feature to rotate the displayed image to the desired orientation.

1. Select [E: Rotate stills].



2. Select an image to rotate.



• Turn the < () > dial to select the image.

3. Rotate the image.



- Each time you press < (€)>, the image will rotate clockwise as follows: 90°→270°→0°.
- To rotate another image, repeat steps 2 and 3.

Note

- If the rotated image is not displayed in the rotated orientation during image playback, set [". Auto rotate] to [On].
- Movies cannot be rotated.

You can manually edit movie playback orientation information (which determines which side is up).

1. Select [E: Change mov rotate info].



2. Select a movie.



 Turn the < () > dial to select a movie with orientation information to change. 3. Change the orientation information.



 As you watch the camera and ▲ icon in the upper left of the screen, press < (arr) > to specify which side is up. Each press of < (arr) > edits the movie rotation information as follows: [ô] → [ô].

Caution

- Movies are played horizontally on the camera and via HDMI video output, regardless of the [Y: Add ', rotate info] setting (
).
- Movie orientation information of movies recorded with other cameras cannot be edited with this camera.

Rating Images

- Rating Individual Images With the < RATE > Button
- Rating Individual Images via the Menu
- Rating by Specifying the Range
- Rating All Images in a Folder or on a Card

You can rate images on a scale of 1–5 ([*]/[*]/[*]/[*]/[*]/[*]/[*]). This function is called rating. * Rating images can help you organize them.

Rating Individual Images With the < RATE > Button

- 1. Select the image to be rated.
 - Press the < >> button to switch to image playback.
 - Turn the < () > dial to select the image to be rated.
- 2. Rate the image.



- Press the < RATE > button to rate the image, after which a message is displayed on the screen.
- To rate another image, repeat steps 1 and 2.

Note

In the detailed settings for [Rating] in [E: ATE btn function], you can select the rating to apply.

1. Select [E: Rating].



2. Select [Select images].



3. Select the image to be rated.



Turn the < >> dial to select the image to be rated.

4. Rate the image.



- Press < (ii) >, and a blue highlight frame will appear as shown in the screen shown above.
- Turn the < () > dial to select a rating mark, then press < () >.
- When you append a rating mark to the image, the number beside the set rating will increase by one.
- To rate another image, repeat steps 3 and 4.

While looking at the images in the index display, you can specify the first and last images for a range to rate all the specified images at once.

1. Select [Select range].



- Select [Select range] in [E: Rating].
- 2. Specify the range of images.



- Select the first image (start point).
- Next, select the last image (end point).

A checkmark $[\checkmark]$ will be appended to all the images within the range between first and last images.

3. Press the <Q > button.

4. Rate the images.



You can rate all the images in a folder or on a card at once.



 Under [E: Rating], when you select [All images in folder] or [All images on card], all the images in the folder or on the card will be rated.

a lasting				10
Ore	e ite ar t		maps	
			•	
- Ce	-	-	ж	

- Turn the < is > dial to select a rating, then select [OK].
- When you are not rating images or canceling the rating, select [OFF].
- If the search conditions are set with [E: Set image search conditions] (
 (), the display will change to [All found images].

+ Ming			в
Select integra Select carge			
All found inte	(H) -		
		_	
		121	E C

 If you select [All found images], all the images filtered by the search conditions will be rated as specified.

Note Values next to ratings are displayed as [###] if more than 1,000 images have that rating. With []: Set image search conditions] and []: Image jump w/, jawe], you can display only the images given a specific rating.

Copying Images

- Copying Individual Images
- Copying a Range of Images

Copying All Images in a Folder or on a Card

You can copy the images on one card to the other card to save duplicates. All images in a folder or on a card can also be copied at the same time.

0	Caution
•	If the target folder or card already has an image with the same file number, [Skip image and continue], [Replace existing image], and [Cancel copy] are displayed. Select a copying method, then press < ((() >. • [Skip image and continue]: Any images with the same file number are skipped and not copied.
•	 [Replace existing image]: Any images with the same file number (including protected images) are overwritten. Overwriting images that had print order information ((2)) will require you to set the print order information again. Print order and image transfer information is not included in copies of images. Shooting is not possible during the copying process. Select [Cancel] before shooting.
	Note

- Copies of images have the same file name as the original image.
- With [Sel.Image], images in multiple folders cannot be copied at the same time. Select images to copy from one folder at a time.

1. Select [IN: Image copy].



2. Select [Sel.Image].



- Check the source and target card numbers and the free space on the target card.
- Select [Sel.Image], then press < (E) >.

3. Select the folder.



- (1) Number of images in folder
- (2) Lowest file number
- (3) Folder name
- (4) Highest file number
- Select the source folder, then press < (ET) >.
- When selecting the folder, refer to the images displayed at right of the screen.
- 4. Select an image to copy.



- (1) Total images selected
- Turn the < () > dial to select an image to copy, then press < (1) >.
- To select another image to copy, repeat step 4.

- 5. Press the $< \mathbb{Q} >$ button.
- 6. select [ОК].



- Check the target card, then select [OK].
- 7. Select the target folder.



- Select the folder to copy the image to, then press < (E) >.
- To create a new folder, select [Create folder].

8. Select [OK].



 Check the information about the source and target card, then select [OK].



 Results are displayed after copying is finished. Select [OK] to return to the screen in step 2. You can copy all specified images at once by selecting the first and last images in a range as you look at images in the index display.

1. Select [Range].

hergenit		-
Salimage	Nange	24.

2. Select the folder.



- Select the source folder, then press < (E) >.
- When selecting the folder, refer to the images displayed at right of the screen.

3. Specify the range of images.



- Select the first image (start point).
- Next, select the last image (end point). A checkmark [√] will be appended to all the images within the range between first and last images.
- To select another image to copy, repeat step 3.

You can copy all the images in a folder or on a card at once.

Selecting [Sel.] or [All images] in [E: Image copy] copies all the images it contains.



Setting Print Options

Selecting Images for Printing

DPOF (Digital Print Order Format) enables you to print images recorded on the card according to your printing instructions such as the image selection, quantity to print, etc. You can print multiple images in one batch or create a print order for a photofinisher. You can set the print settings such as print type, date imprinting, file number imprinting, etc. The print settings will be applied to all the images specified for printing. (They cannot be set individually for each image.)

Setting Print Options

1. Select [E: Print order].



2. Select [Set up].



3. Set the options as desired.

	€	Standard	Prints one image on one sheet.			
Print type	₿	Index	Multiple thumbnail images are printed on one sheet.			
	ÐĐ	Both	Prints both the standard and index prints.			
Date	On	[On] imprints the recorded date of the captured			[On] imprints the recorded date of the captured	
Date	Off image.					
File No.	On	[On] imprints the file number.				
1 110 110.	Off					

• Set [Print type], [Date], and [File No.] options.

4. Exit the setting.

Anistorie	8
-	Here .
Hart type Date	Stansant Url
The No.	
	030355

- Press the < MENU > button.
- Next, select [Sel.Image] or [Multiple] to specify the images to be printed.

Caution

- If you print an image with a large image size using the [Index] or [Both] setting (2), the index print may not be printed with certain printers. In this case, resize the image (2), then print the index print.
- Even if [Date] and [File No.] are set to [On], the date or file number may not be imprinted, depending on the print type setting and printer.
- With [Index] prints, the [Date] and [File No.] cannot both be set to [On] at the same time.
- When printing with DPOF, use the card for which print order specifications are set. You cannot print in the specified print order if you extract just the images from the card for printing.
- Certain DPOF-compliant printers and photofinishers may not be able to print the images as you specified. When using a printer, refer to the printer's instruction manual. When requesting service from a photofinisher, ask in advance.
- Do not use this camera to configure print settings for images with DPOF settings set up on another camera. All the print orders may be overwritten inadvertently. Also, the print order may not be possible, depending on the image type.

Selecting Images for Printing

Sel.Image



Select and specify the images individually.

Press the < MENU > button to save the print order to the card.

Standard/Both



Press < O > to print a copy of the displayed image. By turning the < \bigcirc > dial, you can set a print quantity of up to 99 copies.

Index



Press < (iii) > to add a checkmark [\checkmark] to the box. The image will be included in the index print.

Multiple

Select range

After order	8
Mark at in folder Deer all in folder Deer all in folder Mark all on nant Dear all en card	
	500 5

Select [Select range] in [Multiple]. Selecting the first and last images of the range marks all the images in the range with a checkmark [\checkmark], and one copy of each image will be specified for printing.

All images in a folder

Select [Mark all in folder] and select the folder. A print order for one copy of all the images in the folder will be specified.

If you select [Clear all in folder] and select the folder, the print order for all the images in the folder will be canceled.

All images on a card

If you select [Mark all on card], one copy of all the images on the card will be specified for printing.

If you select [Clear all on card], the print order will be cleared for all the images on the card.

If the search conditions are set with [E: Set image search conditions] ((2)) and you select [Multiple], the display will change to [Mark all found images] and [Clear all found images].

All found images

If you select [Mark all found images], one copy of all the images filtered by the search conditions will be specified for printing.

If you select [Clear all found images], all the print order of the filtered images will be cleared.

Caution

 RAW images or movies cannot be specified for printing. Note that RAW images or movies will not be specified for printing even if you specify all images with [Multiple].

Photobook Set-up

- Specifying Individual Images via the Menu
- Specifying the Image Range for a Photobook
- Specifying All Images in a Folder or Card

You can specify up to 998 images to be printed in a photobook. When you use EOS Utility (EOS software) to import images to a computer, the specified images for a photobook will be copied to a dedicated folder. This function is useful for ordering photobooks online.

Specifying Individual Images via the Menu

1. Select [E: Photobook Set-up].



2. Select [Select images].


3. Select the image to be specified.



- Use the < >> dial to select the image to be specified for a photobook, then press < (+) >.
- To select other images to be specified for a photobook, repeat step 3.

While looking at the images in the index display, you can specify the range (start point to end point) of images to be specified for a photobook at once.

1. Select [Multiple].



- Select [Multiple] in [E: Photobook Set-up].
- 2. Select [Select range].



3. Specify the range of images.



- Select the first image (start point).
- Next, select the last image (end point).

A checkmark $[\mathbf{v}]$ will be appended to all the images within the range between first and last images.

You can specify all the images in a folder or on a card at once for a photobook.



All images in the folder or on the card are specified for the photobook when you select [All images in folder] or [All images on card] in the [Multiple] option for [[]: Photobook Setup].

To cancel the selection, select [Clear all in folder] or [Clear all on card].

If the search conditions are set with [E: Set image search conditions] (②) and you select [Multiple], the display will change to [All found images] and [Clear all found images].



[All found images]: All images filtered by the search conditions are specified for the photobook.

[Clear all found images]: Clears photobook designation of all filtered images.

Caution

- RAW images or movies cannot be specified for the photobook. Note that RAW
 images or movies will not be specified for the photobook even if you specify all
 images with [Multiple].
- Do not use this camera to configure photobook settings for images with photobook settings set up on another camera. All the photobook settings may be overwritten inadvertently.

- Magnified View
- Processing Images with Specified Aspect Ratios
- RAW Image Processing Options

You can process RAW or CRAW images with the camera to create JPEG or HEIF images. RAW images are not affected, so different conditions can be applied to create JPEG or HEIF images.

You can also use Digital Photo Professional (EOS software) to process RAW images.

Caution

 Processing into HEIF is not available for RAW or CRAW images captured with multiple exposure, expanded ISO speed (L or H), or electronic shutter selected.

1. Select [F: RAW image processing].



2. Select an option, then select images.



You can select multiple images to process at once.

Select images



- Turn the < () > dial to select images to process, then press < () >.
- Press the < Q > button.

Select range



- Select the first image (start point).
- Next, select the last image (end point). A checkmark [v] will be appended to all the images within the range between first and last images.
- Press the < Q > button.
- To process other images, repeat this step.

3. Set the desired processing conditions.

Use shot settings

- Images are processed using image settings at the time of capture.
- Images captured with [D]: HDR PQ settings] set to [Enable] are processed to create HEIFs, and images captured with this function set to [Disable] are processed to create JPEGs.

Set up processing -> JPEG/Set up processing -> HEIF



- Use < 🔆 > to select an item.
- Turn the < >> or < >> dial to switch the setting.
- Press < (+) > to access the function setting screen.
- To return to the image settings at the time of shooting, press the < m > button.

Comparison screen

- You can switch between the [After change] and [Shot settings] screens by pressing the < INFO > button and turning the < () > dial.
- Items in orange on the [After change] screen have been modified since the time of capture.
- Press the < MENU > button to return to the processing conditions screen.

4. Save.



● When using [Set up processing→JPEG] or [Set up processing→HEIF], select [[']] (Save).

- Read the message and select [OK].
- To process other images, select [Yes] and repeat steps 2-4.
- 5. Select the image to display.



- Select [Original image] or [Processed img.].
- Your selected image is displayed.

Magnified View

You can magnify images displayed for [Set up processing \rightarrow JPEG] or [Set up processing \rightarrow HEIF] by pressing the < Q > button. The magnification ratio varies depending on the [Image quality] setting. With < $\stackrel{*}{\ast}$ >, you can scroll around the magnified image. To cancel the magnified view, press the < Q > button again.

Caution

 Results of processing with [Digital Lens Optimizer] set to [High] are only applied in magnified view. Results are not applied in normal display.

Processing Images with Specified Aspect Ratios

JPEG or HEIF images at the specified aspect ratio are created when you process RAW images shot with [C: Cropping/aspect ratio] (②) set to [1:1 (aspect ratio)], [4:3 (aspect ratio)], or [16:9 (aspect ratio)].

RAW Image Processing Options

X±0 Brightness adjustment

You can adjust the image brightness up to ±1 stop in 1/3-stop increments.

Ém White balance (2)

You can select the white balance. Selecting [AWB] enables you to select [Auto: Ambience priority] or [Auto: White priority]. If you select [[]], you can set the color temperature.

Image: Picture Style (2)

You can select the Picture Style. You can adjust the sharpness, contrast, and other parameters.

* [3.4], [3.4], [3.4], and [3.4] are not available when [Set up processing HEIF] is set.

You can adjust clarity in a range of −4 to +4. * Not available when [Set up processing→HEIF] is set.

🔹 🕼 Auto Lighting Optimizer (🕝) + 📽 Adj face lighting

You can specify Auto Lighting Optimizer details. With automatic, optimal adjustment of lighting on faces, you can effectively correct images captured with oblique lighting or illuminated by flash.

* Not available when [Set up processing → HEIF] is set.

Caution

When adjustment of face lighting is set

- Suitable adjustment may not be possible in some shooting situations unless faces can be detected in detail and are not too dark.
- Noise may increase.
- Adjustment may be less effective at high ISO speeds.

You can set the noise reduction processing for high ISO speeds. If the effect is difficult to discern, magnify the image (2).

Image quality (⁽²⁾)

You can set the image quality when creating a JPEG or HEIF image.

You can select either sRGB or Adobe RGB. Since the camera screen is not compatible with Adobe RGB, the difference in the image will hardly be perceptible when either color space is set.

* [[HDRPO]] is displayed when [Set up processing -- HEIF] is set but is not an option for selection.

III Lens aberr correction

• OFF Peripheral illum corr (2)

A phenomenon that makes the image corners look darker due to the lens characteristics can be corrected. If **[Enable]** is set, the corrected image will be displayed. If the effect is difficult to discern, magnify the image ((g)) and check the four corners. Less correction is applied than for maximum correction with Digital Photo Professional (EOS software, (g)). If the effects of correction are not apparent, use Digital Photo Professional to apply the peripheral illumination correction.

• HOFF Distortion correction (2)

Image distortion due to lens characteristics can be corrected. If [Enable] is set, the corrected image will be displayed. The image periphery will be trimmed in the corrected image.

Since the image resolution may look slightly lower, adjust the sharpness with the Picture Style's sharpness parameter setting as necessary.

© OFF Digital Lens Optimizer (()

Correct lens aberration, diffraction, and low-pass filter-induced loss of resolution by applying optical design values. To check the effect of setting this option to [High] or [Standard], use magnified view (g). Without magnification, the effect when Digital Lens Optimizer is set to [High] is not applied. Selecting [High] or [Standard] corrects both chromatic aberration and diffraction, although these options are not displayed.

MOFF Chromatic aberr corr (()

Chromatic aberrations (color fringing along the subject's outline) due to the lens characteristics can be corrected. If [Enable] is set, the corrected image will be displayed. If the effect is difficult to discern, magnify the image ([g]).

• ⋘ OFF Diffraction correction ()

The diffraction by the lens aperture degrading the image sharpness can be corrected. If [Enable] is set, the corrected image will be displayed. If the effect is difficult to discern, magnify the image (②).

Caution

- Processing RAW images in the camera will not produce exactly the same results as processing RAW images with Digital Photo Professional (EOS software).
- If you perform [Brightness adjustment], noise, banding, etc. may be intensified with the effects of adjustment.
- When [Digital Lens Optimizer] is set, noise may be intensified together with the effects of correction.
- When [Digital Lens Optimizer] is set, image edges may be emphasized, under some shooting conditions. Adjust sharpness of the Picture Style as needed.
- Processing with [Digital Lens Optimizer] set to [High] may take some time.

Note

 Effects of lens aberration correction vary by lens and by shooting conditions. Also, the effect may be difficult to discern depending on the lens used, shooting conditions, etc. You can resize a JPEG or HEIF image to reduce the pixel count and save it as a new image. Resizing is available for $L,\,M,\,$ or S1 JPEGs or HEIFs (in sizes except S2), including those captured in RAW+JPEG and RAW+HEIF shooting. S2 images and RAW images or movies cannot be resized.









• Turn the < () > dial to select the image to resize.

3. Select the desired image size.



- Press < (1) > to display the image sizes.
- Select the desired image size (1).

4. Save.



- Select [OK] to save the resized image.
- Check the destination folder and image file number, then select [OK].
- To resize another image, repeat steps 2 to 4.

You can crop a captured JPEG image and save it as another image. Cropping is available for JPEG or HEIF images. RAW images and frame-grab images from 4K movies cannot be cropped.

1. Select [E: Cropping].



2. Select an image.



- Turn the < () > dial to select the image to crop.
- Press < (ET) > to display the cropping frame.

3. Set the cropping frame.



• The image area within the cropping frame will be cropped.

• Resizing the cropping frame size

Turn the $< \bigcup_{i \in J} >$ dial to resize the cropping frame size. The smaller the cropping frame, the more magnified the cropped image will look.

Correcting tilt

You can correct image tilt by $\pm 10^{\circ}$. Turn the < \bigcirc > dial to select [\bigcirc], then press < m >. While checking tilt relative to the grid, turn the < \bigcirc > dial (in 0.1° increments) or tap the left or right arrow (in 0.5° increments) in the upper left of the screen to correct tilt. After completing the tilt correction, press < m >.

Changing the cropping frame aspect ratio and orientation

Turn the < () > dial and select [[III]]. Each press of < () > changes the cropping frame aspect ratio.

Moving the cropping frame

Use < 🔆 > to move the cropping frame vertically or horizontally.

4. Check the image area to be cropped.



● Turn the < () > dial to select [...], then press < () >. The image area to crop is displayed.

5. Save.



- Turn the < >> dial to select []], then press < <>>.
- Select [OK] to save the cropped image.
- Check the destination folder and image file number, then select [OK].
- To crop another image, repeat steps 2 to 5.

Caution

- The position and size of the cropping frame may change depending on the angle set for tilt correction.
- Once a cropped image is saved, it cannot be cropped again or resized.
- Available aspect ratios vary depending on whether you use [E: Cropping] or [.....: Add cropping information].

Converting HEIF to JPEG

- Converting Individual Images
- Specifying the Range of Images to Convert

You can convert HEIF images captured in HDR shooting and save them as JPEG images.

Note

 JPEGs converted from HEIF images are labeled with [JPEG1] (when captured on this camera with firmware Ver. 1.6.0 or later installed).

Converting Individual Images

1. Select [\blacktriangleright : HEIF \rightarrow JPEG conversion].



2. Select [Select images].



3. Select an image.



- Turn the < ② > dial to select a HEIF image to convert to JPEG, then press the < ' ⊕ > button.
- To select another image to convert, repeat step 3.
- Press the < Q > button to convert to JPEG.





- Select [OK] to save the JPEG image.
- If there are other images for conversion, select [Yes].

5. Select the images to use for display.



- Select [Original image] to use the original HEIF images for display.
- Select [Processed img.] to use the converted JPEG images for display.

Note

- Some scenes may look different after conversion (if original and converted images are compared).
- Conversion is not available for cropped images, or for frame-grab images from 4K movies.

1. Select [Select range].



2. Specify the range of images.



- Select the first image (start point).
- Next, select the last image (end point). A checkmark [v] will be appended to all the images within the range between first and last images.
- To select other images, repeat step 2.
- 3. Press the < Q > button.

4. Save.



- Select [OK] to save the JPEG image.
- If there are other images for conversion, select [Yes].
- 5. Select the images to use for display.



- Select [Original image] to use the original HEIF images for display.
- Select [Processed img.] to use the converted JPEG images for display.

Note

- Some scenes may look different after conversion (if original and converted images are compared).
- Conversion is not available for cropped images, or for frame-grab images from 4K movies.

You can play back the images on the card as an automatic slide show.

- 1. Specify the images to be played back.
 - To play back all the images on the card, go to step 2.
 - If you want to specify the images to be played back in the slide show, filter the images with [E]: Set image search conditions] (2).
- 2. Select [E: Slide show].



3. Set the playback as desired.



- Select [Set up].
- Set the [Display time] and [Repeat] (repeated playback) settings for the still photos.
- After completing the settings, press the < MENU > button.

Side show	
Cilplay time	(1) (45)
	196
	1945 1945
	105

Display time



Side show		
None.	a standard and a standard	
	District 1	

4. Start the slide show.



- Select [Start].
- After [Loading image...] is displayed, the slide show will start.

5. Exit the slide show.

 To exit the slide show and return to the setting screen, press the <MENU > button.

Note

- To pause the slide show, press < ((i) >. During pause, []]) will be displayed in the upper left of the screen. Press < ((ii) > again to resume the slide show.
- During the automatic playback of still photos, you can press the < INFO > button to switch the display format (2).
- During movie playback, you can adjust the sound volume by turning the < 200% > dial.
- During auto playback or when playback is paused, you can turn the < >> dial to view another image.
- During auto playback, auto power off will not take effect.
- The display time may differ depending on the image.

Clearing the Search Conditions

You can filter image display according to your search conditions. After setting the image search conditions, you can play back and display only the found images. You can also protect, rate, play a slide show, erase, and apply other operations to filtered images.





2. Set the search conditions.



- Turn the < () > dial to select an option.
- Turn the $< \frac{1}{2} >$ dial to set the option.
- A checkmark [v] (1) is appended to the left of the option. (Specified as the search condition.)
- If you select the option and press the < INFO > button, the checkmark [√] will be removed (which cancels the search condition).

Option	Description	
★ Rating	Displays images with the selected (rating) condition.	
⊘ Date	Displays images taken on the selected shooting date.	
Folder	Displays images in the selected folder.	
Om Protect	Displays images with the selected (protect) condition.	
Type of file (1)	Displays images of the selected file type.	
Type of file (2)		

3. Apply the search conditions.



- Press < (1) > and read the message displayed.
- Select [OK]. The search condition is applied.
- 4. Display the found images.



Press the < > button.
 Only the images that match the set conditions (filtered) will be played back.

When the images are filtered for display, the screen will have an outer yellow frame (2).

Caution

If no images match the search conditions, < (a) > cannot be pressed in step 3.

Note

- Search conditions may be cleared after operations involving camera power or card changes and editing, adding, or erasing images.
- Auto power off time may be extended while the [E: Set image search conditions] screen is displayed.

Clearing the Search Conditions

Access the screen in step 2, then press the < m > button to clear all the search conditions.

In single-image display, you can turn the < [20] > dial to jump through the images forward or backward according to the jump method set.

1. Select [E: Image jump w/



2. Select the jump method.



Note

- With [Jump images by the specified number], you can turn the < 2003 > dial to select the number of images to jump by.
- With [Display by image rating], turn the < [∞]/₂ > dial to select the rating ([∞]/₂). Selecting ★ will show all rated images as you browse.

3. Browse by jumping.



- (1) Jump method
- (2) Playback position
- Press the < > button.
- In single-image display, turn the < 200 > dial. You can browse by the jump method set.

You can switch the functions assigned to these dials, as used on the image playback screen.

1. Select [E: Switch #4/7.



2. Select an option.



- [Disable]
 Image jump
 Magnify/Index view
- [Enable]

Magnify/Index view

Note

 Corresponding icons in menus and on screens such as the Quick Control and Magnify/Reduce screen are changed accordingly. You can assign image rating, protection, or erasure to the < RATE > button.

1. Select [E: RATE btn function].



2. Select an option.



[★] Rating

Assigns rating to the < RATE > button. (Default setting.) You can press the < \bigcirc > button to select the rating to use. During playback, you can rate images or clear ratings by pressing the <RATE > button.

[Om] Protect

Assigns protection to the < RATE > button. During playback, you can protect images or clear protection by pressing the < RATE > button.

[m] Erase images

Assigns erasure to the < RATE > button. During playback, you can erase images by pressing the < RATE > button.

Mistogram

You can specify screens and accompanying information displayed during image playback.

1. Select [IM: Playback information display].



2. Add a checkmark $[\sqrt{}]$ next to the number of screens to display.



- Select numbers with the < () > dial.
- Press < (s) > to add a checkmark [√].
- Repeat these steps to add a checkmark [√] to the number of each screen to display, then select [OK].
- Your selected information can be accessed by pressing the < INFO > button during playback, or by using < * > when shooting information is displayed.



The histograms show signal levels across the tonal range. Brightness display (for checking the general exposure level and overall gradation) and RGB display (for checking saturation and gradation of red, green, and blue) are available. You can switch the histogram displayed by pressing the < INFO > button when [INFO] is displayed in the lower left of the [E]: Playback information display] screen.
[Brightness] display

This histogram is a graph showing the distribution of the image's brightness level, with the horizontal axis indicating the brightness level (darker on the left and brightner on the right) and the vertical axis indicating the pixel count at each brightness level. The more pixels there are toward the left, the darker the image, and the more pixels there are toward the right, the brighter the image. If there are too many pixels on the left, detail in shadows will be lost, and if there are too many pixels on the right, detail in highlights will be lost. The gradation in-between will be reproduced. By checking the image and its brightness histogram, you can see the exposure level inclination and the overall gradation.

Sample histograms



Dark image



Normal brightness



Bright image

[RGB] display

This histogram is a graph showing the distribution of each primary color's brightness level in the image (RGB or red, green, and blue), with the horizontal axis indicating the color's brightness level (darker on the left and brighter on the right) and the vertical axis indicating the pixel count at each color brightness level. The more pixels there are toward the left, the darker and less prominent the color, and the more pixels there are toward the right, the brighter and denser the color. If there are too many pixels on the left, the corresponding color information will be lacking, and if there are too many pixels on the right, the color will be too saturated, without gradation. By checking the image's RGB histogram, you can see the color's saturation and gradation conditions, as well as the white balance bias. You can specify blinking display of overexposed highlights on the playback screen. To obtain more detailed gradation in the blinking areas where you want the gradation to be faithfully reproduced, set the exposure compensation to a negative amount and shoot again for a better result.

1. Select [E: Highlight alert].

0 M 8 H	4 R 4
Regitant information	n display
All point class	Engage
Movie play count	Rectane
HDHS +DR putput	DH

2. Select [Enable].



AF Point Display

You can display the AF points that were used to focus, which will be outlined in red on the playback screen. If automatic AF point selection is set, multiple AF points may be displayed.

1. Select [>: AF point disp.].

4 0	
Country .	-
Disative	
DI	
Rectime	
Dai:	
	e di udie Lisable Disable Disable Dis Ret time Dis

2. Select [Enable].



You can display a grid over still photos shown in single-image display on the playback screen. This function is convenient for checking the image's vertical or horizontal tilt as well as composition.

1. Select [E: Playback grid].

ding sale
atie atte
24 C
c tame

2. Select an option.



Movie Play Count

You can select how time is displayed on the movie playback screen.

1. Select [>: Movie play count].

	4 8	٠
· · · · ·		4.4
Regises inhereator	a disalay	
Highlight sint	Disable	
Ar point day	Distante	
Complex stay amount	Bar Sena	
NUMBER OF THE PARTY OF THE PART	DHI .	
Contraction of the local division of the loc		

2. Select an option.



Rec time

Displays the recording or playback time during movie playback.



• Time code

Displays the time code during movie playback.



Note

- Time codes are always recorded to movie files (except for High Frame Rate movies set to [Free run]), regardless of the [Movie rec count] setting.
- The [Movie play count] setting in [1]: Time code] is linked to the [1]: Movie play count], so that these settings always match.
- The "frame" count is not displayed during movie recording or playback.

HDMI HDR Output

You can view RAW or HEIF images in HDR by connecting the camera to an HDR TV.

1. Select [E: HDMI HDR output].

O // O H	4 A +
Contractor of Contractor	and the
Highlight sint	Unable
All point clas.	Digate
Plopting grid	Der .
NEWS 1992 COURT	DH
A DESCRIPTION OF TAXABLE	

2. Select [On].



Note

- Make sure the HDR TV is set up for HDR input. For details on how to switch inputs on the TV, refer to the TV manual.
- Depending on the TV used, images may not look as expected.
- On HDR TVs, some information may not be displayed.
- Quick Control RAW processing of displayed images is recommended if you will process RAW images while viewing HDMI HDR output.

Wireless Features

This chapter describes how to connect the camera to a smartphone, computer, FTP server, or Web service wirelessly via Bluetooth or Wi-Fi and send images, as well as how to use a wireless remote control or GPS device.

Caution

Important

- Note that Canon cannot be held liable for any loss or damage caused by erroneous wireless communication settings when using the camera. In addition, Canon cannot be held liable for any other loss or damage caused by use of the camera. When using wireless communication functions, establish appropriate security at your own risk and discretion. Canon cannot be held liable for any loss or damage caused by unauthorized access or other security breaches.
- <u>Tab Menus: Wireless Features</u>
- <u>Wi-Fi/Bluetooth Connection</u>
- <u>Connecting to a Smartphone</u>
- · Connecting to a Computer via Wi-Fi
- Sending Images to a Web Service
- Image Transfer to FTP Servers
- <u>Wi-Fi Connection via Access Points</u>
- <u>Connecting to a Wireless Remote Control</u>
- <u>Reconnecting via Wi-Fi</u>
- <u>Registering Multiple Connection Settings</u>
- <u>Airplane Mode</u>
- Wi-Fi Settings
- Bluetooth Settings
- <u>Nickname</u>
- GPS Device Settings
- <u>Changing or Deleting Connection Settings</u>
- <u>Resetting Communication Settings</u>
- View Info Screen
- <u>Virtual Keyboard Operations</u>
- <u>Responding to Error Messages</u>
- <u>Wireless Communication Function Precautions</u>
- Security
- Checking Network Settings
- <u>Wireless Communication Status</u>

• Wireless features 1

O WEEK	- W - 1	9 - 4 87875	
Wi-Fi/Bluetooth com	NECTION		(1)
Airplane mode	Off		(2)
Wi-Fi tettings	Disable	- ie-	(3)
Bustooth settings	Disable		(4)
Nickname	105		(5)
GPS device settings.			(6)
truge transfer			(7)

- (1) Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection
- (2) Airplane mode
- (3) Wi-Fi settings
- (4) Bluetooth settings
- (5) Nickname
- (6) GPS device settings
- (7) Image transfer
- Wireless features 2



(1) Reset communication settings

Caution

- Wireless communication is not available while the camera is connected via an interface cable to a computer or other device.
- Other devices, such as computers, cannot be used with the camera by connecting them with an interface cable while the camera is connected to devices via Wi-Fi.
- The camera cannot be connected via Wi-Fi if there is no card in it (except for [□], []], or [.]).
- The Wi-Fi connection will be terminated if you set the camera's power to < OFF >, or open the card slot cover or battery compartment cover (but FTP transfer
- connections will continue even with the power set to < OFF >).
- With a Wi-Fi connection established, the camera's auto power off does not function.

1. Select [((†)): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].



2. Select an option for the camera to connect to.



Connect to smartphone (😰)

Control the camera remotely and browse images on the camera over a Wi-Fi connection by using the dedicated Camera Connect app on smartphones or tablets (collectively referred to as "smartphones" in this manual). After pairing the camera with a smartphone supporting Bluetooth low energy technology (hereafter, "Bluetooth"), you only need to use the smartphone to connect via Wi-Fi.

Remote control (EOS Utility) ()

Connect the camera to a computer via Wi-Fi and operate the camera remotely using EOS Utility (EOS software). Images on the camera can also be sent to the computer.

H Transfer images to FTP server (2)

Your images can be transferred to an FTP server on the network the camera is connected to.

● Upload to Web service (②)

Images can be sent automatically to the image canon cloud service for Canon customers after you complete member registration (free of charge). Original files of images sent to image.canon are retained for 30 days, without storage limitations, and can be downloaded to computers or transferred to other Web services.

Sonnect to Wireless Remote (2)

This camera can also be connected to Wireless Remote Control BR-E1 (sold separately) via Bluetooth for remote control shooting.

- Turning on Bluetooth and Wi-Fi on a Smartphone
- Installing Camera Connect on a Smartphone
- Connecting to a Bluetooth-Compatible Smartphone via Wi-Fi
- Camera Connect Functions
- Maintaining a Wi-Fi Connection When the Camera Is Off
- Canceling the Pairing
- Wi-Fi Connection without Using Bluetooth
- Automatic Image Transfer as You Shoot
- Sending Images to a Smartphone from the Camera
- Terminating Wi-Fi Connections
- Settings to Make Images Viewable from Smartphones

You can do the following after pairing the camera with a Bluetooth-compatible smartphone.

- Geotag images with GPS information acquired by the smartphone (2).

You can also do the following after connecting the camera to a smartphone via Wi-Fi.

- Browse and save images on the camera from a smartphone (2).

Turn on Bluetooth and Wi-Fi from the smartphone settings screen. Note that pairing with the camera is not possible from the smartphone's Bluetooth settings screen.



The dedicated app Camera Connect (free of charge) must be installed on the smartphone on which Android or iOS is installed.

- Use the latest version of the smartphone OS.
- Camera Connect can be installed from Google Play or App Store. Google Play or App Store can also be accessed using the QR codes that appear when the camera is paired or connected via Wi-Fi to a smartphone.

Note

- For the operating system versions supported by Camera Connect, refer to the download site of Camera Connect.
- Sample screens and other details in this guide may not match the actual user interface elements after camera firmware updates or updates to Camera Connect, Android, or iOS.

Steps on the camera (1)

1. Select [('t'): Wi-Fi settings].



2. Select [Enable].



3. Select [((1)): Bluetooth settings].



4. Select [Enable].



5. Select [Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].



6. Select [Connect to smartphone].



7. Select [Add a device to connect to].



8. Select an option.



- If Camera Connect is already installed, select [Do not display].
- If Camera Connect is not installed, select [Android] or [iOS], scan the displayed QR code with the smartphone to access Google Play or App Store and install Camera Connect.

9. Select [Pair via Bluetooth].



• Press < (ET) > to start pairing.



• To pair with a different smartphone after pairing with one initially, select [OK] on the screen shown above.

Steps on the smartphone (1)

10. Start Camera Connect.



11. Tap the camera for pairing.



- In Android, go to Steps on the camera (2).
- 12. Tap [Pair] (iOS only).



Steps on the camera (2)

13. select [ОК].



14. Press the < (1) button.



 Pairing is now complete, and the camera is connected to the smartphone via Bluetooth.



• A Bluetooth icon appears on the main Camera Connect screen.

Caution

- The camera cannot be connected to two or more devices at the same time via Bluetooth. To switch to a different smartphone for the Bluetooth connection, see <u>Changing or Deleting Connection Settings</u>.
- Bluetooth connection consumes battery power even after the camera's auto power off is activated. Therefore, the battery level may be low when you use the camera.

Troubleshooting pairing

Keeping pairing records for previously paired cameras on your smartphone will
prevent it from pairing with this camera. Before you try pairing again, remove
pairing records for previously paired cameras from your smartphone's Bluetooth
settings screen.

Note

 With a Bluetooth connection established, you can operate the camera to send images to the smartphone (2).

Steps on the smartphone (2)

15. Tap a Camera Connect function.



- In iOS, tap [Join] when a message is displayed to confirm camera connection.
- For the Camera Connect functions, see <u>Camera Connect Functions</u>.
- When a Wi-Fi connection is established, the screen for the selected function will appear.

U Mil	ñ 🕫
Control Control	nenteet
Decer We fit	Next AD-FLand Network to Another Settling surgery

• [Wi-Fi on] is displayed on the camera screen.



 The Bluetooth and Wi-Fi icons are lit on the main Camera Connect screen.

The Wi-Fi connection to a Bluetooth-compatible smartphone is now complete.

- For how to terminate the Wi-Fi connection, see <u>Terminating Wi-Fi Connections</u>.
- Terminating the Wi-Fi connection will switch the camera to the Bluetooth connection.
- To reconnect via Wi-Fi, start Camera Connect and tap the function you will use.

[^UWi-Fi on] screen

Disconnect,exit

Terminates the Wi-Fi connection.

Confirm set.

• You can check the settings.

Error details

• When a Wi-Fi connection error occurs, you can check the details of the error.

Images on camera

- Images can be browsed, deleted, or rated.
- Images can be saved on a smartphone.

Remote live view shooting

Enables remote shooting as you view a live image on the smartphone.

Auto transfer

Enables camera and app setting adjustment for automatic transfer of your shots (2).

Bluetooth remote controller

- Enables remote control of the camera from a smartphone paired via Bluetooth. (Not available when connected via Wi-Fi.)
- Auto power off is disabled while you are using the Bluetooth remote controller feature.

Location information

Not supported on this camera.

Camera settings

Camera settings can be changed.

Even when the camera power switch is set to < OFF>, as long as it is paired to a smartphone via Bluetooth, you can use the smartphone to connect via Wi-Fi and browse images on the camera or perform other operations.

If you prefer not to connect via Wi-Fi to the camera when it is off, either set [Airplane mode] to [On] (愛) or set [Bluetooth settings] to [Disable].



Caution

 This function can no longer be used if the wireless settings are reset or the smartphone connection information is erased. Cancel pairing with a smartphone as follows.

1. Select [(۱): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].

W Allburtooth to	remettion
Atplate mode	011
Wirfinettings	Diable
Racticeth settings	Evalue
Netrane	ARE .

2. Select [Connect to smartphone].



- If the history (𝔅) is displayed, switch screens with the < > < 5, > dial or < ☆ >.
- 3. Select [Edit/delete device].



4. Select the smartphone to cancel pairing with.



- Smartphones currently paired with the camera are labeled [8].
- 5. Select [Delete connection information].



6. Select [OK].



- $7. \ \ {\rm Clear \ the \ camera \ information \ on \ the \ smartphone.}$
 - In the smartphone's Bluetooth setting menu, clear the camera information registered on the smartphone.

Steps on the camera (1)

- 1. Set Wi-Fi settings to [Enable].
 - See steps 1–2 in <u>Connecting to a Bluetooth-Compatible Smartphone</u> via Wi-Fi.
- 2. Select [('1'): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].



3. Select [Connect to smartphone].



If the history (i) is displayed, switch screens with the <) > < ↓ > dial or < ☆ >.

4. Select [Add a device to connect to].



5. Select an option.



• If Camera Connect is already installed, select [Do not display].

6. Select [Connect via Wi-Fi].



7. Check the SSID (network name) and password.



• Check the SSID (1) and Password (2) displayed on the camera screen.



Steps on the smartphone

8. Operate the smartphone to establish a Wi-Fi connection.

Smartphone's screen (sample)



- Activate the smartphone's Wi-Fi function, then tap the SSID (network name) checked in step 7 in <u>Steps on the camera (1)</u>.
- For the password, enter the password checked in step 7 in <u>Steps on</u> the camera (1).
- 9. Start Camera Connect and tap the camera to connect to via Wi-Fi.



Steps on the camera (2)

10. select [ОК].



 To specify viewable images, press the < INFO > button. Configure as described in <u>Settings to Make Images Viewable from Smartphones</u>, starting in step 5.



 The main window of Camera Connect will be displayed on the smartphone.

The Wi-Fi connection to a smartphone is now complete.

- For how to terminate the Wi-Fi connection, see <u>Terminating Wi-Fi Connections</u>.
- To reconnect via Wi-Fi, see <u>Reconnecting via Wi-Fi</u>.

Note

Your shots can be automatically sent to a smartphone. Before following these steps, make sure the camera and smartphone are connected via Wi-Fi.

1. Select [('t'): Wi-Fi settings].

WA Following off and	witting.
Aspigate mode	-041
WHIT withings	Enable
Swetcosth settings.	Example:
Nickname	405

2. Select [Send to smartphone after shot].



3. Set [Auto send] to [Enable].



4. Set [Size to send].



5. Take the picture.
You can use the camera to send images to a smartphone paired via Bluetooth (Android devices only) or connected via Wi-Fi.

1. Switch to playback.



2. Press the < Q > button.



3. Select [Send images to smartphone].



- If you perform this step while connected via Bluetooth, a message is displayed, and the connection switches to a Wi-Fi connection.
- 4. Select sending options and send the images.

(1) Sending images individually

1. Select an image to send.



- Use the < () > dial to select an image to send, then press < () >.
- You can turn the < 5, is dial counterclockwise to select the image using the index display.
- 2. Select [Send img shown].



- In [Size to send], you can select the image sending size.
- When sending movies, you can select the image quality of movies to send in [Quality to send].

(2) Sending multiple selected images

1. Press < (1) >.



2. Select [Send selected].



3. Select images to send.



Use the < () > dial to select images to send, then press < () >.



- You can turn the < 3 dial counterclockwise to switch to select the images from 3-image display. To return to single-image display, turn the < 3 dial clockwise.
- After selecting the images to send, press the < Q > button.

4. Select [Size to send].



• On the displayed screen, select an image size.

Sale to send	
Conjointal kine	= 14
Contraction of the	
	10 105

• When sending movies, select the image quality in [Quality to send].

5. Select [Send].



(3) Sending a specified range of images

1. Press < 1.



2. Select [Send range].



3. Specify the range of images.



- Select the first image (start point).
- Select the last image (end point).
- To cancel the selection, repeat this step.
- To change the number of images in index display, turn the < [§] dial.

4. Confirm the range.

- Press the < Q > button.
- 5. Select [Size to send].



On the displayed screen, select an image size.



- When sending movies, select the image quality in [Quality to send].
- 6. Select [Send].



(4) Sending all images on the card

1. Press < (1) >.



2. Select [Send all card].



3. Select [Size to send].



• On the displayed screen, select an image size.

Sale to send	
Conjointal kine	= 14
Contraction of the	
	10 105

- When sending movies, select the image quality in [Quality to send].
- 4. Select [Send].



(5) Sending images that match the search conditions

Send all the images that match the search conditions set in [Set image search conditions] at once. For details on [Set image search conditions], see <u>Setting Image Search</u> <u>Conditions</u>.

1. Press < (1) >.



2. Select [Send all found].



3. Select [Size to send].



• On the displayed screen, select an image size.

Sale to send	
Conjointal kine	= 14
Contraction of the	
	10 105

- When sending movies, select the image quality in [Quality to send].
- 4. Select [Send].



Ending image transfer

Sending images from the camera when paired via Bluetooth (Android devices only)



Press the < MENU > button on the image transfer screen.



Select [OK] to end image transfer and the Wi-Fi connection.

Sending images from the camera over a Wi-Fi connection



- Press the < MENU > button on the image transfer screen.
- To terminate the Wi-Fi connection, see <u>Terminating Wi-Fi Connections</u>.

Caution

 During the image transfer operation, a picture cannot be taken even if the camera's shutter button is pressed.

Note

- You can cancel the image transfer by selecting [Cancel] during the transfer.
- You can select up to 999 files at a time.
- With a Wi-Fi connection established, disabling the smartphone's power saving function is recommended.
- Selecting the reduced size for still photos applies to all still photos sent at that time. Note that S2 size still photos are not reduced.
- Selecting compression for movies applies to all movies sent at that time. Note that ^{EFH} FHD 2300 [IPB].⁺ movies are not reduced.
- When you use a battery to power the camera, make sure it is fully charged.

Perform either of the following operations.

On the Camera Connect screen, tap [X].



On the [GWi-Fi on] screen, select [Disconnect,exit].



- If the [Wi-Fi on] screen is not displayed, select [(1): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].
- Select [Disconnect,exit], then select [OK] on the confirmation screen.

Images can be specified after the Wi-Fi connection is terminated.

1. Select [(۱): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].

W Artillustooth co	resulting and the
Atplate mode	00
Wi fi settines	Enable
Ractionth settings	Disable
Nickname	85
GPS device within	
intrage transfer	

2. Select [Connect to smartphone].



- If the history (𝔅) is displayed, switch screens with the < > < 5, > dial or < ☆ >.
- 3. Select [Edit/delete device].



4. Select a smartphone.



- Select the name of the smartphone on which you want to make the images viewable.
- 5. Select [Viewable imgs].



6. Select an option.



Select [OK] to access the setting screen.

[All images]

All images stored on the card become viewable.

[Images from past days]



- Specify viewable images on the shooting-date basis. Images shot up to nine days ago can be specified.
- When [Images shot in past days] is selected, images shot up to the specified number of days before the current date become viewable.
 Use the [A] [V] keys to specify the number of days, then press < (#) > to confirm the selection.
- Once you select [OK], the viewable images are set.

Caution

 If [Viewable imgs] is set to any setting other than [All images], remote shooting is not possible.

[Select by rating]



- Specify viewable images depending on whether a rating is appended (or not appended) or by the type of rating.
- Once you select the type of rating, the viewable images are set.



[File number range] (Select range)

- Select the first and last images from images arranged by the file number to specify the viewable images.
 - 1.Press < (1) > to display the image selection screen. To select images, use the < (1) > dial or other controls.

You can turn the < all counterclockwise to select the image using the index display.

- 2.Select an image as the starting point (1).
- 3.Use the < () > dial to select an image as the ending point (2).
- 4.Select [OK].

Caution

- If the Wi-Fi connection is terminated while recording a movie with remote shooting, the following will occur.
 - · Any movie recording in progress in movie recording mode will continue.
 - · Any movie recording in progress in still photo shooting mode will end.
- With a Wi-Fi connection to a smartphone established, certain functions are unavailable.
- In remote shooting, the AF speed may become slower.
- Depending on the communication status, image display or shutter release timing may be delayed.
- When saving images to a smartphone, you cannot take a picture even if you press the camera's shutter button. Also, the camera screen may turn off.

Note

 With a Wi-Fi connection established, disabling the smartphone's power saving function is recommended.

- Operating the Camera Using EOS Utility
- Direct Transfer
- Creating and Registering Captions

This section describes how to connect the camera to a computer via Wi-Fi and perform camera operations using EOS Utility (EOS software). Install the latest version of EOS Utility on the computer before setting up a Wi-Fi connection.

For computer operating instructions, refer to the computer user manual.

Operating the Camera Using EOS Utility

Using EOS Utility, you can import images from the camera, control the camera, and perform other operations.

Steps on the camera (1)

- 1. Set Wi-Fi settings to [Enable].
 - See steps 1–2 in <u>Connecting to a Bluetooth-Compatible Smartphone</u> via Wi-Fi.
- 2. Select [('Ţ'): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].

0 // E	4 A +
We we want to the second second	relation
Atplate mode	Del Ing.
Wi fir settimes	Enable
Raetooth settings	Deable
Netrane	101
GPS dovice withing	
intrage transfer	

3. Select [Remote control (EOS Utility)].



- 4. Select [Add a device to connect to].



5. Check the SSID (network name) and password.



• Check the SSID (1) and password (2) displayed on the camera screen.

Steps on the computer (1)

 $\textbf{6.} \hspace{0.1 cm} \textbf{Select the SSID, then enter the password.}$

Computer's screen (sample)



- On the computer's network setting screen, select the SSID checked in step 5 in <u>Steps on the camera (1)</u>.
- For the password, enter the password checked in step 5 in <u>Steps on</u> the camera (1).

Steps on the camera (2)

7. Select [OK].



 The following message is displayed. "******" represents the last six digits of the MAC address of the camera to be connected.



Steps on the computer (2)

- 8. Start EOS Utility.
- 9. In EOS Utility, click [Pairing over Wi-Fi/LAN].

Security Million	
ó —ú	
(men with	2.0

• If a firewall-related message is displayed, select [Yes].

10. Click [Connect].



Select the camera to connect to, then click [Connect].

Steps on the camera (3)

11. Establish a Wi-Fi connection.



• Select [OK].

[Wi-Fi on] screen



Disconnect,exit

Terminates the Wi-Fi connection.

Confirm set.

You can check the settings.

Error details

When a Wi-Fi connection error occurs, you can check the details of the error. The Wi-Fi connection to a computer is now complete.

- Operate the camera using EOS Utility on the computer.
- To reconnect via Wi-Fi, see <u>Reconnecting via Wi-Fi</u>.

Caution

- If the Wi-Fi connection is terminated while recording a movie with remote shooting, the following will occur.
 - · Any movie recording in progress in movie recording mode will continue.
 - · Any movie recording in progress in still photo shooting mode will end.
- You cannot use the camera to shoot in still photo shooting mode when it is set to movie recording mode in EOS Utility.
- With a Wi-Fi connection to EOS Utility established, certain functions are unavailable.
- In remote shooting, the AF speed may become slower.
- Depending on the communication status, image display or shutter release timing may be delayed.
- In Remote Live View shooting, the rate of image transmission is slower compared to a connection via an interface cable. Therefore, moving subjects cannot be displayed smoothly.

With the camera connected to EOS Utility and the main EOS Utility window displayed, you can use the camera to transfer images to computer.

Selecting images to transfer

1. Select [(1): Image transfer].



2. Select [Image sel./transfer].



3. Select [Direct transfer].



4. Select [Sel.Image].



5. Select images to transfer.



- Use the < () > dial to select an image to transfer, then press < () >.
- Use the < > dial to add a checkmark [√] in the upper left of the screen, then press < (☞) >.
- You can turn the < ¹√³ > dial counterclockwise to switch to selecting images from 3-image display. To return to single-image display, turn the < ¹√³ > dial clockwise.
- To select other images to transfer, repeat step 5.
- After image selection, press the < MENU > button.

6. Select [Direct transfer].



7. Select [OK].



• The selected images are transferred to the computer.

Selecting multiple images

Multiple images can be transferred at once after you choose a selection method.

- 1. Access the [Image sel./transfer] screen.
 - Follow steps 1–3 in <u>Selecting Images to Transfer</u>.
- 2. Select [Multiple].



3. Select a selection method to use.



Select range



- Select [Select range]. Selecting the first and last images of the range marks all the images in the range with a checkmark [√], and one copy of each image will be sent.
- To change the number of images in index display, turn the < $\{\overline{\xi_{u_{n,k}}}\}$ > dial.

In a folder



- Selecting [Folder images failed transf.] selects all images in the selected folder for which transfer failed.
- Selecting [Folder images not transfer'd] selects all unsent images in the selected folder.
- Selecting [Clear folder transf. history] clears the transfer history of images in the selected folder. After clearing the transfer history, you can select [Folder images not transfer'd] and transfer all images in the folder again.
- In a card



- Selecting [Card images failed transfer] selects all images in the selected card for which transfer failed.
- Selecting [Card images not transferred] selects all unsent images in the selected card.
- Selecting [Clear card's transf. history] clears the transfer history of images in the selected card. After clearing the transfer history, you can select [Card images not transferred] and transfer all images in the card again.

4. Select [Direct transfer].



5. Select [OK].



• The selected images are transferred to the computer.

Transferring RAW+JPEG or RAW+HEIF images

For RAW+JPEG or RAW+HEIF images, you can specify which image to transfer.

1. Select [((1)): Image transfer].



 $2. \ \ \, \text{Select the type of images to transfer.}$

mage Transfer anage reliminantie ALMA INFO Franker ALMA INFO Franker	MEG only HEP only
	0005

RAW+JPEG transfer



- Select [RAW+JPEG transfer], then select [JPEG only], [RAW only], or [RAW+JPEG].
- RAW+HEIF transfer

thegi santir
NAM HER SHITLE A STORE
NWW STY RWW-STY

 Select [RAW+HEIF transfer], then select [HEIF only], [RAW only], or [RAW+HEIF].

Caution

Some menu items are not available during image transfer.

Note

 This setting is linked to [RAW+JPEG transfer] and [RAW+HEIF transfer] settings on the [Transfer type/size] screen (2). You can create captions and register them on the camera to use them as described in Adding a Caption Before Transfer.

1. Start EOS Utility and select [Camera settings].



2. Select [WFT Captions].



3. Enter the caption or captions.



- Enter up to 31 characters (in ASCII format).
- To acquire caption data stored on the camera, select [Load settings].

4. Set the captions on the camera.



• Select [Apply to camera] to set your new captions on the camera.

This section describes how to send images to image.canon.

Registering image.canon and Setting Up Auto Send

You can register image.canon on the camera and prepare to send your shots automatically.

- A computer or smartphone with a browser and internet connection is required.
- You will need to enter an email address used on your computer or smartphone.
- For instructions on how to use image.canon services and details on countries and regions where it is available, visit the image.canon site (https://image.canon/).
- Separate ISP connection and access point fees may apply.

Steps on the camera (1)

- 1. Set Wi-Fi settings to [Enable].
 - See steps 1–2 in <u>Connecting to a Bluetooth-Compatible Smartphone</u> via Wi-Fi.
- 2. Select [('(1'): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].


3. Select [Upload to Web service].



4. Select [I Agree].



5. Establish a Wi-Fi connection.



 Connect to an access point via Wi-Fi. Go to step 6 in <u>Wi-Fi Connection</u> via Access Points. 6. Enter your email address.



- Enter your email address, then select [OK].
- 7. Enter a four-digit number.



• Enter a four-digit number of your choice, then select [OK].

8. Select [OK].



Steps on the computer or smartphone

- 9. Set up camera web link.
 - Access the page in the notification message.
 - Follow the instructions to complete the settings on the camera web link settings page.

Steps on the camera (2)

10. select [ОК].







11. Select [Upload to Web service].



12. Select [Auto send].



- Once [Enable] is set, images are automatically sent when you turn the camera on.
- 13. Select [Type to send].



• Set to [Stills only] or [Stills+movies].

14. Restart the camera.

- The images are now sent automatically.
- To switch networks, select [Switch network] and follow steps 5–8.
- To remove the connection, select [Clear camera web link settings] and then [OK].

Note

- All image files on cards are sent when [Auto send] is set to [Enable].
- When [Auto send] is set to [Enable], auto send starts after the camera starts up (or recovers from auto power off).
- Any images captured during auto sending are also sent.

Caution

- Auto send does not start during interval timer shooting.
- Transfer stops in the following cases.
 - [Airplane mode] is set to [On]
 - · Movie recording is started
 - · A USB connection is started
 - · Battery capacity is low
 - The camera's power switch is set to < OFF >

- Preparation
- Connecting to the Access Point
- Configuring FTP Server Connection Settings
- FTP Transfer Settings
- Transferring Multiple Images at Once
- Adding a Caption Before Transfer
- Auto Retry If Transfer Fails
- Viewing Transferred Images

Your images can be transferred to an FTP server on the network the camera is connected to.

Preparation

A computer running one of the following OSes is required. The computer must also be set up in advance to function as an FTP server.

- Windows 10 (ver. 1607 or later)
- Windows 8.1, Windows 8.1 Pro

For instructions on setting up the computer to function as an FTP server, refer to documentation for your computer.

Connect the computer to use as an FTP server to the access point in advance.

1. Set Wi-Fi settings to [Enable].

- See steps 1–2 in <u>Connecting to a Bluetooth-Compatible Smartphone</u> via Wi-Fi.
- 2. Select [('1'): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].



3. Select [HTransfer images to FTP server].



4. Select [Add a device to connect to].



5. Select [Setting method].



- Select an option and then [OK] to go to the next screen.
- Select [Configure online] to configure connection settings and then join the network.
- Select [Configure offline] to configure FTP server connection settings without connecting.
- 6. Select [Connect with WPS].



 Follow these steps to connect via WPS (PBC mode). To connect to access points in other ways, see <u>Wi-Fi Connection via Access Points</u>.

7. Select [WPS (PBC mode)].



Select [OK].

8. Press the WPS button on the access point.



- For details on where the WPS button is and how long to press it, refer to the access point user manual.
- Select [OK] to initiate connection with the access point. The following screen is displayed once the camera is connected to the access point.

9. Select an IP address setting option.



Select [OK].

10. Select an IPv6 option.



Select [OK].

1. Select an FTP mode.



- For secure FTP transfer using a root certificate, select [FTPS]. For details on root certificate settings, see <u>Set Root Certif</u>.
- Select [OK] to go to the next screen.

2. Select [Address setting].



- Select [OK] to go to the next screen.
- The virtual keyboard is displayed if you have specified [Auto setting] for the IP address or [Manual setting] for the DNS address.
- A screen for numerical input is displayed if you have specified [Disable] for the DNS address.

3. Enter the FTP server IP address.



- To set the entered values and return to the screen for step 2, press the <MENU > button.

4. Configure the port number.



- Normally, set [Port number setting] to 00021.
- Select [OK] to go to the next screen.

5. Configure the passive mode setting.



- Select [OK] to go to the next screen.
- If an Error 41 (Cannot connect to FTP server) is displayed in step 8, setting [Passive mode] to [Enable] may resolve it.

6. Configure proxy server settings.



- Not displayed if you selected [FTPS] in step 1.
- Select [OK] to go to the next screen.

7. Configure the login method.



Select [OK] to go to the next screen.

8. Specify a target folder.



- Select [Root folder] to have images saved in the root folder, as specified in FTP server settings.
- Select [Select folder] to specify a target folder in the root folder. If the folder does not exist, it is created automatically.
- Select [OK] to go to the next screen.
- When the following message appears, select [OK] to trust the target server.



9. Select [OK].



Not displayed in offline configuration.

Connection settings for FTP transfer are now complete.

You can configure settings related to FTP transfer and power saving.

1. Select [((1)): Wi-Fi settings].



2. Select [FTP transfer settings].



3. Select an option to configure.

ITP synafer settings	
Autovatic transfer	built
Dansfor Indersign	1 Tilling
Let runt certif	68/10/20
. Ponot saving.	Endle
	and the second se

Automatic transfer

Select [Enable] for automatic image transfer to the FTP server immediately after shooting. You can continue shooting still photos as usual while images are being transferred.

Caution

- Before shooting, make sure a card is in the camera. If you shoot without recording images, they cannot be transferred.
- Automatic transfer of movies during recording is not supported. After recording, transfer movies as described in <u>Transferring Multiple Images at Once</u> or <u>Adding a Caption</u> <u>Before Transfer</u>.
- Images cannot be erased during image transfer.

Note

- During continuous shooting, images are transferred to the FTP server in the order they are captured.
- Captured images are also stored on the card.
- In the case of any images for which transfer fails or is interrupted, the camera attempts transfer again automatically when the connection is recovered ((2)). You can also try again later to manually transfer all of these images at once ((2)).
- Any changes to network settings (such as FTP server settings) before automatic FTP transfer begins will prevent automatic transfer.

Transfer type/size

In [JPEG size to trans.], you can specify the size of images to transfer. For example, to transfer smaller JPEGs when the camera is set to record larger JPEGs to one card and smaller JPEGs to the other, set to [Smaller.JPEG].

In [RAW+JPEG transfer] or [RAW+HEIF transfer], you can specify the type of images to transfer.

Note

- When the camera is set to record RAW images to one card and JPEGs or HEIFs to the other, specify which images to transfer in the [RAW+JPEG transfer] or [RAW+HEIF transfer] setting. Similarly, specify your transfer preference when RAW+JPEG images or RAW+HEIF images are simultaneously recorded to a single card.
- Captured images are also stored on the card.
- When images of the same size are recorded to both cards

simultaneously, images recorded to the card selected for [

sel.] are given priority for transfer.

Transfer with SET

When set to [Enable], simply press < (ii) > to transfer the image displayed. You can continue shooting still photos as usual while images are being transferred.

Note

Movies cannot be transferred this way.

Set root certif

If you specified [**FTPS**] FTP mode when configuring connection settings, the root certificate used by the FTPS server must be imported to the camera.

Caution

- Only the root certificate with a file name of "ROOT.CER," "ROOT.CRT," or "ROOT.PEM" can be imported to the camera.
- Only one root certificate file can be imported to the camera. Insert a card containing the root certificate file in advance.
- The priority card selected for [Record/play] or [Play]
 - in [**Y**: Record func+card/folder sel.] is used to import a certificate.
- It may not be possible to trust servers you try to connect to in FTPS connections with a self-signed certificate.



Select [Load root certif from card] to import the root certificate on the card.

To check who the root certificate was issued to and issued by, and the period of validity, select [View root certificate details].

To delete the root certificate imported to the camera, select [Delete root certificate].

Power saving

When [Enable] is set and no image is transferred for a certain period, the camera will log off from the FTP server and end the Wi-Fi connection. The connection is re-established automatically when the camera is ready for image transfer again. If you prefer not to end the Wi-Fi connection, set to [Disable].

- Selecting images to transfer
- Selecting multiple images
- Transferring RAW+JPEG or RAW+HEIF images

After shooting, you can select multiple images and transfer them all at once, or you can transfer unsent images or images that could not be sent previously. You can continue shooting still photos as usual during transfer.



Selecting images to transfer

1. Select [(1): Image transfer].



2. Select [Image sel./transfer].

lenase transfer	
NW LESS VALUE	IREG only
New web tanke Transfer with caption	HEP-CIVY
	141.401.000

3. Select [FTP transfer].



4. Select [Sel.Image].



5. Select the image to transfer.



- Use the < () > dial to select an image to transfer, then press < () >.
- Use the < (○) > dial to add a checkmark [√] in the upper left of the screen, then press < (☞) >.
- You can turn the < >> dial counterclockwise to switch to select the images from 3-image display. To return to single-image display, turn the < >> dial clockwise.
- To select other images to transfer, repeat step 5.
- After image selection, press the < MENU > button.

6. Select [FTP transfer].



7. Select [OK].

German set. I savater	10
Start transfer	
Cent OK	

• The selected images are transferred to the FTP server.

Selecting multiple images

Multiple images can be transferred at once after you choose a selection method. You can continue shooting still photos as usual while images are being transferred.

- 1. Access the [Image sel./transfer] screen.
 - Follow steps 1–3 in Selecting Images to Transfer.
- 2. Select [Multiple].



3. Select a selection method to use.



Select range



- Select [Select range]. Selecting the first and last images of the range marks all the images in the range with a checkmark [√], and one copy of each image will be sent.
- To change the number of images in index display, turn the < $\{ \bigcup_{i=1}^{N} S^i > dial.$

In a folder



- Selecting [Folder images failed transf.] selects all images in the selected folder for which transfer failed.
- Selecting [Folder images not transfer'd] selects all unsent images in the selected folder.
- Selecting [Clear folder transf. history] clears the transfer history of images in the selected folder. After clearing the transfer history, you can select [Folder images not transfer'd] and transfer all images in the folder again.
- In a card



- Selecting [Card images failed transfer] selects all images in the selected card for which transfer failed.
- Selecting [Card images not transferred] selects all unsent images in the selected card.
- Selecting [Clear card's transf. history] clears the transfer history of images in the selected card. After clearing the transfer history, you can select [Card images not transferred] and transfer all images in the card again.

4. Select [FTP transfer].



5. Select [OK].



• The selected images are transferred to the FTP server.

Transferring RAW+JPEG or RAW+HEIF images

For RAW+JPEG or RAW+HEIF images, you can specify which image to transfer.

1. Select [((1)): Image transfer].



 $2. \ \ \, \text{Select the type of images to transfer.}$

image Hanster	
Image sectorates NAME PEG Variate NAME PEG Variate NAME PEG Variates NAME PEG Variates NAME PEG Variates	HEG CHAN
	0005

RAW+JPEG transfer



- Select [RAW+JPEG transfer], then select [JPEG only], [RAW only], or [RAW+JPEG].
- RAW+HEIF transfer

thegi santir
NAM HER SHITLE A STORE
NWW STY RWW-STY

 Select [RAW+HEIF transfer], then select [HEIF only], [RAW only], or [RAW+HEIF].

Caution

Some menu items are not available during image transfer.

Note

 This setting is linked to [RAW+JPEG transfer] and [RAW+HEIF transfer] settings on the [Transfer type/size] screen (2). You can add a registered caption to each image before transfer. This is convenient if you want to inform the recipient of the printing quantity, for example. Captions are also added to images saved to the camera.

- You can check captions added to images by examining the Exif information, in the user comments.
- Captions can be created and registered with EOS Utility (2).



1. Select [(1): Image transfer].

2. Select [Transfer with caption].



The last image viewed is displayed.

3. Specify the caption.



 Select [Caption], and on the screen displayed, select the content of the caption.



4. Select [Transfer].



 The image is transferred with the caption. After transfer, display returns to the [Image transfer] screen.

Caution

 Other images cannot be selected from the [Transfer with caption] screen. To select another image for transfer with a caption, view that image before following these steps. If transfer fails, the camera's access lamp blinks in red. In this case, the following screen is displayed after you press the < MENU > button and select [(η): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].

To resolve the error displayed, see the troubleshooting information (2).



Once you have resolved the issue, the images that could not be sent initially will be transferred automatically. With this option activated, transfer is attempted again automatically after failure, whether automatic transfer is used or captured images are transferred manually via FTP. Note that if you cancel transfer or turn the camera off, auto retry is not attempted.

See Transferring Multiple Images at Once and transfer images as needed.

Note

- To automatically log off and end the Wi-Fi connection after transfer, you can configure power-saving on the [FTP transfer settings] screen (2).

Images transferred to the FTP server are stored in the following folder as specified in the FTP server settings.

Target folder of the FTP server

- Under the default settings of the FTP server, images are stored in [C drive] → [Inetpub] folder → [ftproot] folder, or in a subfolder of this folder.
- If the root folder of the transfer destination has been changed in the FTP server settings, ask the FTP server administrator where images are transferred.

Camera Access Point Mode

Manual IP Address Setup

This section describes how to join a Wi-Fi network via an access point compatible with WPS (PBC mode).

First, check the position of the WPS button and how long to press it. It may take approx. 1 min. to establish a Wi-Fi connection.

- 1. Set Wi-Fi settings to [Enable].
 - See steps 1–4 in <u>Connecting to a Bluetooth-Compatible Smartphone</u> via Wi-Fi.
- 2. Select [((۱)): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].



3. Select an option.



If the history (i) is displayed, switch screens with the < > < 5, > dial or < ☆ >.

4. Select [Add a device to connect to].



 The following message is displayed if you have selected [Connect to smartphone]. If Camera Connect is already installed, select [Do not display].



- On the [Connect to smartphone] screen displayed next, select [Connect via Wi-Fi].
- 5. Select [Switch network].



• Displayed when []] or []] is selected.

6. Select [Connect with WPS].



Note

 For [Camera access point mode] displayed in step 6, see Camera Access Point Mode.

7. Select [WPS (PBC mode)].



Select [OK].

8. Connect to the access point via Wi-Fi.



- Press the access point's WPS button.
- Select [OK].
- 9. Select [Auto setting].



- Select [OK] to access the setting screen for the Wi-Fi function.
- If an error occurs with [Auto setting], see Manual IP Address Setup.

10. Specify the settings for the Wi-Fi function.

[Connect to smartphone]



 On the smartphone's Wi-Fi setting screen, tap the SSID (network name) shown on the camera screen, then enter the password of the access point for the connection.

Go to step 8 in Wi-Fi Connection without Using Bluetooth.

[Remote control (EOS Utility)]



Go to step 7 or 8 in Operating the Camera Using EOS Utility.

[HTransfer images to FTP server]



Go to step 10 in Connection via Access Points.

[Upload to Web service]

Go to step 5 in Registering image.canon and Setting Up Auto Send.



Camera access point mode is a connection mode for connecting the camera directly to each device via Wi-Fi. Displayed when [\Box], [\Box], or [\Box +] is selected after [((γ) : Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].



Easy connection

Use the other device to establish a Wi-Fi connection with the SSID shown on the camera screen.

Manual connection

Enter the SSID of the other device to establish a connection. Follow the instructions on the camera screen to complete the connection settings.
The options displayed vary depending on the Wi-Fi function.

1. Select [Manual setting].



- Select [OK].
- 2. Select an option.



- Select an option to access the screen for numerical input.
- To use a gateway, select [Enable], then select [Address].

German	
O Enution	
O Ditable	
A.Silvey	
80.48	
Cancel Cancel	

3. Enter the desired values.



- Turn the < [™]/_™ > dial to move the input position in the upper area, and use the < [™]/_™ > dials or < ^{*}/_₩ > to select numbers to enter. Press < [™]/_™ > to enter the selected number.
- To set the entered numbers and return to the screen for step 2, press the < MENU > button.

4. Select [OK].



- When you have completed setting the necessary items, select [OK].
- If you are not sure what to enter, see <u>Checking Network Settings</u>, or ask the network administrator or another person knowledgeable about the network.

Canceling the Pairing

This camera can also be connected to Wireless Remote Control BR-E1 (sold separately, 0) via Bluetooth for remote control shooting.

- 1. Set Wi-Fi settings to [Enable].
 - See steps 1–4 in <u>Connecting to a Bluetooth-Compatible Smartphone</u> via Wi-Fi.
- 2. Select [('t'): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].



3. Select [% Connect to Wireless Remote].



4. Select [Add a device to connect to].



5. Press < @ >.



6. Pair the devices.



- When the [Pairing] screen appears, press and hold the <W> and <T> buttons on the BR-E1 simultaneously for at least 3 sec.
- After a message confirms that the camera is paired with the BR-E1, press < (ir) >.

- 7. Set up the camera for remote shooting.
 - When shooting still photos, select [[3]] or [[3]] as the drive mode (]].
 - For movie recording, set [: Remote control] to [Enable].
 - For instructions after the pairing is complete, refer to the BR-E1's Instruction Manual.

Caution

 Bluetooth connections consume battery power even after the camera's auto power off is activated.

Note

 When you will not use Bluetooth, setting this function to [Disable] in step 1 is recommended. Before pairing with a different BR-E1, clear the information about the connected remote control.

1. Select [(۱): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].



2. Select [* Connect to Wireless Remote].



3. Select [Delete connection information].



4. Select [OK].

Delete connection information	
Debele	
aceter -	
Cancel OK	

Follow these steps to reconnect via Wi-Fi using registered connection settings.

1. Select [('t'): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].

	1 1 1 1 1
W Fillentooth com	antikan
Atplate mode	1011
Winisettines	Diable
Racticeth settings.	Evalue
Nickname	ALC: NO
GPS device wittings intege transfer	

2. Select an option.



- Select an option to connect to via Wi-Fi from the displayed history. If the option is not displayed, use the < () > dial to switch screens.
- If [Connection history] is set to [Do not display], the history will not be displayed ().

3. Operate the connected device.

[] Smartphone

- Start Camera Connect.
- If the smartphone's connection destination has been changed, restore the setting to connect via Wi-Fi to the camera or the same access point as the camera.

When directly connecting the camera to a smartphone via Wi-Fi, "**_Canon0A**" is displayed at the end of the SSID.

[-] Computer

- On the computer, start the EOS software.
- If the computer's connection destination has been changed, restore the setting to connect via Wi-Fi to the camera or the camera's access point.

When directly connecting the camera to a computer via Wi-Fi,

"_Canon0A" is displayed at the end of the SSID.

[H] FTP transfer

 If the FTP server's settings were changed to connect to other devices, restore the settings to connect via Wi-Fi to the camera or the camera's access point.

When the camera is directly connected to an FTP server via Wi-Fi,

"_Canon0A" is displayed at the end of the SSID.

You can register up to 10 connection settings for the wireless communication functions.

Select [(۱)): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].

Wi Arithurtcoth cor	renttion
Attriute mode	-04
Wi-fillings	District I
Saccolly of legs.	tealle
Nickneme	- ARE

2. Select an option.



- If the history (愛) is displayed, switch screens with the < > < ⁵ → dial or < ^{*} → .
- For details on [[Connect to smartphone], see <u>Connecting to a</u> <u>Smartphone</u>.
- For details on [Remote control (EOS Utility)], see Connecting to a Computer via Wi-Fi.
- For details on []+Transfer images to FTP server], see Image Transfer to FTP Servers.
- For details on [Upload to Web service], see <u>Sending Images to a</u> Web Service.

Note To delete connection settings, see <u>Changing or Deleting Connection Settings</u>.

You can temporarily disable Wi-Fi and Bluetooth functions.

1. Select [('1'): Airplane mode].

O W E 5	9 A 9
WA Fillburtcoot sorv	entrane
And the section of th	Contrate of
Martineth settings.	Post of Control of Con
Nickname	Also.
GPS device with ros.	
intege transfer	

2. Set to [On].

O N E	9410 Y	 1.
A THEN WOR	- 100 #04	

• [1] is displayed on the screen.

Note

 [1] may not be displayed in still photo shooting, movie recording, or playback, depending on display settings. If it is not displayed, press the < INFO > button repeatedly to access detailed information display. 1. Select [('†'): Wi-Fi settings].



2. Select an option.

WHITI settings	
We is Convection Notors Send to unarticitors PTF transfer withings MAC withings	
	00015

Wi-Fi

When the use of electronic devices and wireless devices is prohibited, such as on board airplanes or in hospitals, set it to [Disable].

Connection history

You can set the connection history for devices connected via Wi-Fi to [Show] or [Do not display].

Send to smartphone after shot

Images can be transferred to a smartphone automatically (2).

FTP transfer settings

Images can be transferred to an FTP server (2).

MAC address

You can check the MAC address of the camera.

1. Select [((†)): Bluetooth settings].



2. Select an option.



Bluetooth

If you will not use the Bluetooth function, select [Disable].

Check connection information

You can check the name and communication status of the paired device.

Bluetooth address

You can check the camera's Bluetooth address.

Nickname

You can change the camera nickname (displayed on smartphones and other cameras) as needed.

1. Select [((1)): Nickname].



2. Enter text using the <u>Virtual Keyboard Operations</u>.



• When you finish entering characters, press the < MENU > button.

- ☑ <u>GP-E2</u>
- Smartphone
- GPS Connection Display

You can geotag images with GPS Receiver GP-E2 (sold separately) or a Bluetoothcompatible smartphone.

GP-E2

- 1. Attach GP-E2 to the camera.
 - Attach GP-E2 to the camera's hot shoe and turn it on. For details, refer to the GP-E2 Instruction Manual.
- 2. Select [((†)): GPS device settings].



3. In [Select GPS device], select [GPS receiver].



4. Take the picture.

• For details on [Set up], refer to the GP-E2 Instruction Manual.

Caution

Precautions when using GP-E2

- Before use, check the countries and regions where use of GPS is allowed, and follow local regulations.
- Update the GP-E2 firmware to Ver. 2.0.0 or later. Firmware updating requires an interface cable. For updating instructions, visit the Canon website.
- GP-E2 cannot be connected to the camera with a cable.
- The camera does not record the shooting direction.

Complete these settings after installing the dedicated Camera Connect app (B)) on the smartphone.

- 1. On the smartphone, activate location services.
- 2. Establish a Bluetooth connection.
 - Start Camera Connect and pair the camera and smartphone via Bluetooth.
- 3. Select [((1)): GPS device settings].



4. In [Select GPS device], select [Smartphone].



- 5. Take the picture.
 - Images are geotagged with the information from the smartphone.

You can check the status of smartphone location information acquisition in the GPS connection icon on the screens for still photo shooting or movie recording (O and O, respectively).

- Gray: Location services are off
- Blinking: Location information cannot be acquired
- On: Location information acquired

For details on how GPS connection status is indicated when GP-E2 is used, refer to the GP-E2 Instruction Manual.

Geotagging images as you shoot

Images you shoot while the GPS icon is on are geotagged.

Geotagging information

You can check the location information added to your shots on the shooting information screen (愛).



- (1) Latitude
- (2) Longitude
- (3) Elevation
- (4) UTC (Coordinated Universal Time)

Caution

- The smartphone can acquire location information only while it is paired with the camera via Bluetooth.
- Direction information is not acquired.
- Acquired location information may not be accurate, depending on traveling conditions or smartphone status.
- It may take some time to acquire location information from the smartphone after you turn the camera on.
- Location information is no longer acquired after any of the following operations.
 - · Pairing with a wireless remote control via Bluetooth
 - · Turning the camera off
 - · Quitting Camera Connect
 - · Deactivating location services on the smartphone
- Location information is no longer acquired in any of the following situations.
 - · The camera power turns off
 - · The Bluetooth connection is ended
 - · The smartphone's remaining battery level is low

Note

- Coordinated Universal Time, abbreviated as UTC, is essentially the same as Greenwich Mean Time.
- For movies, the GPS information initially acquired is added.

To change or delete the connection settings, terminate the Wi-Fi connection first.

Select [(יוֹי): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].

Wi Arithurtcoth cor	superities and the second second
Atplate mode	-041
Wi fi viettines	DIAM
Racticeth settings.	traffic
Nickneme	ALC: N

2. Select an option.



If the history (𝔅) is displayed, switch screens with the < ○ > < ^b → dial or < ☆ >.

3. Select [Edit/delete device].



- You can change the Bluetooth connection by selecting a smartphone labeled with [6] in gray. After the [Connect to smartphone] screen is displayed, select [Pair via Bluetooth], then press < (a) > on the next screen.
- 4. Select the device for which to change or delete the connection settings.



5. Select an option.



• Change or delete the connection settings on the displayed screen.

Change device nickname

You can change the nickname using the virtual keyboard (2).

Viewable imgs (2)

Displayed when [\Box Connect to smartphone] is selected. Settings will appear at the bottom of the screen.

Delete connection information

When deleting connection information for a paired smartphone, also delete the camera information registered on the smartphone (2).

All wireless communication settings can be deleted. By deleting the wireless communication settings, you can prevent their information from being exposed when you lend or give your camera to other people.

1. Select [((†)): Reset communication settings].



2. Select [OK].



Caution

 If you have paired the camera with a smartphone, on the smartphone's Bluetooth settings screen, delete the connection information of the camera for which you restored default wireless communication settings.

Note

 All wireless communication settings can be cleared by selecting the [Communication settings] option for [Other settings] in [Y: Reset camera].

View Info Screen

You can check error details and the camera's MAC address.

Select [(יוֹי): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].

0 // E	A A A A
Wi Frillustooth con	wantikan 👘
Atplate mode	Distant
Rantooth settings.	Right-
Netrant	Ref.
GPS device withings intrage transfer	

 $2. \quad {\tt Press the < INFO > button.}$



• The [View info] screen will appear.

View info	
MAC SHARE	all brackers
	0000

• When an error has occurred, press < (E) > to display the error content.

Virtual Keyboard Operations



- (2) Cursor keys, for moving in the input area
- (3) Current no. of characters/no. available
- (4) Keyboard
- (5) Switch input modes
- (6) Space

(1)

- (7) Delete a character in the input area
- (8) Exit input
- Use the < is > dial to move within (1).
- Use < ※ > or the < 💭 > or < () > dial to move within (2) and (4)–(7).
- Press < (F) > to confirm input or when switching input modes.

When an error occurs, display the details of the error by following one of the procedures below. Then, eliminate the cause of the error by referring to the examples shown in this chapter.

- On the [View info] screen, press < sr) >.
- Select [Error details] on the [Wi-Fi on].

Click the following error numbers to jump to the corresponding section.

<u>11</u>	<u>12</u>						
<u>21</u>	<u>22</u>	<u>23</u>					
<u>41</u>	<u>43</u>	<u>44</u>	<u>45</u>	<u>46</u>	<u>47</u>	<u>48</u>]
<u>61</u>	<u>63</u>	<u>64</u>	<u>65</u>	<u>66</u>	<u>67</u>	<u>68</u>	<u>69</u>
<u>91</u>							
<u>121</u>	<u>125</u>	<u>126</u>	<u>127</u>				
<u>151</u>	<u>152</u>						

Note

 When an error occurs, [Err**] is displayed in the upper right of the [Wi-Fi/ Bluetooth connection] screen. It disappears when the camera's power is set to <OFF>.

11: Connection target not found

- In the case of []], is Camera Connect running?

In the case of [], is EOS Utility running?

- Start EOS Utility and try to connect again (2).
- Are the camera and the access point set to use the same encryption key for authentication?
 - This error occurs if the encryption keys do not match when the authentication method for encryption is [Open system].
 Check upper- and lower-case letters, and make sure the correct encryption key for authentication is set on the camera (

12: Connection target not found

- Are the target device and access point turned on?
 - Turn on the target device and access point, then wait a while. If a connection still cannot be established, perform the procedures to establish the connection again.

21: No address assigned by DHCP server

What to check on the camera

- On the camera, IP address is set to [Auto setting]. Is this the correct setting?
 - If no DHCP server is used, specify the settings after setting the IP address to [Manual setting] on the camera (2).

What to check on the DHCP server

Is the power of the DHCP server on?

- · Turn on the DHCP server.
- Are there enough addresses for assignment by the DHCP server?
 - · Increase the number of addresses assigned by the DHCP server.
 - Remove devices assigned addresses by the DHCP server from the network to reduce the number of addresses in use.

Is the DHCP server working correctly?

- Check the DHCP server settings to make sure it is working correctly as a DHCP server.
- · If applicable, ask your network administrator to ensure the DHCP server is available.

22: No response from DNS server

What to check on the camera

- On the camera, the DNS address is set to [Manual setting]. Is this the correct setting?
 - If no DNS server is used, set the camera's DNS address setting to [Disable] (2).
- On the camera, does the DNS server's IP address setting match the server's actual address?
 - Configure the IP address on the camera to match the actual DNS server address (
 ⁽²⁾).

What to check on the DNS server

- Is the power of the DNS server on?
 - Turn on the DNS server.
- Are the DNS server settings for IP addresses and the corresponding names correct?
 - On the DNS server, make sure IP addresses and the corresponding names are entered correctly.
- Is the DNS server working correctly?
 - · Check the DNS server settings to make sure it is working correctly as a DNS server.
 - · If applicable, ask your network administrator to ensure the DNS server is available.

What to check on the network as a whole

- Does your network include a router or similar device that serves as a gateway?
 - If applicable, ask your network administrator for the network gateway address and set it on the camera (2).
 - Make sure that the gateway address setting is correctly entered on all network devices including the camera.

23: Device with same IP address exists on selected network

Is another device on the camera network using the same IP address as the camera?

- Change the camera's IP address to avoid using the same address as another device on the network. Otherwise, change the IP address of the device that has a duplicate address.
- If the camera's IP address is set to [Manual setting] in network environments using a DHCP server, change the setting to [Auto setting] (2).

Note

Responding to error messages 21-23

- Also check the following points when responding to errors numbered 21–23. Are the camera and the access point set to use the same password for authentication?
 - This error occurs if the passwords do not match when the authentication method for encryption is set to [Open system]. Check upper- and lower-case letters, and make sure the correct password for authentication is set on the camera (@).

41: Cannot connect to FTP server

What to check on the camera

- The camera's proxy server setting is [Enable]. Is this the correct setting?
 - If no proxy server is used, set the camera's proxy server setting to [Disable] (2).
- Do the camera's [Address setting] and [Port No.] settings match those of the proxy server?
 - Configure the camera's proxy server address and port number to match those of the proxy server (2).
- Are the camera's proxy server settings correctly set on the DNS server?
 - · Make sure the proxy server's [Address] is correctly set on the DNS server.
- On the camera, does the FTP server's IP address setting match the server's actual address?
 - Configure the IP address on the camera to match the actual FTP server address (
 ②).
- Are the camera and the access point set to use the same encryption key for authentication?
 - This error occurs if the encryption keys do not match when the authentication method for encryption is [Open system].
 Check upper- and lower-case letters, and make sure the correct encryption key for authentication is set on the camera (③).
- On the camera, does the [Port number setting] for the FTP server match the actual port number of the FTP server?
 - Configure the same port number (usually 21 for FTP/FTPS or 22 for SFTP) on the camera and FTP server. Configure the port number on the camera to match the actual FTP server port number (2).
- Are the camera's FTP server settings correctly set on the DNS server?
 - Make sure the FTP server's [Server name] is correctly set on the DNS server. Make sure the [Server name] for the FTP server is correctly set on the camera (2).

What to check on the FTP server

- Is the FTP server working correctly?
 - · Configure the computer correctly to function as an FTP server.
 - If applicable, ask your network administrator for the FTP server address and port number, then set them on the camera.
- Is the FTP server on?
 - Turn on the FTP server. The server may have been turned off because of an energy-saving mode.

- On the camera, does the FTP server's IP address setting (in [Address]) match the server's actual address?
 - Configure the IP address on the camera to match the actual FTP server address (
 ⁽²⁾).
- Is a firewall or other security software enabled?
 - Some security software uses a firewall to restrict access to the FTP server. Change the firewall settings to allow access to the FTP server.
 - You may be able to access the FTP server by setting [Passive mode] to [Enable] on the camera (2).

Are you connecting to the FTP server via a broadband router?

- Some broadband routers use a firewall to restrict access to the FTP server. Change the firewall settings to allow access to the FTP server.
- You may be able to access the FTP server by setting [Passive mode] to [Enable] on the camera (2).

What to check on the proxy server

- Is the proxy server on?
 - · Turn on the proxy server.
- Is the proxy server working correctly?
 - Check the proxy server settings to make sure the server is working correctly as a proxy server.
 - If applicable, ask your network administrator for the proxy server's address setting and port number, then set them on the camera.

What to check on the network as a whole

- Does your network include a router or similar device that serves as a gateway?
 - If applicable, ask your network administrator for the network gateway address and set it on the camera (2).
 - Make sure that the gateway address setting is correctly entered on all network devices including the camera.

43: Cannot connect to FTP server. Error code received from server.

What to check on the proxy server

- Is the proxy server on?
 - · Turn on the proxy server.

Is the proxy server working correctly?

- Check the proxy server settings to make sure the server is working correctly as a proxy server.
- If applicable, ask your network administrator for the proxy server's address setting and port number, then set them on the camera.

What to check on the network as a whole

- Does your network include a router or similar device that serves as a gateway?
 - If applicable, ask your network administrator for the network gateway address and set it on the camera (2).
 - Make sure that the gateway address setting is correctly entered on all network devices including the camera.

What to check on the FTP server

- Have you exceeded the maximum number of FTP server connections?
 - Disconnect some network devices from the FTP server or increase the maximum number of connections.

44: Cannot disconnect FTP server. Error code received from server.

- This error occurs from a failure to disconnect from the FTP server for some reason.
 - · Restart the FTP server and camera.

45: Cannot login to FTP server. Error code received from server.

What to check on the camera

- On the camera, is the [Login name] set correctly?
 - Check the login name for accessing the FTP server. Check upper- and lower-case letters, and make sure the correct login name is set on the camera (2).
- On the camera, is the [Login password] set correctly?
 - Check upper- and lower-case letters, and make sure the correct login password is set on the camera (2).

What to check on the FTP server

- Do the user rights for the FTP server allow reading, writing, and log access?
 - · Configure the FTP server's user rights to allow reading, writing, and log access.
- Is the folder specified as the transfer destination on the FTP server named with ASCII characters?
 - · Use ASCII characters for the folder name.

46: For the data session, error code received from FTP server

What to check on the FTP server

- The connection was terminated by the FTP server.
 - · Restart the FTP server.
- Do the user rights for the FTP server allow reading, writing, and log access?
 - · Configure the FTP server's user rights to allow reading, writing, and log access.
- Do user rights allow access to the target folder on the FTP server?
 - Configure the user rights for access to the target folder on the FTP server to allow saving images from the camera.
- Is the FTP server on?
 - Turn on the FTP server. The server may have been turned off because of an energy-saving mode.
- Is the hard disk of the FTP server full?
 - · Increase available space on the hard disk.

47: Image file transfer completion not confirmed by FTP server

- This error occurs from a failure to receive confirmation from the FTP server that image file transfer is complete for some reason.
 - · Restart the FTP server and camera and send the images again.

48: Security of the connection to the target server cannot be verified. If you trust this server and connect, set [Trust target server] to [Enable].

- This error occurs from a failure to confirm security of the target server connection when connecting via FTPS.
 - · Confirm that the certificate is set correctly.
 - Change [Trust target server] to [Enable] if you prefer to trust target servers regardless of certificate settings.
61: Selected SSID wireless LAN network not found

- Are any obstacles blocking the line of sight between the camera and the antenna of the access point?
 - Move the antenna of the access point to a position clearly visible from the point of view of the camera.

What to check on the camera

- Does the SSID set on the camera match that of the access point?
 - Check the SSID at the access point, then set the same SSID on the camera (2).

What to check at the access point

- Is the access point turned on?
 - · Turn on the power of the access point.
- If filtering by MAC address is active, is the MAC address of the camera in use registered at the access point?
 - Register the MAC address of the camera used to the access point (2).

63: Wireless LAN authentication failed

- Are the camera and the access point set to use the same encryption key for authentication?
 - Check upper- and lower-case letters, and make sure the correct encryption key for authentication is set on the camera (2).
- Are the camera and the access point set to use the same password for authentication?
 - Check upper- and lower-case letters, and make sure the correct password for authentication is set on the camera.
- If filtering by MAC address is active, is the MAC address of the camera in use registered at the access point?
 - Register the MAC address of the camera at the access point. The MAC address can be checked on the [MAC address] screen (2).

64: Cannot connect to wireless LAN terminal

- Are the camera and the access point set to use the same encryption method?
 - The camera supports the following encryption methods: WEP, TKIP, and AES (2).
- If filtering by MAC address is active, is the MAC address of the camera in use registered at the access point?
 - Register the MAC address of the camera used to the access point. The MAC address can be checked on the [MAC address] screen (
).

65: Wireless LAN connection lost

- Are any obstacles blocking the line of sight between the camera and the antenna of the access point?
 - Move the antenna of the access point to a position clearly visible from the point of view of the camera.
- The wireless LAN connection was lost, for some reason, and the connection cannot be restored.
 - The following are possible reasons: excessive access to the access point from another device, a microwave oven or similar appliance in use nearby (interfering with IEEE 802.11n/g/b (2.4 GHz band)), or influence of rain or high humidity.

66: Incorrect wireless LAN password

- Are the camera and the access point set to use the same encryption key for authentication?
 - Check upper- and lower-case letters, and make sure the correct encryption key for authentication is set on the camera and access point (@).
 Note that if the encryption authentication method is [Open system], an Error 41 is displayed (@).

67: Incorrect wireless LAN encryption method

- Are the camera and the access point set to use the same encryption method?
 - The camera supports the following encryption methods: WEP, TKIP, and AES (2).
- If filtering by MAC address is active, is the MAC address of the camera in use registered at the access point?

68: Cannot connect to wireless LAN terminal. Retry from the beginning.

- Did you hold down the access point's WPS (Wi-Fi Protected Setup) button for the specified period of time?
 - Hold down the WPS button for the period of time specified in the access point's instruction manual.
- Are you trying to establish a connection near the access point?
 - · Try establishing the connection when both devices are within reach of each other.

69: Multiple wireless LAN terminals have been found. Cannot connect. Retry from the beginning.

- Connection is in progress by other access points in Pushbutton Connection mode (PBC mode) of WPS (Wi-Fi Protected Setup).
 - · Wait a while before trying to establish the connection.

91: Other error

- A problem other than error code number 11 to 83 occurred.
 - · Turn the camera's power switch off and on.

121: Not enough free space on server

- The target Web server does not have enough free space.
 - Delete unnecessary images on the Web server, check the free space on the Web server, then try sending the data again.

125: Check the network settings

- Is the network connected?
 - · Check the connection status of the network.

126: Could not connect to server

- image.canon is under maintenance or temporarily busy.
 - · Try accessing the service again later.

127: An error has occurred

- A problem other than error code number 121 to 126 occurred while the camera is connected to the Web service.
 - · Try again to establish the Wi-Fi connection to image.canon.

151: Transmission canceled

Automatic image transfer was somehow interrupted.

 To resume automatic image transfer, set the camera's power switch to < OFF>, and then set it to < ON>.

152: Card's write protect switch is set to lock

- Is the card's write-protect switch set to the locked position?
 - · Slide the card's write-protect switch to the writing position.

If the transmission rate drops, the connection is lost, or other problems occur when using the wireless communication functions, try the following corrective actions.

Distance between the camera and the smartphone

If the camera is too far from the smartphone, a Wi-Fi connection may not be established even when Bluetooth connection is possible. In this case, bring the camera and the smartphone closer together, then establish a Wi-Fi connection.

Installation location of access point antenna

- When using indoors, install the device in the room where you are using the camera.
- Install the device where people or objects do not come between the device and the camera.

Nearby electronic devices

If the Wi-Fi transmission rate drops because of the influence of the following electronic devices, stop using them or move further away from the devices to transmit communication.

 The camera communicates over Wi-Fi via IEEE 802.11b/g/n using radio waves in the 2.4 GHz band. For this reason, the Wi-Fi transmission rate will drop if there are Bluetooth devices, microwave ovens, cordless telephones, microphones, smartphones, other cameras, or similar devices operating on the same frequency band nearby.

Precautions for using multiple cameras

- When connecting multiple cameras to one access point via Wi-Fi, make sure the cameras' IP addresses are different.
- When multiple cameras are connected to one access point via Wi-Fi, the transmission rate drops.
- When there are multiple IEEE 802.11b/g/n (2.4 GHz band) access points, leave a gap of five channels between each Wi-Fi channel to reduce radio wave interference. For example, use channels 1, 6, and 11, channels 2 and 7, or channels 3 and 8.

Using wireless remote control BR-E1

 BR-E1 cannot be used while the camera and smartphone are paired via Bluetooth. Change the camera connection to the wireless remote control in [Connect to Wireless Remote] under [(¹/₂): Wi-Fi/Bluetooth connection].

Security

If security settings have not been properly set, the following problems may occur.

- Transmission monitoring Third parties with malicious intent may monitor wireless LAN transmissions and attempt to acquire the data you are sending.
- Unauthorized network access Third parties with malicious intent may gain unauthorized access to the network you are using to steal, modify, or destroy information. Additionally, you could fall victim to other types of unauthorized access such as impersonation (where someone assumes an identity to gain access to unauthorized information) or springboard attacks (where someone gains unauthorized access to your network as a springboard to cover their tracks when infiltrating other systems).

It is recommended to make use of the systems and functions to thoroughly secure your network, preventing these types of problems from occurring.

Windows

Open the Windows [Command Prompt], then enter ipconfig/all and press the <Enter> key. In addition to the IP address assigned to the computer, the subnet mask, gateway, and DNS server information are also displayed.

macOS

In macOS, open the [**Terminal**] application, enter ifconfig -a, and press the <Return> key. The IP address assigned to the computer is indicated in the [**enX**] item (X: number) next to [**inet**], in the format "****.****.***.***

For information about the [Terminal] application, refer to the macOS help.

To avoid using the same IP address for the computer and other devices on the network, change the rightmost number when configuring the IP address assigned to the camera in the processes described in <u>Manual IP Address Setup</u>. Example: 192.168.1.10

Wireless Communication Status

Wireless communication status can be checked on the screen.



Quick Control screen

(1) Wi-Fi function

- (2) Bluetooth function
- (3) Wireless signal strength

Communication Status		Screen		
		Wi-Fi Function	Wireless Signal Strength	
Not connected	Wi-Fi: Disable	() TeOFF	Off	
Not connected	Wi-Fi: Enable	() POFF	Uli	
Connecting		膏 (Blinking)	Ψ	
Connected		([•	¶,i	
Sending data		((•	¶,i	
Connection error		🛜 (Blinking)	Ψ	

Bluetooth Function Indicator

Bluetooth Function	Connection Status	Screen
Other than [Disable]	Bluetooth connected	0
	Bluetooth not connected	8
[Disable]	Bluetooth not connected	Not displayed

This chapter describes menu settings on the set-up ([]) tab.

☆ to the right of titles indicates functions only available in < Fv >, < P>, < Tv >, < Av >, < M>, or < B> mode.

- Tab Menus: Set-up
- Selecting Cards for Recording/Playback
- Folder Settings
- File Numbering
- File Naming
- Formatting
- Auto Rotate
- Adding Orientation Information to Movies
- Date/Time/Zone
- Language
- <u>Video System</u>
- Help
- Beeps
- Headphone Volume
- Power Saving
- Eco Mode
- Screen/Viewfinder Display
- Screen Brightness
- <u>Viewfinder Brightness</u>
- Screen and Viewfinder Color Tone
- <u>Fine-Tuning Viewfinder Color Tone</u>
- <u>UI Magnification</u>
- HDMI Resolution
- Touch Control
- Multi-Function Lock
- <u>Shutter at Shutdown</u>
- Sensor Cleaning
- Resetting the Camera &
- Custom Shooting Mode (C1–C3) ☆
- <u>Battery Information</u>
- Copyright Information 1/2
- Other Information

Set-up 1

O. M E 4	V V 0	18 31 25	
Record func-canality	sides set a		(1)
File tumbering	Continuous		(2)
File starte		1	(3)
Format cant			-(4)
Auto rotate	OV D		
Add Trinstate mis-	Ditable		(6)
Date/Time/Zone	03/10/20 13:	50	(7)

- (1) Record func+card/folder sel.
 - Selecting Cards for Recording/Playback
 - <u>Creating a Folder</u>
- (2) File numbering
- (3) File name
- (4) Format card
- (5) Auto rotate
- (6) Add Trotate info
- (7) Date/Time/Zone

Set-up 2

• M • •	14 0	
Languegergil	English	(1)
Video system	For NTSC	(2)
Help text stars	Secol	(3)
Deep-	Touch of	(4)
Headphone volume	- C#	(5)
Polent Saving		(6)
Eto mode	Off	(7)

- (1) Language
- (2) Video system
- (3) Help text size
- (4) <u>Beep</u>
- (5) Headphone volume
- (6) Power saving
- (7) Eco mode

• Set-up 3

O W D H	9	
THE PARTY OF	91.91	
Screen/slewfinder disalias	4/01	(1)
Schem brightness	1	
Viewfinder brightness	1	(3)
Screen/stewforder color tone	2	(4)
Filte-fame VF color fame		
Ut reagnification Disable		(6)
		1-1

- (1) Screen/viewfinder display
- (2) Screen brightness
- (3) Viewfinder brightness
- (4) Screen/viewfinder color tone
- (5) Fine-tune VF color tone
- (6) UI magnification

Set-up 4



- (1) HDMI resolution
- (2) Touch control
- (3) Multi function lock
- (4) Shutter at shutdown
- (5) Sensor cleaning

Set-up 5

0 M D H 1/2 0	18 17 1011
Reset cameia	(1)
Outon shooting made (C1-C3)	(2)
Bettery utta	(3)
Copyright intermetion	(4)
Manual Software URL	(5)
Certification Logo Display	(6)
fitriwate Over. 1.0.0	(7)

- (1) Reset camera ☆
- (2) Custom shooting mode (C1-C3) ☆
- (3) Battery info.
- (4) Copyright information 🛧
- (5) Manual/software URL
- (6) Certification Logo Display 🕁
- (7) $\underline{\text{Firmware}} \bigstar$

Caution

[Custom shooting mode (C1-C3)] is not displayed in movie recording.

 $ln < [A]^+ > mode$, the following screens are displayed.

• Set-up 5



(1) Battery info.

(2) Manual/software URL

- Recording Method with Two Cards Inserted
- Recording/Playback Selection with Two Cards Inserted

Recording is possible when card []] is in the camera (except under some conditions). With only one card inserted, there is no need to follow these steps. With two cards inserted, you can select the recording method and card to use for recording and playback as follows.

Recording Method with Two Cards Inserted

1. Select [4: Record func+card/folder sel.].



2. Set the recording method.

● 🛍/'☴ separate



- Select [Enable] for automatic configuration of the recording method for still photos and movies. Still photos are recorded to card []] and movies to card []].
- Without card [1] inserted, still photos can be captured but not saved. Still photo shooting is not possible if the card is full.
- Movie recording is not possible if card [2] is full or not inserted.

Caution

Specifying [Enable] will make [Rec options], [¹ Rec options], [Record/play], and [¹ Record/play] unavailable.

Note

When set to [Enable], card [2] is used for playback if the
 > button is pressed in movie recording mode. Card [1] is used for playback if the < > button is pressed in still photo shooting mode.

Rec options

Set the recording method for still photos.



Standard

Records still photos to the card selected in [C Record/play].

· Auto switch card

Same as [Standard], but additionally, the camera switches to the other card when one card becomes full. At this time, a new folder is created.

Rec. separately

Enables you to set a specific image quality for each card (
). For each shot, a still photo is recorded to card
) and
) in your specified image quality.

Note that recording separately to **RAW** and **CRAW** is not available for RAW images.

· Rec. to multiple

For each shot, a still photo is recorded to card 1 and 2 in the same image quality.

Caution

 Maximum burst for [Rec. separately] is lower if you specify different image sizes for cards 1 and 2 (2).

Note

Rec. separately/Rec. to multiple

- Images are recorded with the same file number to card 1 and
 2.
- The number of shots available as shown in the viewfinder and on the Quick Control screen is for the card with less free space.
- [Card* full] is displayed when one of the cards becomes full, and shooting is no longer possible. To continue shooting, either replace the card or set [D Rec options] to [Standard] and select the card with free space.
- See <u>Folder Settings</u> for details on [Folder] in [**Ý**: Record func +card/folder sel.].

Rec options

Set the recording method for movies.



Standard

Records movies to the card selected in ["Record/play].

· Auto switch card

Same as [Standard], but recording ends when the card becomes full. When you resume recording, the camera switches to the other card for recording. A new folder is created after switching cards.

Rec. to multiple

For each recording, the same movie is recorded to card 1 and 2.

Note

Rec. to multiple

- Images are recorded with the same file number to card 1 and 2.
- The available recording time shown in the viewfinder and on the Quick Control screen is for the card with less free space.
- [Card* full] is displayed when one of the cards becomes full, and shooting is no longer possible. To continue shooting, either replace the card or set [^M, Rec options] to [Standard] and select the card with free space.
- See Folder Settings for details on [Folder] in [**Y**: Record func +card/folder sel.].

With [Rec options] [P. Rec options] set to [Standard] or [Auto switch card], select the card for recording and playback.

With [C Rec options] set to [Rec. separately] or [Rec. to multiple], or with [P Rec options] set to [Rec. to multiple], select the card for playback.

Setting size via the menu

Standard/Auto switch card

Record Falencer	affiliate let
OT tepatite	Dute:
C Sec options	Standard .
Ca terretally	
A second	TETERAN
	COLOR TO .

Select [Record/play].

- Select [Record/play] for still photos or [Record/play] for movies.
 - 1: Use card 1 for recording and playback
 - 2: Use card 2 for recording and playback

• Rec. separately/Rec. to multiple

Rept2 familier	antridei sel
O To separate	thostie
The others	Ref. to weathing
10114	1
	10100004
	0000

Select [Play].

- Select [Play] for still photos.
- Pressing the < > button in still photo shooting mode plays images from the card selected in [Play].
- Pressing the < ►> button in movie recording mode plays images from the card selected in [¹, Play].

Note

 With [Priority: *] set, the camera switches to the priority card when cards are inserted or removed.

Folder Settings

- Creating a Folder
- Renaming Folders
- Selecting a Folder

You can freely create and select the folder where the captured images are to be saved. You can also rename folders.

Creating a Folder

1. Select [4: Record func+card/folder sel.].



2. Select [Folder].



3. Select [Create folder].



4. Select [OK].



• To rename the folder, select [Change folder name].

1. Enter letters and numbers of your choice.



- You can enter five characters.
- By selecting [A⇔1], you can change the input mode.
- To delete single characters, select [] or press the < m > button.



● Use the < () > dial or < ☆ > to select a character, then press < () > to enter it.

2. Exit the setting.

Press the < MENU > button, then press [OK].



- (1) Number of images in folder
- (2) Lowest file number
- (3) Folder name
- (4) Highest file number
- Select a folder on the folder selection screen.
- Captured images are stored in your selected folder.

Note

Folders

Folders are named as in "100EOSR6," with a three-digit folder number followed by five letters or numbers. A folder can contain up to 9999 images (file number 0001–9999). When a folder becomes full, a new folder with the folder number increased by one is created automatically. Also, if manual reset (⁽ⁱ⁾) is executed, a new folder will be created automatically. Folders numbered from 100 to 999 can be created.

Creating folders with a computer

With the card open on the screen, create a new folder with "DCIM" as the name. Open the DCIM folder and create as many folders as necessary to save and organize your images. "100ABC_D" is the required format for folder names, and the first three digits must be a folder number in the range 100–999. The last five characters can be any combination of upper- and lower-case letters from A to Z, numerals, and the underscore "_". The space cannot be used. Also note that two folder names cannot share the same three-digit folder number (for example, "100ABC_D" and "100W_XYZ") even if the remaining five characters in each name are different.

File Numbering

- Continuous
- Muto Reset
- Manual Reset

The captured images saved in a folder are assigned a file number from 0001 to 9999. You can change how the image files are numbered.



1. Select [4: File numbering].



2. Set the item.



- Select [Numbering].
- Select [Continuous] or [Auto reset].



• If you want to reset the file numbering, select [Manual reset] (2).



 Select [OK] to create a new folder, and the file number will start with 0001.

Caution

 If the file number in folder 999 reaches 9999, shooting will not be possible even if the card still has free space. After a message requesting you to replace the card is displayed, switch to a new card.

For continuous file numbering regardless of switching cards or creating folders

File numbering is continuous up to 9999, even if you replace a card, create a folder, or

switch the target card (as in $(1 \rightarrow 2)$). This is useful when you want to save images numbered anywhere between 0001 to 9999 on multiple cards or in multiple folders into one folder on a computer.

Note that file numbering may continue from any existing images in cards or folders that you switch to. If you want to use continuous file numbering, it is recommended that you use a newly formatted card each time.

File numbering after replacing cards or switching target cards



File numbering after creating a folder

Card A



For restarting file numbering from 0001 after switching cards or creating folders

File numbering is reset to 0001 if you replace a card, create a folder, or switch the target card (as in $\widehat{1} \rightarrow 2$). This is useful if you want to organize images by cards or folders. Note that file numbering may continue from any existing images in cards or folders that you switch to. If you want to save images with the file numbering starting from 0001, use a newly formatted card each time.



File numbering after replacing cards or switching target cards

File numbering after creating a folder Card A



For resetting file numbering to 0001 or starting from 0001 in new folders

When you reset the file numbering manually, a new folder is created automatically and the file numbering of images saved to that folder starts from 0001.

This is useful, for example, if you want to use different folders for the images taken yesterday and the ones taken today.

File names consist of four alphanumeric characters followed by a four-digit file number ((2)) and file extension. You can change the first four alphanumeric characters, which by default are unique for each camera and set when the camera is shipped.

User setting 1 enables you to register four characters of your choice. User setting 2 adds three initial, registered characters of your choice to a fourth character representing the image size that is added automatically after you shoot.

> (Example) IMG_0001.JPG

Registering/Changing File Names

1. Select [4: File name].



2. Select [Change User setting*].

File manue	
Fill rearies	MG.
Character User Set	tegt
O'Mrepit Ulter ant	tingz
Head colle	0.00
uter setting?	WIL.
Color setting2	SARD + IPROPERTIES
	121223 23

3. Enter letters and numbers of your choice.



- Enter four characters for User setting 1 or three for User setting 2.
- By selecting [A↔1], you can change the input mode.



● To delete single characters, select [★] or press the < m > button.

- Use the < (○) > dial or < 🔆 > to select a character, then press < (◎) > to enter it.
- 4. Exit the setting.
 - Press the < MENU > button, then press [OK].

5. Select a registered file name.



• Select [File name], then choose a registered file name.

Caution

An underscore ("_") cannot be used as the first character.

Note

User setting 2

Shooting after you have selected "*** + image size" (as registered to User setting 2) will add a character representing the current image size to your file name as the fourth character. Meanings of added characters are as follows.

"****L": ▲L, ▲L, RAW, or [19]3 "***M": ▲M or ▲M "***S": ▲S1 or ▲S1 "***C": S2 "***C": CRAW

The automatically added fourth character enables you to determine image sizes without opening the files after transferring them to a computer. Based on file extensions, you can also distinguish RAW, JPEG, and HEIF images.

 Movies recorded with User setting 2 are named with the fourth character as an underscore.

Formatting

If the card is new or was previously formatted (initialized) by another camera or computer, format the card with this camera.

Caution

- When the card is formatted, all images and data on the card will be erased. Even protected images will be erased, so make sure there is nothing you need to keep. If necessary, transfer the images and data to a computer, etc. before formatting the card.
 - 1. Select [4: Format card].



2. Select a card.



- [1] represents card 1, and [2], card 2.
- Select the card.

3. Format the card.



• Select [OK].

Portfatt overd	8
Formal All data will	undfi I be kotti
Total and	7 II GR
Canal	OK .

For low-level formatting, press the < m
 > button to add a checkmark
 [√] to [Low level format], then select [OK].

Tonditions requiring card formatting

- The card is new.
- The card was formatted by a different camera or a computer.
- The card is full of images or data.
- A card-related error is displayed (2).

Low-level formatting

- Perform low-level formatting if the card's writing or reading speed seems slow or if you
 want to totally erase the data on the card.
- Since low-level formatting will format all recordable sectors on the card, the formatting will take longer than normal formatting.
- During low-level formatting, you can cancel formatting by selecting [Cancel]. Even in this case, normal formatting will already be complete and you can use the card as usual.

Card file formats

- SD/SDHC cards will be formatted in FAT32. SDXC cards will be formatted in exFAT.
- Individual movies recorded to exFAT-formatted cards are recorded as a single file (without splitting them into multiple files) even if they exceed 4 GB, so the resulting movie file will exceed 4 GB.

Caution

- It may not be possible to use SDXC cards formatted with this camera in other cameras. Also note that exFAT-formatted cards may not be recognized by some computer operating systems or card readers.
- Formatting or erasing data on a card does not completely erase the data. Be aware
 of this when selling or discarding the card. When disposing of cards, take steps to
 protect personal information if necessary, as by physically destroying cards.

Note

- The card capacity displayed on the card format screen may be smaller than the capacity indicated on the card.
- This device incorporates exFAT technology licensed from Microsoft.


You can change the auto rotation setting that straightens images shot in vertical orientation when they are displayed.

1. Select [4: Auto rotate].



2. Select an option.



On

Automatically rotates images for display on both the camera and computers.

• On 🛄

Automatically rotates images only for display on computers.

Off

Images are not automatically rotated.

Caution

 Images captured with auto rotation set to [Off] will not rotate during playback even if you later set auto rotation to [On].

Note

- If a picture is taken while the camera is aimed up or down, automatic rotation to the proper orientation for viewing may not be performed correctly.
- If images are not rotated automatically on a computer, try using EOS software.

For movies recorded with the camera held vertically, orientation information indicating which side is up can be added automatically to enable playback in the same orientation on smartphones or other devices.

1. Select [4: Add 🐂 rotate info].



2. Select an option.

Add '# rotate into	
Citable Citable	
CODIE	
	AT 100

Enable

Play movies on smartphones or other devices in the orientation in which they were recorded.

Disable

Play movies horizontally on smartphones or other devices, regardless of the recording orientation.

Caution

 Movies are played horizontally on the camera and via HDMI video output, regardless of this setting. When you turn on the power for the first time or if the date/time/zone have been reset, follow these steps to set the time zone first.

By setting the time zone first, you can simply adjust this setting as needed in the future and the date/time will be updated to match it.

Since the captured images will be appended with the shooting date and time information, be sure to set your date/time.

1. Select [4: Date/Time/Zone].



2. Set the time zone.



Turn the < >> dial to select [Time zone].



Press < (ET) >.

Time some	k lened
Yangan Bangkok Beting Singapon Tokyo Sinual Astelah	+0+30 +0700 +0400 +0400 +0400 +0400 +0420

- Turn the < () > dial to select the time zone, then press < () >.
- If your time zone is not listed, press the < MENU > button, then set the difference from UTC in [Time difference].

061605281	a lood.
hre	
Time of Hormon	4 60 (13

- Turn the < >> dial to select a [Time difference] option (+-/hour/ minute), then press < (ii) >.
- Set by turning the < () > dial, then press < () >.
- After entering the time zone or time difference, turn the < > dial to select [OK], then press < ().

3. Set the date and time.



- Turn the < () > dial to select an option, then press < () >.
- Set by turning the < () > dial, then press < () >.

4. Set daylight saving time.



- Set it as necessary.
- Turn the < >> dial to select [*], then press < <>>.
- Turn the < >> dial to select [*], then press < <>>.
- When the daylight saving time is set to [*], the time set in step 3 will advance by 1 hour. If [*] is set, the daylight saving time will be canceled and the time will go back by 1 hour.

5. Exit the setting.

Seletines	orine 1018/144	10200	it.	_
H.H.	2020 mm25	11		
S. Tokyock	-			
	. CH		G	NOR

Turn the < () > dial to select [OK].

Caution

- The date, time, and time zone settings may be reset when the camera is stored without the battery, when the battery is exhausted, or when it is exposed to freezing temperatures for an extended period. If this happens, set them once again.
- After changing [Zone/Time difference], check that the correct date/time are set.

Note

 Auto power off time may be extended while the [": Date/Time/Zone] screen is displayed. 1. Select [¥: Language].

	47.04 47.04
Constant of the	Region and
Villera-Seraterety	For MINE
HER TOX I LET	Small 1
Hard Street Street	Nouth #
Headphone volume	08
Powier saving	901A
itto mode	00

2. Set the desired language.

tegnet.	Cettere	
Destan	and the grant the second	
hisrgate 1	Taingsing	
Neckerlands		
Carok	Barriana	
Portugues	TURKE	
Swork	Night -	
10.000	mardre.	
	187	06

Set the video system of any television used for display. This setting determines the frame rates available when you record movies.

1. Select [4: Video system].

O # E +	
• (a) + + +	atini
Lastander 2	Toglin .
al fect system	For title
Here you have	Start at
Headphone estute	08
Power saverage	
itoo mode	00

2. Select an option.



For NTSC

For areas where the TV system is NTSC (North America, Japan, South Korea, Mexico, etc.).

For PAL

For areas where the TV system is PAL (Europe, Russia, China, Australia, etc.).

Changing the Help Text Size

When [**INFO** Help] is displayed, you can display a description of the feature by pressing the < [NFO > button. Press it again to exit Help display. To scroll the screen when a scrollbar (1) appears on the right, turn the < \bigcirc > dial.

• Example: [AF: Case 2]





• Example: [[•] : Multi function lock]

Multi function lock
Main Dial
OK Cancel
ING Hels
< INFO >
Multi function lock
Select controls that are deactivated when the multi-function lock button is prested. This can been prevent activitientially changing orthogs
100 52

1. Select [4: Help text size].

0 AF E H	
8. CM 8. 4. 4	(47.10)
Constanting of the second second	English
Villed system	for MINC
HARD SHIT HIRE	Small
AND DOUGHT STORE	Sinal R
Heidptone volume	08
Power saving	983 a
itos moste-	00

2. Select an option.

00.040110-0	14.42
Help text size	Datitat

1. Select [4: Beep].

O AF E H	1.2	
· (#) · · ·		41.00
Langer (m.S.	English	
Video fasteri	FOR MIDE	
1489 1042 4-18	timen	
Handsteine erlatte	100	
Roman statistic		
itio moste	Det .	

2. Select an option.



Enable

The camera beeps after focusing and in response to touch operations.

• Touch 成

Disables beeping for touch operations.

Disable

Disables beeping for focus confirmation, self-timer shooting, and touch operations.

1. Select [4: Headphone volume].

O AF E H		
· (#1 · · · ·		147.041
Langward	English	
Video testeri	FORMER	
Help text size	Sheri	
and the state of the second	Aires of	
Interaction and the	Lis .	
Ponet Lanting.		
itto moste-	-Det	

2. Adjust the volume.



● Turn the < () > dial to adjust the volume, then press < () >.

Note

 You can check sound from the built-in microphone or an external microphone on headphones when [C: Sound recording] is set to an option other than [Disable] and [High Frame Rate] is set to [Disable]. You can adjust the timing of when the screen, camera, and viewfinder turn off automatically after the camera is left idle (Display off, Auto power off, and Viewfinder off).

1. Select [4: Power saving].

0 W E H		
1. 181 1 4 4		10
Language #	Engine	
Video (proteir)	FOR MIDE	
HEPTOCHUS	Sher	
Billion 1	Seat 4	
Heidphone edute	108	
Poter save rg		
ticca menda-	08	

2. Select an option.

Power saving	
Comptain Ort	1.min
Also sower old	1000
Valentinates off	3.00
	12(147) 201

Note

- Even when [Auto power off] is set to [Disable], the screen will turn off after the time set in [Display off].
- [Display off] and [Auto power off] settings have no effect when [\u03c6: Eco mode] is set to [On].

Eco Mode

Enables you to conserve battery power in shooting mode. When the camera is not in use, the screen darkens to reduce battery consumption.

1. Select [4: Eco mode].

O M E H	
(a) (a) (b) (b) (b)	(41.00)
Lang-Arged	English .
Video (prove)	FOR MISE
PREMIERS	Shell .
A Mary Street or ser	No. 4
inelatione edute	08
Ponict save to	مرور المحمد والإيمان
Rep mode	DH1

2. Select [On].



- The screen darkens when the camera is not used for approx. two seconds. Approx. ten seconds after darkening, the screen turns off.
- To activate the screen and prepare for shooting when the screen is off, press the shutter button halfway.

You can specify to use the screen or viewfinder for display, to avoid accidentally activating the eye sensor when the screen is open.

1. Select [4: Screen/viewfinder display].



2. Select an option.

ScreenviewEnder Bla	lar
Participation and a solution	
Vesticaler	
Scient	183
	AV DOM

AUTO1: Auto 1 (m⁽⁻⁾: only screen)

Always use the screen for display when it is open. Use the screen for display when it is closed and facing you, and switch to the viewfinder when you look through it.

AUTO2: Auto 2 (m⁽¹⁾: auto switching)

Use the screen for display when it is closed and facing you, and switch to viewfinder display when you look through the viewfinder.

Tiewfinder

Always use the viewfinder for display.

Always use the screen for display when it is open.

Note

- You can also switch between viewfinder and screen display by pressing a button you have customized by assigning to switching. With this setting set to [AUTO1] or [AUTO2], the camera responds to the eye sensor accordingly.
- With [AUTO1] set, the camera responds to the eye sensor when the screen is closed and facing you but does not respond when it is swung out.

1. Select [¥: Screen brightness].



2. Make the adjustment.



● Referring to the gray image, turn the < (○) > dial to adjust brightness, then press < (④) >. Check the effect on the screen.

Note

To check the image's exposure, referring to the histogram is recommended (2).

1. Select [4: Viewfinder brightness].



- 2. Turn the < i > dial and select either [Auto] or [Manual].
 - Auto



Press < (ET) >. Check the effect in the viewfinder.

Manual



 Turn the < () > dial to adjust viewfinder brightness, then press < () >. Check the effect in the viewfinder. 1. Select [$\mathbf{\Psi}$: Screen/viewfinder color tone].



2. Make the adjustment.



Turn the < () > dial to select an option, then press < () >.

1. Select [4: Fine-tune VF color tone].



2. Make the adjustment.



● Referring to the gray image, use < ⅔ > for adjustment, then press < 健 >. Check the effect in the viewfinder.

UI Magnification

You can magnify menu screens by double-tapping with two fingers. Double-tap again to restore the original display size.

1. Select [4: UI magnification].



2. Select [Enable].



Caution

 Use camera controls when configuring menu functions with the display magnified. Touch-screen operations are not supported. Set the image output resolution used when the camera is connected to a television or external recording device with an HDMI cable.

1. Select [4: HDMI resolution].

100 100
ŧ.,
-

2. Select an option.

HERMS ADD	olution	
1000		
Toese.		
Cinplay in	Up take some time	E, 19791
THE CARTNER	re policies nuclu	304

Auto

The images will automatically be displayed at the optimum resolution matching the connected television.

1080p

Output at 1080p resolution. Select if you prefer to avoid display or delay issues when the camera switches resolution.

1. Select [4: Touch control].



2. Select an option.



- [Sensitive] makes the touch-screen panel more responsive than [Standard].
- To disable touch operations, select [Disable].

Caution

Precautions for touch-screen panel operations

- Do not use sharp objects such as fingernails or ballpoint pens for touch operations.
- Do not use wet fingers for touch operations. If the screen has any moisture or if your fingers are wet, the touch-screen panel may not respond or malfunction may occur. In this case, turn off the power and wipe off the moisture with a cloth.
- Attaching a commercially available protective sheet or a sticker on the screen may impair responsiveness to touch operations.
- The camera may not respond as well if you quickly perform touch operation when [Sensitive] is set.

Specify camera controls to lock when the Multi-function lock is enabled. This can help prevent accidentally changing settings.

1. Select [4: Multi function lock].



2. Select camera controls to lock.



- Press < (1) > to add a checkmark [√].
- Select [OK].
- Pressing the < LOCK > button locks the selected [v] camera controls.

Note

 An asterisk "*" to the right of [\u03c6: Multi function lock] indicates that the default setting has been modified. You can set whether to leave the shutter open or close it when the camera's power switch is set to < OFF >.

1. Select [4: Shutter at shutdown].

O AF E H	1.1	***
HOM resultation	Auto	
Nutl function rack	Incast	
disational shortdown		100

2. Select an option.

Shutter at chatleven	
Coldect Open	R N
	1kT 106

III: Closed

Closes the shutter. Normally set to closed, to prevent dust from adhering to the sensor when you switch lenses.

1: Open

Leaves the shutter open. This keeps camera quieter when the power switch is set to < ON > or < OFF >. Useful when you want to shoot quietly.

Note

 Regardless of the setting, the shutter remains as it is when auto power off is activated.

Sensor Cleaning

- Cleaning Now
- Cleaning Automatically
- ☑ Cleaning Manually ☆

The camera's sensor cleaning feature cleans the front of the image sensor.



Cleaning Now

1. Select [¥: Sensor cleaning].



2. Select [Clean now. -].



• Select [OK] on the confirmation screen.

Note

Even if you repeat the sensor cleaning, the result will not improve much. Note that [Clean now, __] may not be available immediately after cleaning. 1. Select [Auto cleaning. -].



2. Select an option.



Turn the < () > dial to select an option, then press < () >.

Dust that could not be removed by automatic cleaning can be removed manually with a commercially available blower or similar tool.

Always use a fully charged battery.

The image sensor is extremely delicate. If the sensor needs to be cleaned directly, having it done by a Canon Service Center is recommended.

1. Select [Clean manually].



2. Select [ОК].

O sen manuality
Select (DK) and close the sensor
Centri OK
Ownmanary
Turn the canona server off after cleaning

 $\textbf{3.} \hspace{0.1 cm} \textbf{Remove the lens and clean the sensor.}$

4. End the cleaning.

Set the power switch to < OFF >.

Note

Using the household power outlet accessories (sold separately) is recommended.

Caution

- While cleaning the sensor, never do any of the following. If the power is cut
 off, the shutter will close. These may result in damaging the image sensor
 and shutter curtains.
 - · Setting the power switch to < OFF >.
 - · Removing or inserting the battery.
- The surface of the image sensor is extremely delicate. Clean the sensor with care.
- Use a plain blower without any brush attached. A brush can scratch the sensor.
- Do not insert the blower tip inside the camera beyond the lens mount. If the power is turned off, the shutter will close and the shutter curtains may get damaged.
- Never use pressurized air or gas to clean the sensor. Pressurized air may damage the sensor, and sprayed gas may freeze on the sensor and scratch it.
- If the battery level becomes low while cleaning the sensor, the beeper will sound as a warning. Stop cleaning the sensor.
- If a smudge that cannot be removed with a blower remains, having the sensor cleaned by a Canon Service Center is recommended.

The camera's settings for shooting functions and menu functions can be restored to their defaults.

1. Select [4: Reset camera].



2. Select an option.

Reset Carriers	
Other settings	- 0-
	0005

Basic settings

Restores default settings for camera shooting functions and menu settings.

Other settings

Settings for individual selected items can be reset.

3. Clear the settings.

Select [OK] on the confirmation screen.

Note

 Custom shooting modes are reset when [Custom shooting mode (C1-C3)] in [Other settings] is selected.

- Automatic Update of Registered Settings
- Canceling Registered Custom Shooting Modes

You can register current camera settings such as shooting, menu, and Custom Function settings as Custom shooting modes assigned to < () > to < () > modes.

1. Select [4: Custom shooting mode (C1-C3)].



2. Select [Register settings].



3. Register the desired items.



- Select the Custom shooting mode to register, then select [OK] on the [Register settings] screen.
- The current camera settings are registered to Custom shooting mode C*.

Automatic Update of Registered Settings

If you change a setting while shooting in Custom shooting mode, the mode can be automatically updated with the new setting (Auto update). To enable this automatic update, set [Auto update set.] to [Enable] in step 2.
If you select [Clear settings] in step 2, the settings of each mode can be restored to default settings, as they were before registration.



Battery Information

- Registering Batteries to the Camera
- Labeling Batteries with Serial Numbers
- Checking the Remaining Capacity of a Registered Battery Not in Use
- Deleting the Registered Battery Information

You can check the conditions of the battery you are using. By registering multiple batteries to the camera, you can check their approximate remaining capacity and usage history.

1. Select [4: Battery info.].



anter, m		TO SAME	
Distant of	g-Lig: Ourst	15	$^{-(3)}_{-(4)}$
Referre	performance.		-(5)
10000			
100110		LOUGH T	

(1) Battery position

(2) Model of battery or household power source used.

(3) Battery level indicator (😰) with the remaining battery level, in 1% increments.

(4) The number of shots taken with the current battery. The number is reset when the battery is charged.

(5) State of battery recharge performance, in three levels.

Green): Battery recharge performance is good.

Green): Battery recharge performance is slightly degraded.

(Red): Purchasing a new battery is recommended.

Caution

Using a genuine Canon Battery Pack LP-E6NH/LP-E6N is recommended. If you
use batteries that are not genuine Canon products, the camera's full performance
may not be attained or malfunction may result.

Note

- The shutter count is the number of still photos taken (not including movie recording).
- Battery information is also displayed when an optional Battery Grip BG-R10 is used.
- If a battery communication error message is displayed, follow the instructions in the message.

You can register up to six LP-E6NH/LP-E6N/LP-E6 battery packs to the camera. To register multiple batteries to the camera, follow the procedure below for each battery.

- 1. Press the < INFO > button.
 - With the battery info. screen displayed, press the < INFO > button.
 - If the battery is not registered, it will be grayed out.



2. Select [Register].



3. Select [OK].

• The battery is now displayed in white.



Note

 The battery cannot be registered if the household power outlet accessories (sold separately, 2) are used. It is convenient to label registered LP-E6NH/LP-E6N/LP-E6 battery packs with their serial numbers, using commercially available labels.

1. On a label approx. 25×15 mm, write the serial number (1).



2. Apply the label.

- Set the power switch to < OFF >.
- Remove the battery from the camera.
- Apply the label as shown in the illustration (on the side with no electrical contacts).



Caution

- Do not apply the label on any part other than as shown in the illustration in step 2. Otherwise, the misplaced label may make it difficult to insert the battery or impossible to turn on the power.
- When you use Battery Grip BG-R10 (sold separately), the label may peel off after repeated insertion and removal from the battery magazine. If it peels off, apply a new label.

You can check the remaining capacity of batteries not currently in use, as well as their last date of use.

- 1. Find the matching serial number.
 - On the battery history screen, find the battery serial number (1) matching the serial number that the battery is labeled with.
 - You can check the respective battery's approximate remaining capacity (2) and the date when it was last used (3).



1. Select [Delete info.].

- In <u>Registering Batteries to the Camera</u>, select [Delete info.] in step 2.
- 2. Select the battery information to delete.
 - [√] is displayed.
- 3. Press the $< \overline{m} >$ button.
 - Select [OK] on the confirmation screen.

- Checking the Copyright Information
- Deleting the Copyright Information

When you set the copyright information, it will be recorded to the image as Exif information.

	Caution
•	If the entry for "Author" or "Copyright" is long, it may not be displayed entirely when you select [Display copyright info.].
_	
	Note
•	You can also set or check copyright information with EOS Utility (EOS software, \mathcal{O}).

1. Select [4: Copyright information].



2. Select an option.



3. Enter text.



- Use the < () > dial or < 🔆 > to select a character, then press < (e) > to enter it.
- By selecting [^A], you can change the input mode.

4. Exit the setting.

Press the < MENU > button, then press [OK].

Checking the Copyright Information



When you select [Display copyright info.] in step 2, you can check the [Author] and [Copyright] information that you entered.

When you select [Delete copyright information] in step 2, you can delete the [Author] and [Copyright] information.



Manual/software URL

To download instruction manuals, select [**Ý**: **Manual/software URL**] and scan the displayed QR code with a smartphone. You can also use a computer to access the website at the URL displayed and download software.

■ Certification Logo Display ☆

Select [**Y**: Certification Logo Display] to display some of the logos of the camera's certifications. Other certification logos can be found on the camera body and packaging.

● Firmware 🕁

Select [**\vec{v}**: Firmware] to update the firmware of the camera, lens, or other compatible accessories in use.

You can fine-tune camera functions and change the functionality of buttons and dials to suit your shooting preferences. You can also add menu items and Custom Functions that you adjust frequently to My Menu tabs.

- Tab Menus: Customization
- <u>Custom Function Setting Items</u>
- <u>Tab Menus: My Menu</u>
- Registering My Menu

Custom Functions 1

	1.04	
Exposure level accessents RD upped setting increments	167	(1) (2)
Speed from metering/ISO Auto Bracketing auto cancel	01	(3) (4)
Dracketing sequence Nomber of Inscheted clusts	8-te-	(5) (6)
Safety shift	011	(7)

- (1) Exposure level increments
- (2) ISO speed setting increments
- (3) Speed from metering/ISO Auto
- (4) Bracketing auto cancel
- (5) Bracketing sequence
- (6) Number of bracketed shots
- (7) Safety shift
- Custom Functions 2



- (1) Same expo. for new aperture
- (2) AE lock meter. mode after focus
- (3) Set shutter speed range
- (4) Set aperture range

Custom Functions 3



- (1) Dial direction during Tv/Av
- (2) Control ring rotation
- (3) Customize buttons
- (4) Customize dials
- (5) Clear customized settings

Custom Functions 4

O MEDINE H	9	
	110	243
Add cropping information	0.05	(1)
Audio compression	OIL	-(2)
Detault Enere option		(3)
Release strutter sub-liene	0.1	(4)
Retract lons on power off Add IPSC information	011	(5)
Add Proc. HEIGHTMERCH		

- (1) Add cropping information
- (2) Audio compression
- (3) Default Erase option
- (4) Release shutter w/o lens
- (5) Retract lens on power off
- (6) Add IPTC information

Custom Functions 5



(1) Clear all Custom Func. (C.Fn)

Selecting [....: Clear all Custom Func. (C.Fn)] clears all Custom Function settings.

- C.Fn1
- C.Fn2
- C.Fn3
- ☑ <u>C.Fn4</u>
- C.Fn5

You can customize camera features on the [.n.] tab to suit your shooting preferences. Any settings you change from default values are displayed in blue.

Exposure level increments

Sets 1/2-stop increments for the shutter speed, aperture value, exposure compensation, AEB, flash exposure compensation, etc.

- 1/3: 1/3-stop
- 1/2: 1/2-stop



ISO speed setting increments

You can change the manual ISO speed setting increment to a whole stop.

- 1/3: 1/3-stop
- 1/1: 1-stop

Note

 Even if [1-stop] is set, ISO speed will be automatically set in 1/3-stop increments when ISO Auto is set.

Speed from metering/ISO Auto

You can set the ISO speed status after the metering timer ends in cases where, for ISO Auto operation in < P > < Tv > < Av > < M > < B > mode, the camera has adjusted the ISO speed during metering or during the metering timer.

- AUTO : Restore Auto after metering
- AUTO :: Retain speed after metering

Bracketing auto cancel

You can specify to cancel AEB and white balance bracketing when the power switch is set to < OFF >.

- ON: Enable
- OFF: Disable

Bracketing sequence

The AEB shooting sequence and white balance bracketing sequence can be changed.

- 0-+: 0, -, +
- -0+: -, 0, +
- +0-: +, 0, -

AEB	White Balance	e Bracketing
AED	B/A Direction	M/G Direction
0: Standard exposure	0: Standard white balance	0: Standard white balance
-: Underexposure	-: Blue bias	−: Magenta bias
+: Overexposure	+: Amber bias	+: Green bias

Number of bracketed shots

The number of shots taken with AEB and white balance bracketing can be changed. When [**Bracketing sequence**] is set to [0, -, +], the bracketed shots will be taken as shown in the following table.

- 3: 3 shots
- 2: 2 shots
- 5: 5 shots
- 7: 7 shots

(1-stop/step increments)

	1st Shot	2nd Shot	3rd Shot	4th Shot	5th Shot	6th Shot	7th Shot
3: 3 shots	Standard (0)	-1	+1				
2: 2 shots	Standard (0)	±1					
5: 5 shots	Standard (0)	-2	-1	+1	+2		
7: 7 shots	Standard (0)	-3	-2	-1	+1	+2	+3

Note

 If [2 shots] is set, you can select the + or - side when setting the AEB range. With WB bracketing, the second shot is adjusted toward the negative side for the B/A or M/G direction.

Safety shift

If the subject brightness changes and the standard exposure cannot be obtained within the autoexposure range, the camera will automatically change the manually selected setting to obtain the standard exposure. [Shutter speed/Aperture] applies to < Tv > or < Av > mode. [ISO speed] applies to < P >, < Tv >, or < Av > mode.

- OFF: Disable
- Tv/Av: Shutter speed/Aperture
- ISO: ISO speed
 - Note
 - Safety shift overrides any changes to [ISO speed range] or [Min. shutter spd.] from default settings in [D: DISO speed settings] if standard exposure cannot be obtained.
 - The minimum and maximum limits for the safety shift with the ISO speed are
 determined by [Auto range] (@). However, if the manually set ISO speed exceeds
 the [Auto range], the safety shift will take effect up or down to the manually set
 ISO speed.
 - Safety shift will take effect as necessary even when flash is used.

Same expo. for new aperture

The maximum aperture value may decrease (the lowest f/number may increase) in < M > mode (manual exposure shooting) with ISO speed set manually (except when set to ISO Auto) if you (1) Change lenses, (2) Attach an extender, or (3) Use a zoom lens with a variable maximum aperture value. This function prevents the corresponding underexposure by adjusting ISO speed or shutter speed (Tv value) automatically to maintain the same exposure as before (1), (2), or (3).

With **[ISO speed/Shutter speed]**, the ISO speed is automatically adjusted within the ISO speed range. If exposure cannot be maintained by adjusting ISO speed, shutter speed (Tv value) is automatically adjusted.

- OFF: Disable
- ISO: ISO speed
- ISO/Tv: ISO speed/Shutter speed
- Tv: Shutter speed

Caution

- Does not respond to changes in effective aperture value from changes in magnification when macro lenses are used.
- Cannot provide the same exposure as before (1), (2), or (3) if [ISO speed] is set and the exposure cannot be maintained at speeds set in [ISO speed range].
- Cannot provide the same exposure as before (1), (2), or (3) if [Shutter speed] is set and the exposure cannot be maintained at speeds set in [, , ; Set shutter speed range].

Note

- Also responds to changes in the highest f/number (minimum aperture).
- The original exposure setting is restored if you perform (1), (2), or (3) with [ISO speed]. [ISO speed/Shutter speed], or [Shutter speed] set and do not adjust ISO speed, shutter speed, or aperture value before returning the camera to the original state, before (1), (2), or (3).
- Shutter speed may change to maintain exposure if the ISO speed increases to an expanded ISO speed when [ISO speed] is set.

AE lock meter. mode after focus



For each metering mode, you can specify whether to lock the exposure (AE lock) once subjects are in focus with One-Shot AF. The exposure will be locked while you keep pressing the shutter button halfway. Select metering modes for AE lock and add a checkmark [\checkmark]. Select [**OK**] to register the setting.

Set shutter speed range

You can set the shutter speed range. In $\langle FV \rangle$, $\langle TV \rangle$, or $\langle M \rangle$ mode, you can set the shutter speed manually within your specified range. In $\langle P \rangle$ and $\langle AV \rangle$ mode, or in $\langle FV \rangle$ mode with shutter speed set to [AUTO], the shutter speed is set automatically within your specified range (except for movie recording). Select [OK] to register the setting.

Lowest speed

Can be set in a range of 30 sec.-1/4000 sec.

Highest speed

Can be set in a range of 1/8000 sec.-15 sec.

Set aperture range

You can set the aperture value range. In < Fv >, < Av >, < M >, or < B > mode, you can set the aperture value manually within your specified range. In < P > and < Tv > mode, or in < Fv > mode with the aperture value set to [AUTO], the aperture value is set automatically within your specified range. Select [OK] to register the setting.

Max. aperture

Can be set in a range of f/1.0-f/64.

Min. aperture

Can be set in a range of f/91-f/1.4.

Note

 The available aperture value range varies depending on the lens's minimum and maximum aperture value.

Dial direction during Tv/Av

Dial turning direction when setting the shutter speed and aperture value can be reversed. Reverses the turning direction of the < $(\square_3 >, < \square >)$, and < $(\square_3 >)$ dial in < M > shooting mode and only the < $(\square_3 >)$ dial in other shooting modes. The direction of the < (\square) > and < $(\square_3 >)$ dial in < M > mode matches the direction to set exposure compensation in < P >, < Tv >, and < Av > modes.

- -----+: Normal
- +-: Reverse direction

Control ring rotation

RF lens and mount adapter control ring turning direction when setting the shutter speed and aperture value can be reversed.

- -___+: Normal
- +_: Reverse direction

Customize buttons

You can assign frequently used functions to camera buttons that are easy for you to use. Different functions, for use when shooting still photos or movies, can be assigned to the same button.

1. Select [. A.: Customize buttons].



2. Select a camera control.



3. Select a function to assign.



- Press < (st) > to set it.
- You can configure advanced settings for functions labeled with
 [INEO] in the lower left of the screen by pressing the < INFO > button.

Note

 [.Q.: Customize buttons] settings are not cleared even if you select [.Q.: Clear all Custom Func. (C.Fn)]. To clear the settings, select [.Q.: Clear customized settings].

Functions available for customization

AF

Function	٩		AF-ON	×		0	ŒNB	MER	SET	*
©"AF										
Metering and AF start	•		•	0	0	0	0			
AF-OFF										
AF stop		0	0	0	0	0	•	0		
.				0						
AF point selection										
-⊪++										
Direct AF point selection										0
G.										
Set AF point to center		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	•	
AF										
Switch to registered AF func.*1			0	0	0	0	0			
c J D										
Direct AF method selection*1		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
ONE SHOT										
One-Shot AF 컱 Servo AF"1		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
A F										
Eye Detection AF*1			0	0	0	0	0			
Ē.										
Touch & drag AF		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
۲										
Eye detection		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

•: Default o: Available for customization

PEAK			0	0	0	0			
Peaking	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	Ŭ	
Focus guide	o	0	0	0	0	o	o	o	
لیے Drive mode ^{*1}	o	o	o	0	0	o	o	o	

* 1: Cannot be assigned as a function available in movie recording.

Exposure

Function	۲		AFION	*		0			633	*
۲	0									
Metering start	0									
*		0		•*3	0	0	0	0		
AE lock		0	0		0	0	0	0		
Х н					0		0			
AE lock (hold)		Ŭ		0	0	Ū	0	Ŭ		
× _{AF-OFF}					0		0			
AE lock, AF stop		0		0	0		0	0		
*	0									
AE lock (while button pressed)*1	0									
AEL FEL			0	•*4	0		0	0		
AE lock/FE lock*1		Ū		•	0		0	Ū		
'2≝					0		0		0	
Expo comp (hold btn, turn 💥)				0	0	Ű	0		Ű	
ISO. <u>₹</u>					0		0		0	
Set ISO speed(hold btn,turn					0		0			
FEL		0		0	0	0	0	0		
FE lock*1					5					

•: Default o: Available for customization

* 1: Cannot be assigned as a function available in movie recording.

* 3: Default in movie recording.

* 4: Default in still photo shooting.

Image

Function	٢		AFON	*	8	0	ŒNB		SED	*
ŧ							0			
Image quality*1				-	-	-	-	-		
RAW JPEG							0			
One-touch image quality setting*1		Ŭ	Ŭ	Ŭ	Ū	0	0	0	Ũ	
RAW JPEG H							0			
One-touch image quality (hold)*1		Ū	Ū	Ū	Ū	0	0	0	Ũ	
L'in							0			
Record func+card/folder sel.		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
[++]		0	0	0		0	0	0	0	
Cropping/aspect ratio*1						0	0	0	0	
			0				0		0	
Auto Lighting Optimizer		Ū	Ū	Ū	Ū	0	0	0	Ũ	
a 1							0			
Picture Style						0	0	0	0	
<u>о</u> п							0			
Protect		0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
*			0				0			
Rating							, ,	5		

•: Default o: Available for customization

* 1: Cannot be assigned as a function available in movie recording.

•: Default o: Available for customization

Function	٩		ALEON	*	8	0	CENS	MED	SED	*
								0		
Zebra pattern*2				0	0		0	0	0	
ب ج				0				0		
Movie recording			Ŭ	0		Ŭ	Ű	Ŭ		
STRND AF		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Pause Movie Servo AF										

* 2: Cannot be assigned as a function available in still photo shooting.

Operation

•: Default o: Available for customization

Function	٩		AFOD	×		0	CENS		GED	*
34						0	0		0	
Flash function settings*1		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
DIAL FUNC		0	0	0	0	0	0		0	
Dial function settings		0		0	0	0	0	•	0	
0		0				•*3	0			
Depth-of-field preview ^{*1}										
AUTO		0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
Reset selected item in Fv mode*1										
Allo		0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
Reset Tv/Av/2/ISO in Fv mode*1					-			_		
Q		0	0	0	0	0	o	0	0	
Quick Control screen										
٩		0		0	0		0	0	0	
Magnify/Reduce										
Þ									0	
Image replay										
Þq		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Magnify images during playback										
` @^			0	0	0	0	0			
Register/recall shooting func*1										
MENU		0	0	0	0	0	o	0	0	
Menu display										
Ċŝ.		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Touch Shutter*1										
E.		0	0	0	0	0	o	0	0	
Create folder*1										

Maximize screen brightness (temp)	o	o	o	o	o	o	0	o	
් ^z Display off	0	o	0	0	o	0	0	o	
OI Switch between VF/screen	0	o	o	o	o	o	0	o	
ECO Eco mode	0	o	o	o	o	o	0	o	
(۹۰) Wi-Fi function	0	o	o	o	o	o	0	o	
OFF No function (disabled)	0	o	o	o	• ^{*4}	o	0	o	•

* 1: Cannot be assigned as a function available in movie recording.

* 3: Default in still photo shooting.

* 4: Default in movie recording.

Note

• [LINS]: "AF stop button" on Image Stabilizer-equipped super telephoto lenses.

Customize dials

Frequently used functions can be assigned to the < $\frac{1}{2} > < \bigcirc > < < \bigcirc > < \bigcirc > < <) < < \bigcirc > < <) < < \bigcirc > < <] > < <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <] > <$

1. Select [: Customize dials].



2. Select a camera control.



3. Select a function to assign.



- Press < (st) > to set it.
- You can configure advanced settings for functions labeled with
 [INEO] in the lower left of the screen by pressing the < INFO > button.

Note

 [.Q.: Customize dials] settings are not cleared even if you select [.Q.: Clear all Custom Func. (C.Fn)]. To clear the settings, select [.Q.: Clear customized settings].

Functions available for dials

•: Default o: Available for customization

	Function	Pro-	EL CONSTR	0	()
AF□	Select AF method		0	0	0
⊪⊕	Direct AF point selection		0	0	
AF□≞	AF method (hold meter. btn)				0
Τv	Change shutter speed				0
Av	Change aperture value				0
2	Exposure compensation		0	0	0
ISO	Set ISO speed		•	0	0
Tv≞	Change shutter spd. (hold meter. btn)				0
Av≞	Change aperture (hold meter. btn)				0
₹	Exposure comp. (hold meter. btn)				•
ISO ≣	Set ISO speed (hold meter. btn)				0
52 ±	Flash exp comp (hold meter.btn)				0
Τv	Shutter speed setting in M mode	•	0	0	
Av	Aperture setting in M mode	0	0	•	
WB	White balance selection		0	0	0
K	Select color temperature		0	0	0
25	Picture Style		0	0	0
WB≛	Select WB (hold meter. btn)				0
K₹	Color temp. (hold meter. btn)				0
3 . <u>.</u>	Select 🛋 (hold meter. btn)				0
OFF	No function (disabled)	0	0	0	0

Note

- < ﷺ > and < ₩ > dials cannot be customized in [**FV**] mode.
- < ()>: Control ring on RF lenses and mount adapters.
1. Select [. . Clear customized settings].



2. Select [OK].



• [Customize buttons] and [Customize dials] are restored to defaults.

Add cropping information

Adding cropping information displays vertical lines for the aspect ratio specified in shooting, so that you can compose shots as if shooting with a medium- or large-format camera (6×6 cm, 4×5 inch, and so on).

When you shoot, instead of cropping images recorded to the card, the camera adds aspect ratio information to images for cropping in the Digital Photo Professional (EOS software). You can import images to Digital Photo Professional on a computer and easily crop images to the aspect ratio set at the time of shooting.

- OFF: Disable
- 6:6: Aspect ratio 6:6
- 3:4: Aspect ratio 3:4
- 4:5: Aspect ratio 4:5
- 6:7: Aspect ratio 6:7
- 5:6: Aspect ratio 10:12
- 5:7: Aspect ratio 5:7

Caution

- Cropping information can only be added when [C : Cropping/aspect ratio] is set to [Full-frame].
- JPEG or HEIF images are not saved at the cropped size if you use the camera to process RAW images with cropping information (2). In this case, RAW processing produces JPEG or HEIF images with cropping information.

Note

Vertical lines indicating your specified aspect ratio are displayed on the screen.

Audio compression

Sets audio compression for movie recording. [Disable] allows higher audio quality than when audio is compressed, but file sizes are larger.

- ON: Enable
- OFF: Disable

Caution

- Editing movie files recorded with [Disable] and then saving them with compression will also compress the audio.
- Audio is compressed even if [Disable] is selected when [Movie rec quality] is set to #HD29000[IPB][™] (NTSC) or #HD29000[IPB][™] (PAL).

Default Erase option

You can set which option is selected by default in the erase menu (O), which is accessed by pressing the < I > button during image playback or during review after shooting. By setting an option other than [**Cancel**], you can simply press < (O > to erase images quickly.

- fig: [Cancel] selected
- íí: [Erase] selected
- RAW: [EraseRAW] selected
- J/H: [Erase non-RAW] selected

Caution

 Be careful not to erase images accidentally when an option other than [Cancel] is set.

Release shutter w/o lens

You can specify whether shooting still photos or movies is possible without a lens attached.

- OFF: Disable
- ON: Enable

Retract lens on power off

You can set whether to retract gear-type STM lenses (such as EF40mm f/2.8 STM) automatically when the camera's power switch is set to < OFF >.

ON: Enable

OFF: Disable



 When [Enable] is set, this function takes effect regardless of the lens's focus mode switch setting (AF or MF).

Add IPTC information

Registering IPTC (International Press Telecommunications Council) information to the camera from EOS Utility (EOS software) enables you to record (add) this information to JPEG/HEIF/RAW still photos at the time of shooting. **This is helpful in file management** and other tasks using the IPTC information.

For instructions on registering IPTC information to the camera and details on the information you can register, refer to the EOS Utility Instruction Manual.

- OFF: Disable
- ON: Enable

Caution

IPTC information is not added when you record movies.

Note

- During playback, you can check whether IPTC information was added.
- You can use Digital Photo Professional (EOS software) to check IPTC information in images.
- IPTC information registered to the camera is not erased if you select [......: Clear all Custom Func. (C.Fn)] (
 (
), but the setting changes to [Disable].

Clear all Custom Func. (C.Fn)

Note

Performing [.....: Clear all Custom Func. (C.Fn)] does not clear settings configured in [.....: Customize buttons] and [.....: Customize dials]. To clear the settings, select [.....: Clear customized settings]. Note that although information added using [......: Add IPTC information] is retained, the setting changes to [Disable].

0	Af	1	144	¥.	ė.	*	
$\mathcal{A}_{\mathcal{A}}$					****	141.04	
	d My N						 1)
De	ete alt	2017 544					 2) 2)
0.0							 2) 6)
							 '

- (1) Add My Menu tab
- (2) Delete all My Menu tabs
- (3) Delete all items
- (4) Menu display

Registering My Menu

- Creating and Adding My Menu Tabs
- Registering Menu Items on My Menu Tabs
- My Menu Tab Settings
- Deleting All My Menu Tabs/Deleting All Items
- Menu Display Settings

On the My Menu tab, you can register menu items and Custom Functions you often adjust.

1. Select [Add My Menu tab].



2. Select [OK].



• You can create up to five My Menu tabs by repeating steps 1 and 2.

1. Select [MY MENU*: Configure].



2. Select [Select items to register].



3. Register the desired items.



- Select an item, then press < (ii) >.
- Select [OK] on the confirmation screen.
- You can register up to six items.
- To return to the screen in step 2, press the < MENU > button.

Configure	ey ethili
Select items to register	
Satt registered terms	
Delete serviced literal	
Delats at items as 140	
Ovinte tob	
Returns (all)	
	1000

You can sort and delete items on the menu tab, and rename or delete the menu tab itself.

Sort registered items

You can change the order of the registered items in My Menu. Select [**Sort registered items**], select an item to rearrange, then press $< \circledast >$. With [\diamondsuit] displayed, turn the $< \bigcirc >$ dial to rearrange the item, then press $< \circledast >$.

Delete selected items/Delete all items on tab

You can delete any of the registered items. [Delete selected items] deletes one item at a time, and [Delete all items on tab] deletes all the registered items on the tab.

Delete tab

You can delete the current My Menu tab. Select [Delete tab] to delete the [MY MENU*] tab.

Rename tab

You can rename the My Menu tab from [MY MENU*].

1. Select [Rename tab].

2. Enter text.



- To delete single characters, select [] or press the < m > button.
- Use the < () > or < \; > dial or < ☆ > to select a character, then press < @ > to enter it.
- By selecting [2], you can change the input mode.

3. Confirm input.

Press the < MENU > button, then select [OK].

0 # E	÷ *	
And My Merry 1st		
Delote all My Ven	tu Nich	
Gelete all theme		
Mensionapiley 1	Notice of	

You can delete all the created My Menu tabs or My Menu items registered on them.

Delete all My Menu tabs

You can delete all My Menu tabs you created. When you select [Delete all My Menu tabs], all the tabs from [MY MENU1] to [MY MENU5] will be deleted and the [+] tab will revert to its default.

Delete all items

You can delete all the items registered under the [MY MENU1] to [MY MENU5] tabs. The tabs themselves will remain. When [Delete all items] is selected, all the items registered on all the created tabs will be deleted.

Caution

 Performing [Delete tab] or [Delete all My Menu tabs] will also delete tab names renamed with [Rename tab].



You can select [Menu display] to set the menu screen that is to appear first when you press the < MENU > button.

Normal display

Displays the last displayed menu screen.

Display from My Menu tab

Displays with the [+] tab selected.

Display only My Menu tab

Restricts display to the $[\star]$ tab ($[\bullet]/[AF]/[\bullet]/[(\uparrow)]/[(\uparrow)]/[(\uparrow)]$ tabs are not displayed).

Reference

This chapter provides reference information on camera features.

- Importing Images to a Computer
- Using a USB Power Adapter to Charge/Power the Camera
- Using a Battery Grip
- <u>Troubleshooting Guide</u>
- Error Codes
- <u>System Map</u>
- ISO Speed in Movie Recording
- Information Display
- EF Lenses Supporting 12 Shots/Sec. Continuous Shooting
- Specifications

- Connecting to a Computer with an Interface Cable
- Using a Card Reader
- Connecting to a Computer via Wi-Fi

You can use EOS software to import images from the camera to a computer. There are three ways to do this.

Connecting to a Computer with an Interface Cable

- 1. Install EOS Utility (
- 2. Connect the camera to the computer.



- Use an interface cable.
- Insert the other end of the cable into the computer's USB terminal (Type-C).
- 3. Use EOS Utility to import the images.
 - Refer to the EOS Utility Instruction Manual.

Caution

 With a Wi-Fi connection established, the camera cannot communicate with the computer even if they are connected with an interface cable. You can use a card reader to import images to a computer.

- 1. Install Digital Photo Professional (2).
- 2. Insert the card into the card reader.
- 3. Use Digital Photo Professional to import the images.
 - Refer to the Digital Photo Professional Instruction Manual.

Note

 When downloading images from the camera to a computer with a card reader without using EOS software, copy the DCIM folder on the card to the computer. You can connect the camera to the computer via Wi-Fi and import images to the computer (2).



Using a USB Power Adapter to Charge/Power the Camera

Using USB Power Adapter PD-E1 (sold separately), you can charge Battery Pack LP-E6NH or LP-E6N without removing it from the camera. The camera can also be powered. **Note that Battery Pack LP-E6 cannot be charged this way.**

Charging

1. Connect the USB power adapter.



 With the camera power switch set to < OFF >, insert the USB power adapter plug fully into the digital terminal. 2. Connect the power cord.



- Connect the power cord to the USB power adapter and plug the other end into a power outlet.
- Charging begins, and the access lamp (1) is lit in green.



When charging is finished, the access lamp turns off.

Supplying power

To power the camera without charging, set the camera power switch to < ON >. However, batteries are charged during auto power off.

[is displayed on the screen while the camera is powered this way.

To change from powering the camera to charging, set the camera power switch to < OFF >.

Caution

- The camera cannot be powered unless a battery pack is in it.
- When batteries are depleted, the adapter charges them. In this case, power is not supplied to the camera.
- To protect the battery pack and keep it in optimal condition, do not charge it continuously for more than 24 hours.
- If the charging lamp fails to light up or a problem occurs during charging (shown by the access lamp blinking in green), unplug the power cord, reinsert the battery, and wait a few minutes before plugging it in again. If the problem persists, take the camera to the nearest Canon Service Center.
- The charging time required and the amount charged vary depending on ambient temperature and remaining capacity.
- For safety, charging in low temperatures takes longer.
- The remaining battery level may decline when power is supplied to the camera. To avoid running out of battery power, use a fully charged battery when shooting at regular intervals.

- Attaching Batteries
- Using a Household Power Outlet
- Button and Dial Operations
- Using a USB Power Adapter to Charge/Power the Camera

Equipped with buttons and dials for vertical shooting, Battery Grip BG-R10 is an optional camera accessory that can power the camera with two batteries.

1. Remove the contact covers.



Remove contact covers (1) and (2) on the battery grip.



Attach the battery grip contact cover (1) to (2) to store them.

 $2. \ \ {\rm Remove \ the \ battery \ compartment \ cover.}$



- Turn off the camera before removing the battery.
- Remove the battery compartment cover from the camera.





Attach the cover to the battery grip.



 To remove the cover, slide the lever to release it, following the attachment procedure in reverse. $\textbf{3.} \quad \textbf{Attach and lock the battery grip.}$



- Insert the battery in the camera and turn the release dial to lock the battery grip in place.
- 4. Remove the battery magazine.



Caution

- When reattaching the battery compartment cover to the camera, attach it opened to at least 90°.
- Do not touch the camera or battery grip contacts.

1. Attach the batteries.



- Insert the batteries as shown.
- When only one battery is used, it can be inserted in either position.



 To secure the batteries, push in the direction of the arrows until they click into place.



 To remove the batteries, press the battery magazine lever in the direction of the arrow. 2. Attach the battery magazine.



Insert the battery magazine all the way in to secure it.

Caution

- When attaching batteries, make sure the electrical contacts are clean. Wipe off any dirt on the contacts with a soft cloth.
- Attach batteries after attaching the battery grip to the camera. If the battery grip is attached to the camera with batteries already attached, it may prevent correct display of battery check results.
- Before removing the battery grip, turn the camera off and remove the batteries.
- Reattach the protective covers for the camera and battery grip contacts after removing the battery grip. If the battery grip will not be used for some time, remove the batteries.
- If a battery communication error message is displayed when a battery grip is attached, follow the instructions in the message. If the camera loses power, reinstall the battery magazine and restart the camera.

1. Attach the DC coupler.



 Attach DC Coupler DR-E6 (sold separately) the same way as the batteries.



- Pass the DC coupler cord through the battery magazine cord groove.
- Insert the battery magazine all the way in to secure it.
- 2. Attach the battery magazine.



Guide the end of the cord out of the cord hole.

3. Connect the DC coupler to the AC adapter.



- Securely connect the DC coupler's plug to the socket of AC Adapter AC-E6N (sold separately).
- 4. Connect the power cord.



 Connect the power cord to the AC power adapter and insert the power plug into a power outlet.

Caution

- While the camera is on, do not connect or disconnect the power cord or socket, and do not remove the battery magazine.
- Avoid getting the DC coupler cord caught between the battery grip and battery magazine.

Button and Dial Operations



- To use the buttons and dials, turn the vertical-grip on/off switch (4) to ON.
- The buttons and dials are used the same way as corresponding buttons and dials on the camera.



- (1) Shutter button
- (2) < M-Fn > Multi-function button
- (3) < 🗁 > Main dial
- (4) Vertical-grip On/Off switch
- (5) < ⅔ > Multi-controller
- (6) <Q > Magnify/Reduce button
- (7) < I > AF point selection button
- (8) < ★ > AE lock/FE lock button
- (9) < AF-ON > AF start button
- (10) < \[> Quick control dial 2

Using USB Power Adapter PD-E1, you can charge Battery Pack LP-E6NH or LP-E6N without removing it from the battery grip.

Caution

- LP-E6NH and LP-E6N can be charged together.
- Otherwise, you can charge a single LP-E6NH or LP-E6N battery at a time.
- LP-E6 cannot be charged this way. No battery will be charged if LP-E6NH or LP-E6N is attached at the same time as LP-E6.
- The battery is not charged if LP-E6NH or LP-E6N is loaded when DC Coupler DR-E6 is connected.
- Charging stops if you operate the camera.
- When batteries are depleted, the adapter charges them. In this case, power is not supplied to the camera.

Charging

1. Connect the USB power adapter.



 With the camera power switch set to < OFF >, insert the USB power adapter plug fully into the camera's digital terminal. 2. Charge the battery.



- Connect the power cord to the USB power adapter and plug the other end into a power outlet.
- Charging begins, and the charge lamp lights up.
- When charging is finished, the charge lamp turns off.

Supplying power

To power the camera without charging batteries, set the camera power switch to < ON >. However, batteries are charged during auto power off.

[is displayed on the screen while the camera is powered this way.

To change from powering the camera to charging, set the camera power switch to < OFF >.

Caution

- The camera cannot be powered unless a battery pack is in it.
- To protect the battery pack and keep it in optimal condition, do not charge it continuously for more than 24 hours.
- If the charging lamp fails to light up or a problem occurs during charging (shown by the charge lamp blinking), unplug the power cord, reinsert the battery, and wait a few minutes before plugging it in again. If the problem persists, take the camera to the nearest Canon Service Center.
- The charging time required and the amount charged vary depending on ambient temperature and remaining capacity.
- For safety, charging in low temperatures takes longer.
- The remaining battery level may decline when power is supplied to the camera. To avoid running out of battery power, use a fully charged battery when shooting at regular intervals.

- Power-related problems
- Shooting-related problems
- Problems with wireless features
- Operation problems
- Display problems
- Playback problems
- Sensor cleaning problems
- Computer connection problems

If a problem occurs with the camera, first refer to this Troubleshooting Guide. If this Troubleshooting Guide does not resolve the problem, take the camera to the nearest Canon Service Center.

Power-related problems

Batteries cannot be charged with the battery charger.

- If the battery's remaining capacity (2) is 94% or higher, the battery will not be charged.
- Do not use any battery packs other than a genuine Canon Battery Pack LP-E6NH/ LP-E6N/LP-E6.
- In case of charging or charger issues, see <u>Charging the Battery</u>.

The charger's lamp blinks at high speed.

If (1) the battery charger or battery has a problem or (2) communication with the battery failed (with a non-Canon battery pack), the protection circuit will stop charging, and the charge lamp will blink in orange at a constant high speed. In the case of (1), unplug the charger's power plug from the power outlet, reattach the battery, wait a few minutes, and then reconnect the power plug to the power outlet. If the problem persists, take the camera to the nearest Canon Service Center.

The charger's lamp does not blink.

If the internal temperature of the battery attached to the charger is high, the charger will
not charge the battery for safety reasons (lamp off). During charging, if the battery's
temperature becomes high for any reason, charging will stop automatically (lamp blinks).
When the battery temperature goes down, charging will resume automatically.

Batteries cannot be charged with the USB power adapter (sold separately).

- Batteries are not charged while the camera power switch is set to < ON >. However, batteries are charged during auto power off.
- Battery Pack LP-E6 cannot be charged.
- Batteries are not charged when their remaining capacity is already approx. 94% or higher.
- Operating the camera will stop charging in progress.

The access lamp blinks during charging with the USB power adapter.

In case of charging problems, the access lamp blinks in green and a protective circuit stops charging. In this case, unplug the power cord, reattach the battery, and wait a few minutes before plugging it in again. If the problem persists, take the camera to the nearest Canon Service Center.

The access lamp is not lit during charging with the USB power adapter.

Try unplugging the USB power adapter and plugging it in again.

The camera cannot be powered with the USB power adapter.

- Check the battery compartment. The camera cannot be powered without a battery pack.
- Check the remaining battery level. When batteries are depleted, the adapter charges them. In this case, power is not supplied to the camera.

The camera is not activated even when the power switch is set to < ON>.

- Make sure the card slot cover is closed (2).
- Charge the battery (
 ⁽²⁾).

The access lamp still lights or blinks even when the power switch is set to <OFF>.

 If the power is turned off while an image is being recorded to the card, the access lamp will remain on or continue to blink for a few seconds. When the image recording is complete, the power will turn off automatically.

[Battery communication error. Does this battery/do these batteries display the Canon logo?] is displayed.

- Do not use any battery packs other than a genuine Canon Battery Pack LP-E6NH/ LP-E6N/LP-E6.
- If the electrical contacts are dirty, use a soft cloth to clean them.

The battery becomes exhausted quickly.

- The battery performance may have degraded. See [Y: Battery info.] to check the battery recharge performance level (2). If the battery performance is poor, replace the battery with a new one.
- The number of available shots will decrease with any of the following operations:
 - · Pressing the shutter button halfway for a prolonged period
 - · Activating the AF frequently without taking a picture
 - · Using the lens's Image Stabilizer
 - · Using the wireless communication functions

The camera turns off by itself.

- Auto power off is in effect. To deactivate auto power off, set [Auto power off] in [
 Power saving] to [Disable] (
 D).
- Even if [Auto power off] is set to [Disable], the screen and viewfinder will still turn off
 after the camera is left idle for the time set in [Display off] or [Viewfinder off] (although
 the camera itself remains on).
- Set [": Eco mode] to [Off].
Shooting-related problems

The lens cannot be attached.

 To attach EF or EF-S lenses, you will need a mount adapter. The camera cannot be used with EF-M lenses (
).

No images can be shot or recorded.

- Make sure the card is properly inserted (2).
- Slide the card's write-protect switch to the Write/Erase setting (2).
- If the card is full, replace the card or delete unnecessary images to make space (2), (2).
- Shooting is not possible if the AF point turns orange when you attempt to focus. Press the shutter button halfway again to refocus automatically, or focus manually (2), (2).

The card cannot be used.

If a card error message is displayed, see <u>Inserting/Removing Cards</u> and <u>Error Codes</u>.

An error message is displayed when the card is inserted in another camera.

 Since SDXC cards are formatted in exFAT, if you format a card with this camera and then insert it into another camera, an error may be displayed and it may not be possible to use the card.

The image is out of focus or blurred.

- Set the lens's focus mode switch to < AF > (2).
- Press the shutter button gently to prevent camera shake (2).
- With a lens equipped with an Image Stabilizer, set the Image Stabilizer switch to < ON >.
- See <u>Minimizing blurred photos</u>.

I cannot lock the focus and recompose the shot.

 Set the AF operation to One-Shot AF (2). Shooting with the focus locked is not possible with Servo AF (2).

The continuous shooting speed is slow.

 High-speed continuous shooting may be slower depending on the battery level, ambient temperature, flicker reduction, shutter speed, aperture value, subject conditions, brightness, AF operation, type of lens, use of flash, shooting settings, and other conditions. For details, see <u>Selecting the Drive Mode</u> or <u>Still photo file size / Number of</u> possible shots / Maximum burst for continuous shooting.

The maximum burst during continuous shooting is lower.

Shooting intricate subjects such as fields of grass may result in larger file sizes, and the
actual maximum burst may be lower than the guidelines in <u>Still photo file size / Number
of possible shots / Maximum burst for continuous shooting.</u>

Even after I change the card, the maximum burst displayed for continuous shooting does not change.

Estimated maximum burst indicated in the viewfinder does not change when you switch cards, even if you switch to a high-speed card. Maximum burst listed in <u>Still photo file size / Number of possible shots / Maximum burst for continuous shooting</u> is based on the standard Canon test card, and the actual maximum burst is higher for cards with faster writing speeds. For this reason, estimated maximum burst may differ from actual maximum burst.

High-speed display is not available during high-speed continuous shooting.

Refer to the high-speed display requirements in <u>High-Speed Display</u>.

Some image quality options are not available with cropped shooting.

 M/JM/JS1/JS1 image quality options are not available when [1.6x (crop)] is set, or with EF-S lenses.

The aspect ratio cannot be set.

- Aspect ratios cannot be set for EF-S lenses ([1.6x (crop)] is set automatically).
- Aspect ratios cannot be set when [Add cropping information] is set to an option other than [Disable].

ISO 100 cannot be set for still photo shooting.

 The minimum speed in the ISO speed range is ISO 200 when [: Highlight tone priority] is set to [Enable] or [Enhanced].

Expanded ISO speeds cannot be selected for still photo shooting.

- Check the [ISO speed range] setting under [C1: C1SO speed settings].
- Expanded ISO speeds are not available when [C: Highlight tone priority] is set to [Enable] or [Enhanced].
- Expanded ISO speeds are not available when [HDR shooting [HDR PQ settings] in [C1: HDR PQ settings] is set to [Enable].

Even if I set a decreased exposure compensation, the image comes out bright.

Set [D: Auto Lighting Optimizer] to [Disable] (2). When [Low], [Standard], or [High] is set, even if you set a decreased exposure compensation or flash exposure compensation, the image may come out bright.

I cannot set the exposure compensation when both manual exposure and ISO Auto are set.

• See <u>M: Manual Exposure</u> to set the exposure compensation.

Not all the lens aberration correction options are displayed.

- With [Digital Lens Optimizer] set to [Standard] or [High], [Chromatic aberr corr] and [Diffraction correction] are not displayed, but they are both set to [Enable] for shooting.
- During movie recording, [Digital Lens Optimizer] or [Diffraction correction] are not displayed.

Images are not displayed after shooting in multiple-exposure shooting.

 When [On:ContShtng] is set, images are not displayed for review after capture, and image playback is not available (2).

Using flash in $\langle A_V \rangle$ or $\langle P \rangle$ mode lowers the shutter speed.

 Set [Slow synchro] in [1250-1/60sec. auto] (or [1/200-1/60sec. auto]) or [1/250 sec. (fixed)] (or [1/200 sec. (fixed)]) (27).

The flash does not fire.

Make sure any flash units are securely attached to the camera.

The flash always fires at full output.

- Flash units other than EL/EX series Speedlites used in autoflash mode always fire at full output (2).
- When the flash Custom Function setting for [Flash metering mode] is set to [TTL flash metering] (autoflash), the flash will always fire at full output (②).

Flash exposure compensation cannot be set.

 If flash exposure compensation is already set with the Speedlite, flash exposure compensation cannot be set with the camera. When the Speedlite's flash exposure compensation is canceled (set to 0), flash exposure compensation can be set with the camera.

High-speed sync is not available in $\langle A_V \rangle$ or $\langle F_V \rangle$ mode.

Set [Slow synchro] in [12:50 sec. (fixed)] (or [1/200 sec. (fixed)] (or [1/200 sec. (fixed)] (or [1/200 sec. (fixed)]) ((2)).

Remote control shooting is not possible.

- In still photo shooting, set the drive mode to [10] or [102] (2). In movie recording, set
 [10]: Remote control to [Enable] (2).
- Check the position of the remote control's release timing switch.
- If you are using Wireless Remote Control BR-E1, see <u>Remote Control Shooting</u> or <u>Connecting to a Wireless Remote Control</u>.
- Infrared remote controllers such as the RC-6 cannot be used for remote control shooting when the camera is paired via Bluetooth with a smartphone or wireless remote control. Set [Bluetooth settings] to [Disable].
- To use a remote control for time-lapse movie recording, see <u>Time-Lapse Movies</u>.

A white [10] or red [10] icon is displayed during shooting.

 It indicates that the camera's internal temperature is high. Image quality of still photos may be worse when a white [1] icon is displayed. Display of a red [1] icon indicates that shooting will soon stop automatically (2).

A red [19] icon is displayed during movie recording.

 It indicates that the camera's internal temperature is high. If the red [1] icon is displayed, it indicates that the movie recording will soon stop automatically (2).

A [] icon is displayed during movie recording.

 It indicates that the camera's internal temperature is high. Movie recording is not possible as long as [1] is displayed. Display of [1] during movie recording also indicates that the camera will turn off automatically in approx. 3 min. (2).

Movie recording stops by itself.

- If the card's writing speed is slow, movie recording may stop automatically. For details
 on cards that can record movies, see <u>Card performance requirements</u>. To find out the
 card's writing speed, refer to the card manufacturer's website, etc.
- Perform low-level formatting to initialize the card if the card's writing or reading speed seems slow (2).
- Recording stops automatically once your movie reaches 29 min. 59 sec. (or 7 min. 29 sec. for a High Frame Rate movie).

The ISO speed cannot be set for movie recording.

- ISO speed is set automatically in [¹, ¹, ¹] recording mode. In [¹, ^M] mode, you can manually set the ISO speed (¹).
- The minimum speed in the ISO speed range is ISO 200 when [: Highlight tone priority] is set to [Enable] or [Enhanced].

Expanded ISO speeds cannot be selected for movie recording.

- Check the [ISO speed range] setting under [1]: "RISO speed settings].
- Expanded ISO speeds are not available when [C: Highlight tone priority] is set to [Enable] or [Enhanced].

The exposure changes during movie recording.

- If you change the shutter speed or aperture value during movie recording, the changes in the exposure may be recorded.
- Recording a few test movies is recommended if you intend to perform zooming during movie recording. Zooming as you record movies may cause exposure changes or lens sounds to be recorded, or loss of focus.

The image flickers or horizontal stripes appear during movie recording.

Flickering, horizontal stripes (noise), or irregular exposures can be caused by fluorescent lighting, LED lighting, or other light sources during movie recording. Also, changes in the exposure (brightness) or color tone may be recorded. In [mM] mode, using a slower shutter speed may reduce the problem. The problem may be more noticeable in time-lapse movie recording.

The subject looks distorted during movie recording.

 If you move the camera to the left or right (panning) or shoot a moving subject, the image may look distorted. The problem may be more noticeable in time-lapse movie recording.

Sound is not recorded in movies.

Sound is not recorded in High Frame Rate movies.

A time code is not added.

Time codes are not added when you record High Frame Rate movies with [Count up] in
[1]: Time code] set to [Free run] (2). Additionally, no time code is added to HDMI
video output (2).

Time codes advance faster than the actual time.

Time codes in High Frame Rate movie recording advance 4 sec. per second (2).

I cannot take still photos during movie recording.

 Still photos cannot be taken during movie recording. To shoot still photos, stop recording the movie, then select a shooting mode for still photos.

I cannot record movies during still photo shooting.

- It may not be possible to record movies during still photo shooting if operations such as extended Live View display increase the camera's internal temperature. Turn off the camera or take other measures, and wait until the camera cools down.
- Lowering the movie recording quality may enable movie recording.

The camera vibrates.

 Image stabilization by the camera may make the camera seem to vibrate. This does not indicate damage.

Problems with wireless features

Cannot pair with a smartphone.

- Use a smartphone compliant with Bluetooth Specification Version 4.1 or later.
- Turn on Bluetooth from the smartphone settings screen.
- Pairing with the camera is not possible from the smartphone's Bluetooth settings screen. Install the dedicated app Camera Connect (free of charge) on the smartphone (2).
- Pairing with a previously paired smartphone is not possible if pairing information registered for another camera remains on the smartphone. In this case, remove the camera's registration retained in the Bluetooth settings on the smartphone and try pairing again (^g).

Wi-Fi functions cannot be set.

 If the camera is connected to a computer or another device with an interface cable, Wi-Fi functions cannot be set. Disconnect the interface cable before setting any functions (2).

A device connected with an interface cable cannot be used.

 Other devices, such as computers, cannot be used with the camera by connecting them with an interface cable while the camera is connected to devices via Wi-Fi. Terminate the Wi-Fi connection before connecting the interface cable.

Operations such as shooting and playback are not possible.

 With a Wi-Fi connection established, operations such as shooting and playback may not be possible. Terminate the Wi-Fi connection, then perform the operation.

Cannot reconnect to a smartphone.

- Even with a combination of the same camera and smartphone, if you have changed the settings or selected a different setting, reconnection may not be established even after selecting the same SSID. In this case, delete the camera connection settings from the Wi-Fi settings on the smartphone and set up a connection again.
- A connection may not be established if Camera Connect is running when you reconfigure connection settings. In this case, quit Camera Connect for a moment and then restart it.

Operation problems

Settings change when I switch from still photo shooting to movie recording or vice versa.

• Separate settings are retained for use when shooting still photos and recording movies.

I cannot adjust settings with < 22, < 23, < 23, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33, < 33,

- Press the < LOCK > button to release the Multi-function lock (2).
- Check the [": Multi function lock] setting (").

Touch operation is not possible.

Make sure [": Touch control] is set to [Standard] or [Sensitive] (2).

A camera button or dial does not work as expected.

- In movie recording, check the [1]: Shutter btn function for movies] setting (2).

Display problems

The menu screen shows fewer tabs and items.

 In < (<u>a</u>⁺) > mode, some tabs and items are not displayed. Tabs and items on the menu screen also vary for still photos and movies.

The display starts with $[\star]$ My Menu, or the $[\star]$ tab alone is displayed.

 [Menu display] on the [*] tab is set to [Display from My Menu tab] or [Display only My Menu tab]. Set [Normal display] (2).

The file name's first character is an underscore ("_").

Set [1]: Color space] to [sRGB]. If [Adobe RGB] is set, the first character will be an underscore (2).

The fourth character in the file name changes.

The file numbering does not start from 0001.

 If the card already contains recorded images, the image number may not start from 0001 (2).

The shooting date and time displayed are incorrect.

The date and time are not in the image.

[###] is displayed.

 If the number of images recorded on the card exceeds the number the camera can display, [###] will be displayed.

The screen does not display a clear image.

- If the screen is dirty, use a soft cloth to clean it.
- The screen display may seem slightly slow in low temperatures or may look black in high temperatures, but it will return to normal at room temperature.

Playback problems

Part of the image blinks in black.

[]: Highlight alert] is set to [Enable] (2).

A red box is displayed on the image.

[►: AF point disp.] is set to [Enable] (②).

During image playback, the AF points are not displayed.

- AF points are not displayed when the following types of images are played back:
 - · Images taken with Multi Shot Noise Reduction applied.
 - · Cropped images.
 - · Images from HDR shooting with [Auto Image Align] set to [Enable].

The image cannot be erased.

If the image is protected, it cannot be erased (2).

Still photos and movies cannot be played back.

- The camera may not be able to play back images taken with another camera.
- Movies edited with a computer cannot be played back with the camera.

Only few images can be played back.

The images have been filtered for playback with [E: Set image search conditions]
 (@). Clear the image search conditions.

Mechanical sounds or sounds of camera operations can be heard during movie playback.

The camera's built-in microphone may also record mechanical sounds of the lens or sounds of camera/lens operations if AF operations are performed or the camera or lens is operated during movie recording. In this case, using an external microphone may reduce these sounds. If the sounds are still distracting with an external microphone, it may be more effective to remove the external microphone from the camera and position it away from the camera and lens.

Movie playback stops by itself.

 Extended movie playback or movie playback under high ambient temperature may cause the camera's internal temperature to rise, and movie playback may stop automatically.

If this happens, playback is disabled until the camera's internal temperature decreases, so turn off the power and let the camera cool down a while.

The movie appears to freeze momentarily.

 Significant change in the exposure level during autoexposure movie recording may cause recording to stop momentarily until the brightness stabilizes. In this case, record in [14]^M mode (27).

The movie is played in slow motion.

 High Frame Rate movies are recorded at 29.97 fps or 25.00 fps, so they are played in slow motion at 1/4 speed.

No picture appears on the television.

- Make sure [": Video system] is set to [For NTSC] or [For PAL] correctly for the video system of your television.
- Make sure the HDMI cable's plug is inserted all the way in (2).

There are multiple movie files for a single movie recording.

 If the movie file size reaches 4 GB, another movie file will be created automatically (③). However, if you use an SDXC card formatted with the camera, you can record a movie in a single file even if it exceeds 4 GB.

My card reader does not recognize the card.

Depending on the card reader used and the computer's operating system, SDXC cards
may not be correctly recognized. In this case, connect the camera to the computer with
the interface cable, then import the images to the computer using EOS Utility (EOS
software, ②).

Images cannot be resized or cropped.

- This camera cannot resize JPEG S2 images, RAW images, or frame-grab images from 4K movies saved as still photos (2).
- This camera cannot crop RAW images, images captured with [HDR shooting [HDR PQ] in [1]: HDR PQ settings] set to [Enable], or frame-grab images from 4K movies saved as still photos (2).

 White, red, or blue dots of light may appear in captured images if the sensor is affected by cosmic rays or similar factors. Their appearance may be reduced by performing [Clean now. b] under [Y: Sensor cleaning] (2).

Sensor cleaning problems

The shutter makes a sound during sensor cleaning.

 Although there is a mechanical sound from the shutter during cleaning after [Clean now .,] is selected, no image is recorded to the card (@).

Automatic sensor cleaning does not work.

Repeatedly turning the power switch < ON > and < OFF > within a short period may
prevent the [:___] icon from being displayed (@).

I cannot import images to a computer.

- Install EOS Utility (EOS software) on the computer (2).
- Make sure the main EOS Utility window is displayed.
- If the camera is already connected via Wi-Fi, it cannot communicate with any computer connected with an interface cable.
- Check the version of the application.

Communication between the connected camera and computer does not work.

When using EOS Utility (EOS software), set [1]: Time-lapse movie] to [Disable] (2).



(1) Error number (2) Cause and countermeasures

If there is a problem with the camera, an error message will appear. Follow the on-screen instructions.

If the problem persists, write down the error code (Errxx) and request service.



: Bundled accessories

(1)	Speedlite Transmitter ST-E2
(2)	Speedlite Transmitter ST-E3-RT
(3)	Speedlite EL-100
(4)	Speedlite 430EX III-RT/430EX III
(5)	Speedlite 470EX-AI
(6)	Speedlite 600EX II-RT
(7)	Speedlite EL-1
(8)	Macro Ring Lite MR-14EX II
(9)	Macro Twin Lite MT-26EX-RT
(10)	Directional Stereo Microphone DM-E1
(11)	Stereo Microphone DM-E100
(12)	Headphones
(13)	GPS Receiver GP-E2
(14)	Remote Switch RS-60E3
(15)	Remote Controller RC-6
(16)	Wireless Remote Control BR-E1
(17)	Remote Switch RS-80N3
(18)	Timer Remote Controller TC-80N3
(19)	Remote Controller Adapter RA-E3'8
(20)	RF lenses
(21)	EF lenses
(22)	EF-S lenses
(23)	Mount Adapter
(24)	Strap
(25)	Hand Strap E2
(26)	Protecting Cloth PC-E1/E2
(27)	Battery Pack LP-E6NH ^{*1}
(28)	Battery Charger LC-E6
(29)	AC Adapter AC-E6N*2
(30)	DC Coupler DR-E6 ^{*2}
(31)	USB Power Adapter PD-E1*3
(32)	Battery Grip BG-R10
(33)	Car Battery Cable CB-570
(34)	Car Battery Charger CBC-E6
(35)	HDMI cable*7
(36)	TV/monitor
(37)	Interface Cable IFC-100U (approx. 1 m/3.2 ft.)*4.5
(38)	Interface Cable IFC-400U (approx. 4 m/13.1 ft.)*4.6
(39)	SD/SDHC/SDXC memory cards
(40)	Card reader
(41)	USB port
(42)	Card slot
(43)	Computer

- * 1: Battery Pack I P-E6N/I P-E6 can also be used.
- * 2: AC Adapter Kit ACK-E6 can also be used.
- * 3: Charging with USB Power Adapter PD-E1 is only available for LP-E6NH/LP-E6N (not LP-E6).
- * 4: Camera and computer end: USB Type-C[™].
- * 5: The transmission rate when IFC-100U is used is equivalent to SuperSpeed USB (USB 3.1 Gen 1).
- *6: The transmission rate when IFC-400U is used is equivalent to Hi-Speed USB (USB 2.0).
- *7: Use a cable no longer than 2.5 m (8.2 ft.). The camera end is Type D.
 *8: Compatible remote control: RS-80N3/TC-80N3. Other remote controls cannot be used.

In ["] mode

- ISO speed is set automatically in a range of ISO 100–25600.
- Setting [Max for Auto] in [1]: "FISO speed settings] to [H (204800)] (2] expands the maximum speed in the automatic setting range to H (equivalent to ISO 204800).
- The minimum speed in the automatic setting range is ISO 200 when [C: Highlight tone priority] is set to [Enable] or [Enhanced] ((2)). The maximum limit is not expanded, even when expansion is set in [Max for Auto].

In ['≓^M] mode

- With ISO speed set to [AUTO], ISO speed is set automatically in a range of ISO 100– 25600.
- When ISO Auto is set, setting [Max for Auto] in [1]: "FISO speed settings] to [H (204800)] (2) expands the maximum speed in the automatic setting range to H (equivalent to ISO 204800).
- ISO speed can be set manually in a range of ISO 100–25600. Setting [ISO speed range] in [D: "FISO speed settings] to [H (204800)] ((2)) expands the maximum speed in the manual setting range to H (equivalent to ISO 204800).
- The minimum speed in the automatic or manual setting range is ISO 200 when [1]: Highlight tone priority] is set to [Enable] or [Enhanced] (2). Even when ISO speed expansion is set, the maximum limit will not be expanded.
- The minimum speed in the automatic setting range is ISO 400 when Canon Log is set (
 (
). ISO 100–200 represents an expanded ISO speed (L).

- Still Photo Shooting Screen
- Movie Recording Screen
- Scene Icons
- Playback Screen

Still Photo Shooting Screen

Each time you press the < INFO > button, the information display will change.

- (1) -(12) (13)(2) — (14) (3) -(15) (4) -(16) (17) (18) (5) (19) (6) (20) (7) (21) (8) (22) (23) (9) (24) (10) (11)I MARKED 1
- The display will show only the settings currently applied.

(1)	Maximum burst
(2)	Number of available shots/Sec. until self-timer shoots
(3)	Focus bracketing/HDR/Multiple exposures/Multi Shot Noise Reduction/Bulb timer/Interval timer
(4)	Shooting mode
(5)	AF method
(6)	AF operation
(7)	Image quality
(8)	Card
(9)	Drive mode
(10)	Metering mode
(11)	Multi-function lock warning
(12)	No. of remaining shots for focus bracketing, multiple exposures, or interval timer
(13)	Electronic level
(14)	Movie recording time available
(15)	Battery level
(16)	Image Stabilizer (IS mode)
(17)	Histogram (Brightness/RGB)
(18)	Quick Control button
(19)	Anti-flicker shooting
(20)	White balance/White balance correction
(21)	Picture Style
(22)	Auto Lighting Optimizer
(23)	Still photo cropping/Aspect ratio
(24)	AF point (1-point AF)



- (25) AEB/FEB
- (26) View Assist
- (27) HDR PQ
- (28) Flash ready/FE lock/High-speed sync
- (29) Electronic shutter
- (30) Touch Shutter/Create folder
- (31) AE lock
- (32) Shutter speed
- (33) Aperture value
- (34) Wi-Fi function
- (35) Wi-Fi signal strength
- (36) Bluetooth function
- (37) Exposure simulation
- (38) Magnify button
- (39) ISO speed
- (40) Highlight tone priority
- (41) Exposure compensation
- (42) Exposure level indicator

Note

- You can specify the information displayed in response to pressing the < INFO > button (@).
- The electronic level is not displayed when the camera is connected via HDMI to a television.
- Other icons may be displayed temporarily after setting adjustments.

Each time you press the < INFO > button, the information display will change.

• The display will show only the settings currently applied.



(1)	Battery level
(2)	Movie recording time available/Elapsed recording time
(3)	Image Stabilizer (IS mode)
(4)	Shooting mode
(5)	AF method
(6)	Movie recording size
(7)	Audio recording level (manual)
(8)	Headphone volume
(9)	HDR movie
(10)	Movie Servo AF
(11)	Temperature warning
(12)	AF point (1-point AF)
(13)	Electronic level
(14)	Histogram (Brightness/RGB)
(15)	Movie recording in progress
(16)	Card for recording/playback
(17)	White balance/White balance correction
(18)	Picture Style
(19)	Auto Lighting Optimizer
(20)	Magnify button



- (21) Audio recording level indicator (manual)
- (22) Movie self-timer
- (23) AE lock
- (24) Shutter speed
- (25) Multi-function lock warning
- (26) Canon Log
- (27) Aperture value
- (28) Wi-Fi function
- (29) Wi-Fi signal strength
- (30) Bluetooth function
- (31) ISO speed
- (32) Highlight tone priority
- (33) Exposure compensation
- (34) Exposure level indicator (metering levels)

Caution

- You can specify the information displayed in response to pressing the < INFO > button (@).
- The electronic level is not displayed when the camera is connected via HDMI to a television.
- The electronic level, grid lines, and histogram cannot be displayed during movie recording (and if they are currently displayed, recording a movie will clear the display).
- Time available per recording changes to elapsed time after movie recording begins.

Note

Other icons may be displayed temporarily after setting adjustments.

In < (Δ) shooting mode, the camera detects the type of scene and sets all settings accordingly. The detected scene type is indicated in the upper left of the screen.

	Subject	People		Subject	s Other Thar			
Background			In Motion ^{*1}	Nature/ Outdoor Scene	In Motion*1	Close*2	Background Color	
Bright		E	FT	034		12	Gray	
	Backlit					85	Giay	
Bl	ue Sky Included	E	FU	121		2	Light blue	
	Backlit						Light blue	
	Sunset		3			*3	Orange	
	Spotlight	la de la della d	1			14		
	Dark	F	1	63H		5	Dark blue	
With Tripod ^{*1}		*4*5	*3	•3		1		

* 1: Not displayed during movie recording.

* 2: Displayed when the attached lens has distance information. With an extension tube or close-up lens, the icon displayed may not match the actual scene.

* 3: Icons of scenes selected from those that can be detected are displayed.

* 4: Displayed when all the following conditions apply.

The shooting scene is dark, it is a night scene, and the camera is mounted on a tripod.

* 5: Displayed with any of the following lenses.

- · EF300mm f/2.8L IS II USM
- · EF400mm f/2.8L IS II USM
- · EF500mm f/4L IS II USM
- · EF600mm f/4L IS II USM
- · Image Stabilizer lenses released in and after 2012.

* Slower shutter speeds are used when the conditions in both *4 and *5 apply.

Note

 For certain scenes or shooting conditions, the icon displayed may not match the actual scene.

Basic information display for still photos



Caution

- If the image was taken by another camera, certain shooting information may not be displayed.
- It may not be possible to play back images taken with this camera on other cameras.

Detailed information display for still photos

(1)		9)
(2)		10)
(3)		11)
(4)		12)
		13)
(5)P	1/121 FR 0 00-10 00100) 14)
(6)	12 k2.61 (2221.4.4.1.0.0 (44-6 20)	15)
(7)	125-24 (1.50) (1.50)	16)
(8)	('	17)

- Aperture value
- (2) Picture Style/Settings
- (3) Shutter speed
- (4) White balance correction/Bracketing
- (5) Shooting mode/Multiple exposure/Frame Grab
- (6) White balance
- (7) Auto Lighting Optimizer
- (8) Image quality/Edited image/Cropping
- (9) Exposure compensation amount
- (10) Shooting date and time
- (11) Histogram (Brightness/RGB)
- (12) ISO speed
- (13) Scroll bar
- (14) Flash exposure compensation amount/Bounce/HDR shooting/Multi Shot Noise Reduction
- (15) Metering mode

(16) File size

(17) Highlight tone priority

* For images captured in RAW+JPEG/HEIF shooting, indicates RAW file sizes.

* Lines indicating the image area will be displayed for images taken with the aspect ratio set (@) and with RAW or RAW+JPEG set for image quality.

* For images with added cropping information, lines are shown to indicate the image area.

* During flash photography without flash exposure compensation, [6] will be displayed.

* [1] indicates images shot with bounce flash photography.

* An icon for the effect (@) and the dynamic range adjustment amount is displayed for images captured in HDR shooting.

* [1] indicates images captured in multiple-exposure shooting.

* [NR] indicates images processed with Multi Shot Noise Reduction.

* [MC] indicates test shots for time-lapse movies.

* [[] indicates images created and saved by performing RAW image processing, resizing, cropping, HEIF to JPEG conversion, or frame-grabbing.

* [4] indicates images cropped and then saved.

* JPEGs converted from HEIF images are labeled with [JPEG1] (when captured on this camera with firmware Ver. 1.6.0 or later installed).

Detailed information display for movies



(1)	Movie playback
(2)	Movie recording mode/High Frame Rate mode
(3)	Image size
(4)	Frame rate
(5)	Compression method
(6)	Image Stabilizer (IS mode)
(7)	Recording time/Time code
(8)	Movie recording format

* For simplicity, explanations are omitted for items that are also included in basic/detailed information display for still photos, which are not shown here.

Note

 During movie playback, "*, *" is displayed for the [Fineness] and [Threshold] parameters of [Sharpness] in [Picture Style].

EF Lenses Supporting 12 Shots/Sec. Continuous Shooting

The following EF lenses support 12 shots/sec. continuous shooting in [型焊] drive mode.

EF24mm f/2.8 IS USM
EF28mm f/2.8 IS USM
EF35mm f/1.4L II USM
EF35mm f/2 IS USM
EF40mm f/2.8 STM
EF50mm f/1.8 STM
EF85mm f/1.4L IS USM
EF100mm f/2.8L Macro IS USM
EF300mm f/2.8L IS II USM
EF400mm f/2.8L IS II USM
EF400mm f/2.8L IS III USM
EF 400mm f/4 DO IS II USM
EF500mm f/4L IS II USM
EF600mm f/4L IS II USM
EF600mm f/4L IS III USM
EF8-15mm f/4L Fisheye USM
EF11-24mm f/4L USM
EF16-35mm f/2.8L III USM
EF16-35mm f/4L IS USM
EF24-70mm f/2.8L II USM
EF24-70mm f/4L IS USM
EF24-105mm f/4L IS II USM
EF24-105mm f/3.5-5.6 IS STM
EF70-200mm f/2.8L IS II USM
EF70-200mm f/2.8L IS III USM
EF70-200mm f/4L IS II USM
EF70-300mm f/4-5.6L IS USM
EF70-300mm f/4-5.6 IS II USM

EF100-400mm f/4.5-5.6L IS II USM

EF200-400mm f/4L IS USM Extender 1.4X

EF-S24mm f/2.8 STM

EF-S35mm f/2.8 Macro IS STM

EF-S10-18mm f/4.5-5.6 IS STM

EF-S18-55mm f/3.5-5.6 IS STM

EF-S18-55mm f/4-5.6 IS STM

EF-S18-135mm f/3.5-5.6 IS USM

EF-S18-135mm f/3.5-5.6 IS STM

EF-S55-250mm f/4-5.6 IS STM

Туре

Type: Digital single-lens non-reflex AF/AE camera Lens mount: Canon RF mount Compatible lenses: Canon RF lens group * Using mount adapter EF-EOS R: Canon EF or EF-S lenses (excluding EF-M lenses) Lens focal length: Same as the focal length indicated on the lens * Using EF-S lenses: Aporox. 1.6 times the indicated focal length

Image sensor

Type: CMOS sensor

Screen size	Approx. 35.9×23.9 mm		
Effective pixels*1*2	Max. approx. 20.1 megapixels		
Dual Pixel CMOS AF	Supported		

* 1: Rounded to the nearest 100,000.

* 2: Using RF or EF lenses. The effective pixel count may be lower with certain lenses and image processing.

Recording system

Image recording format: Compliant to Design rule for Camera File system 2.0 and Exif 2.31*

* Supports time difference information

Image type and extension

Image type		Extension
	JPEG	JPG
Still photos	HEIF	HIF
Still priotos	RAW	CR3
	C-RAW	
Movies	ALL-I, IPB	MP4

Still photo recording

Still photo pixel count

Image quality		Recorded pixels					
		Aspect ratio					
		3:2 [1.6x (crop)]*1		4:3	16:9	1:1	
	L	Approx. 20.0 megapixels (5472×3648)	Approx. 7.7 megapixels (3408×2272)	Approx. 17.7 megapixels (4864×3648)	Approx. 16.8 megapixels (5472×3072)	Approx. 13.3 megapixels (3648×3648)	
JPEG	М	Approx. 8.9 megapixels (3648×2432)		Approx. 7.9 megapixels (3248×2432)	Approx. 7.5 megapixels (3648×2048)	Approx. 5.9 megapixels (2432×2432)	
HEIF	SI	Approx. 5.0 megapixels (2736×1824)		Approx. 4.4 megapixels (2432×1824)	Approx. 4.2 megapixels (2736×1536)	Approx. 3.3 megapixels (1824×1824)	
	S2	Approx. 3.8 megapixels (2400×1600)	Approx. 3.8 megapixels (2400×1600)	Approx. 3.4 megapixels (2112×1600)	Approx. 3.2 megapixels (2400×1344)	Approx. 2.6 megapixels (1600×1600)	
RAW			rox. 20.0 megap (5472×3648)	ixels			

* Values for recorded pixels are rounded off to the nearest 100,000th.

* RAW/C-RAW images are generated in [3:2], and the set aspect ratio is appended. JPEG images are generated in the set aspect ratio.

* 1: Angle of view of approx. 1.6 times the focal length.

Still photo file size / Number of possible shots / Maximum burst for continuous shooting

				Maximum burst [Approx.] ^{*5}		
	Image quality	File size [Approx. MB]	Possible shots [Approx.] ^{*1}	Standard card*1	High-speed card*2 (UHS-II)	
	A L	7.1	4240	1000 or more	1000 or more	
	al.	3.9	7720	1000 or more	1000 or more	
	∎M	4.0	7470	1000 or more	1000 or more	
JPEG ^{*3}	M	2.3	12710	1000 or more	1000 or more	
	 ∎S1	2.8	10860	1000 or more	1000 or more	
	∎S1	1.7	17460	1000 or more	1000 or more	
	S2	1.8	16060	1000 or more	1000 or more	
	A L	7.5	3940	770	1000 or more	
	al.	5.8	5060	1000 or more	1000 or more	
	∎M	4.4	6530	1000 or more	1000 or more	
HEIF*4	M	3.5	8220	1000 or more	1000 or more	
	⊿ S1	3.0	9330	1000 or more	1000 or more	
	S 1	2.5	11160	1000 or more	1000 or more	
	S2	1.8	14100	1000 or more	1000 or more	
RAW*3	RAW	21.8	1400	110	240	
KAW *	CRAW	11.2	2750	240	1000 or more	
RAW+JPEG ^{*3}	RAW +	21.8+7.1	1050	91	160	
RAW+JPEG 3	CRAW +	11.2+7.1	1660	140	770	
RAW+HEIF*4	RAW +	25.0+7.5	940	92	140	
KAW+HEIF*	CRAW +	14.3+7.5	1420	140	380	

* 1: The number of possible shots and standard maximum burst apply to a UHS-I compliant 32 GB card based on Canon testing standards.

* 2: Number of shots applies to a UHS-II compliant 32 GB card based on Canon testing standards.

* 3: Available when HDR shooting [HDR PQ] is set to [Disable].

* 4: Available when HDR shooting [HDR PQ] is set to [Enable].

* 5: With mechanical shutter or electronic 1st-curtain shutter, shot at approx. 12 fps.

* File size, number of possible shots, and maximum burst vary depending on shooting conditions (including [1.6x (crop)], aspect ratio, subject, memory card brand, ISO speed, Picture Style, and Custom Function).

Movie recording

Movie recording format: MP4

Estimated recording time, movie bit rate, and file size Canon Log : OFF, HDR PQ : OFF

Movie recording size				Total re	cording time	Movie bit		
Movie recording	Frame rate (fps)		Compression method	8 GB	32 GB	128 GB	rate (Approx. Mbps)	File size (Approx. MB/min.)
	NISC	PAL						
	59.94	50.00	IPB (Standard)	4 min.	18 min.	1 hr. 13 min.	230	1656
4K UHD	35.54	30.00	IPB (Light)	8 min.	35 min.	2 hr. 21 min.	120	860
40010	29.97	25.00	IPB (Standard)	8 min.	35 min.	2 hr. 20 min.	120	869
	23.98	25.00	IPB (Light)	17 min.	1 hr. 10 min.	4 hr. 43 min.	60	431
4K UHD (Time-lapse movie)	29.97	25.00	ALL-I	2 min.	9 min.	36 min.	470	3362
Full HD (High Frame	110.00	119.88 100.00	IPB (Standard)	8 min.	35 min.	2 hr. 22 min.	120	858
Rate movie)			IPB (Light)	15 min.	1 hr. 0 min.	4 hr. 3 min.	70	501
	59.94	59.94 50.00	IPB (Standard)	17 min.	1 hr. 9 min.	4 hr. 37 min.	60	440
Full HD		50.00	IPB (Light)	30 min.	2 hr. 0 min.	8 hr. 3 min.	35	252
	29.97 23.98	25.00	IPB (Standard)	33 min.	2 hr. 15 min.	9 hr. 1 min.	30	226
	29.97	25.00	IPB (Light)	1 hr. 18 min.	5 hr. 15 min.	21 hr. 0 min.	12	97
Full HD (Time-lapse movie)	29.97	25.00	ALL-I	11 min.	47 min.	3 hr. 9 min.	90	644
Full HD (HDR movies)	29.97	25.00	IPB (Standard)	33 min.	2 hr. 15 min.	9 hr. 1 min.	30	226
Canon Log : ON or HDR PQ : ON

	Movie recording size		Total recording time (Approx.)		Movie bit			
Movie	Frame rate (fps)		Compression method	8 GB	32 GB	128 GB	rate (Approx. Mbps)	File size (Approx. MB/min.)
recording	NTSC	PAL	metriod				wibps)	
	59.94	50.00	IPB (Standard)	3 min.	12 min.	49 min.	340	2443
4K UHD	33.54	50.00	IPB (Light)	6 min.	25 min.	1 hr. 40 min.	170	1218
4100112	29.97	25.00	IPB (Standard)	6 min.	24 min.	1 hr. 39 min.	170	1227
	23.98	20.00	IPB (Light)	12 min.	50 min.	3 hr. 20 min.	85	610
4K UHD (Time-lapse movie)	29.97	25.00	ALL-I	2 min.	9 min.	36 min.	470	3362
Full HD	Full HD (High Frame 119.88 Rate movie)	119.88 100.00	IPB (Standard)	5 min.	23 min.	1 hr. 34 min.	180	1287
			IPB (Light)	10 min.	42 min.	2 hr. 50 min.	100	715
	59.94	50.00	IPB (Standard)	11 min.	46 min.	3 hr. 6 min.	90	655
Full HD	00.04	50.00	IPB (Light)	21 min.	1 hr. 24 min.	5 hr. 39 min.	50	360
ruine	29.97	29.97 23.98 25.00 IPB (Light)		22 min.	1 hr. 31 min.	6 hr. 6 min.	45	333
	23.98		37 min.	2 hr. 30 min.	10 hr. 3 min.	28	202	
Full HD (Time-lapse movie)	29.97	25.00	ALL-I	7 min.	31 min.	2 hr. 6 min.	135	966

* Bit rate indicates video output only, audio is not included.

* Movie recording is interrupted if the maximum recording time per movie, 29 min. 59 sec., is exceeded. (Time is different for High Frame Rate movies.) However, depending on the shooting conditions or shooting environment, if the camera's inner temperature rises, recordable time may further become shorter. * Sound is not recorded for approx. the last two frames when the compression method for movie recording

quality is IPB or IPB Light (audio: AAC) or [🛄 : Audio compression] is set to [Enable].

*The video and sound may be slightly out of sync when movies are played back in Windows.

Card performance requirements (Movie recording) [Write/Read out speed]

	Movie reco	ording size		SD	card
Resolution	Frame r	ate (fps) PAL	Compression method	H.264/MPEG-4 AVC (Canon Log / Canon Log 3 : OFF, HDR PQ : OFF)	H.265/HEVC (Canon Log / Canon Log 3 : ON or HDR PQ : ON)
			IPB (Standard)	UHS-I, UHS Speed Class 3 or higher	UHS-II, Video Speed Class 60 or higher
4K UHD	59.94	50.00	IPB (Light)	UHS-I, UHS Speed Class 3 or higher	UHS-I, UHS Speed Class 3 or higher
	29.97		IPB (Standard)	UHS-I, UHS Spee	d Class 3 or higher
	23.98	25.00	IPB (Light)	SD Speed Class 10 or higher	UHS-I, UHS Speed Class 3 or higher
		119.88 100.00 59.94 50.00	IPB (Standard)	UHS-I, UHS Speed Class 3 or higher	
	119.88		IPB (Light)	SD Speed Class 10 or higher	UHS-I, UHS Speed Class 3 or higher
Full HD	59.94		IPB (Standard)	SD Speed Class 10 or higher	UHS-I, UHS Speed Class 3 or higher
			IPB (Light)	SD Speed Class 6 or higher	SD Speed Class 10 or higher
	29.97		IPB (Standard)	SD Speed Class 6 or higher	
	23.98	25.00	IPB (Light)	SD Speed Cla	ass 4 or higher
4K UHD (Time-lapse movie)	29.97	25.00	ALL-I	Read speed of 60 MB/s or higher	
Full HD (Time-lapse movie)	29.97	25.00	ALL-I	Read speed of 30 MB/s or higher	

* When cropped movie recording and Movie digital IS are disabled.

Built-in and external microphones

Built-in microphone: Stereo microphones External microphone: 3.5 mm diameter stereo mini jack

Recording media

Recording media: SD, SDHC, SDXC memory cards **Card slot:** Equipped with dual card slots

Viewfinder (Electronic viewfinder)

Type: OLED color electronic viewfinder Screen size: Approx. 1.3 cm (0.5 inch) Dot count: Approx. 3,690,000 dots Magnification / angle of view: Approx. 0.76× / Approx. 35.2° (with 50mm lens, at infinity, – 1 m⁻¹) Coverage: Approx. 100% (at JPEG Large image quality (3:2) and approx. 23 mm eyepoint) Eyepoint: Approx. 23 mm (at –1 m⁻¹ from eyepiece lens end) Dioptric adjustment: Approx. –4.0 to +2.0 m⁻¹ (dpt)

Screen

Type: TFT color, liquid-crystal monitor Screen size: Approx. 7.5 cm (3.0 inch) (Screen aspect ratio of 3:2) Dot count: Approx. 1,620,000 dots Angle of view: Approx. 170° vertically and horizontally Coverage: Approx. 100% vertically and horizontally (at L image quality and an aspect ratio of 3:2) Screen brightness: Adjustable to one of seven brightness levels Color tone adjustment: Warm tone / Standard / Cool tone 1 / Cool tone 2 Touch-screen panel specifications: Capacitive sensing

HDMI output

HDMI video / audio output: HDMI micro OUT terminal (Type D) / CEC not compartible HDMI output resolution: Auto / 1080p

Autofocus

Focusing method: Dual Pixel CMOS AF

Focusing operation

	Still photo shooting	Movie recording
AF operation	One-Shot AF Servo AF Al Focus AF (with Scene Intelligent Auto)	One-Shot AF Movie Servo AF
Manual focus	Supported	Supported

Number of AF zones available for automatic selection

AF zone		Horizontal: Approx. 100%, Vertical: Approx. 100%
Number of AF	Still photos	Max. 1053 zones (39×27)
zone	Movie	Max. 819 zones (39×21)

* May vary depending on settings.

Selectable positions for AF point

AF area		Horizontal: Approx. 90%, Vertical: Approx. 100%
Positions	Still photos	Max. 6072 positions (92×66)
Fositions	Movies	Max. 4968 positions (92×54)

* When selected using the Multi-controller.

Focusing brightness range (in still photo shooting): EV –6.5 to 20 (With an f/1.2 lens*, center AF point, One-Shot AF, at 23°C / 73°F, ISO 100)

* Except RF lenses with a Defocus Smoothing (DS) coating

Focusing brightness range (in movie recording): EV -5 to 20 (With an f/1.2 lens*, center

AF point, One-Shot AF, at 23°C / 73°F, ISO 100, 29.97 fps)

* Except RF lenses with a Defocus Smoothing (DS) coating

Exposure control

Metering functions under various shooting conditions

Item		Still photo shooting	Movie recording	
Metering sensor		384 zone (24×16) metering using image sensor output signals		
	Evaluative metering	Yes	Yes *When faces are detected with [: +Tracking]	
Metering mode	Partial metering	Yes: Approx. 5.8 % of the screen		
, i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	Spot metering	Yes: Approx. 2.9 % of the screen		
	Center-weighted average	Yes	Yes * When no faces are detected	
Metering brightness range (At 23°C / 73°F, ISO 100)		EV -3 to 20	EV -1 to 20	

ISO speed (recommended exposure index) in still photo shooting Manually setting ISO speed in still photo shooting

Normal ISO speed	ISO 100–102400 (in 1/3- or 1-stop increments)
Expanded ISO speed (equivalent)	L (50) H (204800)

* With [1]: Highlight tone priority], the available ISO speed range is ISO 200 to 102400.

* Expanded ISO cannot be set in HDR mode or during HDR PQ shooting.

ISO Auto range setting in still photo shooting

	Auto range
ISO speed	ISO 100-102400

* 1-stops increments

ISO Auto details in still photo shooting

Shooting mode	No flash	Using flash
ه [†]	ISO 100-25600	ISO 100-6400*4
Р		
Τv	ISO 100*1*2-102400*2	ISO 100" ¹¹² -6400 ^{'2'4}
Av		
м		
В	ISO 400"3	ISO 400"3

* 1: ISO 200 when [1 : Highlight tone priority] is set to [Enable] or [Enhanced].

* 2: Varies depending on [Maximum] and [Minimum] of [Auto range].

* 3: If outside the setting range, changed to the value most close to ISO 400.

*4: ISO 1600 when using lenses imcompatible with [Variable control of maximum ISO Auto limit for E-TTL].

ISO speed for movie recording

Manually set ISO speed in movie recording

	Highlight tone priority	Normal ISO speed	Expanded ISO speed
Normal movies	Disable	ISO 100-25600	ISO 100-H (204800)
Normal movies	Other than disable	ISO 200-25600	
Canon Log movies	Disable (fixed)	ISO 400-25600	ISO L (100)-H (204800)
HDR movies*1 / HDR PQ movies	Disable	ISO 100-25600	
HDR movies '/ HDR PQ movies	Other than disable	ISO 200-25600	

* 1-stops in 1/3-stop increments

* Expanded ISO speeds are noted as being "equivalent" to these speeds.

* 1: Fixed to [Disable].

ISO speed range in movie recording

	Highlight tone priority	Normal ISO speed	Expanded ISO speed
Normal movies	Disable	ISO 100-25600	ISO 100-H (204800)
Normal movies	Enable	ISO 200-25600	
Canon Log movies	Disable (fixed)	ISO 400-25600	ISO 400-H (204800)
HDR movies ^{*1} / HDR PQ movies	Disable	ISO 100-25600	
HDR movies '/ HDR PQ movies	Enable	ISO 200-25600	

* 1-stops increments

* Expanded ISO speeds are noted as being "equivalent" to these speeds.

* 1: Fixed to [Disable].

Maximum setting of ISO Auto range in movie recording

Item	ISO speed
Max for Auto	ISO 6400–H (204800)
[Time-lapse movie] Max for Auto	ISO 400–25600

* Expanded ISO speeds are noted as being "equivalent" to these speeds.

Shutter

Still photo shooting

Type: Electronically controlled focal-plane shutter Shutter mode

Mechanical shutter
Electronic 1st curtain
Electronic shutter

Shutter speed

When [Mechanical] or [Elec. 1st- curtain] is set		1/8000-30 sec., Bulb
When [Electronic]	is set	1/8000-0.5 sec.
N	Mechanical shutter	1/200 sec.
X-sync	Electronic 1st curtain	1/250 sec.

Movie recording

Type: Rolling shutter, using the image sensor

Shutter speed:

Movie auto exposure: 1/4000-1/25 sec.

Movies manual exposure: 1/4000-1/8*1 sec.

* Varies by shooting mode and frame rate.

* 1: 1/125 sec. (NTSC) or 1/100 sec. (PAL) with [High Frame Rate] set to [Enable].

External flash

Sync contacts: Hot shoe: X-sync contact

* Maximum flash sync speed: 1/250 sec. with electronic 1st-curtain, 1/200 sec. with mechanical shutter.

Drive

Drive mode and continuous shooting speed

Drive modes	Mechanical shutter	Electronic 1st curtain	Electronic shutter
Single shooting	Yes	Yes	Yes
High-speed continuous shooting +	Max. approx. 12 shots/sec.		Max. approx. 20 shots/
High-speed continuous shooting	Max. approx. 6.0 shots/ sec. Max. approx. 8.0 shots/ sec. *Lenses other than		sec. * Lenses other than EF-S
Low-speed continuous shooting	Max. approx. 3.0 shots/sec.		lenses
Self-timer:10 sec / remote control	Yes		
Self-timer:2 sec / remote control	Yes		

Image stabilization (IS mode): Provided

Playback

Item	Still photo	Movie	
Magnify zoom display	1.5x-10x (15 levels)		
AF point display	Yes		
Grid display	Off / 3×3 / 6×4 / 3×3+diag		
Rating	OFF / to ***** Select images / Select range / All images in folder / All images on card / All found images		
Image search	Search conditions Rating / Date / Folder / Protect / Type of file		
Protect	Select images / Select range / All images in folder / Unprotect all images in folder / All images on card / Unprotect all images on card / All found images		
In-camera RAW image processing	Supported		
Resizing	Supported		
Cropping	Supported		

Print order (DPOF): Compliant with DPOF Version 1.1

Customization (C.Fn)

Custom Function: 21 Custom Functions are settable

External interface

Digital terminal

Terminal type	USB Type-C
Transmission	SuperSpeed Plus USB (USB 3.1 Gen 2) equivalent
Applications	For computer communication

* Shared with terminal for in-camera charging/camera power supplying using USB Power Adapter PD-E1.

HDMI micro OUT terminal: Type D (Resolution switches automatically) External microphone input terminal: Compatible with the 3.5 mm diameter stereo mini plug

Headphone terminal: Compatible with the 3.5 mm diameter stereo mini plug Remote control terminal: Remote Switch RS-60E3 type terminal supported

Power source

Battery

Compatible battery packs	LP-E6NH/LP-E6N/LP-E6
Quantity used	1

USB battery charging and camera power: Using USB Power Adapter PD-E1

AC power source

AC adapter	AC-E6N
DC coupler	DR-E6

Possible shots

Configuration	Shooting method	Battery	Temperature	Battery life (Approx. number of shots) AE: 100%	
				Smooth	Power saving
	Viewfinder	LP-E6NH	23°C / 73°F	250	380
	viewiinder		0°C / 32°F	250	380
-	Screen		23°C / 73°F	360	510
			0°C / 32°F	350	510
	Eco mode (Screen)		23°C / 73°F	590	730
With battery grip BG-R10	Viewfinder	Two LP-E6NH batteries	23°C / 73°F		750
	Screen	Two LP-E6NH batteries	23°C / 73°F		1020

* With a fully charged LP-E6NH

Available operating time

Conditions of use			Temperature	Available operating time
Time available for bulb	Time available for bulb exposure		23°C / 73°F	Approx. 5 hr. 40 min.
Time available for Live View shooting		23°C / 73°F	Approx. 4 hr. 15 min.	
Time available for	4K UHD	IPB (Standard) 59.94 fps / 50.00 fps	23°C / 73°F	Approx. 1 hr. 20 min.
movie recording Movie Servo AF:	Full HD	IPB (Standard) 29.97 fps / 25.00 fps	23°C / 73°F	Approx. 2 hr. 40 min.
Disable	T UITID		0°C / 32°F	Approx. 2 hr. 25 min.
Time available for time-lapse movie	Full HD recording	Screen on	23°C / 73°F	Approx. 2 hr. 20 min.
recording	interval: 5 sec.	Screen off	23°C / 73°F	Approx. 7 hr. 55 min.
Time available for continuous playback	Movies (normal playback)		23°C / 73°F	Approx. 5 hr. 35 min.

* With a fully charged LP-E6NH

Battery information

Remaining capacity	In 1% increments 5-level indicator
Number of shots	Supported
Recharge performance	3 levels
Battery registrations	Supported (up to 6)
Battery information	Serial number, remaining capacity when removed, date

Dimensions and weight

Dimensions

(W)×(H)×(D)	Approx. 138.4×97.5×88.4 mm
(W)×(H)×(D)	Approx. 5.45×3.84×3.48 in.

* Based on CIPA guidelines.

Weight

Body (including battery and memory card)	Approx. 680 g	Approx. 23.99 oz.
Body only	Approx. 598 g	Approx. 21.10 oz.

* Weighed without body cap.

Operating environment

Operating temperature: 0-40°C / 32-104°F Operating humidity: 85% or less

Wi-Fi (Wireless LAN) communication functions

Standards compliance

Wi-Fi standards	Transmission method	Maximum link speed
IEEE802.11b	DS-SS modulation	11Mbps
IEEE802.11g	OFDM modulation	54Mbps
IEEE802.11n		72.2Mbps

Transmission frequency (Center frequency)

Frequency	2412–2462 MHz
Channels	1-11 channels

Connection, authentication, and data encryption methods

Connection method	Authentication	Encryption
Camera access point	WPA2-PSK	AES
	Open	Disable
Infrastructure	Open	WEP
		Disable
	Shared key	WEP
	WPA-PSK	TKIP AES
	WPA2-PSK	

Bluetooth

Standards compliance: Bluetooth Specification Version 4.2 compliant (Bluetooth Low Energy technology)

Transmission method: GFSK modulation

- All data above is based on Canon testing standards and CIPA (Camera & Imaging Products Association) testing standards and guidelines.
- Dimensions and weight listed above are based on CIPA Guidelines (except weight for camera body only).
- Product specifications and appearance are subject to change without notice.
- If a problem occurs with a non-Canon lens attached to the camera, contact the respective lens manufacturer.

- Trademarks
- About MPEG-4 Licensing
- Accessories

Trademarks

- Adobe is a trademark of Adobe Systems Incorporated.
- Microsoft and Windows are trademarks or registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries.
- App Store and macOS are trademarks of Apple Inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries.
- Google Play and Android are trademarks of Google LLC.
- IOS is a trademark or registered trademark of Cisco in the U.S. and other countries and is used under license.
- QR Code is a trademark of Denso Wave Inc.
- SDXC logo is a trademark of SD-3C, LLC.
- HDMI, HDMI logo, and High-Definition Multimedia Interface are trademarks or registered trademarks of HDMI Licensing LLC.
- USB Type-C[™] and USB-C[™] are trademarks of USB Implementers Forum.
- The Wi-Fi CERTIFIED logo and the Wi-Fi Protected Setup mark are trademarks of the Wi-Fi Alliance.
- The Bluetooth[®] word mark and logos are registered trademarks owned by Bluetooth SIG, Inc. and any use of such marks by Canon Inc. is under license. Other trademarks and trade names are those of their respective owners.
- All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

"This product is licensed under AT&T patents for the MPEG-4 standard and may be used for encoding MPEG-4 compliant video and/or decoding MPEG-4 compliant video that was encoded only (1) for a personal and non-commercial purpose or (2) by a video provider licensed under the AT&T patents to provide MPEG-4 compliant video. No license is granted or implied for any other use for MPEG-4 standard."

THIS PRODUCT IS LICENSED UNDER THE AVC PATENT PORTFOLIO LICENSE FOR THE PERSONAL USE OF A CONSUMER OR OTHER USES IN WHICH IT DOES NOT RECEIVE REMUNERATION TO (i) ENCODE VIDEO IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AVC STANDARD ("AVC VIDEO") AND/OR (ii) DECODE AVC VIDEO THAT WAS ENCODED BY A CONSUMER ENGAGED IN A PERSONAL ACTIVITY AND/OR WAS OBTAINED FROM A VIDEO PROVIDER LICENSED TO PROVIDE AVC VIDEO. NO LICENSE IS GRANTED OR SHALL BE IMPLIED FOR ANY OTHER USE. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION MAY BE OBTAINED FROM MPEG LA, L.L.C. SEE <u>HTTP://WWW.MPEGLA.COM</u>

* Notice displayed in English as required.

Use of genuine Canon accessories is recommended

This product is designed to achieve optimum performance when used with genuine Canon accessories. Therefore, using this product with genuine accessories is highly recommended. Canon shall not be liable for any damage to this product and/or accidents such as malfunction, fire, etc. caused by the failure of non-genuine Canon accessories (e.g., a leakage and/or explosion of a battery). Please note that repairs arising out of the malfunction of non-genuine accessories will not be covered by the warranty for repairs, although you may request such repairs on a chargeable basis.

Caution

 Battery Pack LP-E6NH is dedicated to Canon products only. Using it with an incompatible battery charger or product may result in malfunction or accidents for which Canon cannot be held liable.